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FILE 

Ohio Public Utilities 
Commission 

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION PROVIDERS 
AND POWER MARKETERS 

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and 
title (Example: Exhibit A l l Corporate Structure). All attachments should bear the legal name 
of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence 
with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketbig Division; 180 East Broad Street, 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793. 

A. 

A-l 

A-2 

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the form. 
You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disl^, for later use. 

RENEWAL INFORMATION 

Applicant intends to be renewed as: (check all that apply) 

"T3 

DRetail Generation Provider 
ElPower Marketer 

DPower Broker 
D Aggregator 

o 
o 

en 
=s: 

CO 

Z3Z 

m 
O 

cz; 
o 

m 

CD 

Applicant's legal name, address, telephone number, PUCO certificate number, and 
web site address 

Legal Name PBF Power Marketing LLC 
Address One Sylvan Way, Second Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054 
PUCO Certificate # and Date Certified 13-6S9Ea) March 15,2013 
Telephone #(973)945-0701 Web site address (if any) 

A-̂ 3 List name, address, telephone number and we b site address under which Applicant 
does business in Ohio 

Legal Name PBF Power Marketing LLC 
Address One Sylvan Way, Second Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054 
Telephone #(973> 945-0701 Web site address (if any) , 

This is to eaxtify tfeat th« iaiag-«fl appsaring &ra an 
accurato and con^let« r«production of a case file 
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A-4 List aJ] names under which the applicant does business in North America 
N/A 

A-S Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters 

Name Alan King 
Title Director ofNatural Gas and Power 
Business address One Sylvan Way, Second Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054 
Telephone # (973) 455-8973 Fax # (973) 455-8962 
E-mail address (if any) alan.king@pbfenergy.com 

A-6 Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints 

Name Alan King 
Title Director ofNatural Gas and Power 
Business address One Svlvan Wav. Second Floor. Parsippany. NJ 07054 
Telephone # (973) 455-8973 Fax # (973) 455-8962 
E-mail address (if any) alan.king@pbfenergy.com 

A-7 Applicant's address and toll-free number for customer service and complaints 

Customer Service address One Sylvan Way, Second Floor, Parsippany, NY 07054 
Toll-free Telephone # (973) 455-8973 Fax # (973) 455-8962 

E-maii address (if any) alan.king@pbfenergy.com 

A-8 Applicant's federal employer identification number # 272198489 

A-9 Applicant's form of ownership (check one) 
DSole Proprietorship DPartnership 
DLimited Liability Partnership (LLP) IZlLimited Liability Company (LLC) 
D Corporation D Other 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

A-10 Exhibit AlO "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors, partners, 
or other similar officials. 

A-l 1 Exhibit A-11 "Corporate Structure," provide a descriptio n of the applicant's corporate 
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and 
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to 
customers in North America. 

mailto:alan.king@pbfenergy.com
mailto:alan.king@pbfenergy.com
mailto:alan.king@pbfenergy.com


B. MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED; 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a ist of all jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the 
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans/' provide a description of the applicant's experience 
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing 
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with 
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. 

B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all 
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to 
be certified to provide. 

B-4 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of 
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fi*aud or for violation of any 
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 
0 No • Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Consumer 
Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

B-5 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, 
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, 
suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 
EI No DYes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial. Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

C. FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

C-1 Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports." provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide 
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why. 



C-2 Exhibit C2 "SEC Filings." provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If 
applicant does not have such filmgs, it may submit those of its parent company. If the 
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit 0 2 that 
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why. 

C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements." provide copies of the applicant's two most recent 
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified 
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this 
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life 
of the business. 

C-4 Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies of the applicant's financial 
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank 
commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements." provide two years of forecasted 
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the 
applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer. 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating." provide a statement disclosing the applicant's credit rating 
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet 
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a 
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, 
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the 
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant's parent or 
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy of the applicant's credit report from 
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcv Information," provide a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made 
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent 
years preceding the application. 

C-9 Exhibit G9 "Merger Information." provide a statement describing any dissolution or 
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the 
application. 



D. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

D-1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations" provide a written description of the operational nature of the 
applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's operations include the 
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and 
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange 
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers. 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise." given the operational nature of the applicant's 
business, provide evidence of the applicant's experience and technical expertise in 
performing such operations. 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel." provide the names, titles, e-mail addresses, 
telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in the operational 
aspects of the applicant's business. 

D-4 Exhibit D-4 "FERC Power Marketer License Number." provide a statement 
disclosing the applicant's FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers 
Only) 
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My commission expires on 
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My Commission Expires 3/14/2018 
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AFFIDAVIT 
State of lfeWjfcy:gey 

(Towh) 
f f t r & t f ^ ^ n v ss. 

County of Mfrrria : 

iVte-cjA^ C-CLivtr\J , Affiant, being duly sworn/affirmed according to law, deposes and says tliat: 

;tfe7She is tlie Aggisteuvf ^/>efa>y (Office of Affiant) oi\&F Qj^etrt^eUSina LLC (Name of Applicant); 

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant, 

1. The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the 
application for certification renewal are true and complete and that it will amend its application while 
the application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the 
application. 

2. The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity 
pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of 
Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

3. The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Sections 
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

4. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or 
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code. 

5. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fiilly with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any 
service offered or provided by the Applicant. 

6. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations 
concerning consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions. 

7. The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code 
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process. 

8. The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a 
contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements 
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Conmission of Ohio. 

9. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
the electric distribution companies, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the 
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability of the electric service in 
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the 
Commission. 

10. If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere 
to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the 
appropriate regional reliability council(s), and (3) the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only 
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering) 



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the 
information supplied in the renewal application within 30 days of such material change, including any 
change in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating 
customer complaints. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that 
he/she expECts^said-Applicant to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof. 

Ag/j^jfeLnZ-ir^c^-ggfaf 
ignature of Af9ŝ nt & Title / 

Sworn and subscribed before me this / / day of /li^fMcA—< '^'^ ' " 
Month , Year 

Signature of Official administering oath Print Name and Title L 

My commission expires on 
"EVELYN VERDON 

A Notary public of New Jersey 
My Commission Expires 3/14/2018 
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Exhibit A-12 / y f " / ^ 

PBF Power Marketing LLC 

Officers, Directors, Members 

Naiiie 

ThomsiS Nimbley 

Matthew Lucey 

Erik'Voung 

Jeffrey Dill 

'' 
Thomas O'Connor 

John Barone 

John Luke 

William Kane 

Trccia Canty 

Title '-"" . 

CliJef Hxecutive Officer 
and Director 

President and Director 

" " " 
Senior Vice President arid 
Ciiief Financial Officer 

Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel and 
Director-

Senior Vice President, 
Products 

Chief Accounting Officer, 
Controller, Assistant 
Secrefery 

Treasurer 

Director, Tax and 
Assistant Secretary 

Vice President, Senior 
Deputy General Counsel 
and Assistant Secretary 

Address 

c/o PBF Holding 
Company LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2"^ FL 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

c/o PBF Hpjding 
Coinpany LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2 ' " ' F L 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Coinpany LLC 
1 Syivan Way, 2"^ FL 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Coinpany LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2"^ FL 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Coinpany LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2'"'FL 
Pareippany, N/ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Company LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2"'* FL 
ParsippanVvNJ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Company LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2'"'FL 
Pafsippany.NJ. 07054,, .. 

c/o PBF Holding 
Coinpanv LLC 
1 Syivaii Way, 2"'' FL 
Parsippany. NJ 07054 

c/o PBF Holding 
Company LLC 
1 Sylvan Way, 2'^FL 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

Telephone Number 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455.7500 

973.455,7500 

973.455.7500 



A - 1 1 Corporate Structure 

PBF Power Marketing Organizational Chart 

PBF Energy, Inc. 

PBF Energy Company, LLC 

PBF Holding Company. LLC 

PBF Power Marketing, LLC 



Exhib i ts B 1 - 5 App l i can t Manager ia l Capabi l i ty and Exper ience 

B-1 Jurisdictions of Operation 

PJM Interconnection 
AECO - Paulsboro Refinery 
DPL-DE City Refinery 

B-2 Experience & Plans 

PBF Power Marketing will be purchasing energy for only its own load. It will not 
be serving any other customers. PBF Power Marketing will be purchasing off the 
PJM Real Time and Day Ahead markets and possibly purchasing blocks of 
energy from other wholesale participants. 

PBF Power Marketing has been acting as its own supplier on the PJM wholesale 
market for about the past three years at its Paulsboro, NJ and Delaware City, DE 
refineries. Prior to that, the DE City refinery was owned by the Valero Energy 
Company and, for the five years of Valero's ownership, the DE City refinery 
purchased and sold energy on the PJM wholesale markets. Both Valero and 
PBF Power Marketing utilized the assistance of Mr. James T. Fuess of VWiite 
Pine Energy to manage their transactions. 

B-3 Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations 

There are no such pending or past rulings. 

B-4 Disclose whetlier the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any 
principal officer of the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud 
or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five 
years. 

X No • Yes 

B-5 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had 
any certification, license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric 
service denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two 
years. 

X No D Yes 



Exhibit C-1 Annual Reports 



PBF Energy Inc. 2013 Annual Report 



The PBF Energy Refining System 

PBF owns three oil refineries located in Ohio, Delaware and New Jersey: 

Aggregate throughput capacity of approximately 540,000 barrels per day 

Weighted average Nelson Complexity of 11.3 

Fifth largest U.S. independent refiner 

100% of PADD1 coking capacity 
Recent rail infrastructure investment on East Coast provides the entire system access to WTI-
based, cost-advantaged North American crude supply 



Toledo Refinery 

170,000 bpd tight, sweet crude refinery 
9.2 Nelson Complexity 
Mid-Continent location with access to cost-advantaged crudes 
Increasing regional sweet crude supply 
Truck and rail unloading infrastructure to run local crudes 
High-conversion refinery with distillate and gasoline yield of approximately of SS% 

Delaware City Refinery 

190,000 bpd refinery located on 5,000-acre site on Delaware River 
11.3 Nelson Complexity 
Medium and heavy sour crude refinery 
64% of East Coast coking capacity 
145,000 bpd crude-by-rait discharge facilities, 40,000 bpd of which are Canadian heavy crudes 
Reconfigured crude state to focus on cost-advantaged North American crudes and displaced 
waterborne crudes 
Export capability through Delaware River 

Paulsboro Refinery 

180,000 bpd refinery located on Delaware River 
13.2 Nelson Complexity 
Complex refinery with Group I lubricant production 
Connection to major Northeast pipelines 
Dedicated jet fuel pipeline to Philadelphia airport 
36% of East Coast coking capacity 
Export capabttlty through Delaware River 



TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 

2013 was a developmental year for PBF Energy as we continued to progress our strategy of increasing 
access to cost-advantaged North American crudes, while maintaining our flexibility to take advantage of 
price dislocations in the waterborne crude market. 

Our results for 2013 reflect strong operational performance in the face of weaker benchmark crack 
spreads and generally narrower crude oil differentials. Operating Income was $320 million for the year, 
and adjusted pro forma net income was $1.48 per share, on a fully-exchanged and fully-diluted basis. 
We finished 2013 with a cash balance of $77 million, total liquidity in excess of $600 million and a debt 
to capitalization ratio of 30%. 

Total capital expenditures for 2013, net of rail car purchases and sales, were $313 million, which include 
a number of margin-improvement investments and a major turnaround. Projects were completed on 
the East Coast that allow Paulsboro and Delaware City to produce 100% ultra-tow sulfur dieset or ultra-
low sulfur heating oil. This transition gives us the ability to pursue the products with the highest netback 
for the company as seasonal demand changes. The coker and hydrocracker turnaround completed at 
Delaware City in the fourth quarter followed a record 26~month run, of the coker complex, which is both 
a safety and operational benchmark. 

A paiticutar bright spot for the year was PBF's overall performance in the Health, Safety and 
Environmental (HSE) areas. PBF Energy maintains the overriding goals of working safely, running reliably 
and operating in an environmentally,responsible manner. In 2013, P̂pF achieved many HSE milestones 
ijiclydiog the tCjCertificatioii of oi|r Pafil^borp Rjefineiy as^ yolMRtar^^Rroteptton program Star Site by the 

^ ^* f :. %^pup'atl6rial Safejty and Health Acfmlniitratiori (''pSHA"), and a nevv employee safê ty record at our 
" Delaware Cftyreifini^ry by havmgortly'3̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  We 
continue tp work with Federal, State and^i^^ 

\'\ " :;. • ^ ^oUr status as reispdnsible neighboreahd gboci corporate citizeri|. 

Ourtop priority, as^always, is to operate;6u|^facilities in a sgfe,.retiabll^Sni elivlronmentally responsible 
;;y :,^ .manner. V ê fully Uhclfe''r^nd that without this foundation firmly in place, we cannot be successful. 

Safety performance in j | i three refineries was better than the refining Industry average with our refining 
system's average totalf||)RlQyee recordable incident rate (TRIR) at 0.71 versus the industry average of 
0.89. Our contractor TRlftilsoliQiproveii to 0.46 versus an industry average of 0.77, 

We continued to invest in our East Coast rail facilities a^d have committed to lead the industry when it 
comes to the safety of our.rail Operations. In Fefcir.uaî '̂ Gis, we completed our 105,00p barrel per day 
light crudecFnioad.ing facility^nd have since announced plans to e^piind its|cap3city to |pproximately 
lgb;^C^ jbairels per day by adding additionaJMtoiaf i^ig^giq^^ O^i^^i^O(^Mit0^^d^^ heavy crude 
uniQadifefacility was bperationahfor^all,oi'2b4ji^ndMilarSirn%^ our heavy cru( * - J junjctadirtg facility was bperationahfor^all of 201§^|y^^^eain^h^ crude 

, ' ; / :t]î charge capacity to 80,000 barrels per day. ̂ lOh'g *wftH <^f "rlilfactlit^ expansions, we are also 
continuing to grow our ^BF Energy-controlled fieet of rail cars. 

The rail car fleet that P|F Energy has ordered, and Is taking delivery of. Is comprised entirely of DOT-
l l l A cars, which are G^the latest design arid have many improved safety features compared to later-

; model cars. The thickef ;i||i^ls, half-head shields and other protective coverings improve the safety 
> t; performance of thfirars. ;^^r iengy has;com|nl.tted to use ontythese new-style DOT-lllA cars fpr the 

ffi?^^>^; A of crude oil tbj3ur w K I ' ^ ^ O ^ jefinery ai}d this practice will be fully iri place In the fifst half pf 
i^s.^:^^^^|?Q^^ BBF Energy will cqhtioH.^tooiS^^ilgl^^upp'brter ofjncreasmg the safety of rail operations "^ BBF Energy will CQhtioire to & 

^^he '^n t l re logistics eharn. -̂ ' 

l i . - : i -A : - : - ' -



- -*;"-,->,:^.rf*«^' 

^ ' ; r»V,-,Vi\'ijj-fj^..,: 

We believe our efforts to expand our access to North Amerrcan crude oils and maintaining our 
traditional access to water-borne crude oils have positioned our East Coast assets to take advantage of 
any opportunities that the market might offer. Our East Coast refineries are advantaged In two 
important areas relative to our competltton in PADD 1. First, the Delaware City refinery's 5,000-acre 
setting has provided us with the unique opportunity, for an East Coast asset, to build an extensive onsite 
rail crude oil unloading facility versus using third party facilities to trans-load and transport these crudes. 
This results in an embedded $2.50 to $3.00 per barret lower cost of supplying these crudes to our East 
Coast refineries versus other refiners in the region. Secondly, and importantly, our Delaware City and 
Paulsboro refineries remain the only refineries In the region with the units necessary to process heavy 
and sour crude oils. 

As the markets have adjusted to increased North American crude oil production, we have seen several 
favorable price dislocations In the crude oil market which have allowed us to take advantage of wider 
differentials and realize lower landed crude costs at our refineries. We believe these favorable price 
dislocations for both North American and water-borne crude oil will continue to occur as North 
American refineries adjust their inputs to reflect the new realities of crude supply and availability in 
North America. We feel that PBF Energy is positioned to move quickly to capitalize on any favorable 
pricing opportunities, whether they are North American or water-born barrels. 

As we look forward to the year ahead and beyond, we remain focused on Increasing shareholder value 
through both organic and external growth opportunities. Our board and management remain 
committed to entiandng shareholder value and continue to support a regular annual dividend, paid 
quarterly, of $:lv20 per share. 

Fpllpwing the initial piiblic offering in December 2012, we have been busy in the capital markets. Our 
private ^Mltyfpohsprs continued to reduce their holdings in the company through three secpndary-
(̂ SJCiHEVorie iri 3ime 2C^3, a se.cond in January 2014 and a third in March 2014. In total, bui* sponsors " 

! ibid atrTibliî 4e*m^ bJMl: jRO and reduced their holdings from over 70% to just oyer 
")|;^^jMlNyi th^3signifiM^^ 
-_^u.ij—I ^u^ j-.-jr^_j.^..„ii—u.i.*..*_n '-;|pngTterm goats has Liicreased, . 

provides our bond Investors with increased fii1(I^ilit'j^'r£gajr^|jg'|l3^^ 
tor registered notes which 

T^ih€!n^g|^^^^,: 

Before concluding, we would like to thank all of PBF's employees, at both oUr rlifirle^^s and our 
headquarters, whose dedication and commitment to excellence are the foundations fof'^uf^uccess. 
Additipnatly, we thank our Board of Directors for the oversight and leadership that they provid5|. 

Finally, we thank our shareholders. We are welt aware of the investment and confidence you have 
placed in PBF and we wilt continue to work diligently to reward that trust: 

' ^^- '?f- '^-^ 

Sincerely, 

ii 

Tom CMalley 
F.xectiVive Chairman 

Tom Ni^ibley ; 
Chief Executive Officer 



Toledo Refinery 



UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washlnglon,D.C 20549 

FORM 10-K 

(Marie one) 

m ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended: December 31,2013 

Or 

n TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

For the transition period from to 
Commiuion File Number: 001-35764 
Commission FileNumben 333-186007 

Commlsston File Nnmber. 333-186007-07 

PBF ENERGY INC. 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
PBF FINANCE CORPORATION 

(Eucf name orrcststnHt is ipedflnf In fts diarter] 

DELAWARE 45-3763855 
DELAWARE 27-2198168 
DELAWARE 45-2685067 

(SUU tr Mher jgrUdklion tt (IJU. CatpIo)«r 
hinrpanUlMi »r ontantanllon) IdMlUkatlDa No.) 

One Sylvan Way. Second Floor 
Parsippany, New Jersey 07054 

fAddrui aT principal tuniitvc edlMi) (Zip Code) 

Delaware 45-3763855 

(Sot* w »lb*r iHriidkllaii t t IUH.S. Eapl^er 
hicArponrihM or Miuiiz*ti«fl) Mcatinuiian N«.} 

One Sylvan Way, Second Floor 
Pa rsfppany. New J e r s ^ 07054 

(Aildim trpriacipil uccuttvc ankn) (Zip C«de) 

Registrants* te1q>baae number, Indudfaif tret code; (973) 4S5-7S00 
iiccurJdcs re^^tcrcd pursuantloSecflM 12(b) of the Act: 

Tltl* tf EMcfe Cfan NameorEack EMhangeao Which Regialcrtd 

Class AComman Stock, S0.001 parvatue New York Slock Exchange 

Secarltiei rei^Hred pumiantto Secllon U(K)orUtcAct: None. 



Indicate by dieclc mark if ^ registrant is a well^own seasoned issuer, as delined in Ru1e40S of flic Securities Act. 

PBF Energy Inc. E! Yes D No 

PBF Holding Company LLC D Yes E) No 

PBF Finance CorpOTBtion DYes 123 No 
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PARTI 

This combined Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed by PBF Energy Inc. ("PBF Energy"), PBF 
Holding Company LLC ("PBF Holding") and PBF Finance Corporation ("PBF Finance"). Each Registrant 
hereto is ̂ Iing on its own behalf all of the information confined in this report that relates to such Registrant. 
Each Registrant hereto is not filing any information that does not relate to such Registrant, and therefore makes 
no representation as to any such information. PBF Energy is the sole managing member of, and own^ of an 
equity interest representing approximately 40.9% of the outstanding economic interests in, PBF Energy 
Company LLC ("PBF LLC") as of December 31,2013. PBF Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF 
LLC and PBF Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF Holding. PBF Holding is tiie parent company for 
PBF LLC's operating subsidiaries. 

PBF Holding is an indirect subsidiary of PBF Energy, representing 100% of PBF Energy's 
consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31,2013 and constituting 100% of PBF Energy's revenue 
generating assets as of December 31,2013. 

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms "we." "us," and "our*' refer to boft PBF Energy and 
PBF Holding and consolidated subsidiaries, including PBF LLC, PBF Investments LLC ("PBF Investments"), 
PBF Services Company LLC, PBF Power Marketing LLC, Toledo Refining Company LLC ("Toledo 
Refining"), Paulsboro Natural Gas Pipeline Company LLC, Paulsboro Refining Company LLC ("Paulsboro 
Refining"), Delaware Pipeline Company LLC, Delaware City Refining Company LLC ("Delaware City 
Refining"), Delaware City Terminaling Company LLC, PBF Logistics GP LLC, PBF Logistics LP and PBF 
Riul Logistics Company LLC. Discussions or areas of this report that either apply only to PBF Energy or PBF 
Holding are clearly noted in such sections. 

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we make certain forward-looking statements, including 
statements regarding our plans, strategies, objectives, expectations, intentions, and resources, under the safe 
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You should read our forward-looking 
statements together with our disclosures under the heading: "Cautionary Statement for the Purpose of Safe 
Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995." When considering forward-looking 
statem^its, you should keep in mind ̂ e risk factors and other cautionary statements set forth tn this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K under "Risk Factors" in Item 1 A. 

ITEM. 1 BUSINESS 

Overview 

We are one of the largest independent petroleum refiners and suppliers of unbranded transportation fuels, 
heating oil, petrochemical feedstocks, lubricants and other petroleum products in the United States. We sell our 
products throughout the Northeast and Midwest of the United States, as well as in otiier regions of the United States 
and Can^la, and are able to ship products to other international destinations. We were formed in 2008 to pursue 
acquisitions of crude oil refineries and downstream assets in Nortfi America. We currently own and operate three 
domestic oil refineries and related assets, which we acquired in 2010 and 2011. Our refineries have a combined 
processing capacity, known as tfvoughput, of approximately 540,000 bpd, and a weighted-average Nelson 
Complexity Index of 11.3. 

Our three refineries are located in Toledo, Ohio, Delaware City, £>elaware and Paulsboro, New Jersey. Our 
Mid-Continent refinery at Toledo processes ligbt, sweet crude, has a throughput c£^acity of 170,000 bpd and a 
Nelson Complexity Index of9.2. The majority ofToledo's WTI-based crude is delivered via pipelines that originate 
in both Canada and the United States. Since our acquisition of Toledo in 2011, we have added additional tmck and 
rail crude unloading capabilities that provide feedstock sourcing flexibility for tfie refinery and enables Toledo to 
run a more cost-advantaged crude slate. Our East Coast refineries at Delaware City and Paulsboro have a combined 
refining capacity of 370,000 bpd and Nelson Complexity Indices of 11.3 and 13.2, respectively. These high-
conversion refineries process primarily medium and heavy, sour crudes and have historically received die bulk of 
their feedstock via ships and baizes on the Delaware River. 



During 2012 and 2013, we expanded and upgraded existing on-site railroad infi^tructure at our Delaware 
City refinery, including the e}q>ansion of the crude rail unloading fecilities that was completed in February 2013. 
Currently, crude delivered to this facility is consumed at our Delaware City refinery. We also transport some of 
the crude delivered by rail from Delaware City via barge to our Paulsboro refinery or other third party destinations. 
The Delaware City rail unloading facility allows our East Coast refineries to source WTi based crudes from Western 
Canada and the Midcontinent, wh idi we bel ieve provides significant cost advantages versus traditional Brent based 
international crudes. 

PBF Biergy, a Delaware corporation formed on Novwnber 7,201J, is a holding company that manages its 
consolidated subsidiary, PBF LLC. Our sole asset is a controlling equity interest as of December31, 2013 of 
approximately 40.9% in PBF LLC as discussed more fully in "History" below. 

Available Information. 

Our website address is www.pbfenergy.cora. Information contained on our website is not part of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form lO-Q, current reports on 
Form 8-K, and any other materials filed with (or furnished to) the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) by 
v̂  are available on our website (under "Investors") fi^ee of chai;ge, soon after we file or furnish such material. In 
this same location, we also post pur corporate governance guidelines, code of business conduct and ethics, and the 
charters of the committees of our board of directors. These documents are available free of charge in print to any 
stockholder fliat makes a written request to flie Secretao'. PBF Eneigy Inc., One Sylvan Wity, Second Floor, 
Parsippany, New Jersey 07054. 

History 

PBF Energy is the sole managing member of PBF LLC. PBF Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF 
LLC and PBF Finuice is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF Holding. PBF Holding is the parent company for PBF 
LLCs operating subsidiaries. 

On December 18,2012, we completed die initial public offering of23,S67.686 shares of ourClassAcommon 
stock at an offering price of $26.00 per share. In connection with the offering, our shares of Class A common stock 
began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PBF*. The proceeds to us from die offering, 
before deductmg underwriting discounts, were approximately $612.8 million of which we used approximately 
$5712 million to purchase 21,967,686 PBF LLC Series A Units from our financial sponsors, fimds ̂ h'ated witfi 
The Blackstone Group L.P. ("Blackstone") and First Reserve Management L.P. ("First Reserve"). 

Additionally, on June 12,2013, we completed a public offering of 15,950,000 shares of our Class A common 
stock at a price of $27.00 per share, less underwriting discounts and commissions, in a secondary public offering 
(the "June 2013 Secondary Offering"). All of the shares were sold by funds affiliated with Blackstone and First 
Reserve, in connection with tfiis offering, Blackstone and Firet Reserve exchanged 15,950,0(M> Series A Units of 
PBF LLC for an equivalent number of shares of our Class A common stock. The holders of PBF LLC Series B 
Units, which include certain executive officers of PBF Energy, had the right to receive a portion of the proceeds 
of the sate of tfie PBF Energy Class A common stock by Blackstone md First Reserve. 

As of December 31,2013, Blackstone and First Reserve and our executive officers wid directors and certain 
employees beneficially owned 57,201,674 PBF LLC Series A Units (we refer to all of the boUers of the PBF LLC 
Series A Units as **lhe members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy") and we owned 39,665,473 PBF LLC Series 
C Units, and the merabCTs of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy through their holdings of Class B common stock 
have 59.1% of the vexing power in us, and the holders of our issued and outstanding shares of Class A common 
stockhave40.9%ofthe voting power in us. As a result ofthe ownership ofthe Class Bcommmi stock and the 
PBF LLC Series A Units, prior to the January 2014 secondary offering discussed below under "Recent 
Developments", Blackstone and First Reserve controlled us as of Decemb^ 31,2013, and we in tam^ as ttie sole 
managing member of PBF LLC, control PBF LLC and its subsidiaries. 

http://www.pbfenergy.cora


PBF Energy consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries and records a noncontrolluig 
interest in its consolidated financial statements representing the economic interests of the members of PBF LLC 
other than PBF Energy. PBF LLC is PBF Energy's predecessor for accounting purposes. Our financial statements 
and results of operations for periods prior to die completion of our initial public offering are diose of PBF LLC. 

See "Item lA. Risk Factors" and "Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director 
Independence." 

The diagram below depicts our organizational structure as of December 31,2013: 
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Recent Developments 

On January 6,2014, we completed a public offering of 15,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock at 
a price of $28.00 per share, less underwriting discounts and commissions, in a secondary public offering (the 
"Januaiy 2014 Secondary Offering"). All of the shares were sold by funds affiliated with Blackstone and First 
Reserve. In connection with this offering, Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged 15,000,000 Series A Units of 
PBF hlC for an equivalent number of shares of our Class Acommon stock, which increased PBF &iergy's interest 
in PBF LLC to approximately 56.4%. The holders of PBF LLC Series B Units, which include certain executive 
ofHcers of PBF Energy, had the right to receive a portion of the proceeds of the sale of the PBF Energy Class A 
common stock by Blackstone and First Reserve. Completion of the January 2014 Secondary Offering is estimated 
to increase our tax receivable agreement liability to $439.6 million due to the tax benefit expected to be generated 
as a result of the exchange in connection with the secondary offering and the coiresponding tax benefits expected 
to be generated in future years from this transaction. 

Refining Operations 

We own and operate three refineries, all located in regions with currently favorable market dynamics where 
finished product demand exceeds operating refining capacity. We produce a variety of products at each of our 
refineries, including gasoline, ULSD, heating oil, jet f^el, lubricants, petrochemicals and asphalt. We sell our 
products throughout the Northeast and Midwest of the United States, as well as in odier regions of the United 
States and Canada, and are able to ship products to other international destinations. 

Delaware City Refinery 

Acquisition and ReStarL Through our subsidiaries, Delaware City Refining and Delaware Pipeline 
Company LLC, we acquired tiie idle Delaware City refinery and its related assets, including a petroleum product 
terminal, a petroleum products pipeline and an electric generation facility, on June 1,2010 from affiliates of Valero 
for approximately $220.0 million in cash, consisting of approximately $170.0 million for die refinery, terminal 
and pipeline assets and $50.0 million for the power plant complex locate on the property. 

At die time of acquisition, we reached an agreement with the State of Delaware that provided for a five-
year operating permit and up to fq)proximately $45.0 million of economic support to re-start die fecility, and 
negotiated a new long-torm contract widi the relevant union at the refinery. As of December 31, 2013, we had 
received $39.4 million in economic support from the State of Delaware under this agreement. We believe that the 
refinery's ability to process tower quality crudes allows us to captwe a higher margin as these lower quality crudes 
are typically priced at discounts to benchmark crudes, and to compete effectively in aregion where product demand 
currently significantty exceeds refining capacity. 

We restarted tiie Delaware City Refinery in October 2011. Since our acquisition through December31, 
2013, we have invested more than $700.0 million in turnaround and re-^tart projects at Delaware City, as well as 
in the recent strategic development of crude rail unloading facilities. In May 2012, we commenced crude shipments 
via rail into a newly developed crude rail unloading facility at our Delaware Q'ty refin wy. We have expanded and 
upgraded the existing on-site railroad infrastructure, including the expansion of die crude rait unloading facilities 
which, as of February 2013 were capable of discharging approximatety 110,000 bpd, consisting of 40,000 bpd of 
heavy crude oil and 70,000 bpd of light crude oil. However, due to greater operating efRciency, discharge capacity 
forliglitcrijde oil at our dual-loop track has increased from 70,000 bpd to approximately 105,000 bpd. In conjunction 
wiih the development of our rail crude unloading facilities ^ Delaware City, we constructed a railcar storage yard 
with capacity for 330 railcars that is mtegral to railcar staging and storage and helps facilitate daity rail trafHc at 
the refinery. We are also adding additional unloading spots to the dual-loop track to increase unloading capabilities 
at that facility to approximately 130,000 bpd. Also in 2013 we commenced a third rail crude offloading prefect 
to add an additional 40,000 bpd of heavy crude rail unloading capability at the refinery, which is expected to be 
completed by the second half of 2014. Completion of flieM additional rail projects is expected to increase our 
discharge ci^acity of heavy crude oil from 40,000 bpd to 80,000 bpd and bring the total rail crude unloading 



capability up to 210,000 bpd by the end of 2014, subject to the delivery of coiled and insulated railcars, die 
development of crude rail loading infrastructure m Canada and the use of unit trains. 

We have entered into agreements to lease or purchase a total of 5,900 nulcars, mcluding 4,600 coiled and 
insulated rails cars, whidi are cap^le of fransporting Canadian heavy crude oils, and U300 general purpose cars, 
which we Intend to use to transport lighter crude oils. In addition to the construction of our rail unloading facilities 
at Delaware City and the execution of our railcar procurement strategy, we also created dedicated crude-by-rail 
acquisition and rail logistics teams. These teams, staffed by PBF employees in our corporate headquarters, at the 
£)elaware City refinery and in our field ofUces in Calgary, Alberta and Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, are responsible 
for crude procur^nent, logistics via rail and monitoring crude-by-rail offloading. 

Operv/eiK The Delaware City refinery is located on a 5,000-acre site, widi access to wateibome cargoes 
and an extensive distribution network of pipelines, barges and tankers, truck and rail. Delaware City is a fully 
integrated operation that receives crude via rail at the crude unloading fecility, or ship or barge at its docks located 
on the Delaware River, The crude and other feedstocks are transported, via pipes, to an extensive tank ferm vhere 
t h ^ are stored until processing. In addition, there is a 17-bay, 50,000 bpd capacity truck loading rack located 
adjacent to the refinery and a 23-mile interstate pipeline tiiat are used to distribute clean products. 

The Delaware City refinery has a throughput capacity of 190,000 bpd and a Nelson Complexity Index of 
11.3. As a result of its configuration and process units, Delaware City has die ci^ability of processing a slate of 
heavy crudes widi a high concentration of high sulfur crudes and is one of the largest and most complex refmeries 
on theEastCoasLTheDelawareCity refinery is one oftwo heavy crude coking refineries, the other being Paulsboro, 
on the Bast Coast of the United States with coking c^>acity equal to approximately 25% of crude caf^city. 

Hie Delaware City refinery processes a variety of medium to heavy, sour crude oils. Hie refinery has laige 
conversion capacity with its 82,000 bpd FCC unit, 47,000 bpd FCU and 18,000 bpd hydrocracking unit with 
vacuum distillation. Hydrogen is provided via the refinery's steam methane reformer and continuous catalytic 
reformer. 

Delaware City Process Flow Diagram 



The following table ̂ proximates the Delaware City refinery's major process unit capacities. Unh 
capachies are shown in barrels per stream day. 

Nimcptate 
Refinery Unib Capacity 

Crude Distillation Unit 190,000 
Vacuum Distillation Unit 102,000 
Fluid Catatytic Cracking Unit (FCC) 82,000 
Hydrotreating Units 160,000 
Hydrocracking Unit 18,000 
Catalytic Reforming Unit (CCR) 43.000 
Benzene / Toluene Extraction Unit 15,000 
Butane Isomerization Unit (ISOM) 6,000 
Alky lation Unit (Alky) 11,000 
Polymerization Unit (Poly) 16,000 
Fluid Coking Unit (FCU/ Fluid Coker) 47,000 

Feedstocks andSuppfyArrangements. In April 2011, we entered into acrude and feedstock supply a^«ement 
with Statoil that expires on December 31,2015. Pursuant to the agreement as amended in October 2012, we direct 
Statoil to purchase waterborne crude and other feedstocks for Delaware City and Statoil pun;;hases these products 
on ̂ e spot market or through term agreements. Accordingly, Statoil enters into, on our behalf, hedging arrangements 
to protect against changes in prices between the time of purchase and die time of processing the feedstocks. In 
addition to procurement, Statoil arranges transportation and insurance for these waterborne deliveries of crude and 
feedstock supply and we pay Statoil a per barrel fee for their procurement and logistics services. Statoil generally 
holds title to the waterborne crude and feedstocks until we process the crude or feedstocks through our process 
units. We psty Statoil on a daily basis for the coiresponding volume of crude or feedstocks that are consumed in 
conjunction with die refining process. This crude suppty and feedstock arrangement helps us reduce the amount 
of investment we are required to maintain in crude inventories and, as aresuh, helps us manage our woricing capital. 

Product Offtake. Prior to June 30, 2013, we sold the bulk of E>elaware City's clean products to MSCG 
through an offtake agreem^t. Under the offtake agreement, MSCG purchased 100% of our finished clean products 
at Delaware City, which included gasoline, heating oil and jet fuel, as well as our intermediates. During the term 
of the offtake agreement, we sold the remainder of our refined products directly to a variety of customers on the 
spot market or through term agreements. Subsequent to the termination of the offtake agreement, we market and 
sel I al t of our refined products independently to a variety of customers on the spot market or through term agreement. 

Inventory Intermediation Agreement. On June 26. 2013, the Company entered into an Inventory 
Intermediation Agreement with J. Aron ('Inventory Intermediation Agreement") to support the operations of the 
Delaware City refinery, which commenced upon the termination of the product offtake agreement with MSCG. 
Pursuant to the Inventory Intermediation Agreement, J. Aron purchased all of the finished and mtermediate products 
(collectively the "Products") located at the refinery upon termmation of die MSCG product offtake agreement. J. 
Aron purchases the Products produced and delivered into the refinery's storage tanks on a daily basis. J. Aron 
further ^rees to sell to us on a daily basis the Products delivered out of the refinery's storage tanks. 

Tankage Ct^city. The Delaware City refinery has total storage capacity of approximatety 10.0 million 
barrels. Of the total, 18 tanks with approximately 3.6 million barrels of storage capacity are dedicated to crude oil 
and other feedstock storage with the remainir^ approximately 6.4 million barrels allocated to finished products, 
intermcdi^es and other products. 

Energy and Other Utilities. Under normal operating conditions, the Delaware City refinery consumes 
approximately 55,000 MMBTU per day of natural gas. The Delaware City refinety has a 280 MW power plant 
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located on-site diat consists oftwo natural gas-fueled turbines widi combined edacity of s^proximatety 140 MW 
and four turbo-generators with combined nameplate cfv>acity of approximately 140 MW. Collectivety, this power 
plant produces electricity in excess of Delaware City's refinery load of approxunately 90 MW. Excess electricity 
is sold into die Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland, or PJM, grid. Steam is primarily produced by a combination 
of three dedicated boilers and supplemented by secondary boilers at the FCC and coker. 

Paulsboro Refinery 

Acquisition. We acquired the entities that owned the Paulsboro refinery (including an associated neural gas 
pipeline) on December 17,2010. from \felero for ^proximately $357.7 million, excludmg working coital. The 
purchase price excludes inventory purchased on our behalf by MSCG and Statoil. We invested approximately 
$60.0 million in capital in early 2011 to complete a scheduled turnaround at the refinery. 

Overview. Paulsboro has a throughput capacity of 180,000 bpd and aNelson Complexity Index of 13 J2. The 
Paulsboro refinety is located on approximately 950 acres on the Delaware River in Paulsboro. New Jersey, just 
south of Philadelphia and approximately 30 mites away from Delaware City. Paulsboro receives crude and 
feedstocks via its marine teiminal on the Delaware River. Paulsboro is one oftwo operating refineries on the East 
Coast with coking edacity, the other being Delaware City. Major units at the Paulsboro refinery include crude 
distillation units, vacuum distillation units, an FCC unit, a delayed coking unit, a lube oil processing unit and a 
propane deasphalting unit 

The Paulsboro refinery processes a variety of medium and heavy, sour crude oils. The Paulsboro refinery 
predominantly produces gasoline, heating oil and jet fuel and also manufactures Group 1 base oils or lubricants. 
In addition to its finished clean products slate, Paulsboro produces asphalt and petroleum coke. 

Paulsboro Refinery Process Flow Diagram 
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The following table approximates the Paulsboro refinery's major process unh capacities. Unit capacities 
are shown in barrels per stream day, 

Nameplate 
Retinery Unit* Capacity 

Crude Distillation Units 168,000 
Vacuum Distillation Units 83.000 
Fluid Catalytic Cracking Unit (FCC) 55,000 
Hydrotreating Units 141,000 
Catalytic Reforming Unit (CCR) 32,000 
Atkytation Unit (Alky) 11,000 
Lube Oil Processing Unit 12,000 
Delayed Coking Unit (Coker) 27.000 
Propane Deasphalting Unit 11,000 

Feedstocks and Suppty Arrangements. We have a contract with Saudi Aramco pursuant to which we have 
been purchasing up to approximately 100,000 bpd of crude oil from Saudi Aramco that is processed at Paulsboro. 
Vas crude purchased is priced off ASCI. 

In addition, under a crude and feedstock suppty agreement with Statoil that was terromated effective 
March 31,2013, we directed Statoil to purchase crude and other feedstocks for Paulsboro and Statoil purchased 
the crude and feedstocks on the spot market Accordingly, Statoil entered into, on our behalf, hedging arrangements 
to protect against changes in prices between the time of purchase and the time of processing the feedstocks. In 
addition to procurement, Statoil generally arranged transportation and insurance for the crude and feedstock supply 
and we paid Statoil a per barrel fee for tiieir procurement and logistics services. Statoil held tide to the crude and 
feedstocks until we ran the crude or feedstocks through our process units. We paid Statoil on a daily basts for the 
corresponding volume of crude or feedstocks that were consumed in conjunction widi the refining process. 

Product Offtake. Prior to June 30,2013, we sold the bulk of Paulsboro's clean products to MSCG through 
our offtake agreement. With the exception of certain jet fuel and lubricant sales. MSCG purchased 100% of our 
finished clean products and uitermediates under the offtake agreement. During the term of the offtake a^eement, 
we sold die rem^under of our refined products directly to a variety of customers on the spot market or through term 
agreements. Subsequent to the termination of the offtake agreement, we maricet and sell all of our refined products 
independently to a variety of customers on the spot market or through term agreements. 

Inventory Intermediation Affvement. On June 26, 2013, the Company entered into an Inventory 
Intermediation Agreement with J. Aron to supp<»rt the operations of the Paulsboro refinery, which commenced 
upon the termination of the product offtake agreement with MSCG. Pursuant to the Inventoiy Int^mediation 
Agreement, J. Aron purchased all of the Products located at Paulsboro upon termination of the product offt^e 
agreement. J. Aron purchases die Products produced and delivered into the refinery's storage tanks on a daity basis. 
J. Aron Rirther agrees to sell to us on a daily basis the Products delivered out of the refinery's storage tanks. 

Tankage Capacity. The Paulsboro refinery has total storage edacity of approximately 7.5 million barrels. 
Of the total, ̂ proximately 2.1 million barrels are dedicated to crude oil storage with the remaining 5.4 million 
barrels allocated to finished products, intermediates and other products. 

Enei'gy and Other Utilities. Under normal operating conditions, the Paulsboro refinery consumes 
approximately 30,000 MMBTU per day of natural gas. The Paulsboro refinery is virtually self-sufficient for its 
electrical power requirements. The refinery supplies ̂ proximately 90% of ite 63 MW load through a combination 
of four generatot^ with a nam^late capacity of 78 MW, tn addition to a 30 MW ̂ s turiiine generator and two 15 
M W steam turbine generators located at die Paulsboro utility plant. In die event that Paulsboro requires additional 
electricity to operate the refineiy, suppl^nental power is available through a local utility. Paulsboro is connected 
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to die grid via three separate 69 KV aerial feeders and has the ability to run entirely on imported power. Steam is 
primarily produced by three boilers, each with continuous rated capacity of 300.000-lb/hr at 900-psi. In addition, 
Paulsboro has a heat recoveiy steam generator and a number of waste beat boilers tiiroughout die refinery that 
supplement the steam generation capacity. Paulsboro's current hydrogen needs are met by the hydrogen supply 
from the reformer. In addition, the refinery employs a standalone steam methane reformer that is capable of 
producing 10 MMSCFD of 99% pure hydrogen. This ancillary hydrogen plant is utilized as a back-up source of 
hydrogen for the refinery's |»ocess units. 

Toledo Refinery 

Acquisition. "Hurough our subsidiary. Toledo Refining, we acquired the Toledo refinery on March 1,2011, 
from Sunoco for approximately $400.0 million, excluding working capital. We also purchased refined and certain 
intermediate products invmtoiy for approximately $299.6 million, and MSCG purchased the refinery's crude oil 
mventory on our behalf Additionally, included in the terms of the sale was a five-year participation paym«it of up 
to $125.0 million payable to Sunoco based upon post-acquisition earnings of the refinery, of which $103.6 million 
was paid in 2012 and the balance paid in 2013. 

Overview. Toledo has a throughput capacity of approximately 170,000 bpd and aNelson Complexity Index 
of 9.2. Toledo processes a state of light, sweet crudes from Canada, the Midcontinent, the Bakken region and the 
U.S. Gulf Coast. Toledo produces finished products including gasoline and ULSD, in addition to a variety of high-
value petrochemicals including nonene, xylene, tetramer and toluene. 

The Toledo refineiy is located on a 282-{u:re site near Toledo, Ohio, approximatety 60 miles from Detroit 
Major units at the Toledo refinery include an FCC unit, a hydrocracker, an all^lation unit and a UDEX unit. Crude 
is delivered to the Toledo refinery through three prunary pipelines: (I) Enbridge from the north, (2) Captine from 
the south and (3) Mid-Valley from die south. Crude is also delivered to a nearby terminal by rait and from local 
sources by mick to a truck unloading fecility within the refinery. 

Toledo Refinery Process Flow Diagram 
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Hie following table approximates the Toledo refinery's major process unit capacities. Unit capacities are 
shown in barrels per stream day. 

Nameplate 
Reflnery Units Capacity 

Crude Distillation Unit 170,000 
Fluid Catalytic Cracking Unit (FCC) 79,000 
Hydrotreating Units 95,000 
Hydrocracking Unit (HCC) 45,000 
Catalytic Reforming Units 45,000 
Alkylation Unit (Alky) 10,000 
Polymerization Unit (Poly) 7,000 
UDEX Unit (BTX) 16,300 

Feedstocks and Supply Arrangements. We have a short term crude oil acquisition agreement with MSCG 
pursuant to which we direct MSCG to purchase crude and odier feedstocks for Tbledo. MSCG purchases crude 
and feedstocks on the spot market. Accordingly, MSCG enters into, on our behalf, hedging arrangements to protect 
ag^nst changes in prices between the time of purchase and the time of processing the feedstocks. In addition to 
procurement. MSCG arranges ti^nsportation and insurance for die crude and feedstock supply and we pay MSCG 
a per barrel fee for their procurement and logistics services. We pay MSCG on a daity basis for the corresponding 
volume of crude or feedstocks two days after they are consumed in cfHijunction with the refining process. This 
arrangement helps us reduce the amount of investment we are required to m^ntain in crude inventories and, as a 
result, helps us manage our woilcing capital. 

Product Offtake. Toledo is connected, via pipelines, to an extensive distribution network throughout Ohio, 
Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan, Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Hie finished products are transported on 
pipeline owned by Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. and Butdceye Partners. In addition, we have proprietary 
connections to a variety of smaller pipeluies and spun that help us optimize our clean products distribution. A 
si^ificant portion ofToledo's gasoline and ULSD are distributed through die approximatety 28 terminals in this 
network. 

In March 2011, we entered into an agreement with Sunoco whereby Sunoco purchases gasolme and distillate 
products representing approximately one-third of the Toledo refinery's gasoline and distillates production. The 
agreement has a three year term, subject to certain early termination rights. We sell the bulk of the petrochemicals 
produced at the Toledo refmery through short-t»-m contracts or on the spot market and the majority of the 
petrochemical distribution is done via rail. 

Tanka^ Capacity. The Toledo refinery has total storage capacity of approximately 4.0 million barrels. The 
Toledo refinery receives its crude through pipeline connections and a tmck rack. Of die total, approximately 
0.4 million barrels are dedicated to crudeoil storage with the remaining3.6 million barrels allocated to intermediates 
and products. 

Energ) • and Other Utilities. Under normal operating conditions, the Toledo refinery consumes {̂ >proximatety 
17,000 MMBTU per day of natural gas. Hie Toledo refinery purdiases its electricity from a local utility and has 
a long-term contract to purchase hydrogen and steam fh>m a local third party supplier. In addition to the third party 
steam supplier, Ibledo consumes a portion of the steam that is generated by its various process units. 

PHncipal Products 

Our refmeries make various grades of gasoline, diesel fuel, jet fuel, and otho- products from crude oil, other 
feedstocks, and blending components. We sell tiiese products through our commercial accounts, and sales with 
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m£Uor oil companies. For the years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011, gasolme and distillates accounted 
for 88.6%, 88.8% and 88.1% of our revenues, respectively 

Customers 

We sell a variety of refined products to a diverse customer base. We currently have product offtake a^eements 
in place for a lar:ge portion of our clean product sales. For the year ended December 31,2013, MSCG and Sunoco 
accounted for 29% and 10% of our revenues, respectively. Hie remainder of our refined products are primarily 
sold through short-term contracts or on the spot market As of December 31,2013, Sunoco accounted for 10% of 
accounts receivable. 

For the year ended December 31,2012, MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 57% and 10% of the Company's 
revenues, respectivety. As of December31,2012, Statoil and Sunoco accounted for 28% and 10% of accounts 
receivables, respectively. 

For the year ended December 31,2011, MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 52% and 12% of the Company's 
revenues, respectively. 

Seasonality 

Demand for gasoline is generally higher during the summ^ months than during the winter months due to 
seasonal increases in highway traffic and construction work. Decreased demand during the winter mondis can 
lower gasoline prices. As a result, our operating results for the first and fourth calendar quarters may be lower than 
those for the second and third calendar quarters of each year. Refining margins remain volatile and our results of 
operations may not refiect these historical seasonal trends. 

Competition 

The refining business is very competitive. We compete directty with various other refining companies both 
on the East and Gulf Coasts and in the Midcontinent, with integrated oil companies, with foreign refiners that 
import products into the United States and widi producers and marketers in other industries supptying alt^Tiative 
forms of eneigy and fuels to satisfy tiie requirements of industrial, commercial and individual consumers. Some 
of our competitors have expanded the capacity of their refineries and intemationalty new refineries are coming on 
line which could also affect our competitive position. 

Profitability in the refining industry depends largely on refined product margins, which can fluctuate 
significantly, as well as crudeoil prices and differentials between the prices of different gradesofcrude oil, operating 
efficiency and reliability, product mix and costs of product distribution and n-ansportation. Certain of our 
competitors that have larger and more complex refineries m ^ be able to realize lower per-barrel costs or higher 
margins per barrel of diroughput. Several of our principal competitors are integrated national or international oil 
companies that are larger and have substantially greater resources. Because of their integrated operations and larger 
capitalization, these companies may be more flexible in responding to volatile industry or market conditions, such 
as shortages of feedstocks or intense price fluctuations. Refining margins are frequently impacted by sharp changes 
in crude oil costs, which may not be immediately reflected in product prices. 

Hie refining industiy is hi^ly competitive with respect to feedstock suppty. Unlike certain of our competitors 
that have access to proprietary controlled sources of crude oil production available for use at their own refineries, 
we obtain substantially all of our crude oil and other feedstocks from unaffiliated sources. The availability and 
cost of crude oil is affected by global supply and demand. We have no crude oil reserves and are not engaged in 
the exploration or production of crude oil. We believe, however, that we will be able to obtein adequate crude oil 
and o^er feedstocks at generally competitive prices for the frireseeable future. 
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Corporate Offices 

We lease ^proximatety 53,000 square feet for our principal corporate offices in Parsippany, New Jersey. 
The lease for our principal corporate offices expires in 2016. Functions performed in the Parsipanny office include 
overall corporate management, refinery and HSE management, planning and strategy, coiporate finance, 
commercial operations, logistics, contract administration, mariceting, investor relations, governmental affairs, 
accounting, tax, treasury, information technology, legal and human resources support functions. 

Employees 

As of Dec«nber 31,2013, we had approximately 1,735 employees. At Paulsboro, 296 of our 460 wnployees 
we covered by a collective bargaining agreement that expires in March 2015. In addition, 678 of our 
1,066 employees at Delaware City and Toledo are covered by a collective bargaining agreement that expires in 
February of 2015. None of our corporate employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement We consider 
our relations wldi the represented employees to be satisfactory. 

Executive Officers of the Registrant 

The following is a list of our executive officers as of February 20,2014; 

Name Age Position 

Thomas D. O'Malley 72 Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors 
Thomas J. Nimbley 62 Chief Executive Officer 
Michael D. Gayda 59 President 
Matthew C. Lucey 40 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer 
Jeffrey Dili 52 Senior Vice President General Counsel 
Paul Davis 51 Vice President, Crude Oil and Feedstock 
Todd O'Malley 40 Vice President Products 

Thomas D. O'Malley has served as Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of PBF Energy suice its 
formation in November 2011, served as Executive Ch^rman of PBF LLC and its predecessors from March 2008 
to February 2013 and was our Chief Executive Officer from inception until June 2010. Mr. O'Malley has more 
than 30 years e^qjerience in the refining industry. He served as Chairman of the Board of Petroplus Holdings A.G.. 
listed on the Swiss Exchange, from May 2006 until February 2011, and was Chief Executive Officer from May 
2006 until SeptembM-2007. Mr. O'Malley was Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of ft-emcor, a 
domestic oil refiner and Fortune 250 company listed on die NYSE, from February 2002 until Dec^nber 2004, and 
continued as Chairman until its sale to Valero in August 2005. Before joining Premcor, Mr. O'Malley was Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer of Tosco Corporation. Hiis Fortune 100 company, listed on the NYSE, was the largest 
independent oil refiner and marketer of oil products in the United States, with annualized revenues of ̂ proximatety 
$25.0 billion when it was sold to Philips Petroleum Company in September 2001. 

Thomas J. Nimbley has served as our Chief Executive Officer since June 2010 and was our Executive Vice 
President Chief Opiating Officer from March 2010 through June 2010. Prior thereto, he served as a Principal fr>r 
Nimbley Consuhants LLC from June 2005 to April 2010, where he provided consutti'ng services and assisted on 
tlie acquisition oftwo refinoies. He previously served as Senior Vice President and head of Refinit^ for Phillips 
Petroleum Company and subsequently Senior Vice President and head of Refining for ConocoPhillips domestic 
refining system (13 locaticHis) following the merger of Phillips and Conoco. Before joining Phillips at the time of 
its acquisition of Tosco in September 2001, Mr. Nimbley served in various petitions widi Tosco Corporation and 
its subsidiaries starting in April 1993. 

Michael D. Gqyda jo'med us as our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in April 2010 
and has served as our President since June 2010, and was a director of PBF LLC from inc^tion until October 
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2009. Prior thereto, from May 2006 until January 2010 Mr. Gayda served as Executive Vice Resident GMieral 
Counsel and Secretary of Petroplus. Prior to Petroplus, he served as an executive officer of Premcor until its sale 
to Valero in August 2005 and as General Counsel—Refining for Phillips 66 Company, a division of Phillips 
Petroleum Company, following Phillips Petroleum's acquisition ofTosco in September2001. Mr. Gayda previously 
served as a Vice President of certain of Tosco's subsidiaries. 

Matthew C. iacey joined us as our Vice President. Finance in April 2008 and has served as our Senior Vice 
President, Chief Financial Officer since April 2010. Prior thereto, Mr, Lucey served as a Managing Du^ctor of 
M.E, Zukerman & Co., a New York-based private equity firm specializing in several sectors of the broader energy 
industry, from 2001 to 2008. While at M.E. Zukerman & Co., Mr. Lucey participated in all aspects of the firm's 
energy investment activities and served on the Man^ement Committee of Penreco, a manufacturer of specialty 
petroleum products; Cortez Pipelme Company, a 500 mile C02 pipeline; and Venture Coke Company, a max:hant 
petroleum coke calciner. Before joining M.E. Zukerman & Co., Mr. Lucey spent six years tn the banking industry. 

Jeffrey Dill has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since May 2010 and 
from March 2008 until September 2009. Mr. Dili served as Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary 
for Maxum Petroleum, Inc., a national marketer and logistics company for petroleum products, ftom September 
2009 to May 2010 and as Consulting General Counsel and Secretary for NTR Acquisition Co., a special purpose 
acquisition company focused on downstream energy opportonities, from April 2007 to February 2008. Previously 
he served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary at Neurogen Corporation, a drug discovery and 
development company, from March 2006 to December 2007. Mr. Dill has ovw 15 years experience providing legal 
support to refining, transportation and marketing organizations in the petroleum industry, including positions at 
Premcor, ConocoPhillips, Tosco and Unocal. 

/'aH//3avts jouied PBF Enea^ in April of 2012 and was named Vice President Crude Oil and Feedstocks 
responsible for crude oil and refineiy feedstock sourcing in May 2013. Previousty. Mr, Davis was responsible for 
managing the U.S. clean products commercial operations for Hess Energy Hading Company from 2006 to 2012. 
Prior to that, Mr. Davis was responsible for Premcor's U.S. Midwest clean products disposition group. Mr. Davis 
h ^ over 29 years of experience in commercial operations in crude oil and refined products, including 16 years 
with the ExxonMobil Corporation in various operational and commercial positions, including sourcing refinery 
feedstocks and crude oil and the disposition of refined petroleum products, as well as optimization roles within 
refineries. 

Todd O'Malley joined PBF Bn^gy in November 2010, with over 15 years of eneigy industry experience, 
and was named Vice President, Products responsible for peti-oleum products and power in May 2013. Mr. O'Mall^ 
joined PBF from the Hess Energy Hading Company where he traded petroleum products m both the United States 
and Europe from October 2008 to November 2010. Prior to that, Mr. O'Malley established a proprietary refined 
petroleum products and ettianol tradmg platform for an international investment bank. Previously, Mr. O'Malley 
was Vice President of Supply and Distribution of Gulf Oil in chaige of petroleum products trading and optimization 
of storage and terminal assets. Prior thereto. Mr. O'Malley managed the northeast clean products commercial 
operations for Premcor. Mr. O'Malley has held similar commercial roles in other eneigy-fbcused organizations 
where he traded electricity, natoral gas, grains, biofuels, crude oil and petroleum products, both physicalty and 
financially. 

Mr. Thomas O'Malley is the uncle of Mr. Ibdd O'Malley and uncle, by marriage, of Mr. Mattiiew Lucey. 

Environmental. Health and Safety Matters 

Refinery and pipeline operations are subject to federal, state and local laws regulating the discharge of matter 
into die environment or otiierwise relating to human health and safety or the protection of the envhonment. Hiese 
laws regulate, among odier things, the generation, storage, handluig. use and transportation of petroleum and other 
regulated materials, the emission and discharge of materials into the environment, waste management remediation 
of contaminated sites, characteristics and composition of gasoline and distillates and othermatters otherwise relating 
to the protection of the environment. Permits are also required under these laws for the operation of our refineries. 
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pipelines and related operations and diese permits are subject to revocation, modification and renewal. Compliance 
with applicable environmental laws, regulations and permits will continue to have an impact on our operations, 
results of operations and capital requirements. We believe that our current operations are in substantial compliance 
with existing enVironmentet laws, regulations and permits. 

Our operations and many of die products we manufacture are subject to certain specific requirements of the 
CAA, and related state and local regulations. The CAA contains provisions that require capital e}q}enditores for 
the installation of certain air pollution control devices at our refineries. Subsequent rule making authorized by the 
CAA or similar laws or new agency interpretations of existing rules, may necessitate additional expenditures in 
future years. 

Additionally, as of January 1,2011 we are required to meet an EPA regulation limiting the average sulfiir 
content in gasoline to 30 PPM. The EPA has also announced diat it plans to propose new "Tier 3" motor vehicle 
emission and fuel standards. It has been reported that these new Her 3 regulations may, among other things, lower 
the maximum average sulfur content of gasoline from 30 PPM to 10 PPM. If the Her 3 regulations are eventually 
implemented and lower die maximum allowable contwit of sulfur or other constituents in fuels that we produce, 
we may at some point in the future be required to make significant capital expenditures and/or incur materially 
increased operating costs to comply widi die new standards. 

As of January 1,2011. we are required to comply with the EPA's Control of Hazardous Air Pollutants From 
Mobile Sources, or MS A17. r^ulations on gasoline that impose reductions in the benzene content of our produced 
gasoline. We purchase benzene credits to meet these requirements. Our planned capital projects will reduce the 
amount of benzene credits that we need to purchase. In addition, the renewable fuel standards mandate the blending 
of prescribed percentages of renewable fuels (e.g., ethanol and biofuels) into our produced g^oline and di^el. 
These new requirements, other requirements of the CAA and odier presently existing or fiiture environmental 
regulations may cause us to make substantial capital expenditures as well as the purchase of credits at significant 
cost, to enable our refineries to produce products that meet applicable requirements. 

Our operations are also subject to the federal Clean Water Act, or the CWA, the federal Safe Drinking Water 
Act. or the SDWA, and comparable state and local requirements. Hie CWA, the SDWAand analogous laws prohibit 
any discharge into surface waters, jĝ ound waters, injection wells and publicly-owned treatment works except in 
strict conformance widi permits, such as pre-treatment permits and discharge permits, issued by federal, state and 
local governmental agencies. Federal waste-water discharge permits and analogous state waste-water dischaige 
permits are issued for fixed terms and must be renewed. 

We generate wastes that may be subject to the federal Resource Conservation and Recovwy Act or RCRA, 
and comparable state and local requirements. The EPAand various state agencies have limited the approved methods 
of disposal for certain hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. 

The federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, or 
CERCLA, also known as "Superfiind," imposes liability, without regard to feult or the legality of the original 
conduct, on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for therelease ofa"hazardous substance" 
into the environment These persons include the current or former owner or operator of the disposal site or sites 
where ̂ e release occurred and companies that disposed of or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substances. 
Under CERCLA. such persons may be subject to joint and several liability for investigation and the costs of cleaning 
up die hazardous substances that have been released into the envvonment, for damages to natural resources and 
for the costs of certain health studies. As discussed more fully below, certain of our sites are subject to these laws 
and we may be held liable for investigation and remediation costs or claims for natural resource damages. It is not 
uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injuiy and property 
damage allegedly caused by hazardous substances or other pollutants released into the environment Analogous 
stete laws impose similar responsibilities and liabilities on responsible parties. In our current normal operations, 
we have generated waste, some of which falls within the statotory definition of a "hazardous substance" and some 
of which may have been disposed of at sites that m ^ require cleanup under Superfund. 
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As is the case with all companies engaged in industries similar to ours, we frice potential exposure to future 
claims and lawsuits mvolving envmsnmental matters. These mattera include soil and water contamination, air 
pollution, personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by substances which we manu&ctured, handled, 
used, released or disposed of 

Current and future envu-onmental regulations are expected to require additional expenditores, inchiding 
expenditures for investigation and remediation, whidi may be significant at our refineries and at our other facilities. 
To the extent that future expenditures for these purposes are material and can be reasonably determined, these costs 
are disclosed and accrued. 

Our operations are also subject to various laws and regulations relating to occupational health and safety. 
We maintain safety training and maintenance proems as part of our ongoing efforts to ensure compliance with 
applic^le laws and regulations. Compliance with applicable health ^ d safety laws and regulations has required 
and continues to require substantial expenditures. 

In connection with each of our acquisitions, we assumed certain environmental remediation obligations. In 
the case of Paulsboro, a trust fund established to meet state financial assurance requirements, in the amount of 
approximately $12.1 million, the estimated cost of the remediation obligations assumed based on investigation 
undertaken as of the acquisition date, was acquired as part of the acquisition. The short term portion of die trust 
fund and corresponding liability are recorded as restricted cash and accrued expenses, the long term portion is 
recorded m other assets and other long-term liabilities. In connection with the acquisition of Delaware City, the 
prior owners remain responsible subject to certain limitations, for certain environmental obligations including 
ongoing remediation of soil and groundwater contamination at the site. Further, in connection with the Delaware 
City and Paulsboro acquisitions, we purchased two individual ten-year, $75.0 million environmental insurance 
policies to msure against unknown environmental liabilities at each refinery. In connection with the acquisition of 
Toledo, the seller, subject to c«rtein limitations, initially retains remediation oblivions which will transition to 
us over a 20-year period. However, there can be no assurance that any available indemnity, mist fund or insurance 
will be sufficient to cover any ultimate environmental liabilities we may incur with respect to our refineries, which 
could be significant. 

We cannot predict what additional health, safety and environmental legislation or r^ulations will be enacted 
or become effective in the future or how existing or friture laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted 
with respect to our operations. Compliance with more sttingent laws or regulations or adverse changes in die 
interpretation of existing requirements or discovery of new information such as unknown contamination could 
have an adverse effect on the financial position and the r^ults of our operations and could require substantial 
expenditures for the installation and operation of systems and equipment that we do not curremly possess. 

GLOSSARY OF SELECTED TERMS 
Unless otherwise noted or indicated by context, the following terms used in this Annual Report on Form 10-

K have the following minings: 

'^ASCF refers to the Argus Sour Crude Index, a pricing index used to approximate market prices for sour, 
heavy crude oil. 

'̂ Bakken** refers to both a erode oil production region generally covering North Dakota, Montena and 
Western Canada, and the crude oil that is produced in that region. 

"barrer refers to a common unit of measure in the oil industiy, which equates to 42 gallons. 

**blendstocks** refers to various compounds that are combined widi gasoline or diesel fr^m the crude oil 
refining process to make finished gasoline and diesel; these may include natural gasoline, FCC unit gasoline, 
ethanot, reformate or butane, among others. 

**bpd** refers to an abbreviation for barrels per day. 
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"CAA" refers to die Clean Air Act. 

"CAPP'* refers to die Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers. 

^catalyst** ref^^ to a substance that alters, accelerates, or instigates chemical changes, but is not produced 
as a product of the refining process. 

^cofce" refers to a coal-like substance that is produced from heavier erode oil fi^ctions during the refining 
process. 

**complexity" refers to the number, type and capacity of processing units at a refinery, measured by die 
Nelson Complexity Index, which ts often used as a measure of a refinery's ability to process lower quality crude 
in an economic manner. 

*'crack spread" refers to a simplified calculation that measures the difference between the price for light 
products and crude oil. For example, we reference (a) the 2-1-1 crack spread, which is a general industry standard 
that ̂ proximates tiie per barrel refining margin resulting from processing two barrels of crude oil to produce one 
barrel of gasoline and one barrel of heating oil or ULSD, and (b) the 4-3-1 crack spread, which is a benchmark 
utilized by our Toledo refinery that approximates the per barrel refining margin resufting from processing four 
barrels of crude oil to produce three barrels of gasoline and one-half barrel of jet fuel and one-half barrel of ULSD. 

"Dated Brent** refers to Brent blend oil, a light, sweet North Sea crude oil. characterized by an API gravity 
of 38° and a sulfur content of approximately 0.4 weight percent that is used as a benchmark for other crude oils. 

'^distillates'' refers primarily to diesel, heating oil, kerosene and jet fuel. 

"downstream** refers to the downstream sector of the enei]^ industiy generally describing oil refineries. 
marketing and distribution companies that refine crude oil and sell and distribute refined products. The opposite 
of the downstream sector is the upstream sector, which refers to exploration and production companies that s^rch 
for and/or produce crude oil and natural gas underground or through drilling or exploratory wells. 

"EPA" refers to the United States Environmental Protection Agenty. 

"ethanol** refers to aclear, colorless, flammable oxygenated liquid. Ethanol is typically produced chemically 
from ethylene, or biologically from fermentation ofv^'ious sugars from caitohydrates found in agricultural crops 
and cellulosic residues from crops or wood. It is used in the United States as a gasoline octane enhancer and 
oxygenate. 

"feedstocks** refers to crude oil and partialty refined petroleum products tiiat are processed and blended 
into refined products, 

"FCC** refers to fluid catalytic cracking. 

"FCU" refers to fluid coking unit. 

"GHG** refers to greenhouse gas. 

"Group I base oils orlubricants** refers to conventionalty refined products characterized by a sulfur content 
less than 0.03% widi a viscosity index between 80 and 120. I^^Jcally, diese products are used in a variety of 
automotive and industrial applications. 

"heavy crude oil** refers to a relatively inexpensive cmde oil with a low API gravity characterized by high 
relative density and viscosity. Heavy crude oils require greater levels of processing to produce high value products 
such as gasoline and diesel. 

"IPO** refers to die initial public offering of PBF Energy's Class Acommon stock which closed <m December 
18,2012. 
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"J.Aron" refers to J. Aron & Company, a subsidiary of Hie Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 

"KV" refers to Kilovolts. 

"light crude oil" refers to a relativety expensive crude oil with a high API gravity characterized by low 
relative density and viscosity. Light crude oils require lower levels of processing to produce high value products 
such as gasoline and diesel. 

"light products** refers to the group of refined products with lower boiling temperatures, including gasoline 
and distillates. 

"light-heavy differential" refers to the price difference between light crude oil and heavy crude oil. 

"LPG** refers to liquefied petroleum gas. 

"Maya*' refers to Maya erode oil. a heavy, sour erode oil characterized by an API gravity of approxim^ely 
22° and a sulfur content of approximatety 3.3 weight percent that is used as a benchmark for other heavy crude 
oils. 

"MLP** refers to master limited partnership. 

"MMbbIs" refers to an abbrevi^on for million barrels. 

"MMBTU" refers to million British thermal units. 

"MMSCFD** refers to million stendard cubic feet per day. 

"MSCG" refers to Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc. 

"MW" refers to Megawatt. 

"Nelson Complexity Index" refers to the complexity of an oil refineiy as measured by the Nelson 
Complexity Index, which is calculated on an annual basis by the Oil and Gas Journal. The Nelson Complexity 
Index assigns a complexity factor to each major piece of refinery equipment based on its complexity and cost in 
comparison to crude distillation, which is assigned a complocity factor of 1.0. The complicity of each piece of 
refinery equipment is then calculated by muhiplying its complexity factor by its throughput ratio as a percentage 
of erode distillatton capacity. Adding up die complexity values assigned to each piece of equipment including 
crude distillation, determines a refinery's complexity on the Nelson Complexity Index, Arefinery with acomplexity 
of 10.0 on the Nelson Complexity Index is considered ten times more complex than erode distillation for the same 
amount of diroughput. 

"NYH" refers to the New York Harbor market value of petroleum products. 

"Platts" refers to Platts, a division of Hie McGraw-Hill Companies. 

"PPM" refers to parts per million. 

"RINS" refers to renewable fuel credits required for compliance whh the Renewable Fuels Standard. 

"refined prod ucts" refers to petroleum products, such as gasoline, diesel and jet fuel, that are produced by 
a refinery. 

"sour crude oil" refers to a erode oil that is relatively high in sulfur content, requiring additional processing 
to remove the sulfur. Sour erode oil is typically less expensive dian sweet crude oil. 

"Sunoco** refers to Sunoco, Inc. (R&M). 
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"sweet cmde oU" refers to a crude oil that is relatively low in sulfur content, requiring less processing to 
remove the sulfur than sour crude oil. Sweet crude oil is ty^jically more expensive than sour erode oil. 

"Syncrude" refers to a blend of Canadian synthetic oil, a light, sweet erode oil, typically characterized by 
an API gravity between 30^ and 32*̂  and a sulfur content of approximatety 0.1-0.2 wetg)it percent. 

"throughput" refers to the volume processed through a unit or refinery. 

"turnaround" referstoaperiodically required shutdown and comprehensive maintenance event to refurbish 
and maintain a refinery unit or units that involves the inspection of such units and occurs generally on a periodic 
t^cle. 

"ULSD*' refers to ultra-low-sulfiir diesel. 

"WCS" refers to Westero Canadian Select a heavy, sour erode oil blend typically characterized by an API 
gravity between 20° and 22° and a sulfur content of approximately 3.5 weight percent that is used as a benchmark 
for heavy Western Canadian erode oil. 

"WTI" refers to West Texas Intermediate cmde oil, a light, sweet erode oil, typically characterized by an 
API gravity between 38° and 40° and a sulfur content of approximately 0.3 weight percent that is used as a 
benchmark for other cmde oils. 

"WTS" refers to West Texas Sour crude oil, a sour erode oil characterized by an API gravity between 30° 
and 33° and a sulfur content of approximately 12S weight percent that is used as a benchmark for other sour o-ude 
oils. 

"yield'* refers to the percentage of refined products that is produced from crude oil and other feedstocks. 

ITEM 1 A. RISK FACTORS 

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry 

You should carefiilty read the risks and uncertainties described below. Hie risks and uncertainties (Scribed 
below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties may also impair our business 
operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations or 
cash flows would likety suffer. In that case, the trading price of our Class A common stock could fall. 

We have incurred losses In the past and may Incur losses In the future. If we Incur losses over an extended 
period of time, the value of our Class A coitmwn stock could dedlne. 

We experienced losses during our time as a development company and certain periods thereafter. We may 
not be profiteble in future periods. A lack of profitability could adversely affect the price of our Class A common 
stock. We may not eontmue to remain profitable, which could impair our ability to complete future financings and 
have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects. If we 
are unsuccessful In executing our business model, our business and iterating results will be adversely 
affected. 

We were formed in March 2008, we acquired our first oil refinery in June 2010 in an idle state and wc 
acquired our fvcst operating asset in December 2010. Th^^fore, we have a limited operating histoiy and track 
record in executing our business model. Our future success depends on our ability to execute our busings strategy 
effectively. Our limited operating history may make it difficult to evaluate our current business and future pro^jects. 
We may not be successful in operating aity of our refineries or any other properties we may acquire in die fUture. 
In addition, we have encountered and will continue to encounter risks and difficulties fi^quentty experienced by 
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new companies, and specifically companies in the oil refining industiy. Ifwe do not manage these risks successfully, 
our business, results of operations and financial condition will be adversely affected. 

The price volatility of crude oil, otherfeedstocks, blendstocks, refined produ^ and fuel and utility services 
may have a material adverse effect on our revenues, profitability, cashflows and liquidity. 

Our revenues, profitability, cash flows and liquidity from operations depend primarily on the margin above 
operating expenses (including the cost of refinery feedstocks, such as crude oil, intermediate partially refined 
petroleum pittducts. and natural gas liquids that are processed and bl^ded into refined products) at which we are 
able to sell refined products. Refining is primarily a margin-based business and, to increase profitability, it is 
important to maximize the yields of high value finished products while minimizing the costs of feedstodc and 
operating expenses, When the margin between refined product prices and erode oil and other feedstock costs 
contracts, our earoings, profitability and cash flows are negatively affected. Refining margins historically have 
been volatile, and are likely to continue to be volatile, as a result of a variety of factors, including fluctuations in 
the prices of erode oil, other feedstocks, refined products and fuel and utility services. An increase or decrease in 
the price of erode oil wilt likely resuh in a similar increase or decrease in prices for refined products; however, 
there may be a time lag in the realization, or no such realization, of the similar increase or decrease in prices for 
refined products. The effect of changes in crude oil prices on our refining margins therefore depends in part on 
how quickly and how fully refined product prices adjust to refiect these chwges. 

In addition, the nature of our business requires us to maintain substantial cmde oil, feedstock and refined 
product inventories. Because erode oil, feedstock and refined products are commodities, we have no control over 
the changing market value of diese inventories. Our cmde oil, feedstock and refined product inventories are valued 
at the lower of cost or market value under the last-in-first-out ("LIFO") inventory valuation methodology. If the 
market value of our cmde oil, feedstock and refined product inventories were to decline to an amount less than 
our LIFO cost we would record a write-down of inventory and a non-cash charge to cost of sales. 

Prices of cmde oil, other feedstocks, blendstocks, and refined products depend on numerous factors beyond 
our control, including the suppty of and demand for cmde oil, odier feedstocks, gasoline, diesel, etiianol, asphalt 
and other refined products. Such suppty and demand are affected by a variety of economic, market environm^ital 
and political conditions. 

Our direct operating expense strocture also impacts our profitability. Our major direct operating expenses 
include employee and contract labor, maintenance and energy. Our predominant variable direct operating cost is 
energy, which is comprised primarity of fiiel and other utility services. Hie volatility in costs of fiiel, principally 
natural gas, and odier utility services, principally electricity, used by our refineries and other operations affect our 
operating costs. Fuel and utility prices have been, and will continue to be. affected by factors outside our control, 
such as suppty and demand for fuel and utility services in bodi local and regional markets. Natural gas prices have 
historically been volatile and, typically, electricity prices fluctuate widi natural gas prices. Future in(»%ases in fuel 
and utilhy prices may have a negative effect on our revenues, profitability and cash flows. 

Our hlstoricalfinancial statements may not be helpful tn predicting our future performance. 

We have grown nq>idly since our inception and have not owned or operated our refineries for a substantial 
period oftime. Accordingly, our historical financial information may not be useful either as ameans of understanduig 
our current financial situation or as an indicator of our future results. For the period from March 1, 2008 to 
December 16,2010, we were considered to be in the development stage. Our historical financial information for 
diat period reflects our activities principally in connection with identifying acquisition opportunities; acquiring 
the Delaware City refinery assets and commencing a reconfiguration of the refuiery; and acquiring the Paulsboro 
refinery, As a result of the Paulsboro and Toledo »x)uisitions, our historical consolidated finimcial results include 
the results of operations for Paulsboro and Toledo from December 17, 2010 and March I, 2011 forward. 
respectively. Certain information in our financial stetements and certain other financial data mcluded in diis Annual 
Report on Foim 10-K are based in part on financial data related to, and the operations of, those companies that 
previously owned and operated our refineries. For example, at the time of its acquisition, Paulsboro represented 
the major portkin of our business and assets. As has been die case bi our acquisitions to date, it is likely that when 
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we acquire refineries, we will not have access to the type of historical financial information that we will report 
regarding the prior operation of the refineries. As a result, it may be difficuh for investors to evaluate die probable 
impact of major acquisitions on our financial performance until we have operated the acquired refineries for a 
substantial period oftime. 

Our profitability is affected by crude oil differentials, which fluctuate substantially. 

A significant portion of our profitability is derived from the ability to purchase and process erode oil 
feedstocks that historically have been cheaper than benchmark crude oils, sudi as the heavy, sour crude oils 
processed at our Delaware City and Paukboro refineries and die WTI based erode oils processed at our Toledo 
refin^ and delivered by rail to our East Coast refineries. Hiese erode oil differentials vary significantly from 
quarter to quarter depending on overall economic conditions and trends and conditions within die maikets for cmde 
oil and refined products. Any change in these erode oil differentials may have an impact on our earnings. Our rail 
investment and strategy to acquire cost advantaged Midcontinent and Canadian erode, which are priced based on 
WTI, could be adversely affected if the WTI-Brent differential narrows. For example, the WTI/WCS differential, 
a proT^ for the difference between light U.S. and heavy Canadian erodes, has increased from $21.80 per barrel in 
2012 to $24.62 per barrel for the year ended December 31,2013, however, this increase may not be indicative of 
the differential going forward. Conversely, a narrowing of the light-heavy differential may reduce our refining 
maiguis and adversely affect our recent profitability and earnings. In addition, while our Toledo refineiy benefits 
from a widening of the Dated Brent/WTI differential, a narrowing of this differential may resuh in our Toledo 
refinery losing a portion of its crude price advantage over certain of our competitors, which negatively impacts 
our profitability. Hiis applies as well to our East Coast strategy of delivering erode by rail. Divergent views have 
been expressed as to the expected magnitude of changes to these crude differentials in future periods, including 
some anatysts that expect these cmde differentials to contract in upcoming periods. Any narrowing of these 
differentials could have a material adverse effect on our business and profitability. 

Our recent historical earnings have been concentrated and may continue to be concentrated in the future. 

Our three refineries have similar throughput capacity, however, favorable market conditions due to, among 
odier things, geographic location, erode and refmed product slates, and custtnner demand, may cause an individual 
refinery to contribute more significantly to our earnings than others for a period oftime. For example, our Toledo, 
Ohio refinery has produced a substantial portion of our earnings over the past several quarters. As a result if there 
were a significant dismption to operations at this refineiy, our earomgs could be materialty adversely affected (to 
the extent not recoverable throu^ uisurance) disproportionally to Toledo's portion of our consolidated 
throughput. The Toledo refinery, or one of our other refineries, may continue to disproportlonalty affect our results 
of operations in the future. Any prolonged disruption to the operations of such refinery, whether due to labor 
difficulties, destmction of or dEmiage to such facilities, severe weadier conditions, intermption of utilities service 
or other reasons, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. 

A significant Interruption or casualty loss at any of our refineries and related assets could re^ee our production, 
particularly Ifnotfulty covered by our Insurance. FaUure by one or more insurers to honor Its coverage 
comndtmentsfor an insured event could materially and adversely affect our future cashflows, operating results 
andflnancial comStion. 

Our business currently consists of owning mid operating three refmeries and related assets. As a result our 
operatiwis could be subject to significant interruption if any of our refineries were to experience a major accident, 
be damaged by severe weather or other natural disaster, or otherwise be forced to shut down or curtail production 
due to unforeseen events, such as acts of God, nature, orders of governmental authorities, sui^ly diain dismptions 
impacting our cmde rail fecilities or odi^ logistical assets, power (»itages, acts of terrorbm. fires, toxic emissions 
and maritime hazaids. Any such shutdown or dismption would reduce die production ftom diat refinery. Hiere is 
also risk of mechanical friilure and equipment shutdowns both general and following unforeseen events. Further, 
in such situations, undamaged refinery processing units may be dependent on or interact with damaged sections 
of our refineries and. accordingly, are also subject to being shut down. In the event any of our reveries is forced 
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to shut down for a significant period oftime. it would have a material adverse effect on our earnings, our other 
results of operations and our financial condition as a whole. 

As protection agauist these hazards, we maintain insurance coverage against some, but not all, such potential 
losses and liabilities. We may not be able to maintain or obtain insurance of the type and amotmt we desire at 
reasonable rates. As a result of market conditions, premiums and deductibles for certain of our insurance policies 
may increase substantially. In some instances, certain insurance could become unavail^le or available only for 
reduced amounts of coverage. For example, coverage for hurricane damage can be limited, and coverage for 
terrorism risks can include broad exclusions. Ifwe were to incur a significant Utility for which we were not fully 
insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial position. 

Our insurance program includes a number of insurance carriers. Significant disroptions in financial maikets 
could lead to adeterioration in the financial condition of many financial institutions, including insurance companies 
and, therefore, we may not be able to obtain the full amount of our insurance coverage for insured events. 

Our refineries are subjet^ to interruptions of supply and distribution as a result of our reliance on plpeUnes 
and raUroadsfor transportation of crude oil and refined products. 

During 2012 and 2013, we expanded and upgraded existing on-site railroad infi-astrocture at OUT Delaware 
City refinery, which significantly increased our capacity to unload crude by rail. Currentty, the majority of the 
crude delivered to this facility is consumed at our Delaware City refinery, although we also transport some of die 
cmde delivered by rail frorn Delaware City via barge to our Paulsboro refinery. The Delaware City rail unloading 
faciliti^ allow our East Coast refineries to source WTI based crudes from Western Canada and the Midcontinent 
which can provide significant cost advantages versus traditional Brent based international cmdes. Any dismptions 
or restrictions to our suppty of erode by rail due to problems with third party logistics infi^tmcture or operations 
or as a result of increased regulations, could increase our cmde costs and negativety impact our results of operations 
and cash flows. 

Our Toledo refinery receives a substantial portion of its cmde oil and delivers a portion of its refined products 
through pipelines. Hie Enbridge system is our primary supply route for cmde oil frvm Canada, the Bakken region 
and Michigan, and supplies approximatety 55% to 60% of the crude oil used at our Toledo refinery. In addition, 
we source domestic cmde oil through our connections to the Captine and Mid-Valley pipelines. We also distribute 
a portion of our transportation fuels through pipelines owned and operated by Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. and 
Buckeye Partners L.P. We could experience an interroption of supply or delivery, or an increased cost of receiving 
erode oil and delivering refined products to maiket, if the ability of these pipelines to transport cmde oil or refined 
products is dismpted because of accidents, weather intermptions, governmental regulation, terrorism, other third 
party action or casualty or other of events. 

In addition, due to the common carrier regulatory obligation applicable to interstate oil pipeluies, capacity 
is prorated among shippers in accordwce with the tariff then in effect in the ev^t diere are nominations in excess 
of capacity. Hierefore, nominations by new shippers or increased nominations by existing shippers may reduce 
the capacity available to us. Any prolonged interroption in the operation or curtailment of available capacity of 
the pipelines that we rely upon for transportation of cmde oil and refined products could have a further material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

We may have capiud needs for which our Internally generated cashflows and other sources of liquidity may 
not be adequate. 

Ifwe cannot generate sufficient cash flows or otherwise secure sufficient liquidity to support our short-term 
and long-term coital requirements, we may not be able to meet our peyment obligations or our future debt 
obligations, compty with certain deadlines related to environmental regulations and standards, or pursue our 
business strategies, including acquisitions, in which case our operaticms may not perform as we currently expect. 
We have substantial short-term capitel needs and may have substantial king term capital needs. Our shcnt-term 
woiking coital needs are primarily related to financing certain of our refined products inventory not covered by 
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our various suppty and Inventoiy Intermediation Agreements. We terminated our suppty agreement with Statoil 
for our Paulsboro refmery effective March 31.2013 and our MSCG Offtake Agreements for our Paulsboro and 
Delaware City refineries effective July 1,2013, Concurrent with the t^mination of our MSCG Offtake Agreements, 
we entered into Inventoty Intermediation Agreements with J. Aron at our Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries. 
Pursuant to the Inventoiy Intermediatioii Agreements, J. Aron purchases and holds title to all of the intermediate 
and finished products produced by die Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries and delivered into the tanks at the 
refineries (or at other locations outside of the refineries as agreed upon ly both parties). FurthermOTC, J. Aron 
agrees to sell die intermediate and finished products back to us as diey are discharged out of the refineries' tanks 
(or odier locations outside of the refineries as agreed upon by both parties). We market and sell the finished products 
independentty to third parties. 

If we cannot adequately handle our cmde oil and feedstock requirements without the benefit of the Statoil 
arrangement at Paulsboro, or ifwe are required to obtain our cmde oil supply at our other refineries without the 
benefit of the existing supply arrangements or the applicable counterparty defaults in its obligations, our crude oil 
pricing costs m ^ increase as the number of days between when we pay for the crude oil and when the cmde oil 
is delivered to us increases. Termination of our Inventoiy Intermediation Agreements with J. Aron would require 
us to finance our refined products inventoiy covered by the agreements at terms that may not be as favorite. 
Additionally, we are obligated to repurchase from J. Aron all volumes of products located at the refineries' storage 
tanks (or at other locations outside of the refineries as agreed upon by both parties) upon termination of these 
agreements, which may have a material adverse impact on our working cq)ital and financial condition. Further, if 
we are not able to maiket and sell our finished products to credit wordiy customers, we may be subject to delays 
in the collection of our accounts receivable and exposure to additional credit risk. Such increased exposure could 
negatively impact our liquidity due to our increased working capital needs as a resuh of the increase in the amount 
of cmde oil inventory and accounts receivable we would have to carry on our balance sheet. Our long-term needs 
for cash include those to support ongoing capital expenditures for equipment maintenance and upgrades during 
turnarounds at our refineries and to complete our routine and normally scheduled maintenance, regulatory and 
security expenditures. 

In addition, from time to time, we are required to spend significant amounts for repairs when one or more 
processing units experiences temporaiy shutdowns. We continue to utilize significant coital to upgrade equipment, 
improve facilities, and reduce operational, safety and environmental risks. In connection with the t̂ aulsboro 
acquisition, we assumed certaui significant environmentel obligations, and may slmitariy do so in future 
acquisitions. We will likely incur substantial compliance costs in connection with new or changing environmental, 
health and safety regulations. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Anatysis of Financial Condition." Our 
liquidity wilt affect our ability to satisfy any of these needs or obligations. 

We may not be able to obtain funding on acceptable terms or at all became of wdatility and uncertainty in the 
credit and capital markets. This may hinder or prevent us from meeting our future capital needs. 

Global financial maikets and economic conditions have been, and continue to be, disropted and volatile due 
to a variety of factora, including uncertainty in the financial services sector, low consumer confidence, continued 
high unemployment geopolitical issues and the current weak economic conditions. In addition, the fixed income 
markets have experienced periods of extreme volatility that have negatively impacted market liquidity conditions. 
As a result, the cost of raising mon^ in the debt and equity capitel markets has increased substantially at times 
whWe the availability of funds from those maikets diminished significantiy. In particular, as a result of concerns 
about the stability of financial maricets generally and the solvency of lending counterparties specificalty, the cost 
of obtaining money from the credit markets may increase as many lenders and mstitutional mvestors increase 
interest rates^ enact lighter lending standards, refuse to refinance existing debt on similar teims or at all and reduce 
or, in some cases, cease to provide funding to borrowers. Due to these fectors. we cannot be obtain that new debt 
or equity financing will be available on acceptable terms. If funding is not available when needed, or is available 
onty on unfavorable terms, we rosy be unable to meet our obligations as they come due. Moreovo*. widiout adequate 
funding, we maty be unable to execute our growdi strategy, complete future acquisitions, take advantage of other 
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business opportunhies or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on 
our revenues and results of operations. 

Competition from conytantes who produce their own suppty offeedstocks, have extensive retail outiets, make 
alternatlvefuels or have greater financial and other resources than we do could materiatfy and adversely affect 
our business and results of operations. 

Our refining operations compete with domestk; refiners and marketers in regions of die United States in 
which we operate, as well E^ with domestic refiners in other regions and foreign refiners diat import products into 
the United Stetes. In addition, we compete with odier refiners, producers and marketers in other industi-ies that 
supply their own renewable fiiels or alternative forms of energy and fueistosatisfytiierequirementeofourindustriat, 
commercial and individual consumers. Certain of our competitors have larger and more complex refineries, and 
may be able to realize lower per-bartel costs or higher margins per barrel of throughput. Several of our principal 
competitors are integrated national or international oil companies that are larger and have substantially greater 
resources dian we do and access to proprietary sources of conti'olled cmde oil production. Unlike these competitors, 
we obtain substantially all of our feedstocks from unaffiliated sources. We are not engaged in the petroleum 
exploration and production business mid therefore do not produce any of our cmde oil feedstocks. We do not have 
a retail business and therefore are dependent upon othera for outlets for our refined products. Because of their 
integrated operations and largos capitalization, these companies may be more flexible in responding to volatile 
industry or market conditions, such as shortages of cmde oil supply and other feedstocks or intense price 
fluctuations. 

Newer or upgraded refineries will often be more efficient dian our refineries, which may put us at a 
competitive disadvantage. We have taken significant measures to maintain our refineries including the instatl^ion 
of new equipment and redesigning older equipment to improve our operations. However, titese actions involve 
significant uncerteinties, since upgraded equipment may not perform at expected diroughput levels, die yield and 
product quality of new equipment may differ from design specifications and modifications may be needed to correct 
equipment that does not perform as expected. Any of these risks associated with new equipment redesigned older 
equipment or repaired equipment could lead to lower revenues or higher costs or otherwise have an adverse effect 
on future results of operations and financial condition. Overtime, our refineries may become obsolete, or be unable 
to compete, because of die construction of new, more efficient facilities by our competitors. 

Any political instability, ndlUary strikes, sustained ndlitary consigns, terrorist activity, or changes in foreign 
policy could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations andflnandal condition. 

Any political instability, military strikes, susteined military campaigns, terrorist activity, or changes in 
foreign policy in areas or regions of the world where we acquire erode oil and ottier raw materials or sell our refined 
petroleum products may affect our business in unpredicteble ways, including forcing us to increase security 
measures and causing disroptions of supplies and distribution markets. We may also be subject to United States 
trade and economic sanctions laws, which change frequently as a result of foreign policy developments, and which 
may necessitete changes to our cmde oil acquisition activhJes. Further, like other industrial companies, our facilities 
may be die target of terrorist activities. Any act of war or terrorism that resulted in damage to any of our refineries 
or diird-party fecilities upon which we are dependent for our business operations could have a material adverse 
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

Continued ecoHondcturnu>ll In the globalfinancUd system has had and may continue to have an adverse Impact 
on the refining industry. 

Our business and profitebility are affected by the overall level of demand for our products, which in turn is 
affected by factors such as overall levels of economic activity and business and consumer confidence and spending. 
Declines in global economic activity and consumer and business confidence and spending during the recent global 
downturn have significantty reduced the level of demand for our products. Reduced demand for our products has 
had and may continue to have an adverse imp^ t̂ on our business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows. In addition, contmued downturns in die economy impact the dranand for refined fuels and, in turn, 
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result in excess refining capacity. Refining margins are impacted by changes in domestic and glob^ refining 
capacity, as increases in refining capacity can adversety impact refining margins, earnings and cash flows. 

Our business is indirectly exposed to risks faced by our suppliers, customers and other business partners. 
The impact on these constituencies of the risks posed by the continued economic turmoil in the global financial 
system have Inchided or could include intermptions or delays in the performance by counterparties to our contracts, 
reductions and delays in customer purchases, delays in or the inability of customers to obtain financing to purchase 
our products and die inability of customers to pay for our products. Any of these events may have an adverse impact 
on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

The geographic concentration of our East Coast refineries creates a significant exposure to the risks of the 
local econonty and other local adverse conditions. 

Our East Coast refineries are both located in die mid-Atlantic region on the East Coast and therefore are 
Vulnerable to economic downturns in that region. Hiese refineries are located within arelatively limited geographic 
area and we primarily market our refined products in diat area. As a result we are more susceptible to regional 
Conditions than the operations of more geogn^hically diversified competitors and any unforeseen events or 
circumstances tiiat affect the area could also materialty adversety affect our revenues and profitability. These factors 
include, among other things, changes in the economy, damages to infrastmcture, weather conditions, demographics 
and population. 

fVe must make substantial capital ejqfendltures on our operating facilities to maintain their reliability and 
efficiency. Ifwe are unable to con^lete capital projects at their expected costs and/or In a tlmety manner, or If 
the market conditions assumed In our project economics deteriorate, our financial condition, results of 
operations or cashflows could be materially and adversefy affe<ded. 

Delays or cost increases related to capital spending programs involving engineering, procurement and 
constmction of new fecilities (or improvements and repurs to our existing facilities and equipment) could adversely 
affect our ability to adiieve taî geted internal rates of return and operating r^ults. Such delays or cost increases 
may arise as a result of unpredictable fectors in the marketplace, many of which are beyond our control, including: 

• denial or delay in issuing regulatory fq?provals and/or permits; 
• unplanned increases in die cost of constioiction materials or labor; 
• dismptions in transportation of modular components and/or constmction materials; 
• severe adverse weather conditions, natural disasters or other events (sudi as equipment malfunctions, 

explosions, fires or spills) affecting our facilities, or those of v^dors and suppliers; 
• shortages of sufficiently skilled labor, or labor disagreements resulting in unplanned work stoppages; 
• maricet-related increases in a project's debt or equity financing costs; and/or 
• non-performance or force majeure by, or disputes with, vendors, suppliers, contractors or sub-contractors 

involved whh a project 

Our refineries contain many processing units, a number of which have been in operation for many years. 
Equipment, even if property mamtained, may require significant capital expenditures and exposes to keep it 
Operating at optimum efficiency. One or more of the units may require unscheduled downtime for unanticipated 
maintenance or repairs that are more frequent than our scheduled turnarounds for such units. Scheduled and 
unsct'ieduled maintenance could reduce our revenues during the period of time that the units are not operating. 

Our forecasted mternal rates of return are also based upon our projections of futore market fundamentals, 
which are not within our control, including changes in general economic conditions, available alternative suj^ly 
and customer demand. Any one or more of these fectors could have a significant impact on our business. If we 
Were unable to make up die delays associated with such factors or to recover the related costs, or if market conditions 
Change, it could materially and adversety affect our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
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Acquisitions that we may undertake in the future Involve a number of risks, any of which could cause us not 
to realise the anticipated benefits. 

We may not be successful in acquiring additional assets, and any acquisitions that we do consummate may 
not produce the anticipated benefits or may have adverse effects on our business and operating results. We may 
selectively consider strategic acquisitions in the future within the refining and mid-stream sector based on 
perfomiance through the cycle, advantageous access to cmde oil supplies, attractive refined products maiket 
fundamentels and access to distribution and logistics infrastmcture. Our ability to do so will be dq)endent upon a 
number of fectors, including our ability to identify acceptable acquisiti'on candidates, consummate acquisitions on 
acceptable terms, successfully integrate acquired assets and obtain financing to fund acquisitions and to support 
our growth and many other factors beyond our conti'ol. Risks associated with acquisitions include those relating 
to the diversion of management time and attention from our existing business, liability for known or unknown 
environmental conditions or odier contingent liabiliti^ and greater than anticipated expraditures required for 
compliance with environmental, safety or other regulatory standards or for investments to improve operating results, 
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness to finance acquisitions or capital expenditures relating to acquired 
assets. We may also enter Into transition services agreements in the future with sellers of any additional refineries 
we acquire. Such services raay not be performed timely and effectivety, and any significant dismption in such 
transition s^vices or unanticipated costs related to such services could adversely affect our business and results 
of operations. 

Our business nuty si0'er If any of our senior executives or other key err^loyees discontinues en^loyment with 
us. Furthermore, a shortage of skilled labor or disruptions in our tabor force nuty make It difficult for us to 
maintain labor productivity. 

Our future success depends to a large extent on the services of our senior executives and other key employees. 
Our business depends on our continuing ability to recruit, tram and retein highly qualified employees in alt areas 
of our operations, including engmeering, accounting, business operations, finance and other key back-office and 
mid-office personnel. Furthermore, our operations requu« skilled and experioiced employees with proficiency in 
multiple tasks. The competition for these employees is intense, and the loss of these executives or employees could 
harm our business. If any of these executives or other key personnel resigns or becomes unable to continue in his 
or her present role and is not adequatety replaced, our business operations could be materially adversety affected. 

A portion of our workforce Is unionized, and we may face labor disruptions that would interfere with our 
operations. 

As of December 31,2013, approximately 296 of our 460 employees at Paulsboro are covered by a collective 
baigatning agreement that expires in March of 2015. In addition, 678 of our 1.066 employees at Delaware City 
and Toledo are covered by a collective bargaining agreement diat expires in Febmaiy of 2015. We may not be able 
to renegotiate our collective bargaining agreements on satisfactory terms or at all when such i^eements expire. 
A failure to do so may increase our costs. Odier employees of ours, who are not presentty represented by a union, 
may become so represented in the future. In addition, our existing tabor agreements may not prevent a strike or 
work stoppage at any of our facilities ui the future, and any work stoppage could negatively affect our results of 
operations and financial condition. 

Our Itedglng activities nuty limit our potential gains, exacerbate potential b^ses and involve other rlslcs. 

We may enter into commodity derivatives contracts to hedge our cmde price risk or crack spread risk with 
respect to a portion of our expected gasoline and distillate production on a rolling basis. Consistent with that policy 
we, or MSCG or Statoil at our request, may hedge some percentage of future crude supply. We mtty enter mto 
hedging arrangements with the intent to secure a minimum fixed cash flow stream on die volume of products 
hedged during the hedge term and to protect against volatility in commodity prices. Our bedgii^ arrangements 
may fail to fully achieve these objectives for a variety of reasons, including our failure to have adequate hedging 
arrangements, if any, in effect at any particular time and the frulure of our hedging arrangement to prockice the 
anticipated results. We may not be able to procure adequate hedging arrangements due to a variety of factors. 
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Moreover, such transactions may limit our ability to benefit from &vorable changes in cmde oil and refined product 
prices. In addition, our hedging activities may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, 
including instances in which: 

• the volumes of our actual use of cmde oil or production of the applicable refined products is less than die 
volumes subject to the hedging arrangement; 

• accidents, interruptions in feedstock transportation, inclement weadier or other events cause unscheduled 
shutdowns or otherwise adversely affect our refineries, or those of our suppliers w customers; 

• changes in commodity prices have a material impact on collateral and mai^in requirements under our 
hedging arrangements, resulting in our being subject to margui calls; 

• the counterparties to our fritures contracts fail to perform under the contracts; or 
• a sudden, unexpected event materially impacts the commodity or crack spread subject to the hedging 

arrangement. 

As a result die effectiveness of our hedging sh^tegy could have a material impact on our financial results. 
See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Anatysis of Fuiancial Condition and Results of Operations— 
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk." 

In addition, tiiese hedging activities involve basis risk. Basis risk in a hedging arrangement occurs ^^en 
the price of the commodity we hedge is more or less variable than the index upon wliich the hedged commodity 
is based, thereby making the hedge IMS effective. FOT example, a NYMEX index used for hedging certain volumes 
of crude oil or refined products may have more or less variability than the cost or price for such cmde oil or refined 
products. We generally do not expect to hedge the basis risk inherent in our derivatives contracts. 

Our commodity derivative activities could result In perhd-io-perlod eartdngs volatility. 

We do not apply hedge accounthig to all of our commodity derivative contracts and, as a result unrealized 
gains and losses will be charged to our earnings based on die increase or decrease in die market value of the 
unsettled position, Hiese gains and tosses may be reflected in our income statement in periods diat differ from 
when the undertying hedged items (i.e., gross margins) are reflected in our income statement. Such derivative ̂ ins 
or tosses in earnings m£ty produce significant period-to-period earoings volatility that is not necessarily reflective 
of our underlying operational performance. 

The adoption of derivatives legislation by the United States Congress could have an adverse effect on our ability 
to use derivatives contracts to reduce the effect of commodity price, Interest rate and other risks associated witit 
our business. 

The United Stetes Congress in 2010 adopted the Dodd-Frank Wall Sti^et Refonm and Consumer Protection 
Act. or the Dodd-Frank Act, which, among other things, established federal oversight and regulation of the over-
the-counter derivatives market and entities that participate in that market. In connection with the Dodd-Frank Act, 
die Commodity Futures Trading Commission, or die CFTC, adopted regulations to set position limits for certain 
futures and option contracts in the major energy maikets. Although th^e regulations were recently vacated by the 
U.S. Disti-ict Court for die District of Columbia, tiie court remanded die matter to the CFTC and the CFTC voted 
on November 15,2012 to appeal the Disb-ict Court's decision. The legislation may also require us to comply with 
margin requirements, and widi certain clearing and trade-execution requirements ifwe do notsatisfy certam specific 
exceptions. The legislation may also require the counterparties to our derivatives contracts to transfer or assign 
some of their derivatives contracts to aseparate entity, which may not be as creditworthy as the current counterparty. 
The legislation and any new regulations could significantly increase the cost of derivatives contracts (including 
through requirements to post collateral), materially alter the terms of derivatives contracts, reduce die availability 
of deiivatives to protect against risks we encounter, reduce our abilhy to monetize or restructure our existing 
derivatives contracts, and increase our exposure to less creditworthy counterparties. If we reduce our use of 
derivatives as a result of the legislation and regulations, our results of operations mity become more volatile and 
our cash flows may be less predictable, which could adversety affect our ability to plan for and fund capital 
expenditores. Any of these consequences could have a material adverse effect on us, our financial condition and 
our results of operations. 

28 



Our operations could be disrupted if our information systems are hacked or fail, causing increased ejqienses 
and loss of sales. 

Our business is highty dependent on financial, accounting and other date proce^ing systems and odier 
communications and information systems, including our enterprise resource planning tools. We process a laige 
number of tiansactions on a daity basis and rely upon the proper functioning of computer systems. If a key system 
was hacked or otherwise interfered with by an unauthorized access, or was to ftil or experience unscheduled 
downtime for any reason, even if only for a short period, our operations and financial results could be affected 
adversely. Our systems could be damaged or intermpted Ity a security breach, fire, flood, power loss, 
telecommunications failure or simitar event We have a formal disaster recoveiy plan in place, but this plan may 
not prevent delays or other complications that could arise from an infonnation systems failure. Further, our business 
intermption insurance may not compensate us adequatety for tosses that may occur. 

Product UablUty claims and litigation could adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

Product liability is a significant commercial risk. Substantial damage awards have been made in certain 
jurisdictions against manufacturers and resellers based upon claims for {injuries and property damage caused by 
the use of or exposure to various products. Failure of our products to meet required specifications or claims that 
a product is inherentiy defective could result in product liability claims from our shippers and customers, and also 
arise from conteminated or off-specification product in commingled pipelines and storage tanks and/or defective 
fuels. Product liability claims against us could have a material adverse effect on ourbusiness or results of operations. 

We may incur significant liabUity under, or costs and capital expenditures to compty with, environmental and 
health and safety regulations, which are conq>lex and change frequentiy. 

Our operations are subject to federal, state and local laws r^ulati'ng, among other things, the handling of 
petroleum and other regulat^ materials, the emission and discharge of materials into die environment, waste 
management and remediation of discharges of petroleum and petroleum products, char^eristics and composition 
of gasoline and distillates and other matters odierwise relating to the protection of the environment Our operations 
are also subject to extensive taws and regulations relating to occupational health and safety. 

We cannot predict what additional environmental, health and safety legislation or regulations may be adopted 
in the future, or how existing or futore laws or regulations may be administered or interpreted with respect to our 
operations. Many of these laws and regulations are becoming increasingly stringent and the cost of compliance 
with these requiremraits can be expected to increase over time. 

Certain envbonmentel laws impose strict and in certain cu-cumstances, joint and several, liability for costs 
of mvesti'gation and cleanup of such spills, discharges or releases on owners and operators of, as well as persons 
who arrange for treatment or disposal of regulated materials at, contaminated sites. Under these laws, we may 
incur liability or be required to pay penalties for past contamination, and third parties may assert claims against 
us for damages allegedly arising out of any past or futore contamination. Hie potential penalties and clean-up costs 
for past or future releases or spills, the failure of prior owners of our facilities to complete tiieir clean-up obligations, 
the liability to third parties for damage to their property, or the need to address newly-discovered information or 
conditions diat may require a response could be significant and the payment of these amounts could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Furthermore, our Delaware City refinery and our Delaware City Rail Terminal are located ui Delaware's 
coastal zone where cert^ui activities are regulated under the Delaware Coastel Zone Act and closely monitored by 
environmental interest groups. On June 14,2013, two administrative appeals were filed by the Sierra Club and 
Delaware Audubon regarding a permit Delaware City Refining Company LLC ("DCR") obteined to allow loading 
of cmde oil onto baiges. The appeals allege that both the loading of cmde oil onto barg^ and the operation of the 
Delaware City rait unloading terminal violate Delaware's Coastel Zone Act The first appeal is Number 2013-1 
before the State Coastal 2^ne Industrial Control Board (the "CZ Board"), and die second appeal is before the 
Environmentel Appeals Board and appeals Secretary's Order No. 2013-A-0020. The CZ Board held a hearing on 
the first f^peal on July 16,2013, and ruled in favor of DCR and die State of Delaware and dismissed die Af^llants* 
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appeal for lack of standmg. Sierra Club and Delaware Audubon have ^pealed diat decision to the Delaware 
Superior Court New Castle County, Case No. Nl 3A-09-001ALR, and Delaware Chy Refining and the Stete have 
filed cross-appeals. Briefs are due to be filed in this appeal in the first quarter of 2014 but no date has been set for 
a decision by the Superior Court. A hearing on the second appeal before the Environmental Appeals Board, case 
no. 2013-06, was held on January 13,2014. and the Board roled in favor of Delaware City Refining and the State 
and dismissed the ̂ peal for lack of jurisdiction. A written decision from the Board is pending, after which the 
Appellants will again have the right to appeal the decision to Superior Court. If the Appellants in one or both of 
these matters ultimately prevail, die outcome may have an adverse material effect on our financial condition, 
results of operations or cash flows. 

Environmental clean-up and remediation costs of our sites and environmental litigation could decrease our net 
cashflow, reduce our results of operations and impair ourfinanclal condition. 

We are subject to liability for the investigation and clean-up of environmental contemination at each of the 
properties diat we own or operate and at off-site locations where wearrangeforthetreatmentordisposalofregulated 
materials. We may become involved in future litigation or other proceedings. Ifwe were to be held responsible for 
damages in any litigation or proceedings, such costs may not be covered by insurance and may be material. Historical 
soil and groundwater contamination has been identified at each of our refineries. Currentty remediation projects 
are undervi'ay in accordance with regulatory requirements at the Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries. In 
connection with die acquisitions of our refineries, the prior ovmers have retained certain liabilities or indemnified 
us for certain liabilities, including those relating to pre-acquisition soil and groundwater conditions, and in some 
instences we have assumed certain liabilities and environmentel obligations, including cer^n remediation 
obligations at the Paulsboro refineiy. If the prior owners fail to satisfy their obligations for any re^on, or if 
significant liabilities arise in the areas in which we assumed liability, we may become responsible for remediation 
expenses and other environmental liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition. 
As a result >'! addition to making capital expenditores or incurring other costs to compty widi environmentel laws, 
we also may be liable for significant environmentel litigation or for investigation and remediation costs and other 
liabilities arising from die ownership or operation of these assets by prior owners, which could materialty adversely 
affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flow. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Contractual Obligations and Commitments" and "Item 
1. Busmess—^Environmentel, Healdi and Safety Matters." 

We may also face liability arising from current or future claims alleging personal injury or property damage 
due to exposure to chemicals or other regulated materials, such as asbestos, benzene, MTBE and pefroleum 
hydrocarbons, at or from oiu- facilities. We may also face liability for personal injury, property damage, natural 
resource damage or clean-up costs for the alleged migration of contamination frxmi our properties. A significant 
increase in the number or success of these claims could materially adversely affect our financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flow. 

Regulation ofendsslons of greenhouse gases could force us to Incur increased capital and operating costs and 
could have a material adverse effiect on our results of operations andflnanclal condition. 

Both houses of Congress have actively considered legislation to reduce emissions of GHGs, such as carbon 
dioxide and methane, including proposals to: (i) esteblish a cap ^ d trade system, (ii) create a federal renewable 
energy or **clean" energy standard requiring electric utilities to provide a certain percentage of power from such 
sources, and (iii) create enhanced incentives for use of renewable energy and mcreased efficiency in energy supply 
and use. In addition, die EPA is taking steps to regulate GHGs under ̂ e existing fed^^l Clean Air Act. or CAA. 
Hie EPA has already adopted regulations limiting emissions of GHGs from motor vehicles, addressing die 
permitting of GHG emissions from stationary sources, and requiring the i^ortingofGHG emissions fixim specified 
large GHG emission sources, including refineries. These and similar regulations could require us to incur costs to 
monitor and report GHG emissions or reduce emissions of GHGs associated with our operations. In addition, 
various states, individually as well as tn some cases on a regional basis, have taken s t ^ to control GHG emissions, 
including adoption of GHG reporting requirements, oq} and trade systems and renew^le portfolio standards. 
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Efforts have also been undertaken to delay, limit or prohibit EPA and possibly stete action to regulate GHG 
emissions, and it is not possible at this thne to predict the ultimate form, timing or extent of federal or stete regulation. 
In the event we do incur increased costs as a result of increased efforts to control GHG emissions, we may not be 
able to pass on any of diese costs to our customers. Such requirements also could fdversety affect demand for the 
refined petroleum products that we produce. Aity increased costs or reduced demand could materialty and adversety 
affect our business and results of oper^ion. 

Renewable fuels mandates may reduce dematulfor the refined fuels we produce, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations andflnanclal condition. 

Pursuant to die Energy Policy Act of 2005 and the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007, the EPA 
has issued Renewable Fuel Standards, or RFS, implementing mandates to bl^d renewable foels into the petroleum 
fuels produced and sold in the United Stetes. Under RFS, the volume of renewable fuels that obligated refineries 
must blend into their finished petroleum fuels increases annually over time until 2022. In addition, certain states 
have passed tegislation that requires minimum biodiesel blending in finished distillates. On October 13.2010. the 
EPA raised the maximum amount of ethanol allowed under federal law from 10% to 15% for cars and light trucks 
manufactored since 2007. The maximum amount allowed under federal law currentiy remains at 10% edianol for 
all other vehicles. Existing taws and regulations could change, and die minimum volumes of renewable fuels that 
must be blended with refined petroleum fuels may increase. Because we do not produce renewable fuels, increasing 
the volume of renewable fuels that must be blended into our products displaces an increasing volume of our 
refinery's product pool, potentially resulting in lower earnings and profitability. In addition, in order to meet certain 
of these and futore EPA requiremaits, we must purchase credits, known as "RINS," which have fiuctoating costs. 

Ourplpetines are subject tofederal and/or state regulations, which could reduce the amount of cash we generate. 

Our transportation activities are subject to regulation by multiple governmental agencies. The regulatory 
burden on the industry increases the cost of doing business and affects profitability. Additional proposals and 
proceedings that affect the oil indushy are regul^ty considered by Congress, the states, die Federal Eneigy 
Regulatory Commission, the United States Department of Transportation, and the courts. We cannot predict when 
or whether any such proposals m ^ become effective or what impact such proposals may have. Projected operating 
costs related to our pipelines reflect the recurring costs resulting from compliance with these regulations, and diese 
costs may increase due to fotore acquisitions, changes in r^ulation, changes in use. or discovery of existing but 
unknown compliance issues. 

We are subject to strict laws and regulations regarding enq>loyee and process sqfety, and failure to compty with 
these laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, fltutncial condition 
and profitability. 

We are subject to the requirements of die Occupational Safety & Health Administration, or OSHA. and 
comparable state statutes that regulate the protection of the heahh and safety of workers. In addition. OSHArequtres 
that we matnt^n information about hazardous materials used or produced in our operations and that we provide 
this information to employees, stete and local governmental autiiorities, and k>cat residents. Ffuture to comply with 
OSHA requirements, including general mdustry standards, process safety standards and control of occupational 
exposure to regulated substances, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial 
condition and the cash flows of the business ifwe are subjected to signtflcant fines or compliance costs. 

Compliance ivlth and changes In tax laws could adversely i^ect our performance. 

We are subject to extensive tax liabilities, mcluding federal, state, local and foreign taxes such as income, 
excise, sales/use. payroll, franchise, property, gross receipts, withholding and ad valorem taxes. New tax laws and 
regulations and changes in existing tax laws and regulations are contmuousty being enacted or proposed that could 
resuh in increased expenditores for tax liabilities in the futore. These liabilities are subject to periodic audits tty 
the respective taxing authorities, which could increase our tax liabilities. Sut^equent changes to our tax liabilities 
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as a result of these audits may also subject us to interest and penalties. There can be no certainty that our federal, 
state, local or foreign taxes could be passed on to our customers. 

Our rapid growth may strain our resources and divert management^ attention. 

We were a development stage enterprise prior to our acquishion of Paulsboro on December 17,2010. With 
the further acquisition of Toledo, the re-start of Delaware City, our IPO and consfruction of our rail facilities, we 
have experienced rapid growth in a short period oftime. Continued expansion may strain our resources and force 
management to focus attention from other business concerns to the development of incremental internal controls 
and procedures, which could harm our business and operating resuhs. We m ^ also need to hire more employees, 
which will increase our costs and expenses. 

We rely on StatoU and MSCG, over whom we may have llndted control, to provide us with certain volumetric 
and pricing data used in our inventory valuations. 

We rely on Statoil and MSCG to provide us with certain volumetric and pricing data used in our inventoiy 
valuations. Our limited control over the accuracy and the timing of the receipt of this data could materialty and 
adversely affect our ability to produce financial statements in a timely manner. 

Changes In our credit profile could adversely affect our business. 

Changes in our oedit profile could affect the way cmde oil suppliers view our ability to make payments 
and induce them to shorten the payment terms for our purchases or require us to post security or letters of credit 
prior to paym^t. Due to the t ^ e dollar amounts and volume of our cmde oil and other feedstock purdiases, any 
imposition t^ our suppliers of more burdensome payment tenns on us may have a material adverse effect on our 
liquidity and our ability to make payments to our suppliers. Hiis, in turn, could cause us to be unable to operate 
one or more of our refineries at full capacity. 

Changes In laws or standards affecting thetra/tsportatton of North Arrtertcan crude oil by rati could significantly 
impact our operations, and as a result cause our costs to irtcrease. 

Investigations into recent rail accidente involving the transport of cmde oil have prompted government 
agencies and other interested parties to call for mcreased regulation of the transport of erode oil by rail including 
in the areas of cmdeoit constitoents, rail car design, routing of trains and other matters. If changes in law, regulations 
or industiy standards occur that resuh in requirements to reduce the volatile or flammable constitoents in cmde 
oil diat is transported by rail, alter the design or standards for rail cars, change the routing or scheduling of trains 
carrying crude oil, or any other changes that deti'imentalty affect the economics of deliv^ing North American 
cmde oil by rail to our refineries, our costs could increase, which could have a material adverse effect on our 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

We could Inatr substantial costs or disruptiorts in our business ̂ we cannot obtain or rrtalrttttln necessary permits 
and authorizations or otherwise conqtly with health, safety, envlronrrtental and other laws and regulations. 

Our operations require numerous permits and authorizations under various laws and regulations. Hiese 
authorizations and permits are subject to revocation, renewal or modification and can require operational changes to 
limit impacts or potential impacts on the environment and/or health and safety. A violation of authorization or permit 
conditions or otiier legal or regulatory requu^ments could result in substantial fines, criminal sanctkins, permit 
revocations, injunctions, and/or fecitity shutdowns. In addition, major modifications of our operations could require 
modifications to our existi'ng permits or upgrades to our existing pollution control equipmrat Any or alt of these 
matters could have a negati've effect on our business, results of operations and cash flows. 

We may incur significant liability under, or costs and coital expenditures to comply with, environmental and 
healtli and safety regulations, which are complex and change frequently. 
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Our operations are subject to federal, stete and local laws regulating, among other thinp, the handling of 
petroleum and other regulated materials, the emission and discharge of materials into the environment, waste 
management and remediation of discharges of petroleum and petroleum products, characteristics and composition 
of gasoline and distillates and other matters otherwise relating to the protection of the environment. Our operations 
are also subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to occupational health and saf^. 

We cannot predict what additional environmental, health and safety legislation or regulations may be adopted 
in die future, or how existing or future laws or regulations may be administered or interpr^ed with respect to our 
operations. Many of these laws and regulations are becoming increasingly stringent and ttie cost of compliance widi 
these requirements can be expected to increase over time. 

Certain environmental laws impose strict and in certain circumstances joint and several liability for, costs of 
investigation and cleanup of such spills, discharges or releases on owners and operators of. as well as persons who 
arrange for treatment or disposal of regulated materials at contaminated sites. Under these laws, we may incur h'ability 
or be required to pay pendties for past contamuiation, and third parties may assert claims against us for damages 
atl^edty arising out of any past or fritiu« contamination. Hie potential penalties and clean-up costs for past or future 
releases or spills, the failure of prior owners of our facilities to complete their clean-up obligations, the liability to 
third parties for damage to their property, or the need to address newly-discovered information or conditions that may 
require a response could be significant, and the payment of these amounts could have a material adverse effect on 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Furthermore, our Delaware City refineiy and our Delaware City Rail Terminal are located in Delaware's coastal 
zone where certain activities are regulated under die Delaware Coastal Zone Act and closely monitored by 
environmental interest groups. On June 14, 2013, two administrative appeals were filed by the Sierra Club and 
Delaware Audubon regarding a permit Delaware City Refinmg Company LLC ("DCR") obtained to allow loading 
of cmde oil onto baiges. The appeals allege that both the loading of cmde oil onto barges and the operation of the 
Delawve City rati unloading terminal violate Delaware's Coastal Zone Act The first appeal is Number 2013-1 
before the State Coastel Zone Industrial Control Board (the "CZ Board"), and die second appeal is before ^e 
Environmental Appeals Board and appeals Secretaiy's Order No. 2013-A-0020. The CZ Board held a be^mg on 
the first appeal on July 16,2013, and mied in fevor of DCR and the State of Delaware and dismissed the Appellants' 
appeal for lack of standing. Sierra Club and Delaware Audubon have appealed that decision to the Delaware 
Superior Court, New Castle County, Case No. Nl 3 A-09-001 ALR, and Delaware City Refining and die Stete have 
filed cross-^peats. Briefs are due to be filed in this appeal in the first quarter of 2014 but no date has been set for 
a decision by the Superior Court. A hearing on the second appeal before die Environmental Appeals Board, case 
no. 2013-06, was held on January 13,2014. and the Board ruled in favor of Delaware City Refining and the State 
and dismissed the appeal for lack of jurisdiction. A written decision from the B o ^ is pending, after which the 
Appellants will again have the right to ̂ peal the decision to Superior Court If the Appellants in one or both of 
diese matters ultimately prevail, the outcome may have an adverse material effect on our financial condition, results 
of operations or cash flows. 

Risks Related to Our Indebtedne^ 

Our substantial indebtedness could adversety affect ourfinanclal condition and prevent usfromfulfilUng our 
obligations under our indebtedness. 

Our substantial indebtedness may significantly affect our financial flexibility in the futore. As of 
December 31,2013, we have total long-teim debt mcluding the Delaware Economic Development Authority Loan, 
of $747.6 million, all of which is secured, and we could have incurred an additional $615.9 million of senior secured 
indebtedness under our exbling debt agreements. We may incur additional indebtedness in the fiitare. Our strate©' 
includes executing futore refinery acquisitions. Any significant acquisition would likely require us to incur 
additional indebtedness in order to finance all or a portion of such acquisition. The level of our indebt^ness has 
several important consequences for our futore operations, including that; 

• a significant portion of our cash flow from operattons will be dedkated to the payment of principal of. and 
interest on, our indebtedness and will not be available for other purposes; 
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* covenants contained in our existing debt arrangements limit our ability to borrow additional funds, dispose 
of assets and make certain investin^ts; 

• diese covenants also require us to meet or maintain certain financial tests, which may affect our flexibility 
in planning for, and reacting to, changes in our industry, such as being able to take advantage of acquisition 
opportonhies when they arise; 

* our ability to obtein additional financing for working coital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general 
corporate and other purposes may be limited; and 

* we may be at a competitive disadvantage to those of our competitors that are less leveraged; and we may 
be more vulnerable to adverse economic and industiy conditions. 

Our substantial indebtedness increases the risk that we may default on our debt obligations, certain of which 
contain cross-default and/or cross-acceleration provisions. We have significant principal p^ments due under our 
debt instmments. Our subsidiaries* ability to meet their principal obligations wilt be dependent upon our futore 
performance, which in turn will be subject to general economic conditions, industiy cycles and financial, busmess 
and other factors affecting our operations, many of which ate beyond our control. Our busmess may not continue 
to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to repay our substantial indebtedness. Ifwe are unable to generate 
sufficient cash flow from operations, we may be required to sell assets, to refinance all or a portion of our 
indebtedness or to obtain additional financing. Refinancing may not be possible and additional financing may not 
be available on commercialty acceptable terms, or at all. 

Despite our level of Indebtedness, we and our subsldlarl^ may be able to Incur substantially tnore debt, which 
could exacerbate the risks described above. 

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the futore including 
additional secured debt Although our debt instmments and financing arrangement contain restrictions on the 
incurrence of additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and exceptions, 
and die indebtedness incurred m compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. To the extent new debt 
is added to our currentiy anticipated debt levels, the substantial leverage risks described above would increase. 
Also, these restrictions do not prevent us from incurring obligations diat do not constitute indebtedness. 

Restrti^lve covenants In our debt Instruments irtay Htrdt our ablUty to undertake certain types oftrattsactions. 

Various covenants in our debt instruments and other financing arrangements m ^ restrict ova and our 
subsidiaries* financial flexibility in a number of ways. Our indebtedness subjects us to significant financial and 
otiier restrictive covenants, including restrictions on our ability to incur additional indebtedness, place liens upon 
assets, pay dividends or make certain other restricted payments and investments, consummate certain asset sales 
or asset swaps, conduct businesses other than our current businesses, or sell, assign, transfer, lease, convey or 
otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets. Some of these debt instruments also require our subsidiaries 
to satisfy or maintain certain financial condition tests in certain circumstances. Our subsidiaries* ability to meet 
these financial condition tests can be affected by events beyond our control and diey may not meet such tests. 

Provisions tn our indenture could discourage an acquisition of us by a third party. 

Certain provisions of our indentore could make it raoredifficult or more expensive for a third party to acquire 
us. Upon the occurrence of certain transactions constitotuig a "change in control" as defined in die indentore, 
holders of our notes could require us to repurchase all outstanding notes at 101% of the principal amount diereof, 
plus accrued and unpaid hiterest if any, to the date of repurchase. 

Risks Related to Our Organizational Structure and Our Class A Common Stock 

Ottr only material asset Is our Interest tn PBF LLC. Accordingly, we depend upon distributionsfrom PBF LLC 
and Its subsidiaries to pay our taxes, meet our other oWgations and/or pt^ dividends tn thefitUrre. 

We are a holding company and all of our operations are conducted through si^sidiaries of PBF Holding. 
We have no independent means of generating revenue and no material assete other than our ownership in^^st in 
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PBF LLC, Hierefore, we depend on the earnings and cash fiow of our subsidiaries to meet our obligations, including 
our indebtedness, tax liabilities and obligations to make payments under our tax receivable agreement. Ifwe or 
PBF LLC do not receive such cash distributions, dividends or other payments from our subsidiaries, we and PBF 
LLC may be unable to meet our obligations and/or pay dividends. 

We intend to cause PBF LLC to make distributions to its members m an amount sufficient to enable us to 
cover all applic^le taxes at assumed tax rates, make payments owed by us under the tax receivable agreement, 
and to pay other obligations and dividends, if any, declared by us. To die extent we need funds and PBF LLC or 
any of its subsidiaries is restricted from makii^ such distributions under applicable law or regulation or under the 
terms of our financing or other contractoat arrangement, or is otherwise unable to provide such funds, such 
restrictions could materially advereely affect our liquidity and financial condition. 

Our ABL Revolving Credit Facility, 8.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2020 issued by PBF Holding in 
Febmary 2012, or Senior Secured Notes, and certain of our other outstanding debt arrangements include arestricted 
payment covenant, which restricts the ability of PBF Holding to make distributions to us, and we anticipate our 
fiitore debt will contain a similar restriction. In addition, there may be restrictions on p^ments by our subsidiaries 
under applicable laws, including laws that require companies to maintain minimum amounts of capital and to make 
payments to stockholders only from profits. For example. PBF Holding is generalty prohibited under Delaware 
law from making a distribution to a member to the extent that at the time of the distribution, after giving effect to 
the distribution, liabiliti^ of the limited liability company (with certain exceptions) exceed the fair value of its 
assets. As a result we may be unable to obtain that cash to satisfy our obligations and make paymenta to our 
stockholders, if any. 

BbickstoneandFirstReservethroughtheirowttershlpofunitsofPBFLLChavesubstantiallnfluenceorcontrol 
over us, and their Interest m ^ differ from those of our public stockholders. 

As of Febmary 20,2014, Blackstone and First R^erve collectivety possess in the aggregate approxhnatety 
38.0% of die combined voting power of our common stock. As a result Blackstone and First Reserve have the 
ability to significantty infiuence or control the management and affairs of our compai^ and potentially determine 
the outcome of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, inchiding the election and removal of our 
directors, the appointmoit of management futore issuances of securhies, the incurrence of debt by us, amendments 
to our organizational documents, making acquishions and significant investments and capital expenditures and the 
entering into of extraordinary transactions. Btackstone's and First Reserve's interests may not m alt cases be aligned 
with our Class A common stockholders' interests. 

For example, Blackstone and First Reserve may have different tax positions which could influence their 
positions, including regarding whether and when we dispose of assets and whether and when we incur new or 
refinance existing indebtedness, especially in light of the existence of the tax receivable agreement described below. 
In addhion, the stmcturing of futore transactions may take into consideration diese tax or other considerations even 
where no simitar benefit would accme to our Class A common stockholders or us. See "Item 13. Cratain 
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence." 

Blackstone and First Reserve may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures and other 
transactions diat, in their judgment could enhance their equity investment, even though such transactions might 
involve risks to our Class A common stockholders. For example, t h^ could influence us to make acquisitions, 
investments and capitsA expenditores that increase our mdebtedness, or to sell revenue-genraating assets or to not 
make such acqubitiom. investments or capital expenditores. Pursuant to the stockholders ̂ reement we are party 
to widi Blackstone and First Reserve, following the January 2014 Secondary Offering, Blackstone and First Reserve 
will each have die ability to nominate two of our directors so long as it owns between 15% and 25% of our voting 
stock, and one director so long as it owns between 7.5% and 15% of our voting stock. See "Item 13. Certain 
Ret^ionships and Related Tyaiuactions, and Director Independence." Hiis concentration of ownership mvy have 
the effect of delaying, preventing at deterring a change of conti-ol of our company. Lastty, Blackst(»ie aiKi First 
Resave are in die business of making investments m companies and may from time to thne acquire and hold 
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interests in businesses that compete directly or indirectty with us. Our certiflcate of incorporation contains a 
provision renouncing our interest and expectancy in certain corporate opportunities identified by Bl^kstone or 
First Reserve. Hiey may also pursue acquisition opportunities that are complementary to our business and, as a 
result those acquishion opportunhies may not be avail^le to us. 

Although we are no longer a "controtied contpany** within the meaning of the NYSE rules, we may rety on 
exertqrtiortsfrom certain corporate governance requirements during a orte-year ti-ansltlon period. 

Following our January 2014 Secondary Offering, Blackstone and First Reserve no longer control a majority 
of the combined voting power of all classes of our voting stock. As aresuh, we no longer are a"controlled company" 
within the meaning of the NYSE corporate governance standards. Under theN YSE rules, a majorhy of our directors 
must be independent within one year of the date we no longer qualify as a "controlled comply." Hie NYSE mles 
also require that we have at least one independent director on each of die compensation and nominating and 
corporate governance committees prior to tiie date we no longer qualify as a "controlled company," at least a 
majority of independent members within 90 days of such date and that the compensation and nominating and 
corporate governance committees be composed entirety of independent directors within one year of such date. We 
might utilize certain of diese exemptions during these transition periods. Accordingly, until Januaiy 2015, our 
stockholders may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of 
the corporate governance requirements of the NYSE. See "Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
and Director Independence," 

We will be required to p<^ the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units and PBF LLC Series B Units for certain tax 
benefits we may claim arising in connection with our prior offerings and future exchartges ofPBF LLC Series 
A Units for shares of our Class A Cortmutn Stock and related transactiorts, and the arrwurtts we rruQfpay could 
be significant 

We are party to a tax receivable agreement that provides for die payment from time to time by PBF Energy 
to the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units and PBF LLC Series B Units of 85% of the benefits, if any, that PBF 
Energy is deemed to realize as a result of (i) the increases in tax basis resuhmg from its acquisitions of PBF LLC 
Series A Units, inchiding such acquisitions in connection widi our prior offerings or in the future and (ii) certain 
other tax benefits related to our entering into the tax receivable agreement, including tax benefits atti'ibutable to 
payments under the tax receivable agreement. See "Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and 
Director Independence." 

We expect that the payments diat we may make under the tax receivable agreement will be substantial. As 
of December 31.2013, we have recognized a Utility for the tax receivable agreement of $287.3 million refiecting 
our estimate of the undiscounted amounts that we expect to pay under the agreement due to exchanges that occurred 
prior to that date, and to range over the next five years from approximatety $12.5 million to $34,6 million per year 
and decline thereafter. Assuming no material changes in the relevant tax law, and that we earn sufficient taxable 
income to realize all tax benefits that are subject to die tax receivable agreement we e}q>ect that additional futore 
payments under tiie tax receivable agreement relating to the exchange by die selling stockholders in connection 
with the January 2014 Secondary Offering to aggregate $140.5 million. Futore p^mients by us in respect of 
sul^equent exchanges of PBF LLC Series A Units would be in addition to these amounts and are expected to be 
substantial as well. For example, if 50%, with respect to the amount and timing of PBF Eneigy income, or more 
of the capital and profits interests In PBF LLC are transferred in a taxable sale or exchange within a period of 12 
consecutive months, PBF LLC will undergo, for federal income tax purposes, a "technical termination" that could 
affect the amount of PBF LLC's taxable income in any year and the allocation of taxable income among the 
members of PBF LLC, including PBF Energy. If PBF Energy does not have taxable income. PBF Energy generally 
is not required (absent a change of control or circumstances requiring an early termination payment) to make 
payments under the tax receivable agreement for diat taxable year because no benefit will have been actually 
realized. However, any tax benefits that do not resuh in realized benefits in a given tax year will likety generate 
tax attributes that may be utilized to generate benefits in previous or future tax years. The utilization of such tax 
attributes wilt resuh in payments under die tax t^ceivabte agreement. The forgoing numbers are merely estimates 
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based on assumptions that are subject to charge due to various &ctors. including, among other factors, the timing 
of exchanges of PBF LLC Series A Units for shares of PBF Energy's Class A comment ^ock as contemplated by 
the tax receivable agreement, the price of PBF Enetgy's Class A common stock at the time of sudi exchanges, the 
extent to which such exchanges are taxable, and the amount and tuning of PBF Energy's income. The actoal 
paymenta could differ materially from the estimates above. It is possible that futore transactions or events could 
increase or decrease the actual tax benefits realized and the corresponding tax receivable agreement payments. 
Hiere may be a material negative effect on our liquidity if, as a result of timmg discrepancies or otherwise, (i) the 
payments under the tax receivable agreement exceed die actual benefits we realize in r^pect of the tax atfributes 
subject to die tax receivable agreement, and/or (ii) distributions to PBF Energy by PBF LLC are not sufficient to 
permit PBF Energy, after it has paid its taxes and other obligations, to make payments under the tax receivable 
agreement. Hie p^ments under the tax receivable agreement are not conditioned upon any recipient's continued 
ownership of us. 

In certain cases, payments by us under ihe tax receivable agreement may be accelerated and/or significantly 
exceed the actual benefits we reaUze In r^ped of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement 
These provisions may deter a change In control of our Cortqtarty. 

Hie tax receivable agreement provides that upon certain changes of control, or if, at any time, PBF Energy 
elects an early termination of the tax receivable agreement, PBF Energy's (or its successor's) obligations with 
respect to exchanged or acquired PBF LLC Series A Units (whedier exchwiged or acquired before or after such 
transaction) would be based on certain assumptions, including (i) that PBF Energy would have sufficient taxE l̂e 
income to fully utilize die deductions arising from die increased tax deductions and tax basis and other benefits 
related to entering into the tax receivable agreement and (ii) that the subsidiari^ of PBF LLC wilt sett certain 
nonamortlzable assets (and realize certain related tax benefits) no later than a specified date. Moreover, in each of 
these instances, we would be required to make an immediate payment equal to tiie present value (at a discount rate 
equal to LIBOR plus 100 basis points) of the antkiipated futore tax benefits (based on the foregoing assumptions). 
Accordingly, payments under the tax receivable agreement may be made years in advance of the actual realization, 
if aity, of die ^ticipated flitore tax benefits and may be significantiy greater dian tiie actoal benefits we realize tn 
respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement Assuming that the market value of a share of 
our Class A common stock equals $31.46 per share (the ckising price on December 31, 2013) and that LIBOR 
were to be 1.85%, we estimate that, as of December 31,2013 the ag^egate amount of these accelerated payments 
would have been approximatety $789.4 millkm if triggered immediately on such date. In these situations, our 
obligations under the tax receivable agreement could have a substantial negative impact on our liquidity. We may 
not be able to finance our obligations under the tax receivable agreement and our existmg indebtedness may limit 
our subsidiaries' ability to make distributions to us to pay these obligations. Hiese provisions may deter a potential 
sale of our Company to a third party and may otherwise make it less likely that a third party would enter into a 
change of control transaction with us. 

Moreover, payments under the tax receivable agreement will be based on the tax reportmg positions diat 
we determine in accordance with the tax receivable agreement. We will not be reimbursed for any payments 
previousty made under the tax receivable agreement if the Internal Revenue Service subsequently disallows part 
or all of the tax benefits that gave rise to such prior payments. As a result, in certain circumstances, payments could 
be made under the tax receivable agreement diat are significantty in excess of the benefits that we actually realize 
In respect of (i) tiie increases in tax basis resulting from our purchases or exchanges of PBF LLC Series A Unite 
and (ii) certain other tax benefits related to our entering into the tax receivable agreement including tax benefits 
attributable to payments under the tax receivable agreement 

The requirements of being a public conqtany may strain our resources and dlstrad our maruigement 

As a public company, we are subject to die r^orting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended, and requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002. These requirements may place a strain on our 
^'Sterns and resources. The Exchange Act requires tiiat we file annual, qufflteriy and current reports with respect 
to our business and financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxl^ Act requires that we maintain effective disclosure 
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contix)ts and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. We have implemented addhional procedures 
and processes for the purpose of addressing the standards and requiremoits applicable to public companies. In 
addition, sustaining our growth also wilt require us to commit additional management, operational and financial 
resources to identify new professionals to join our firm and to maintain appropriate operational and financial 
systems to adequately support expansion. Hiese activities may divert managements attention from other business 
concerns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows. We expect to incur significant additional annual expenses related to these steps and other public 
company expenses. 

We cannot assure you that we wlU continue to declare dividends or have the available cash to make dividend 
payments. 

Although we currentiy intend to pay quarterly cash dividends on our Class A common stock, the declaration, 
amount and payment of any dividends will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors. We »v not obligated 
under any applicable laws, our governing documents or any contractoat agreements widi our existing owners or 
otherwise to declare or pay any dividends or other distributions (odier than the obligations of PBF LLC to make 
tax distributions to its members). Our board of directors may take into account among other things, general 
economic conditions, our financial condition and operating results, our available cash and current and anticipated 
cash needs, capital requirements, plans for expansion, tax, legal, regulatory and contractoat restrictions and 
implications, including under our outetanding detit documents, and sudi other factors as our board of directors 
m ^ deem relevant in determining whether to declare or pay any dividend. Because PBF Energy is a holding 
company widi no material assets (otiier than the equity interests of its direct subsidiaiy), its cash flow and ^ility 
to pay dividends is dependent upon the flnancial resuhs and cash flows of its direct subsidiary PBF Holding and 
its operating subsidiaries and the distribution or other payment of cash to h in the form of dividends or otherwise. 
The direct and indirect subsidiaries of PBF Energy are separate and distinct legal ^titles and have no obligation 
to make any funds available to it. As a resuh, ifwe do not declare or pay dividends you may not receive any return 
on an investment in our Class A common stock unless you sell our Class A common stock for a price greater than 
that which you paid for it. 

Anti-takeover and certain other provisions In our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law 
may ̂ courage or delay a change In control 

Our certificate of incorporation ^id bylaws contain provisions which could make h more difficuh for 
stockholders to effect certain corporate actions. Among other things, these provisions: 

• autiiorize the issuance of undesignated preferred stock, the terms of whidi may be established and die 
shares of which may be issued without stockholder approval; 

' prohibit stockholder action by written consent now that Blackstone and First Reserve collectively cease 
to beneficially own at least a majority of all of die outstanding shares of our capital stock entitled to vote; 

• restrict certain business combinations with stockholders who obtain beneficial ownership of a certain 
percentage of our outstanding common stodc after the date Blackstone and First Reserve and dieir affiliates 
collectively cease to beneficially own at least 5% of all of the outstanding shares of our capital stock 
entitled to vote; 

' provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by the chairman of the board of directors, 
the chief executive officer or the board of directors, and establish advance notice procedures for the 
nomination of candidates for election as directors or for proposing matters tiiat can be acted upon at 
stockholder meetings; and 

• prtivide now that Blackstone and First Reserve collectivety cease to beneficlalty own a majority of all of 
the outstanding shares of our c^itel stock entitled to vote, our stockholders may onty amend our bylaws 
with die approval of 75% or inbre of all of the outstanding shares of our c£^ital stock entitled to vote. 

These anti-talceover provisions and other provisions of Delaware law may have die effect of delaying or 
deterring a change of control of our company. Certam provisions couki also discourse proxy contests and make 
it more difficutt for you and otiier stockholders to elect directors of your choosing and to cause us to take other 
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corporate actions you desire. These provisions could limit the price that certain investors might be witting to pay 
in the futore for shares of our Class A common stock. 

In addition, in connection with our initial public offering, we entered into a stockholders agreement with 
Blackstone and First Reserve pursuant to which tiiey will each be entitled to nominate a number of directors so 
long as certain ownership thresholds are maintained. 

The rrutrket price of our Class A conrnwn stock may be volatile, which could cause the value of your Investment 
to decline. 

The market price of our Class A common stock may be highty volatile and could be subject to wide 
fluctoations due to a number of factors including: 

• variations in actual or anticipated operating results or dividends, if any. to stockholders; 
• changes in, or failure to meet earnings estimates of securhies anatysts; 
• market conditions in the oil refining mdustry; 
• the impact of dismptions to erode or feedstock supply to any of our refineries, including dismptions due 

to problems v/ith tiiird party logistics infrastructure; 
• litigation and government investigations; 
• the timing and announcement of any potential acquisitions and subsequent impact of any future acquisitions 

on our capital stmctore, financial condition or results of operati'ons; 
• changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations or differing interpretations or enforcement thereof 

affecting our busmess or mdustry, including any lifting by the federal government of die restrictions on 
exportmg U.S. erode oil; 

• general economic and stock market conditions; and 
• the availability for sale, orsales.ofa significant number of shares of our Class A common stock in the 

public market 

In addition, die stockmarkete generally may experience significant volatility, often unreined to the operating 
performance of the individual companies whose securities are publicly traded. These and other fectors may cause 
the maiket price of our Class A common stock to decrease significantly, which in torn would adversety affect the 
value of your investment. 

In the past following periods of volatility in die market price of a company's securities, stockholders have 
often instituted class action securities litigation against those companies. Such litigation, if instituted, could resuh 
in substantial costs and a diversion of man^ement's attention and r^ources, which could significantty harm our 
profitability and reputation. 

If securities or industry anatysts do not publish raearch or reports about our business, or if they downgrade 
their recommendations regarding our Class A corronon stock, our stock price and trading volume could decline. 

The trading market for our Class A common stock is influenced by the research and reports that industiy or 
securities analysts publish about us or our business. If any of the analysts who cover us downgrade our Class A 
common stock or publish inaccurate or unfrivorable research about our business, our Class A common stock price 
may decline. If analysts cease coverage of us or &il to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibilhy in 
the financial markets, which in turn could cause our Class A common stock price or trading volume to decline and 
our Class A common stock to be less liquid. 

Future saleji of our shares of Class A common stock could cause our stock price to decline. 

The market price of our Class Acommon stock could decline as a resuU of sales of a targe number of shares 
of Class A common stock in the market or the perception that such sales could occur. These sales, <x the possibility 
that these sales may occur, including sales related to financing acquisitions, also might m^e it more difficult for 
us to sell shares of Class A common stodc m die future at a time and at a {nice tiiat we deem appropriate. In additton. 
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any shares of Class A common stock that we issue, including under any equity incentive plans, would dilute the 
percentage ownership of the holders of our Class A common stock. 

We are party to a registration rights a^eement with the other members of PBF LLC pursuant to which we 
eontmue to be required to register under the Securities Act and ^pticable state securities laws the resale of the 
shares of Class A common stock issuable to them upon exchange of all of the PBF LLC Series A Units held by 
them. We currentty have an effective shelf registi^ton statement covering the resale of up to 6,310,055 shares of 
our Class Acommon stock issued or issuable to certam holders of PBF LLC Series AUnits (other than Blackstone 
and First Reserve), which shares may be sold from time to time m the public markets, subject to the lock-up 
agreements described below. Our shares also may be sold under Rule 144 under the Securities Act depending on 
the holding period and subject to restrictions in the case of shares held by persons deemed to be our affiliates. 

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

See "Item LBusiness"* 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

On June 14.2013, two administrative appeals were filed by the Sierra Club and Delaware Audubon regarding 
a permh Delaware City Refining Company LLC ("DCR") obtained to allow loading of crude oil onto barges. Hie 
q)peats allege that bodi the loading of cmde oil onto barges and the operation of die Delaware City rail unloading 
terminal violate Delaware's Coastal Zone Act. The fiist appeal is Number 2013-1 before the State Coastal Zone 
Industrial Conft-ot Board (tiie "CZ Board"), and the second appeal is before the Environm^tal Appeals Board and 
appeals Secretaiy's Order No. 2013-A-0020. The CZ Board held a hearing on die first appeal on Juty 16,2013, 
and ruled in fevor of DCR and the Stete of Delaware and dismissed the Appellants' appeal for lack of standing. 
Sienra Club and Delaware Audubon have appealed that decision to the Delavtrare Superior Court, New Castle 
County, Case No. N13A-09-001 ALR, and E>CR and the State have filed cross-appeals. Briefs are due to be filed 
in tills appeal in the first quarter of 2014 but no date has been set for a decision by the Superior Court A hearing 
on die second appeal before the Environmental Appeals Board, case no. 2013-06, was held on January 13,2014, 
and the Board mled In favor of DCR and the Stete and dismissed tiie ^peat for lack of jurisdiction. A written 
decision from the Board is pending, after which the Appellants will again have the right to appeal the decision to 
Superior Court. If the Appellants in one or both of these matters ultimatety prevml, the outoome m ^ have an 
adverse material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

On Juty 24,2013, the Delaware Departinent of Natiiral Resources and Environmental Conttol ("DNREC") 
issued a Notice of Administrative Penalty Assessment wad Secretary's Order to Delaware City Refining Company 
LLC for alleged air emission violations that occurred during the re-start of the refinery in 2011 and subsequent to 
the redstart. The penalty assessment seeks $460,200 in penalties and $69,030 in cost recovery for DNREC's expenses 
associated with investigation of the incidents. We dispute the amount of the penalty assessment and allegations 
made in die order, and are in discussions whh DNREC to resolve the assessment. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE 

None. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Market Information 

PBF Energy Class A common stock trades on tiie New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PBF." Our 
Class B common stock is not publicly ti^ded. 

As of February 20.2014 there were 8 holders of record of our Class A common stock and 40 holders of 
record of our Class B common stock, 100% of PBF Holding's outstanding membership interests were held by PBF 
LLC. 

The following table sets forth, for the period uidicated, die high and low sales prices of our Class A common 
stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange from December 13,2012, the first day of frading folkiwing 
our initial public offering, through December 31,2013. The initial public offering price of our Class Acommon 
stock was $26.00 per share. 

2013: 
First Quarter ended March 31.2013 
Second Quarter ended June 30,2013 
Third Quarter ended September 30.2013 
Fourdi Quarter ended December 31,2013 
2012: 
December 13 to December 31.2012 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

Sales Prices of the 
Comtnoa Stocli 

H^ l i Low 

42,50 $ 
39.00 $ 
26.66 $ 
31.52 $ 

27.10 
23.54 
20.15 
21.20 

Dividends 
Per 

CommoB Share 

$ 0.30 
$ 0.30 
$ 0.30 
$ 0.30 

29.05 $ 26.00 $ 

There is no established public trading market for membership interests of PBF Holding. 

Dividend Policy 

Subject to the fottowingparagnqjhs, PBF Energy cuirently intends tocontinue to pay quarterly cash dividends 
of ̂ proximately $0.30 per share on its Class A common stock. 

Hie declaration, amount and payment of this and any other futore dividends on shares of Class A common 
stock will be at the sole discretion of PBF Energy's board of directors, and we are not obligated under any applicable 
laws, govemuig documents or any contractual agreements with PBF LLC's existing owners or odierwise to declare 
or pay any dividends or other distributions (other than the obligations of PBF LLC to make tax distributions to its 
members). PBF Energy's boardofdirectors may take into account amongotherdiings, general economic condhions, 
our flnancial condhion and operating results, our available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, coital 
requirements, plans for expansion, tax, legal, regulatory and contractual restrictions and implications, including 
under PBF Energy's tax receivable agreement and our subsidiaries' outstanding debt documents, and such otiier 
factors as PBF Energy's board of directors may deem relevant in determming whether to declare or pay any dividend. 
In addition, we expect tiiat to the extent we declare adividend for apartwular quarter, our cash fiow from op^^tions 
for that quarter will substantially exceed any dividend payment for such period. Because any friture declaration or 
payment of divMends wilt be at the sole discr^ion of PBF Energy's board of directors, we do not expect diat any 
such dividend payments will have a material adverse impact on our liquidity or odierwise limit our ability to fund 
capital expenditores or otherwise pursue our business strategy over the tong-term. Ahhough we have the ability 
to borrow funds and sell assets to pay futore dividends (subject to certain limitations m our ABL Revotvmg Credit 
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Facility and the Senior Secured Notes), we intend to fund any fUture dividends out of our cash flow from operations 
and, as a resuh, we do not expect to incur any indebtedness or to use the jH-oceeds from equity offerings to fund 
such payments. 

PBF Energy is a holding company and has no material assets other than hs ownership interests of PBF LLC. 
In order for PBF Energy to pay any dividends, tiiey will need to cause PBF LLC to make dish-ibutions to it and 
the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units, and PBF LLC will need to cause PBF Holding to make distiibutions to it 
in an amount sufficientto cover cash dividends, if any, declared by PBF Energy. PBF Holding is generally prohibited 
under Delaware law from making a distiibution to a member to tiie extent that, at the time of the distribution, after 
giving effect to the disfribution, liabilities of the limited liability company (with certdn exceptions) exceed the 
fair value of its assets. As a result, PBF LLC may be unable to obtain cash from PBF Holding to satisfy its obligations 
and make distributions to PBF Energy for dividends, if any, to PBF Energy's stockholders. If PBF LLC makes 
such distributions to PBF Energy, the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units will also be entitled to receive pro rata 
dtstributioiu. 

The ability of PBF Holding to pay dividends and make disti-ibutions to PBF LLC is, and in die fotore may 
be, limited by covenants in its ABL Revolving Credit Facility, the Senior Secured Notes and other debt instmments. 
Subject to certain exceptions, the ABL Revolving Credit Facility and the mdenture governing the Senior Secured 
Notes prohibit PBF Holding from making distributions to PBF LLC if certain defaults exist. In addition, botii the 
indenture and the ABL Revolving Credit Facility contain additional restrictions limiting PBF Holding's ability to 
make distributions to PBF LLC. Subject to certain exceptions, die restricted payment covenant under the indenture 
restricts PBF Holding from making cash distributions unless its fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined in the 
indentore, is at least 2.0 to 1.0 after giving pro forma effect to such distributions and such cash distributions do 
not exceed an amount equal to the aggregate net equity proceeds received by it (eitiier as a result of certain capital 
contributions or from the sale of certain equity or debt securities) plus 50% of ita consolidated net income (or less 
100% of consolidated net loss) which is defmed to exclude certain non-cash charges, such as impairment charges, 
plus certain other items. Hvo important exceptions to the foregoing are (i) a permission to pay up to the greater of 
$100.0 million and 1% of PBF Holding's total assets and (ii)a iwrmission to pay an additional $200.0 million 
subject to compliance with a total debt ratio of 2.0 to 1.0. The ABL Revolving Credh Facility generalty restricts 
PBF Holding's ability to make cash distributions if (x) the aggregate amount of such distributions exceeds the then 
existing available amount basket (as defined by the ABL Revolving Credit Facility) and (y) before and after giving 
effect to any such disd-ibution (a) it fails to have pro forma excess availability under the facility greater tiian an 
amount equal to 17.5% of the lesser of (1) the then existing borrowing base and (2) die then current aggregate 
revolving commitment amount, which as of December 31,2013 was $1,610 billion or (b) U fails to mauitain on a 
pro fonna basis a fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined by the ABL Revolving Credit Facility, of at least 1.1 to 
1.0. As a resuh, we cannot assure you that PBF Holding will be able to make distributions to PBF LLC in order 
for PBF LLC to make distributions to PBF Energy. If diat Is die case, it is unlikely that PBF Energy will be able 
to declare dividends as contemplated herein. 

Based upon our operating results for tiie year ended December 31,2013, PBF Holding was permitted under 
its ABL Revolving Credit Facility and indenture to pay disfributions to PBF LLC so that PBF LLC could make 
distributions to its members, including us, in amounts sufficient to enable us to pay a quarterly dividend at the rate 
specified above. The ability of PBF Holding to comply with the foregoing limitations and restrictions is, to a 
significant degree, subject to its operatbig results, which is dqiendent on a number of factors outside of our confrot. 
As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be able to declare dividends as contemplated herein. See "Item 1 A. 
Risk Factors - Risks Related to Our Oiganizationat Stroctore and Class A Common Stock - We cannot assure you 
that wc will continue to declare dividends or have the available cash to make dividend pftyments." 

PBF LLC made pre-IPO cash distributions to its members in the amount of $161.0 million during 2012. 
PBF Holding paid $215.8 million in distributions to PBF LLC during the year ended December 31,2013. PBF 
LLC used $116.0 million of this amount in total to make four separate non-tax distributions of $0.30 per unit ($1,20 
per unit In total) to its membera, of which $37.9 million was distributed to PBF Energy and the balance was 
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disti'ibuted to PBF LLC's other members. PBF Energy used this $37.9 million to pay four s^arate equivalent cash 
dividends of $0.30 per share of Class Acommon stock on November 21,2013, August 21,2013, June 7,2013 and 
March 15, 2013. PBF LLC used the remaining $99.8 million fixim PBF Holding's distribution to make tax 
distributions to its members, whh $20.2 million distributed to PBF Energy, of which $1.1 million was paid by PBF 
LLC dhectly to the applicable taxing audiorhies on behalf of PBF Energy, and $79.6 million to hs odier members. 

PBF LLC will continue to make tax distributions to its members tn accordance with its amended and restated 
limited liability company agreement. 

Assuming approximately 96,867,147 PBF LLC Series A Units and PBF LLC Series C Units outstaiding, 
the aggregate annual distributions which are anticipated to be required to be made by PBF Holding to PBF LLC, 
such that PBF LLC may make an equivalent distribution to its members (including PBF Energy) in order for PBF 
Energy to pay the anticipated $0.30 per quarter cash dividend on its Class Acommon stock, would be approximately 
$116,2 million. As of DecemberSl, 2013, PBF Holding had cash and cash equivalents of $77.0million and 
approximately $615.9 million of unused txirrowing availability under its ABL Revolving Credit Facility to fund 
its operations, if nec^saiy. We believe our and our subsidiaries' available cash and cash equivalents, other sources 
of liquidity to operate our business and operating performance provide us with areasonable basis for our assessment 
that we can continue to support our mtended dividend poHcty, 

Stock Performance Graph 

In accordance with SEC rules, the information contained in the Stock Performance Graph below shall not 
be deemed to be "soliciting material," or to be "filed" with the SEC, or subject to the SEC S Regulation I4A or 
J4C, other than as provided under Item 201 (e) of Regulation S-K. or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that we specificalty request that the information be treated 
as soliciting material or specifically incorporate it by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended. 

This perform^ce graph and the related textoal mformation are based on historical data and are not uidicative 
of future performance. The following line gr^h compares the cumulative total return on an investment in our 
common stock against die cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Comp<»ite Index and an index of peer companies 
(that we selected) for the period commencing December 13,2012 and ending December 31,2013. Our peer group 
consists of the following companies that are engaged in refining operations in the U.S.: Alon USA Energy, Inc.; 
CVR Energy Inc.; DelekUS Holdings, Inc.; HollyFrontier Corporation; Marathon Petroleum Corporation; Phillips 
66; Tesoro Corporation; Valero Energy Corporation; and Western Refining, Inc. 
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PBF Eneigy Inc. Class A Common Stock 
S&P 500 
Peer Group 

12/13/2012 12/31/2012 

$ 100.00 $ 110.67 
100.00 100.91 
100,00 103.11 

12/31/2013 

$ 124.73 
133.59 
149.73 

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities—Exchange of PBF LLC Series A Units to Class A Common Stock 

In the fourdi quarter of 2013. atotal of 83.860 PBF LLC Series AUnits were exchanged for 83,860 shares 
of our Class A common stock in transactions exempt from registi:ation under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. 
We received no otiier consideration in connection with these exchanges. No exchanges were made by any of our 
directors, executive officers or entities affiliated with Blackstone or Fbst Reserve. 

Additionally, on January 6,2014, Btackstone and First Reserve completed a public offering of 15,000,000 
shares of our Class A common stock at a price of $28.00 per share, less underwriting discounts and commissions, 
in a secondary public offering. All of the shares were sold by funds affiliated with Blackstone and First Reserve. 
In connection with tiiis offering, Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged 15,000,000 Series A Units of PBF LLC 
for an equivalent number of shares of our Class A common stock in a transaction exempt fhwn registration under 
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. 

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans 

Hie following table provides information about the securities authorized for issuance under our equity 
compensation plans as of December 31.2013. The infonnation regarding equity compensation plans s^roved by 
security holders represents our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. 

PlahCatfegbrv 
Equify compensation plans ^proved by 
security holders 
Equi^ compensation plans not approved by 
security holders 
Total 

Equity Compeniatioa PIHD Infonnation 

(A) (B) {Q 
Number of 

securities to be 
issued upon 
exercise of 
outstanding 

Options, warrants 
andri^ts 

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding 
options, warrants. 

and rights 

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
fubire issuance under 
equity compensation 

plans (excluding 
securities reflected in 

column <A» 

1,380,392 $ 27.26 

1,380.392 $ 27.26 

3.619.608 

3.619,608 

(I) Securities available for fotore issuance under the plan can be issued in various forms, including, without 
timitaticn. resti-icted stock and stock options. 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

The following table presents selected historical consolidated financial and other data of PBF Energy and 
PBF Holding. The date presented is PBF Energy's data, unless otherwise noted. The selected historical consolidated 
financial date as of December 31.2013 and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31. 
2013 have been derived from our audited flnancial stetem«its, included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data." Hie selected historical consol idated financial data as of December 31,2011.2010. and 2009 
for the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009 have been derived fixim the audited financials of PBF LLC and 
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PBF Holding not mchided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. As a resuh of the Paulsboro and Toledo acquisitions, 
the historical consolidated financial resuhs of PBF LLC and PBF Holding only include the resuhs of (^)erations 
for Paulsboro and Tbledo from December 17,2010 and March 1,2011 forward, respectively. 

The histork^al consolidated financial data and other statistical data presented below should be read in 
conjunction with "Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fmancial Condition and Results of 
Operations." and our consolidated flnancial statements and the related notes fliereto, included in "Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data." 

The hist(»'ical flnancial infonnation for all periods prior to PBF Ener^'s initial public offering included in 
this report were derived from the consolidated financial statements of PBF LLC and does not refiect what our 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows would have been had we been a public company during 
those periods. We were not operated as a public company for historical periods presented prior to our initial public 
offering. The consolidated flnancial information may not be indicative of our fotore financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

The following tables reflect our flnancial and operating highlights (amounts in diousands, except per share 
date) except for income taxes, net income attributable to noncontixilling interest and earnings per share for tiie 
yrars ended December 2013 and 2012, each of which apply only to the financial resuhs of PBF Energy. In addition, 
general and admuiisti^tive expenses for PBF Energy for the year ended December 31,2013 include a chaige of 
$8.5 million associated with a change in the tax receivable agreement liability. Total assets for PBF Energy include 
deferred tax assets which do not s^ply to PBF Holding. PBF Holding's mterest expense also includes interest 
related to an I'ntereompany note with PBF Ener^, which is eliminated in consolidation. 
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Year Ended December 31, 

2(13 2012 2011 2010 2009 ^ 

Statement of operations data: 
Revenues ̂ '' 

Costs and expenses; 
Cost of sates, excluding 
depreciation 

Operating expenses, excluding 
depreciation 

General and administrative 
expenses 

Gain on sale of asset 

Acquisition-related expenses* '̂ 

Depreciation and amortization 
expense 

Income (loss) from operations 

Other (expense) income: 
Change in fair value of catetyst 
lease obligation 

Change in fair value of contingent 
consideration 

Interest income (expense), net 
Income before income taxes 
Income tax expense 
Net Income (loss) 

Less: net income attributable to 
noncontrolling mterest 

Net income attributable to PBF 
Energy Inc. 
WeightedT^verag^ shares of Class A 
comni9n stock ouî tiEintiing: 

Basic 
Diluted 

Net income available to Class A 
common stock per share: 

Basic 

Diluted 
Balance sheet data (at end of 
period): 

Total assets 
Total tong-term debt f*̂  
Total equity 

Other financial data: 
Capital expenditores ^̂^ 

$19,151,455 $20,138,687 $14,960,338 $ 210,671 $ 228 

17,803,314 

812,652 

104,334 

083) 
— 

111,479 

319,859 

18,269,078 

738,824 

120,443 

(2,329) 

— 

92,238 

920,433 

13,855.163 

658.831 

86,183 
_ 

728 

53,743 

305,690 

203,971 

25,140 

15,859 
—. 

6,051 

1,402 

(41,752) 

— 

- ^ 

6,294 

— 

— 

44 

(6,110) 

(2.768) (5,215) (1.217) — 

4.691 
(93,784) 

230.766 

16,681 
214,085 

174,545 

$ 39.540 

32,488,369 

33,061,081 

$ 1.22 
$ 1.20 

(3,724) 

(108,629) 
805.312 

1.275 
804,037 $ 

802.081 

$ 1,956 

23,570,240 
97,230,904 

$ 0.08 
$ 0.08 

7,316 
(65.120) 
242,671 

(1.388) 10 

(44,357) (6,100) 

242,671 $ (44,35'^ $(6,100) 

$ 4,413.808 $ 4,253.702 $ 3.621.109 $1,274393 $19,150 

747,576 729,980 804,865 325,064 — 
1,715.256 1,723,545 1,110,918 458,661 18,694 

$ 415,702 $ 222,688 $ 574.883 $ 72,118 $ 70 
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(1) Consulting services income provided to a related party was $ 10 and $221 for the years ended December 31, 
2010 and 2009, respectively. No consulting services income was earned subsequent to 2010. 

(2) Acquisition related expenses consist of consulting and legal expenses related to the Paulslx)ro and Toledo 
acquisition as well as non-consummated acquisitions. 

(3) December 31, 2009 financial statement date is that of PBF Investments LLC, which was converted to a 
limited liability company and renamed PBF Energy Company LLC in 2010. 

(4) Total long-term debt includes current matorities and our Delaware Economic Development Authority Loan. 
(5) Includes expenditores for construction in progress, property, plant and equipment deferred tomaround costs 

wd other assets. 

Selected Historical Financial Data of Paulsboro, PBF LLC's Predecessor 

The following table presents Paulsboro's selected historical financial data. We refer to Paulsboro as PBF 
LLC's "Predecessor" or "Predecessor Paulsboro," as prior to its acquishion PBF LLC generated substantially no 
revenues and prior to the acquisition of Paukboro and the Delaware City assets, was a new company formed to 
pursue acquisitions of crude oil refineri^ and downstream assets in North America. At the time of its acquisition, 
Paulsboro represented the major portion of PBF LLC's business and assets. 

The financial information of Predecessor Paulsboro, are presented as of, and for the years ended, 
December 31,2009 and for the period from January 1.2010 through December 16.2010 and as of December 16, 
2010, periods prior to PBF LLC's acquisition. Hiese financial statements were prepared by the former management 
of Predecessor Paulsboro and audhed by Predecessor Paulsboro's independent roistered public accounting firm. 
The financial mformation of Predecessor Paulsboro presented herein may not be representative of tiie operations 
of PBF going forward for the following reasons, among others: 

• Both PBF LLC's financial statements and Paulsboro's financial statements contain items which require 
management to make considerable judgments and estimates. Hiere can be no assurance that the judgments 
and estimates made by PBF LLC's management will be identical or even similarto the historical judgments 
and estimates made by Paulsboro's former management. 

• The financial statements of Paulsboro contain allocations of certain general and administrative expenses 
and income taxes specific to Valero. 

• The financial statements of Paulsboro reflect depreciation and amortization expense and asset hnpairment 
lo^es based on Valero's historical cost basis for the applicable assets. PBF LLC's cost basis in such assets 
is different. 

The historical fmancial data and other statistical data presented below should be read in conjunction with 
the section entitled "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Anatysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations—Results of Operations." The historical flnancial data for Paulsboro for the period from January 1, 
2010 through December 16,2010 and as of December 16,2010 and for the year ended December 31,2009 has 
been derived from audited financial statements not included in this Annual Report on Forni 10-K. 
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PAULSBORO REFINING BUSINESS—PBF LLC'S PREDECESSOR 

Statement of operations data: 
Operating revenues (1) 
Cost and expenses: 

Cost of sales (2) 
Operating expenses 
General and administrative expenses (3) 
Asset impairment loss 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Total costs and expenses 
Operating income (tos$) 
Interest and other mcome and expense, net 
Income (toss) before income tax expense (benefit) 
Income tax expense (benefit) (4) 
Net Income (loss) 
Balance sheet data (at end of period): 
Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Net parent mvestment 
Selected financial data: 
Caphal expenditures 

Period from 
January 1, 

2010 through 
December 16, 

2010 
(in thou 

$ 4,708,989 

4,487.825 
259,768 

14,606 
895,642 
66,361 

5.724,202 
(1,015,213) 

500 
(1,014,713) 

(322,962) 
$ (691,751) 

$ 510.205 
42,582 

467.623 

$ 20,122 

Year Ended December 31, 

2009 
sands) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

3,549,517 

3,419,460 
266,319 

15,594 
8,478 

65.103 
3.774,954 
(225,437) 

1.249 
(224,188) 
(86.586) 

(137,602) 

1,440,557 
357,289 

1,083,268 

96,754 

(1) Operating revenues consist of refined products sold from Paulsboro to Valero that were recorded at 
intercompany transfer prices, which were market prices adjusted by quality, location, and other differentials 
on tiie date of the sale. 

(2) Cost of sales consist of the cost of feedstock acquired for processing, including transportation costs to 
deliver the feedstock to Paulsboro. Purchases of feedstock by Paulsboro from Valero were recorded at the 
cost paid to independent thinl parties by Valero. 

(3) General and administrative expenses include allocations and estimates of general and administiative costs 
of Valero that were attributable to the operations of Paulsboro. 

(4) Hie mcome tax provision represented tiie current and deferred income taxes that would have resulted if 
Paulsboro were a stand-alone taxable entity filing its own income tax retorns. Accordingty, the calculations 
of current and deferred income tax provision require certain assumptions, allocations, and estimates that 
Paulsboro management believed were reasonable to reflect the tax reporting for Paulsboro as a stand-alone 
taxpay^. 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following review of our results of operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with 
Items 1, lA, and 2, "Business, Risk Factors, and Properties." Item 6, "Selected Financial Data," and Item 8, 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." respectively, included m this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF SAFE HARBOR PROVISIONS OF THE 
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain "forward-looking stat^nents", as defined in the Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, tiiat involve risk and uncertamties. You can identity fOTward-looking 
statements because they contain words such as "believes," "expects." "m^," "should," "seeks," "approximately," 
"intends," "plans," "estimates," or "anticipates" or simitar e7q)res5ions that relate to our strategy, plans or intentions. 
All statements we make relating to our estimated and projected earnings, margins, costs, expenditores, cash flows, 
growth rates and financial results or to our expectations regarding future industry trends are forward-looking 
statements. In addition, we, through our senior management, from time to time make forward-looking public 
statements concerning our expected foture operations and performance and other developments. These forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertamties tiiat may change at any time, and, dierefore, our actoal 
results may differ materially from those that we expected. We derive many of our forward-looking stetements from 
our operating budgeta and forecasts, which are based upon many detailed assumptions. While we believe that our 
assumptions are reasonable, we caution that it is very difficuh to predict the impact of known factors, and. of 
course, it is impossible for us to anticipate all Actors that could affect our actoal results. 

Important Actors that could cause actoal resuhs to differ materially from our expectations, which we refn-
to as "cautionary statements," are disclosed under "Item 1 A. Risk Factors," and "Item 7. Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. All forward-looking Information in this Armual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent written and oral forward-
looking statements attributable to us, or peraons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their ratirety by 
the cautionary stetements. Some of the factors that we believe could affect our results include: 

•suppty, demand, [H-ices and other maricet conditions for our products; 

• the effects of competition in our markets; 

•changes in currency exchange ra t^ interest rates and capital costs; 

• adverse developments in our relationship with both our key employees and imionized employees; 

•our ability to operate our businesses efficientty, manage capital expenditores and costs (including general 
and administrative expenses) and generate earnings and cash flow; 

•our substantial indebtedness; 

•our supply and inventory intermediation arrangements expose us to counterparty credit and performance risk; 

•termination of our Inventory Interoiediation Agreements widi J. Aron could have a material adverse effect 
on our liquidity, as we would be requfred to finance our refined products inventoiy covered by die agreements. 
Additionally, we are obligated to repurchase from J. Aron all volumes of products located at tiie Paulsboro 
and Delaware City refineries' storage tanks upon termination of these agreements; 

•restrictive covenants in our indebtedness diat m ^ adversety affect our operational flexibility; 

• payments to the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units and PBF LLC Series B Unhs under our tax receivable 
agreement for certain tax benefits we may claim; 

•our assumptions regardmg payments arising under the tax receivable agreement and other arrangements 
relating to our organizational structure are subject to change due to various fectors, including, among otiier 
factors, the timing of exdianges of PBF LLC Series A Units ^ r shares of our Class A common stock as 
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contemplated by die tax receivable agreement, the price of our Class A common stock at the time of such 
exchanges, the extent to which such exchanges are taxable, and the amount and timing of our income; 

• our expectations and timing with respect to our acquisition activity and whether any acquisitions are accretive 
or dilutive to shareholders; 

• our expectations with respect to our capital improvement projects including the development and expansion 
of our Delaware Chy cmde unloading facilities and statos of an air permit to transfer cmde to Paulsboro; 

•the impact of disruptions to crude or feedstock supply to any of our refineries, including dismptions due 
to problems with third party logistics infrastmcture or operations, including pipeline and rait transportation; 

•the possibility that we might reduce or not make further dividend payments; 

•the impact of current and futore laws, mlings and governmental regut^ions, including any change by the 
federal government in the resti'ictions on exporting U.S. cmde oil; 

•adverse impacts from changes in our regulatory environment or actions tak^ by envu^nmental interest 
groups; 

•the costs of being a public company, including Sarban^-Oxley Act compli^ce; 

•any decisions we make with respect to our energy-related logistical assets that could qualify for an MLP 
strocture, including future opportunities that we may determine present greater potential value to stockholders 
than the planned MLP initial public offering; 

•the timing and stmcture of the planned MLP initial public offering may change; 

•unanticipated developments may delay or negativety impact the planned MLP initial public offering; 

•receipt of regulatory approvals and compliance with contractoat obligations required in connection with the 
planned MLP initial public offering; 

•the impact of the planned MLP initial public offering on our relationships with our employees, customers 
and vendora and our credit rating and cost of funds; and 

•although we are no longer a "controlled company" following our January 2014 Secondary Offering, 
Blackstone and First Reserve continue to be able to significantly influence our decisions, and it is possible 
that their interests will conflict with ours. 

We caution you that the foregoing list of important factors may not contain all of the material Victors that 
are important to you. In addition, in light of these risks and uncertainties, the matters referred to in the forward-
looking statements contained in tiiis Annual Report on Form 10-K may not in fact occur. Accorduigly, investors 
should not place undue reliance on those statements. 

Our forward-looking stetements speak only as of the date of this Annual Rqiort on Form 10-K or as of the 
date which they are made. Except as requued by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States, 
we do not intend to update or revise any forward-looking statements. All subsequent written and oral forward-
looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the 
foregoing. 

Explanatory Note 

This consolidated Form 10-K is filed by PBF Energy Inc., PBF Holding Company LLC and PBF Finance 
Corporation. Each Registrant hereto is filing on Its own behalf all of the information contained in tiiis report that 
relates to such Registrant Each Registrant hereto is not filing any mformati'on tiiat does not relate to such Registrant, 
and therefore makes no representation as to any such infonnation as of December 31.2013. PBF Energy is tiie 
sole managing member of. and owner, as of December 31,2013, of an equity interest representing approximately 
40.9% of die outstanding economic intereste in, PBF LLC. PBF Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF 
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LLC and PBF Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF Holdmg. PBF Holding is the parait company for PBF 
LLC's operating subsidiaries. 

PBF Holding is an indirect subsidiary of PBF Energy, representing 100% of PBF Energy's consolidated 
revenue for the year ended December 31,2013 and constituting 100% of PBF Energy's revenue gen^^ing assets 
as of December 31,2013. 

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms "we," "us," and "our" refer to both PBF Energy and 
PBF Holding and subsidiaries. Discussions or areas of tiiis report that either apply onty to PBF Energy or PBF 
Holding are clearly noted in such sections. 

Executive Summaiy 

Our busui^s operations are conducted by PBF LLC and its subsidiaries. We were formed in March 2008 to 
pursue the acquisitions of cmde oil refineries and dovmstream assets in North America. We currentiy own and 
operate three domestic oil refineries and related assets located in Delaware City, Delaware, Paulsboro, New 
Jersey, and Toledo, Ohio, which we acquired in 2010 and 2011. Our refineries have a combined processing 
capacity, known as throughput, of approximatety 540,000 bpd, and a weighted average Nelson Complexhy 
Index of 11.3. 

The following table summarizes our history and key events: 

March 1,2008 

June 1,2010 

December 17,2010 

March 1,2011 

October 2011 

February 2012 

December 2012 

June 2013 

January 2014 

PBF was formed. 

The idle Delaware City refinery and its related assets w»e acquired from affiliates 
of Valero Enei]gy Corporation ("Valero") for approxiiiiately $220.0 miilicni. 

The Paulsboro refinery and its related assets wei^ acquired from affiliates of Valero 
for aiq»roximately $357.7 million, excluding yvoricing coital. 

The Toledo refinery and its related assets were acquired from Sunoco for 
approximately $400.0 million, excluding working capital. 

Delaware City became fully operational. 

Our subsidiary, PBF Holdmg, issued $675.5 million aggregate principal amount of 
8.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2020. 

PBF Energy completed tiie ihitia! public offering of ite <cbmn»Hi equi^ selling a 
total of 23,S67,6iS6 Class A common shares; In ccHinectjcm vnth the initial public 
offering. PBF Energy became tiie sole managing member of PBF LLC. 

Blackstone and First Reserve completed a secondary public offering selling a total 
of 15,950,000 Class A common shares. 

Blackstone and First Reserve completed a secondary public offering selling a total 
of 15.000,000 Class A common shares. 

Factors Affecting Comparability 

Our resulte over tiie past tiu'ee yeara have been affected by die following events, wliich must be understood 
in order to assess the comparability of our period to period financial performance and financi^ condition. 

51 



Acquisition of Tbledo Refinery 

Hirough our subsidiaiy. Toledo Refining, we acquired the Toledo refineiy on March 1,2011, from Sunoco 
for approximatety $400.0 million, excluding woricing coital. We paid the purchase price with cash funded from 
equity and a $200,0 million seller note (the 'Toledo Promissory Note"), which we repaid in February 2012 with 
proceeds receiy^ through the issuance of the Senior Secur^ Notf .̂ We ziso ptirejhased refined and cer^in 
ihterrnediate products in inventory for approximatety $299.6ihitltohvyiUitheprbceedsfrbtti la hc^eprtiVidKi by 
Sunoco tiiat we subsequentty repaid on May 31,20U with ptdceeds from our ABL Rev îvinjg QtediX F^ilityi and 
MSCG purchased the refinery's cmde oil inventory on our behalf Additionally, included in the terms of the sale 
was a five-year participation payment of up to $125.0 million payable to Sunoco based upon post-acquisition 
earnings of the refinery, of which the maximum aggregate amount of $125.0 million was paid as of April 2013. 

The acquisition was accounted for usuig the acquisition method of accountmg with the preliminary purchase 
price allocated to the assete acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fiiir values. The resuhs of 
operations of the Toledo refmery have been included in our consolidated financial statements as of March 1,2011. 

Toledo has a throughput edacity of 170,000 bpd and a Nelson Complexity index of 9,2, Toledo processes 
a state of tight, sweet cmdes from Canada, the Midcontinent, the Bakken region and the U.S. Gulf Coast The 
Toledo refinery is located on a 282-acre site near Toledo, Ohio, approximatety 60 mites from Detroit. 

Amended and Restated ABL Revolving Credit Facility 

On May 31, 2011, we am»ided the t^ms of our ABL Revotvmg Credit Facility to increase its size to 
$500.0 million and included certain inventory and accounte receivable of the Toledo refineiy in the boirowing 
base. In addition, the interest rate was changed to the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus 2.00% to 2.50%, depending on 
the excess availability, as defined, and the matority date was extended to May 31,2016. On an ongoing basis, the 
ABL Revolving Credit Facility is available to be used for woiking cf^ital and other general coiporate purposes. 
In March, August, and September 2012, we amended the ABL Revotvmg Credh Facility again to increase die 
aggregate size from $500.0 million to $750.0 million, $950.0 million, and $965.0 million, respectivety. In addition, 
the ABL Revolving Credit Facility was amended and restated on October 26, 2012 to increase tiie maximum 
availability to $1,375 billion, extend the matority date to October 26,2017and amend the borrowing base to include 
non-U.S. mventory, and was fiirtiier amended on December 28,2012 to increase tiie maximum availability to 
$1,575 billion. The amended and restated ABL Revolving Credit facility includes an accordion featore which 
allows for commitments of up to $1.8 billion. The agreement was expanded again hi November 2013 to increase 
the maximum availability to $1,610 billion. 

Letter of Credit Facility 

On January 25,2011, we en t»^ into a short-term letter of credh fecitity, which was subsequentty amended 
on April 26,2011 and April 24,2012, tmder which we could obtein letters of credit up to $750.0 million composed 
of a committed maximum amount of $500.0 million and an uncommitted maximum amount of $250.0 million to 
support certain of our cmde oil purchases. As a resuh of the increased size of the amended and restated ABL 
Revolvuig Credit Facility, we terminated the letter of credh facility in December 2012. 

Setdor Secured Notes Offering 

On Februuy 9,2012, PBF Holding and PBF Finance Coiporation issued $675.5 million aggregate principal 
amount of 8.25% Senior Secured Notes, due 2020 (which we refer to as the "senior secured notes offering"). Hie 
net proceeds from the offering of approximatety $665.8 million were used to repay our Paulsboro Promissoiy Note 
in the amount of $160.0 million, our Term Loan in the amount of $123.8 million, our Toledo Promissoiy Note in 
the amount of $181.7 million, and to reduce ind^tedness under the ABL Revolving Credit Facility. 
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PBF Energy Inc. Public Offerings 

On December 12,2012, PBF Energy completed an initial publ ic offwmg of 23.567,686 shares of its Class A 
common stock at a public offering price of $26,00 per share. The inhlat public offering subsequentiy closed on 
December 18, 2012. PBF Eneigy used the net proceeds of the offering to acquire approximatety 24.4% of die 
membership interests in PBF LLC from certain of its existing members. As a result of die initial public offering 
and related reorganization transactions, PBF Energy becune the sole managing member of PBF LLC with a 
controlling voting interest in PBF LLC and its subsidiaries. Effective with completion of the initial public offering, 
PBF Energy consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries and records a noncontrolling interest 
in its consolidated financial statements representing the economic interests of nonconbxillmg PBF LLC units 
holders, PBF LLC is PBF Energy's predecessor for accounting purposes. The financial statements and results of 
operations for periods prior to the completion of PBF Energy's initial public offering and die related reorganization 
transactions are tiiose of PBF LLC. 

Additionally, on June 12,2013, Blackstone and First Reserve completed a public offering of 15,950,000 
shares pf pur Cjs^ A cotombn stock at a ph'ce of ̂ 7:00 per share. 1 ^ .under>yriting discounts and commissions, 
in a secpnciaTy publicoffering. which we t^fer to as the JuneSOl 3 Secondary Offering. All of the shares were sold 
by funds affiliated with Blackstone and First Reserve and we did not receive any of the proceeds from tiie sale of 
these shares. In connection with this offering, Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged 15,950,000 Series A Units 
of PBF LLC for an equivalent number of shares of our Class A common stock. Hie holders of PBF LLC Series 
B Unhs, which include certain executive officers of PBF Energy, had the right to receive a portion of the proceeds 
of die sale of the PBF Energy Class A common stock by Btackstone and First Reserve. 

As of December 31,2013, Blackstone and First Reserve and our executive officers and directors and certain 
employees beneficially owned 57,201.674 PBF LLC Series A Units (we refer to all of the holders of tfie PBF LLC 
Series A Units as "tiie members of PBF LLC otiier tiian PBF Energy") and we owned 39.665,473 PBF LLC Series 
C Units, and the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy through their holdings of Class B common stock 
had 59.1% of the voting power in us. and the holders of our issued and outstanding shares of Class A common 
stock had 40.9% of tiie voting power in us. 

Ihx Receivable Agreement 

In connection with our uiitial public offering, we entered into a tax receivable agreement pursuant to which 
we are required to pay the members of PBF LLC, who exchange their units for PBF Energy Class A common stock 
or whose unhs we purchase, approximatety 85% of tiie cash savmgs in income taxes diat we realize as a result of 
the increase in the tax basis of our interest in PBF LLC, including tax benefits attributable to payments made under 
the tax recei«ible agreement We have recognized, as of December 31, 2013, a Utility for die tax receivable 
agreement of $287.3 million reflecting our estimate of die undiscounted amounts that we expect to pay under die 
agreement due to exchanges in connection with our public offerings. Our estimate of the tax agreement liability 
is based on forecasts of fiitiue taxable income over the anticipated life of our fotore business operations, assuming 
no material changes in the relevant tax law. Periodically, we may adjust the liability based on an updated estimate 
of die amounts that we expect to pay, using assumptions consistent with those used in our concurrent estimate of 
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. For example, we must adjust the estimated tax receivable agreement 
liability each time we purchase PBF LLC Series A Unhs or upon an exchange of PBF LLC Series A Units for our 
Class A common stock. These periodic adjustments to die tax receivable liability, if any, are recorded m general 
and adminish^tive expense and may result ui adjustments to our uicome tax expense and deferred tax assets and 
liabilities. 

Renewable Fuels Standard 

We have seen an escalation in the cost ofrenewablefoel credits, known as RINs. requhed for compliance 
witii the Renewable Fuels Standard. We incurred api»x>xunatety $126.4 million in RINs costs during die year 
ended December 31.2013 as compared to $43.7 million and $25.9 million during the years ended E)ecember 31, 
2012 and 2011, an increase due primarily to hi^er prices for etiianol-linked RINs and increases in our production 
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of on-road transportation foels since 2011. Our RINs purchase obligation is dependent on our actoal shipment of 
on-ro^ titmsportation fuels domestically and the amount of blending achieved. 

Factors Affecting Operating Results 

Overview 

Our earnings and cash flows from operations are primarily affected by the relationship between refined 
product prices and the prices for crude oil and other feedstocks. The cost to acquire cmde oil and other feedstocks 
and the price of refined petroleum products ultimately sold d^)ends on numerous factors beyond our control, 
including the supply of. and demand for. cmde oil, gasoline, diesel and otiier refined petroleum products, which, 
in torn, depend on, among other factors, changes in global and regional economies, weather conditions, global and 
regional political affairs, production levels, the availability of imports, the mariceting of competitive foels, pipeline 
capacity, prevailing exchange rates and the extent of government regulation. Our revenue and operating income 
fluctoate significantty with movements in industry refined petroleum product prices, our materials cost fluctuate 
significantly with movements in cmde oil prices and our other operating expenses fluctuate with movements in 
the price of energy to meet the power needs of our refineries. In addhion, the effect of changes in cmde oil prices 
on our operatmg results is influenced by how the prices of refined products adjust to reflect such changes. 

Cmde oil and other feedstock costs and the prices of refined petroleum products have historically been 
subject to wide fiuctoation. Expansion and upgrading of existing facilities and installation of addhional refineiy 
distillation or conversion capacity, price volatility, int^Tiational polhical and economic developments and other 
foctors beyond our control are likely to continue to play an hnportant role in refining industiy economics. Hiese 
factors can mipact among other tilings, the level of inventories in the market resulting in price volatility and a 
reduction or increase in product margins. Moreover, the industry typicalty experiences seasonal fluctuations in 
demand for reflned petroleum products, such as for gasoline and diesel, during the summer driving season and for 
home heating oil during die winter. 

Benchmark Ratting Margins 

In assessing our operating performance, we compare the refining margins (revenue less materials cost) of 
each of our refineries against a specific benchmaric industry refining margin based on a crack spread. Benchmark 
refining margins take into account bodi crude and refined petroleum product prices. When these prices are (»mbined 
in aformula tiiey provideasingle value—a gross margin per barrel—ihat, when multiplied byathroughputnumber. 
provides an approximation of the gross margin generated by refining activities. 

The performance of our East Coast refineries generalty follows tiie currentty published Dated Brent (NYH) 
2-1-1 benchmaik refining margins. For our Toledo refinery, we utilize a composite benchmark refining maigm, 
the WTI (Chicago) 4-3-1 tiiat is based on publicty available pricing infonnati<Hi for products trading ui the Chicago 
and United States Gulf Coast maikets. 

While the benchmark refinery margins presented below under "Results of Operations—Maiket Indicators" 
are representative of the results of our refineries, each refinery's realized gross margin on a p ^ barrel basis will 
differ from tiie benchmaric due to a wiety of factors affecting tiie performance of die relevant refinery to hs 
corresponding benchmark. These fectors include the refinery's acbuil type of crude oil diroughput iwoduct yield 
differentials and any odier factors not reflected in the benchmark refinmg margins, such as transportation costs, 
storage costs, credit fees, foel consumed during production and any product premiums or discounts, as well as 
inventory fluctuations, timing of cmde oil and other feedstock purchases, a rising or declining cmde and product 
pricing environment and commodity price managem^it activities. As discussed in more detail below, each of our 
refineries, depending on maiket conditions, lias certain feedstock-cost and product-value advantages and 
disadvanta^s as compared to tiie refmeiy's relevant benchmark. 
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Credit Risk Management 

Credhriskreforstothe risk thatacounterparty will default on its contractoat obligations resulting in financial 
loss to us. Our exposure to credit risk is reflected in tiie carrying amount of die receivables that are presented in 
our balance sheet. To minimize credit risk, all customers are subject to extensive credit vertflcation procedures 
and extensions of credit above defined thr^holds are to be approved by Ihe senior management. Our intention is 
to trade onty with recognized creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis. We also limit the risk of bad debts by obtaining security such as guarantees or tetters of credit. 

Other Factors 

We currently source our cmde oil for Paulsboro and Delaware City on a global basis through a combination 
of market purchases and short-term purchase contracts, and through our crude supply agreements witii Statoil and 
Saudi Aramco. Our cmde supply agreement with Statoil for Paulsboro was terminated effective March 31,2013. 
at which time w'e began to source Paulsboro's cmde oil and feedstocks internally. Our erode supply agreement 
with St^oil for Delaware City has been extended by Statoil through December31.2015 and we have recently 
entered into certaui amendments to that ^reement that are effective through the extended term. In addition, we 
have a contract whh the Saudi Arabiui Oil Company ("Saudi Aramco") to purchase cmde oil, and also purchase 
on the spot market fix)m Saudi Aramco when strategic opportunities arise. We have been purchasmg up to 
^proximately 100,000 bpd of cmde oil from Saudi Aramco that is processed at Pmtlsboro. Our Toledo refinery 
sources domestic and Canadian cmde oil through similar market purchases through our erode suppty contract with 
MSCG. We believe purchases based on market pricing has given us flexibility in obtaining erode oil at lower prices 
and on a more accurate "as needed" basis. Since our Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries access their cmde 
slates from the Delaware River via ship or barge and through our rail facilities at Delaware City, tiiese refineries 
have die flexibility to purchase cmde oils from the Midcontinent and Western Canada, as well as a number of 
different countries. 

During 2012, we expanded and upgraded the existing on-site railroad infrastmctore at the Delaware City 
refineiy, including die expansion of the cmde rail unloading facilities that was completed in Febmary 2013 and is 
capable of dischatging approximately 110,000 bpd. consisting of 40,000 bpd of heavy cmde oil ^ d 70.000 bpd 
of light erode oil. However, due to ̂ -eater operating efficiency, discharge edacity for light cmde oil at our dual-
loop track at the Delaware City refineiy has increased from 70,000 bpd to approximately 105,000 bpd. In 
conjunction with the develo|Hnent of our rail crude unloading facilities at Delaware City, we consmicted arailcar 
storage yard with capacity for 330 railcars that is integral to railcar string and storage and helps facilitate daity 
rail traffic at die refineiy. Also in 2013 we commenced a third rail cmde offloading project to add an additional 
40.000 bpd of heavy cmde rail unloading capability at the refinery, which is expected to be completed by the 
second half of 2014. Completion of this third rait project will increase our discharge capacity of heavy ovde oil 
from 40,000 bpd to 80,000 bpd and bring the total rail cmde unloading capabilhy up to 185,000 bpd. As a result 
of our cmde rail unloading fricitity expansion, the delivery of coiled and insulated raitcara, the development of 
cmde rail loadmg infhetmcture in Canada and the use of unit trains, we expect to be capable of taking delivery 
of approximately 80.000 bpd of Canadian heavy crude oil at the Delaware City refinery by the end of 2014. We 
are also adding additional unloading spots to the dual-loop track to mcrease unlc^ing capabilities at that &cility 
to approximatety 130,000 bpd. Completion of these additional rait projects will increase our discharge capacity of 
heavy cmde oil from 40,000 bpd to 80,000 bpd and bring the total rail cmde unloading ca|Ktbitity up to 210,000 
bpd by the end of 2014, subject to the deliveiy of coiled and msulated railcars, the development of crude rail loading 
infrastructure in Canada and the use of unit trains. 

During 2012 rad January 2013, we have entered uito agreements to lease or purchase 5,900 crude railcars 
which will enable us to transport this erode to each of our refineries. Of the 5,900 cmde railcars, we rec^tty 
purchased 717 railcars, and subsequentiy sold them to a third party, which has leased tiie railcars back to us for 
periods of between four and six years. This transportation flexibility allows our East Coast refineries to process 
the most cost advantaged cmde available. 
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Our oper^ing cost structore is also important to our profltability. Major operating costs include coste relating 
to employees and contract labor, eneigy, mamtoiance and environmental compliance, and renewable foel credits, 
known as RINs, required for compliance witii the Renewable Fuels Standard. The predominmit variable cost is 
energy, in particular, the price of utilities, natural gas and chemicals. 

Our operating results are also affected by the reliability of our refineiy operations. Unplanned downtime of 
our refinery a^ets generally results in lost margin opportunity and increased maintenance expense. Hie financial 
impact of planned downtune, such as major turnaround maintenance, is managed through a plannmg process that 
considers such things as die margin environment, the availability of resources to perform the needed maintenance 
and feedstock logistics, whereas unplanned downtime does not afford us this oppcMtuntty. 

Refinery-Specific Information 

The following section includes refinery-specific information related to crude differentials, ancillary costs, 
and local premiums and discounts. 

Delaware City Refinery. The benchmark refining margin for the Delaware City refinery is calculated by 
assuming that two barrels of the benchmaik Dated Brent cmde oil are converted into one barrel of gasoline and 
one barrel of heating oil. We calculate this refining margin using the New York Harbor market value of gasoline 
and heating oil against die market value of Dated Brent crude oil and refer to the benchmark as the Dated Brent 
(NYH) 2-1-1 benchmark refining margin. Our Delaware City refineiy has a product state of approximately 53.5% 
gasoline, 32.5% distillate (consisting of ULSD, marketed as ULSD or tow sulfor heating oil, and conventional 
heating oil), 1% high-value petrochemicals, with the remauimg portion of the product state comprised of bwer-
value products (5% petioleum coke, 5% LPGs and 3% other). For this reason, we believe the Dated Brent (NYH) 
2-1 -1 is an appropriate benchmark industiy refining margui. Hie majority of Delaware City revenues are generated 
off NYH-based market prices. 

The Delaware Chy refinery's realized gross margin on a per barrel basis has historically differed fixim the 
Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 benchmark refining mugin due to the following factors: 

• the Delaware City refinery processes a slate of primarity medium and heavy, and sour cmde oil, which has 
constitoted approximately 65% to 70% of total throughput The remaining throughput consists of sweet cmde 
oil and other feedstocks and blendstocks. In addhion, we are currentiy processing asignificant volume of price-
^vantaged cmde. Our total throughput costs have historically priced at a discount to Dated Brent; and 

• as a resuh of the heavy, sour cmde slate processed at Delaware City, we produce low value products including 
sulfur and petroleum coke. These products are priced at a significant discount to gasoline, ULSD and heating 
oil and represent ^proximately 5.5% of our total production volume. 

Paulsboro Refinery. Hie benchmaik refining mai^in for the Paulsboro refinery is calculated by a^uming 
tiiat two barrels of die benchmaric Dated Brent erode oil are converted into one barrel of gasoline and one barret 
of heating oil. We calculate this refining margui using tiie New Yoric Harbor market value of gasoline and heating 
oil against the market value of Dated Brent cmde oil and refer to the benchmark as the Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 
benchmaik refining margin. Our Paulsboro refinoy has a product slate of approximatety 37% gasoline, 41% 
distillate (comprised of jet foel, ULSD and heating oil), 5.5% high-value Group I lubricants, with the remauimg 
portion of the product slate comprised of lower-value products (3% petroleum coke, 4% LPGs, 3% foel oil, 6% 
asphalt and 0.5% other). For this reason, we believe the Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 is an appropriate benchmaik 
industry refining maigm. The majixity of Paulsboro revenues are generated off NYH based m ^ e t prices. 

The Paulsboro refinery's realized gross maigin on a per barrel basis has historically differed from tiie Dated 
Brent (NYH) 2-1 -1 benchmaik refining margin due to the following factors: 

the Paulsboro refineiy has generalty- processed a slate of [vimmty medium and heavy, and sour cmde oil, 
which has historically constituted approximatety 65% to 70% of total throu^put Hie remaining throughput 
consists of sweet cmde oil and other feedstocks and blendstocks. We are now also mrmmg a significant vohime 
of price advantaged domestic cmdes. These feedstocks historically have priced at a discount to Dated Broit; 
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as a resuh of the heavy, sour crude slate processed at Paulsboro, we produce low value products including 
sulfor, petroleum coke and fiiel oil. These products are priced at a significant discount to gasoline and heating 
oil and represent tqiproximatety 6% to 7.5% of our total production volume; and 

• the Paulsboro refinery produces Group I lubricants which, through an eTdensive production process, have a 
tow volume yield which limits the volume expansion on cmde mputs. 

Toledo Refinery. The benchmaric refining mai^in for the Toledo refinery is calculated by assuming that four 
barrels of benchmark WTI cmde oil are converted into three barrels of gasoline, one-half barrel of ULSD and one-
half barrel of jet foel. We calculate this refinhig margin using the Chic^d market values of gasoline iEind ULSD 
and the United States Gulf Coast value of Jet foel against die maiket value of WTI cmde oil and refer to this 
benchmark as the WTI (Chicago) 4-3-1 benchmark refining mai^in. Our Toledo refinery has a product state of 
^proximately 50% gasoline, 36.5% distillate (comprised of approximately 49.5% jet foel and 50.5% ULSD), 5% 
hi^-value petrocherhic^ls (including nonene. teframer. benzene, stytene and toluene) with the remaining portion 
of the product slate tdihprised of lower-value products (6%p L!*ps, 2% fiiel oil and 0.5% otiier). Fdr this rieaison, 
we believe the WTI (Chicago) 4-3-1 is an appropriate benchhiark iridu^ry refining margin. The majoirity ofToledb 
revenues are generated off Chicago-based maricet prices. 

The Toledo refinery's realized gross margin on a per barrel basis has historically differed from die WTI 
(Chicago) 4-3-1 benchmark refining margin due to the following factors: 

the Toledo refinery processes a slate of domestic sweet and Canadian syndietic crude oil. Historically, Toledo's 
blended average cmde costs have been higher than the market value of WH cmde oil; 
the Toledo refinery is connected to its distribution network through a variety of third party product pipelines. 
While lower in cost when compared to barge or rail transportation, die inclusion of transportation costs increases 
our overall cost relative to the 4-3-1 benchmark refining margin; and 
the Toledo refinery generates a pricing braefit on some of ita products, primarily ite petrochemicals. 
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Results of Operations 

The following tables reflect our financial and operating highlights for the years ended December 31,2013. 
2012 and 2011 (amounts in thousands, except per share data) except for income taxes, net income atti'ibutable to 
noncontrolluig interest and earnings per share, each of which apply onty to the financial resuhs of PBF Energy. In 
addition, genaral and administrative expenses for PBF Energy for die year ended December 31.2013 include a 
diaige of $8.5 million associated with a change m the tax receivable agreement liability. PBF Holding's interest 
expense also includes interest related to an intercompany note with PBF Energy, which is eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Year Ended December 31, 

Revenue 

Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 

Gross refining margin (1) 

Operating expenses, excluding depreciation 

General and adminisbrative expenses 

Gain on sate of asset 

Acquisition-related expenses 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Income fi'om operations 

Change m fair value of contingent 
consideration 

Change in fair value of catetyst leases 

Interest income (expense), net 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense 

Net income 

Less: net mcome attributable to 
noncontrolluig interest 

Net uicome attributable to PBF Energy Inc. 

Gross margin 

Net income available to Class A common stock 
per share: 

Basic 

Diluted 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

19,151,455 

17,803314 

1,348.141 

812,652 

104,334 

(183) 

— 

111,479 

319,859 

i. 

4,691 

(93,784) 

230,766 

16,681 

214.085 

174,545 

39,540 

436,867 

1.22 

1.20 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2012 

20,138.687 $ 

18,269.078 

1,869,609 

738.824 

120,443 

(2,329) 

— 

92.238 

920,433 

(2,768) 

(3.724) 

(108,629) 

805,312 

1.275 

804,037 $ 

802,081 

1,956 

1.046.598 $ 

0.08 

0.08 

2011 

14,960,338 

13,855,163 

1.105.175 

658,831 

86.183 

— 

728 

53,743 

305,690 

(5,215) 

7,316 

(65.120) 

242.671 

-— 
242,671 

417.962 

(1) See Gross Refining Margm below. 
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The table below summarizes certain market indicators relating to our operating results as reported by 
Platts. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2013 

(dollars per bairet, except as noted] 
Dated Brent Cmde 
West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude oil 
Crack Spreads 

Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 
WTI (Chicago) 4-3-1 

Cmde Oil Differentials 
Dated Brent (foreign) less WTI 
Dated Brent l«s M^a (heavy, sour) 
Dated Brent less WTS (sour) 
Dated Brent less ASCI (sour) 
WTI less WCS (heavy, sour) 
WTI less Bakken (tight, sweet) 
WTI less Syncmde (light sweet) 

Natural gas (dollars per MMBTU) 
Key Operating Infonnation 
Production (bairels per day in diousands) 
Cmde oil and feedstocks throughput (barrels per 
day in diousands) 
Total cmde oil and feedstocks throughput (millions 
of barrels) 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

108.66 
97.99 

12.34 
20.09 

10.67 
11.38 
13.31 
6.67 

24.62 
5.12 
0.63 
3.73 

451.0 

452.8 

165.3 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2012 

111.67 
94.13 

14.29 
27.13 

17.54 
12.04 
22.95 
4.97 

21.80 
5.77 
0.96 
2,83 

464.4 

4632 

169.5 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2011 

111.26 
95.04 

9.93 
24.14 

16.22 
12.63 
18.28 
3.82 

15.63 
(3.31) 
(9.79) 
4.00 

427.9 

429.4 

128.7 

2013 Compared to 2012 

Overv^H^Net income for PBF Energy was $214.1 million for the year ended December 31,2013 compared 
to $804.0 million for the year ended December 31,2012. Net income atti'ibutable to PBF Energy was $39.5 million, 
or $1.20 per diluted share ($1.48 per share on a folty exchanged, folty diluted basis based on adjusted pro forma 
net income as described below in Non-GAAPFinancial Measures), fortiieyear ended December31,2013. The 
net income attributable to PBF Eneigy represents PBF Eneigy's equity interest in PBF LLC's pre-tax income, less 
applicable mcome taxes, of approxunately 24.4% prior to tiie June 2013 Secondary Offering and approximatety 
40.9% subsequent to the June 2013 Secondary Offering. Net income for PBF Holding, which does not include 
income tax benefits or die expense associated with die change ui our tax receivable agreement liability, was $238.9 
million for the year ended December 31,2013 compared to $805.3 million for die year ended December 31.2012. 

Our throughput rates during the year ended December 31.2013 and 2012, were impacted by unplanned 
downtime at our Toledo refinery and planned downtime at our Delaware City refinery. On Janu^ 31.2013 there 
was a brief fire within the fluid catalytic cracking complex at the Toledo refinery that resulted in diat unit being 
temporarily shutdown. The refinery resumed running at planned rates on February 18,2013. During the fourdi 
quaitcr of 2013, our Delaware City Refinery was impacted by a40-day planned tomaround of the coker unit. In 
tiie first quarter of 2012, the Toledo refinery was impacted by a 30-day turnaround of its hydrocracker. reform^' 
and UDEX unite which commenced on March 9.2012. Our results for die year ended December 31.2013 v/exe 
imfovorably impacted by Iowa- crack spreads and die result of unfovor^le cmde differentials, higher operating 
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expenses due to increased energy costs, repair and restart costs related to the Toledo fire, turnaround at the Delaware 
City refinery, as welt as higher costs of compliance with the Renewable Fuels Standard. 

^evcHwes—Revenues totaled$19.2 billion for the year ended December 31,2013 compared to$20.1 billion 
for the year ended December 31,2012, adecrease of $1.0 billion, or 4.9%. Forthe year ended December 31,2013, 
the total throughput rates in the East Coast and Mid-Continent refineries averaged approximatety 310,300 bpd and 
142,500 bpd, respectively. For the year ended December 31,2012, flie total throughput rates at our East Coast and 
Mid-Continent refineries averaged approximately 316,000 bpd, and 147,200 bpd, respectivety. The decrease in 
throughput rates at our East Coast refineries In 2013 compared to 2012 was primarily driven by market factora 
includbig narrower cmde differentials for rail-delivered cmde as welt as the Delaware City coker unit turnaround 
which reduced crude mn rates during the period. Hie decrease in throu^put rates at our Mid-Continent refineiy 
in 2013 compared to 2012 was primarily due to the refinery's 18-djty unplanned down time in die first quarter of 
2013, atfributeble to the fire at the Toledo refineiy as described above, as well as refinery maintenance. For tfie 
year ended December 31, 2013, the total bairels sold at our East Coast and Mid-Continent refineries averaged 
approximatety 307,600 bpd and 153,700 bpd, respectivety. For the year ended December 31,2012, die total barrels 
sold at our East Coast ^ d Mid-Continent refineries averaged approximatety 311,900 bpd and 159.000 bpd, 
respectively. Total barrels sold at our Mid-Continent refinery are typically higher than throughput r^es. reflecting 
sales and purchases of refined products outside the refinery. Total barrels sold at our East Coast refineries typically 
reflect inventoiy movements in addition to throughput rates. 

Gra.;,;Mv;gin—Cross refining mat:gin(as defined below in Non-GAAPFinanciat Measures) totaled$1.348.1 
million, or $8.16 per barret of throughput for the year ended December 31,2013 compared to $1,869.6 million, 
or $ 11.03 per barrel of throughput during the year ended December 31,2012, a decrease of $521.5 million. Gross 
maigin, including refineiy operating expenses and depreciation, totaled $436.9 million, or $2.64 per barrel of 
throughput, for the year ended December 31,2013. compared to $1,046.6 million, or $6.17per barrel of diroughput, 
for the year ended December 31,2012, a decrease of $609.7 million. The decrease in gross refining margin was 
primarity due to reduced throughput rates, unfovorable movement in cmde differentials, and higher costs of 
compliance with the Renewable Fuels Standard. 

Average industiy refinmg margins in the U.S. Mid-Continent were generally weaker during the year ended 
December 31,2013, as compared to the same period in 2012. The WH (Chicago) 4-3-1 industry crack spread was 
approximately $20.09 per barrel or 25.9% tower in the year ended December 31,2013. as compared to die same 
period in 2012. Additionally, the price of WTI versus Syncrude and Bakken decreased in 2013, which negatively 
imiracted our overall cost of cmde. 

The Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 industiy crack spread was ̂ proximately $12.34 per barrel, or 13.6%, lower 
in theyear ended December 31,2013, as compared to the same period m 2012. Furdiermore, the WTI/Dated Brent 
differential was $6.87 lower in the year ended December 31,2013, as compared to the same period in 2012 and 
the Dated Brent/Maya differential was approximately $0.66 per barret tower in die year ended December 31,2013 
as compared to the same period in 2012. Adecrease in the WTI/Dated Brent (»iide differential unfavorably impacts 
our East Coast refineries which have increased shipments of WH based cmdes from the Bsdcken and Western 
Canada. A reduction in the Dated Brent/Maya cmde differential, our proxy for the light^eavy cmde differential, 
has a negative impact on our East Coast refineries, which can process a large slate of medium and heavy, sour 
erode oil that is priced at a discount to tight, sweet cmde oil. 

Operating Expenses— Operating expenses totaled $812.7 million, or $4.92 per banel of diroughput, for tiie 
year ended Decembw 31,2013 compared to $738.8 million, or $4.36 per t^rrel of throughput, for the year ended 
Deceinb^ 31,2012, an increaseof$73.9 million, or 10.0%. The mcrease in operating expenses is mainly attributable 
to an increase of approximately $41,3 million in energy and utilities cxBts. primarily driven by higher natural gas 
prices, $ 11.0 million in increased personnel cost associated with higher headcount attributeble to the Delaware nut 
focility expansion, $8.0 million in repair and restart costs related to tiie Toledo fire described above, $ 14.3 million 
in increased outside engineering and consulting fees related to refinery capital and maintenance projects, and $2.2 
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million in hi^er regulatoiy costs and taxes. Our operating expenses principally consist of salaries and employee 
benefits, maintenance, eneigy and catalyst and chemicals costs at our refineries. 

General and Administrative Expenses— General and administrative expenses totaled $104.3 million for the 
year ended December 31.2013, compared to $120.4 million for the year ended December 31.2012, an decrease 
of $16.1 million or 13.4%. The decrease in general and administrative expenses primarily relates to lower employee 
compensation expense of $30.1 million, which is partialty offset by $8.5 million of expense associated with the 
change in our tax receivable agreement Utility and $7.6 million in costs associated with being a public company. 
Our general and administrative expenses are comprised of the personnel, focilities and otiier inf^tmctore costs 
necessary to support our refineries. 

General and administrative expenses for PBF Holding, which do not include the $8.5 million expose 
associated with PBF Energy's tax receivable agreement liability, totaled $95.8 million for the year ended 
December 31,2013, compared to $120.4 million forthe year ended December31,2012. 

Gain on Sale of Assets— Gam on sale of assets for the year ended December 31,2013 was $ 183.0 thousand 
which related to the sale of railcars which were subsequentiy teased back, compared to a gain of $2.3 million for 
the year ended December 31,2012. forthe sate of certain equipment at Paulsboro and Delaware City. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense— Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $111.5 million 
for the year ended December31, 2013, compared to $92.2 million for the year ended December31, 2012. an 
increase of $ 19.3 million. Hie increase was principally due to capital projects including die expansion of the cmde 
rail unloadmg focility completed In the first quarter of 2013 as well as new system implonentations at the coiporate 
level durmg 2012. 

Clumge in Fair Value of Catalyst Leases— Change in the fair value of catalyst leases represented a gain of 
$4.7 million for die year ended December 31, 2013, compared to a toss of $3.7 million for die year ended 
December 31,2012. This gain relates to tiie change in value of the precious metat s unduly ing the sale and leaseback 
of our refineries' precious metals catalyst which we are obligated to retora or repurchase at fiiir market value on 
tiie lease temiination dates. 

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Consideration— In 2013, there was no diange in the feir value of 
contingent consideration related to the Toledo refinery acquisition and the liability was paid in foil in April 2013. 

Interest Expertse. net— Interest expense totaled $93.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, 
compared to $108.6 million for the year ended December 31,2012, a decrease of $14.8 million. Interest expense 
includes interest on long-term debt costs related to the sale and leaseback of our precious metals catalyst interest 
expense incurred in connection witii our cmde and feedstock supply agreements with Statoil and MSCG, financing 
cost associated witii the Inventory Intermediation Agreements, letter of credit fees associated with tiie purchase of 
certain crude oils, and the amortization of deferred financing fees. Hie decrease in interest expense prunarily relates 
to lower interest costs associated with our credit facilities reflecting tower average outstanding borrowings, reduced 
financing costs related to the termination of the Pfuilsboro Statoil supply ^eement and the $4.4 million write­
off of deferred financing costs in the first quarter of 2012 on debt that was repaid from die proceeds of our 2012 
senior secured notes offering. 

Income Tax Expense— As PBF LLC is a limited liability company treated as a "flow-through" aitity for 
income tax purposes, tiie members of PBF LLC are required to include their prop(»tionate ^are of PBF LLC's 
tax^te income or loss on their respective tax retorns. Accordingty, PBF Enogy's consolidated financial statements 
do not uiclude a benefit or provision for income taxes for periods prior to the closing of our initial public offering 
on December 18.2012. However, PBF LLC generally made distributions to hs members, pa- the terms of the PBF 
LLC limited liability agreanent related to such taxes. Effective with the completion of the initbt public offering 
of PBF Enagy, we recognize an uicome tax expense or benefit in our consolidated financial statements based on 
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PBF Energy's allocable share of PBF LLC's pre-tax income (loss), which was approximatety 24.4% pricffto the 
June 2013 Secondary Offering and 40.9% subsequent to the June 2013 Secondary Offering. We do not recognize 
any income tax expeiue or benefit related to the noncontrolling interest of die odier members in PBF LLC (although, 
as described elsewhere, we make tax distributions to all members of PBF LLC under the tarns of its amended and 
restated limited liability company agreement). PBF Energy's effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 
2013 was 29.7% reflecting tax benefit adjustments for discrete items related to changes in income tax provision 
estimates based on oiu- mcome tax retorns and changes in our effective state tax rates. 

PBF Holding, as a limited liability company treated as a "flow-through" entity for income tax purposes, did 
not recognize a benefit or provision for income tax expense for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012. 

Noncontrolling Interest—As a result of our initial public offering and the related reorganiz^ion transactions, 
PBF Energy became die sole m^aging member of, and has acontrolting interest in, PBF LLC. As the sole managing 
member of PBF LLC, PBF Enei:^ operates and cond'ols all of the business and affairs of PBF LLC and its 
subsidiaries. PBF Enei^ consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries, and records a 
noncontrolling interest for the economic interest in PBF LLC held by members other tiian PBF Energy. 
Noncontrolling interest on the consolidated statement of operations represents the portion of earnings or loss 
attributable to the economic interest in PBF LLC held by members other than PBF Energy. Noncontrolling interest 
on the balance sheet represents the portion of net assets of PBF Energy attributable to the members of PBF LLC 
other than PBF Eneigy, based on the relative equity interest held by such members. The nonconfrolluig interest 
ownership percentage as of December 31,2013 and December 31,2012 was approximately 59.1% and 75.6%, 
respectively. The carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest on our consolidated balance sheet attributable to 
the nonconfrolling interest is not equal to the noncontrolling interest ownership percentage due to the effect of 
income taxes and related agreements that pertain solely to PBF Energy. 

2012 Compared to 2011 

Overview—^tt income was $804.0 million for the year ended December 31,2012 compared to $242.7 for 
theyear ended December 31,2011. Net income attributable to PBF Eneigy shareholders was $2.0 million, or $0.08 
per share, for the year ended December 31,2012. Hie net incomeattributabte to PBF Energy shareholders represents 
PBF Energy's approximately 24.4% equity interest in PBF LLC's pre-tax income, less applicable income taxes, 
forthe period from December 18,2012. the date of the closing of its initial public offering, through December 31, 
2012. During the 2011 period, our results refiect twelve months of operations of our Paulsboro refinery, ten mondis 
of operations of our Toledo refinery, which was acquired on March 1.2011, fuid three months of operations of our 
Etetaware City refinery as it was folly operational in October 2011. Prior to October 2011, we performed activities 
to turoe^ound, reconfigure and re-start our Delaware City Refinery. We began restarting our Delaware City refineiy 
in June 2011 and itwasfoltyoperational in October 2011. 

During the year ended December 31.2012, all three of our refineries were opaating, ahhough the Toledo 
refinwy was imputed by a thirty day turnaround of its hydrocracker, reformw and UDEX units which conunaiced 
on March 9.2012. Our resuhs for the year ended December 31,2012 were favorably impacted by improved crack 
spreads despite the narrowing of the lig^t/heavy cmde differential which impacted our Paulsboro and Delaware 
City refineries. 

^eveffu&5--Revenues totaled ̂ 0.1 billion for die year ended December 31,2012 compared to $15.0 billion 
for the year ended December 31,2011, an increase of $5.2 billion, or 34.6%, The revenue increase primarily relates 
to year of operations of the Toledo refinery m 2012 compared to ten months in 2011 as a result of its acquisition 
on March 1, 2011, and twelve mondis of operations of our Delaware City refinery in 2012, which was being 
reconfigui«d and prepared for restart in 2011. For the year ended December 31.2012, the total throughput rates 
at our Paulsboro, Toledo, and Delaware City refineries averaged ^proximately 152,000 bpd, 147,200 bpd, and 
164,000 bpd, respectivety. For the year ended December 31, 2011, die totet throughput rates at our Paulsboro. 
Toledo and Delaware City refineries averaged approximatety 151,400 bpd, 151,400 bpd, and 126,600 bpd. 
respectively. For the year ended December 31.2012. tiie total t»UTets sold at our Paulsboro. Toledo, amd Delaware 

62 



City refineries averaged approximatety 149,800 bpd, 159.000 bpd. and 162.100 bpd, respectivety. For die year 
ended December 31,2011, the total barrels sold at our Paulsboro, Toledo, and Delaware City refineries averaged 
approximately 151,700 bpd, 160,800 bpd, and 116,200 bpd, respectivety. 

The diroughput rate and barrels sold for our Toledo and Delaware City refineries for die year ended 
DecKnber31,2011 reflect the period from March 1 to December31 and June 1 to December31, respectivety. 
Total barrels sold durmg the year ended Decanber 31,2012 were approximatety 172.3 million barrels at an average 
price of $ 116.83 per barrel, compared to 129.4 million barrels at an average price of $115.83 per barret during the 
2011 period. 

Gross Margin—Gross refining margin totaled $1,869.6 million, or $ 11.03 per barrel of throughput, for the 
year ended Deicember 31,2012 compared to $1,105.2 million;, or $8.59 per Ĵ arrel of diroughput during theyear 
ended DeoHiifcarSi, 2011, an increase of $764.4 miltiOii. GrtJss margin totaled $l,d46.6 million, or JS6.i7 per 
barrel of throughput, for the year ended December 31,2012 com^ired tp\$418,0 million, or $3.25 per barrel of 
throughput, for the year ended December31, 2011, an increase of $628.6 million. Hie increase in both gross 
refinmg margin and grossmaigin was primarily due to afoll twelve montiis of operations at the Toledo and Delaware 
City refineries in 2012 and higher crack spreads. 

Average industiy refining maigins in the U.S. Mid-Continent were generally stronger during the year ended 
December 31.2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. The WTI (Chicago) 4-3-1 industiy crack spread was 
approximately $2.99 per barrel or 12.0%higher in the year ended December 31,2012 as compared to the same 
period in 2011. DuringtheyearendedDecember31,2012, we believe the strong industry refining margins and 
crude oil price differentials reflect limitations on takeaway capacity of Wl'I crude stored at Gushing, Oklahoma 
and the increase in domestically available su[^ty which decreased the price of WTI versus Dated Brent and other 
crudes. The WTI-Syncmde differential improved by $ 10.75 per barret during die year ended December 31,2012 
comparedtothesameperiod in 2011. As tiie WTI-Syncmde premium increases, it has a positive impact on our 
Tol^o refinery's gross margin because Syncmde represents a significant portion of its crude state. 

While the Dated Brent (NYH) 2-1-1 industry crack spread was i^proximately $4.36 per barret, or 43.9%, 
higher in tiie year ended December31, 2012 as compared to the same period m 2011, the Dated Brent/Maya 
differential was approximately $0.59 per barret, or approximately 4.7%. lower in 2012 than in 2011. A reduction 
in the Dated Brenti^aya cmde differential, our proxy for the li^it/heavy cmde differential, has a negative impEUit 
on Paulsboro and Delaware City as bodi refineries process a large state of medium and heavy, sour cmde oil that 
is priced at a discount to light sweet cmde oil. 

Hie increase in our gross refining margin per barrel to $ 11.03 per barret for die year ended December 31, 
2012 from $8,59 per barrel during the same period in 2011 was primarity driven by improved crack spreads and 
lower cost of cmde at our Toledo refineiy, partialty offset by an unfavorable increase in die landed cost of cmde 
at our East Coast refineries due to the narrowing of the light/heavy erode differential. In addition, the results of 
our Paulsboro and Delaware City refina-ies is compounded by their significant production of low value products 
sudi as sulfur, petroleum coke and foel oils as these products price at a substantial discount to tight products. As 
a result we were not able to folly benefit from tiie increase in gasolme and distillates prices during the twelve 
month period. 

Operating Expenses—Operating expenses totaled $738.8 million, cw $4.36 per barrel of throu^put for the 
year ended December 31,2012 compared to $658.8 million, or $5.12 per barret of throughput for the year ended 
December 31,2011, an increase of $80.0 million, or 12.1%. The increase in operating expenses primarily relates 
to having Toledo for a foil twelve months in the 2012 period versus ten months in 2011, and the restart of die 
Delaware City refinery. During the first nine months of tiie 2011 period, our Delaware City refineiy was undeigoi ng 
a tomaround and reconfiguration. It was folly operational during the foil year ended December 31.2012. The 
decrease in oper^ing expenses per barret of throu^put is mainly attributable to a reduction in energy and utilities 
costs, primarity driven by lower natural gas prices, and the increase in dirough|:»t barrels. Our opa-ating expaises 
principally consist of salaries and employee baiefits, maintenance, energy and catalyst and chemicals costs. 
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General and Administrative Expenses—General and administrative expenses totaled $120.4 million for die 
year ended De»mber31,2pl2;:<compared tp$$6^ million for the year ended December 31,2011, an increase of 
$34.3 million br40.0%.Th$ inciieNSise in general and administrative expenses primarity relates to higher information 
technology expenses for the implementation of accounting and commercial software in 2012 and higher 
compensation expense related to headcount increases in 2012. Our general and administrative expenses are 
comprised of the peisonnel, facilities and other mfrastmctore costs necessaiy to support our refineries. 

Acquisition-related JEtpe/wes'—Acquisition-related expenses for the year ended December 31.2011 were 
$0.7 million and related to our acquisition of Toledo. 

Gain on Sale of Assets—Gain on sale of assets for die year ended December 31,2012 was $2.3 million and 
related to sales of certain equipment at Paulsboro and Delaware City. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense—^Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $92,2 million for 
t h ^ y ^ ended Decetnber 31,2012 cpnipared to $53.7 million for they 
of $38^ million. The iifcrease was principally due to the aibquishion of Tdtedb in March 201 ], gommencanent of 
depreciation in Juty 2011 related to the restart of Delaware City, ̂ d capital expenditure and tuni^und activity. 

Change in Fair Value of Catalyst leases—Change in the feir value of catalyst leases represented a toss of 
$3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to a gain of $7.3 million for tiie year ended 
December 31,2011. This gain or toss relates to the change in value of the precious metals underlying the sale and 
leaseback of our refineries' precious metals catetyst which we are obligated to repurchase at f^r market value 
lease termination dates. 

Change in Fair Value of Continent Consideration—Change in the feir value of contingent consideration 
was an expense of $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $5.2 million for the 2011 
period. This change represents the inicrease in die esthnated fair value of the tot^ contingent consideration we 
eixpect to pay in conit^ctibh with our acquisition of the Toledo refihay. 

Interest (Expense) Income— Înterest expense totaled $108.6 million for the year ended December 31,2012 
compared to $65.1 million for the year ended December 31,2011, an increase of $43.5 million. Interest expense 
includes interest on long-term debt costs related to die sate and leaseback of our precious metals catalyst interest 
e^qwiise incurred in connection with our cmde and feedstock suppty agj^ements with Statoil and MSCG, letter of 
credit fees associated with the purchase of certain crude oils, and the amortization of deferred financing fees. The 
increase in interest expense primarity relate to an increase in letter of credit fees atfributable to all refineries 
operating for the foil year in 2012, financing costs associated with die expanded capacity undertiie ABL Revolver, 
interest expense associated whh the Statoil agreement related to die Delaware City restart and tiie wrhe off of $4.4 
million in deferred financing costs on debt diat was repaid from the proc^ds of our senior secured notes offering. 

Income Tax Expense—As PBF LLC is a limited liability company treated as a "flow-tfirough" entity for 
income tax purposes, tiie members of PBF LLC are required to include their proportionate share of PBF LLC's 
taxable income or loss on their respective tax returns. Accordingty, our consolidated financial statements do not 
include a benefit or provision for income taxes for periods prior to the completion of our initial public offering on 
December 18,2012.However,wemakedistributionstoourmembers,perthetemisoftiiePBFLLCIimitedliability 
agreem^t related to such taxes. Effective widi the completion of the initial public offering of PBF Ena^ . we 
recognize an income tax expense or benefit in our consolidated financial statements based on our allocable share 
of PBF LLC's pre-tax income (loss), which was approximatety 24.4% for the pericxl from December 18,2012 to 
Decanber 31.2012. We do not recognize any income tax expense or benefit related to the noncontrolling interest 
in PBF LLC. 

J!/imcontrollhiigIriterest~-As aiissult of oiu- tnHial public offeriilg and thjeretated.rec»^miza^kHi fransactions, 
PBF £n»gy is the sole mahe^ng tnember of, and has a controlling mterest in. PBF LLC. Asjdie sole mantling 
manber of PBF LLC, PBF Eneigy operates and controls all of die business and affeirs of PBF LLC and its 
subsidiaries. PBF Eneigy consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries, and records a 
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noncontrolling interest for die economic interest in PBF Energy held by the noncontrolling PBF LLC Seri^ A 
Unit holders. Nonconti-olting interest on the consolidated statement of oper^ions r^resents the portion of eammgs 
or loss attributable to the economic interest in PBF LLC held by the members of PBF LLC other dian PBF Energy, 
which was approximately 75.6% for the period from the completion of our initial public offering, or Decanber 18, 
2012. to December 31,2012and all earnings prior to the IPO. Noncontrolling interest on the balance sheet represents 
the portion of net assets of PBF Eneigy attiibutable to the the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy, based 
on the number of PBF LLC Series A imits held by such holders. Hie noncontrolling interest ownaship percentage 
as of December 18. 2012 and DecemberSl, 2012 was approximatety 75,6%. Hie carrying amount of the 
noncontrolling interest on our consolidated balance sheet ̂ tributable to die noncontrolling interest is not equal to 
75.6% due to the effect of income taxes and related agreements that pertain solety to PBF Energy. 

Non-GAAP Financial Measures 

Management uses certain financial measures to evaluate our operating performance titat are calculated and 
presented on the basis of methodologies otiier than in accordance whh U.S. GAAP. Hiese measures should not be 
considered a substitute for, or superior to, measures of financial performance prepared in accordance whh U.S. 
GAAP, and our calculations thereof may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures reported by other 
companies. 

Adjusted Proforrrm Net Income (Loss) 

We utilize results presented on an Adjusted Pro Forma basis that exclude certain items relating to our inhial 
public offering and also reflects an assumed exchange of all PBF LLC Series A Units for shares of Class A common 
stock of PBF Energy. We believe that these Adjusted Pro Forma measures, when presented in conjunction with 
comparable U.S. GAAP measures, are usefol to mvestors to compare our results across different periods and to 
fecilitate an understanding of oUr operating results. The differences between Adjusted Pro Forma and U.S. GAAP 
results are as follows: 

1 /issumed ̂ c h a n ^ t^ PBF LLC Series A Units for shares ̂ P B F Energy Class A cdmmtm stock. As a 
result df the ̂ unried exdianjge of PBF LLC Series A Units, the aonasritrolling int^tst related to tiiese 
uiiita is converted to controlling interest. Mani^cment believes that it is usefol to provide the per-share 
effect associated with the assumed exchange of all PBF LLC Series A Units. 

2 Income Taxies. Vtior to tite initial public offering, we were orgsuiized as a limited liabllHy company 
tTE^ed ;^ a "flow-rthroi^h" entity for ihcbme^c purpo^, and even idter our IPO, not all of pur 
eaiiiingsaNi si^ject to c<»Fp<H^ 
Forma tax psoVision^ ahd e^nitigs to aissurne tiiat we htici addpted <wr post-IPO corporate taxi^ctore 
jfĉ  all p^Odspi^B^te^ tm4 are taxed as a C coiporatiwi in the U,S. at the prevailing cmporate rates. 
These assumuipns. are consisteiitmtit tiie assumption in clause 1 above that atlPBF LLC Series A 
Units a i « i ^ c h ^ ^ for ishar^ of PfiF Enogy Class A cbilimpn st^ck,asihea^med exch^ge would 
change the amount of our earning diat is sid>jeet to corpoi'ate ihbdme tax; 

3 Elimihdtiort of Certain Jnitial Public Cffering-Related Bcp^nses, Adjusted Pro Fonna results for 2012 
also exclude one4irae d i a i | ^ relating to our initial public bfibriiig. Management b l̂ieviss that this 
adjustiiu»tt results ill a mbreineanin^Ijciompari^oh with prioraiu succeeding perkxl results. 
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The following table reconciles our Adjusted Pro Forma r^ults with our result presented in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP for the years ended December 31,2013.2012 and 2011: 

Net income attributable to PBF Energy Inc. 

Add: IPO-related expenses '̂* 
Add: Net income attributable to the 
noncontrolling interest' 
Less: Income tax expense*̂ * 

Adjusted pro forma net Income 

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding of 
PBFEner^'Inc.**** 

Conversion of PBF LLC Series A Units *" 
Pro forma shares outstanding—diluted'^ 
Adjusted pro forma net income (loss) per fully 
exchanged, fulty diluted shares outstanding 

Year Ended 
Dcceiiiber31, 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

39,540 $ 

174,545 
(70,167) 

143.918 $ 

33.061.081 
64.164.045 

97,225,126 

1.48 $ 

2012 

1,956 $ 
8,187 

802,081 
(319,732) 
492.492 $ 

97,230.904 

97.230,904 

5.07 $ 

2011 

242,671 

(95,758) 
146.913 

97.230,904 

97,230,904 

1.51 

(1) Represents the elimination of one-time charges associated with our initial public offering. 

(2) Represents Uieelnnination of the non(^bDoIling interest associated With the ownaship by ttte members 
of PBF LLC otH^'than PBF Ener^ as if such nienibers had folly i»(changed tiieir PBF LLC Series AUnits 
for scares of PBF Energy's Class^ omimon stock. 

(3) R^resents an adjustment to spply PBF Ener^s statutory tax rate of approximately 40.2% for the yiear 
elided Decembar31.2013 aiul 393% for die years ended December 31 ,i2Q12 and 2011 to the noncontroflu^ 
interest. Hie adjustment assumes tiie foil exchange of existing PBF LLC Series A Units as described in 
(2) above. 

(4) Repriesehits weighted-avera^ dittited shares outstaicling assuming the conversion of all common stock 
equivalents, including pptioiis and >varr»it5 fc^ iinib bf PBF LLC Series A Uiiits and options fOTshares of 
PBF &ter^ class A cbmrh^n stock as i^k^Iated under tiie treasury stock meUtod for the year ended 
December 31.2013. Comtnon stock ^uivalents exclude the elffedts of options to iHiitohase 1 ̂ 20i006 and 
682,500 shares of PBF Enei:^'s Class A common stbdc becat^ they are aiUi-dilUtiV^ for the years ^ded 
December 31.2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(5) Represents an adjustment to weightedraverage diluted ^ares to assume the foil exchange of existing PBF 
LLC Series A Units as described in (2) abovî . 

(6) Diluted pro foi^a shares outstanding for 2011 reflect the same number of diluted shares outstanding for 
2012 in order to present such pre-IPO period on a coinparable basis. 

Gros5 Refining Margin 

Gross reflning margin is defined as gross margin excluding depreciation and c^erating expense related to 
the refineries. We believe gross refining margin is an hnportant measure of operatmg performance and provides 
usefol i nformation to investors because it is a better metric comparison for die industiy refining margin benchmarks, 
as the refining margin benchmarks do not include a charge for depreciation expense. In order to assess our operating 
perfoimance, we compare our gross refining margin (revenue less cost of sales) to mdustry refining margin 
benchmarks and cmde oil prices as defined in tiie table below. 

Gross refinmg margin should not be considered an alternative to gross mar^n, operating mc(»ne, net cash 
flows from 0[»rating activities or any other measure of flnancial performance or liquidity presented in accordance 
with GAAP. Gross refining margin presaited by other companies may not be comparable to our presentaticm. 
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since each company may define this term differently. The following table presents a reconcitiati'on of gross refining 
maigin to the most directiy comparable GAAP financial measure, gross maigui, on a historical basis, as ̂ plicable, 
for each of the periods indicated: 

Year Ended Decern ber 31. 

Reconciliation of gross 
mar^n to gross refining 
mai^n: 

Gross margm 
Add: 

Refinery operating 
expense 

Refinery depreciation 
expense 

Gross refining margin 

2013 

per barrel of 
S throughput 

$ 436,867 $ 

812,652 

98,622 

$1,348,141 $ 

2.64 

4.92 

0.60 

8.16 

2012 

perbsrrdof 
S throughput 

$1,046,598 $ 

738,824 

84,187 
$1,869,609 $ 

6.17 

4.36 

0.50 
11.03 

2011 

per barrel of 
S throughput 

$ 417.962 $ 3.07 

635.517 5.12 

51,696 0.40 
$1,105,175 $ 8.59 

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA 

Our management uses EBITDA (earnings before interest income taxes, d^reciation and amortization) and 
Adjusted EBITDAas measures of operating performance to assist in comparing performance from period to period 
on a consistent basis and to readily view oper^ing trends, as a measure for planning and forecasting overall 
expectations and for evaluating actual results ag^nst such expectations, and in communications with our board of 
directors, creditora. analysts and investors conceming our financial performance. The Sem'or Seeing Notes, 
revolving credit fecility and other contnu^al obligations also include similar measures as a basis for certain 
covenants under those agreemente which may differ from the Adjusted EBITDA definition described below. 

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not presentations made in accordance with GAAP and our computation 
of EBFFDA and Adjusted EBITDA may vary from others in our industiy. In addition. Adjusted EBfTDA contains 
some, but not alt. adjustments that are taken into account in the calculation of the components of various covenants 
in the agreements governing the Senior Secured Notes and the ABL Revolving Credit Facility. EBITDA and 
Adjusted EBrrDA should not be considered as altanatives to operating income or net income (lo^) as measures 
of operating performance. In addition, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not presented as, and should not be 
considered, an alternative to cash flows from operations as a measure of liquidity. Adjusted EBITDA is defined 
as EBITDA before equity-based compensation expense, gains (losses) from certain derivative activities and 
contingent consideration and the non-cash change in the deferral of ̂ oss profit related to the sale of certain finished 
products. Otiier companies, including other companies in our industiy, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently 
tiian we do. limiting its usefolness as a comparative measure. Adjusted EBITDAalso has limitations as an analytical 
tool and should not be considered in isolation, or as a substitote for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. 
Some of these limitations include that Adjusted EBITDA: 

•doesnotrefiectdepreciationexpenseorourcash expenditures, or future requirements, for capital expenditures 
or contractual commitment; 

• does not reflect changes m. or cash requirements for, our woiking coital needs; 

•does not reflect our interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal 
p^ments, On our debt; 

• does not reflect realized and unrealized gains and losses from hedging activhies, which may haw asubstantial 
impact on our cash flow; 
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•does not reflect certain odier non-cash income and expenses; and 

•excludes income taxes tiiat may represent a reduction in available cash. 

Hie following tables reconcile net (loss) income as reflected in our results of operations to EBITDA and Adjusted 
EBITDA for tiie periods presented; 

Year Ended December 31, 
2013 2012 2011 

Reconciliation of net Qoss) income to EBITDA: 

Net income '̂ ^ 

Add:Depreciation and amortization expense 

Add: Interest expense, net 

Add: Income tax expense*'* 

EBITDA 

Reconciliation of EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA: 

EBITDA 
Stock based compensation 
Change in tax receivable aj^ement liability 

Non-cash change in fair value of catetyst tease obligations 

Non-cash change in fair value of contingent consideration 

Non-cash diange in fair value of inventory repurchase 
obligations 

Non-cash deferral of gross proflt on 
finished product sales 

Adjusted EBITDA 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

214.085 
111.479 

93,784 

16,681 
436,029 

436,029 
3.753 

8,540 

(4,691) 

— 

(12,985) 

(31.329) 

399.317 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

804.037 
92.238 

108.629 

1,275 

1,006.179 

1,006,179 
2,954 

— 

3.724 

2,768 

9.271 

19.177 
1.044,073 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

242,671 
53,743 
65.120 

— . 
361.534 

361,534 

2,516 

— 

(7.316) 

5,215 

(1,396) 

(6.771) 

353,782 

"*Net income for PBF Holdmg forthe years ended December 31.2013.2012 and 2011 was $238,876, $805,312 
and $242,671 respectivety. which excludes $16,681 and $1,275 and $0 of income tax expense of PBF Energy, 
respectivety. and $8,540 of expense associated with the change ui the tax receivable agreement liability for the 
year ended December 31.2013 and includes $423 of interest expense related to the intercompany notes payable 
between PBF Holdmg and PBF Energy for the year ended December 31,2013. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Overview 

Our primary source of liquidity is our cash flows from operations and borrowing availability tmder our 
credh facilities, as more folty described below. We believe that our cash flows from operations and available coital 
resources will be sufficient to meet our capital expenditure, working coital, dividend payments and debt service 
requirements for die next twelve months. However, our ability to generate sufficient cash fiow from qierations 
d^iends, m part, on oil maricet pricing and general economic, polhicat and other fectora b^ond our control. We 
believe we could, during periods of economic downturn, access the capital mariceta and/or otiia* available flnancial 
resources or reduce our capital and discretionary expenditore plans to strengthen our flnancial position. 

68 



Cash Flow Analysis 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities was $291.3 million for theyear ended December 31,20I3compared 
to net cash provided tty operating activities of $812.4 million for the year ended December 31,2012. Our operating 
cash flows for the year ended E>ecember 31,2013 included our net income of $214.1 million, plus net non-cash 
charges relating to depreciation and amortization of $118.0 million, change in defeired income taxes of $16.7 
million, pension and other post retirement benefits costs of $16.7 million, change in the tax receivable agreement 
liability of $8.5 million and stock-based compensation of $3.8 million, partially offset by the change in the feir 
value of our inventory repurchase obligations of $20.5 million, changes in die f^r value of our catalyst lease of 
$4.7 million, and gain on sale of assets of $183 thousand. In addition, net changes in woiking capital refiected 
uses of cash of $61.1 million driven by the timing of inventory purchases and collections of accounts receivables 
QS well as payments associated with the terminations of the MSCG offtake and Statoil suppty agreements. Our 
operating cash flows for the year ended December 31,2012 includedournet income of $804.0 million, plus net 
non-cash charges relating to depreciation and amortization of $97.7 million, pension and other post retirement 
benefits of $12.7 million, changes in the feir value of our catalyst lease and Toledo contingent consideration 
obligations of $6.4 million, change in the fair value of our inventory repurchase obligations of $4.6 million, the 
write-off of unamortized deferred flnancing fees related to retired debt of $4.4 million and stock-based 
compa\sat\on of $2.9 million, partially offset by a gain on sales of assets of $2.3 million. In addhion, net changes 
in working capital used $118.0 million in cash driven by mcreases in hydrocarbon purchase and sales volumes 
^ d their associated impact on inventory, accounts receivable, and hydrocarbon-related liabilities. 

Net cash provided by operating activities was $812.4 million fortheye^ ended December 3 l,2012compared 
to net cash provided by operating activities of $249.3 million for the year ended December 31,2011. During the 
2011 period, our cash flows reflect only ten months of operations of our Toledo refinety, which was acquired on 
March 1,2011, and limited operations at our HeXawaxe City refinery, which was not fully operational until October 
2011. Our operating cash flows for the year ended December 31.2011 included our net income of $242.7 million, 
plus net non-cash chaiges relating to depreciation and amortization of $56.9 million, pension and other post 
retirement benefits of $9.8 million, change in the fan- value of the Toledo contingent consideration of $5.2 million 
and stock-based compensation of $2.5 million, change in die feir value of our inventory repurchase obligations of 
$25.3 million, partially offset by changes in the fair value of our catalyst lease obligations of $7.3 million, and net 
cash used in woricing capital of $85.8 million. 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Net cash used in investuig activities was $313.3 million fen* the year ended December 31,2013 compared 
to net cash used in investing activities of $219.3 million for the year ended December 31,2012. The net cash flows 
used in investing activities for the year ended December 31.2013 was comprised of capital expenditures totaling 
$318.4 million, expenditores for turnarounds of $64.6 million, primarily at our Delaware City refineiy, and 
expenditores for other assets of $32.7 million, partially offset by $102.4 million in proceeds from the sale ofraitcars. 
Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 consisted primarity of the capital 
expenditurestotating$17S.9miIlion.expenditures for turnarounds of $38,6 million, primarily at ourToledoreflneiy 
and expenditores for odier assets of $8.2 million, slightly offset by $3.4 million ui proceeds from the sale of assets. 

Net cash used bi investing activities was $219.3 million forthe year ended December 31.2012 compared 
to net cash used in investing activities of $739.2 million for the year ended December 31,2011, Net cash used in 
investing activhies forthe year ended December 31, 2011 consisted primarily of the acquisition of the Toledo 
reflnery of $168.2 million, capital expenditores totalmg $488.7 million, primarity related to the reconfiguration 
and re-start of our Delaware City refinery, expenditures for a tomaround at our Paulsboro refinery of $62.8 million 
and expenditores for other assets of $23.3 million slightly offset by $4.7 million in proceeds from the sale of assets. 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Net cash used in financing activhies was $187.0 millron for the year ended December 31,2013 compared 
to $357.4 million for the year ended December 31.2012. For the year ended December 31.2013, net cash used in 
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financmg activities consisted primarity of distiibutions and dividends of $195.7 million, payments of contingent 
consideration related to the Toledo acquisition of $21.4 million and $ 1.0 million for deferred financing costs offset 
by $15.0 million of net proceeds from revolver borrowings. $14.3 million in proceeds from sale of catalyst and 
$1.8 million exercise of Series A options and warrants of PBF Energy Company LLC. For the year ended 
December 31,2012, net cash used m financing activities consisted primarily of purchases of PBF LLC Series A 
units from existing unh holders of $571.2 million, rep^ments of $484.6 million of tong-term debt, net repayments 
on the ABL credit fecility of $270.0 million, a contingent consideration payment related to the Toledo acquisition 
of$lp3.6 million, cash distributions to PBF LLC's members of$161.0 million, $26.1 million for deferred financing 
costs, and $8.4 million for payments related to initial public offering costs, partially of&et by net proceeds from 
tiie senior secured notes offering of $665,8 million, net proceeds from the sale of shares of Class Acommon stock 
in our initial public offering of $579.1 million, proceeds of $9.5 million from the Paulsboro catalyst lease and 
proceeds of $13.1 million from die exercise of PBF LLC warrants and options. 

Net cash used in financing activities was $357.4 million for the year ended December 31,2012 compared 
to net cash provided by financing activities of $384.6 million for the year ended December 31,2011. For the year 
ended December 31,2011, cash provided by fmancing activities consisted primarily of capital contributi'ons from 
members of PBF LLC of $408.4 million, proceeds from the issuance of tong-term debt of $488.9 million and 
proceeds ^ m catalyst leases of $18.6 tnillibn, partially offset by principal repE^ments of $299.6 million on a 
seller note, for invoifory, repayments of long-term debt of $220.4 million and $112 million for deferred financing 
and other coste. 

The cash flow activity of PBF Holding is materialty consistent with diat discussed above, other than the 
PBF Holding change m due to/due from related party of $14.7 million uicluded in cash flows from operating 
activities, as well as proceeds from intercompany notes payable of $31.8 million and distributions of $20.2 million 
related to tax distributions paid to, or on behalf of, PBF Energy included in cash flows from financmg activities. 

Senior Secured Notes 

On February 9, 2012, PBF Holding and its wholly-owned subsidiary, PBF Finance Corp.. issued $675.5 
million aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2020. The net proceeds from tiie offering 
of approximately $665.8 million were u s ^ to repay our Paulsbprp Promissoiy Note in die amount of $150.6 
million our Term Uxai Facility m the amount of $ 123.8 million, our Toi^p Prpmisspiy Note in the amount of 
$181.7 million, and to reduce indebtedness under the ABL Revolvlhg Credit f̂ acility. 

The Senior Secured Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by substantially all of tiie present and futore 
assets of PBF Holding and its subsidiaries (otiier than assets securing die ABL Revolving Credit Facility). As of 
December 31,2013,paymentofthe Senior SecuredNotes is jointly juid severalty guaranteed by allofPBFHoldtng's 
subsidiaries. PBF Holding has optional redemption rights to repurchase all, or a portion, of the Senior Secured 
Notes at varying prices equal to no less dian 100% of the principal amounts of the notes plus accmed and unpaid 
interest The holders of tiie Senior Secured Notes have repurchase options exercisable only upon a change in 
control, certain asset sale transactions, or in event of a default as defined in the indentore agreement In Edition, 
the Senior Secured Notes contain covenant resti'ictions limiting certain types of additional debt, equhy issuances, 
and payments. PBF Holdmg is in compliance widi the covenants as of December 31,2013. 

Credit Facilities 

ABL Revolving Credit Faclttty 

On May 31.2011,PBF Holding amended its ABLRevolvingCreditFacility with UBSAG. Stamford Branch, 
as admiiitsfrative agent and co-coltaterat agent and certain other laiders to increase its size to $500.0 million by 
including certain inventory and accounts receivable of the Toledo refineiy tn the borrowing base. A portion of the 
proceeds of the ABL Revolving <;>redH Facility v ^ used pn the closing date t ha^ f to n ^ y in foil all amounts 
thi^ outstanding uhder'^d to terminate the I ^ U ( ^ jand Interniediati^ Inventory Prom^oiy N o ^ dat^ as of 
March 1.2011, in an aggregate prmcipal amoimt equal to $299,6 millipit, isî ied byT6leck):Rermuig m favbrof 
Sunoco. In March. August, and September 2012. we amended the ABL Revolving Credit Facility agaui to increase 
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tiie aggregate size to $965.0 million. The ABL Revolving Credh Facility was amended and restated on October 26, 
2012 to increase the maximum availability to $1,375 billion, extend the matority date to October 26.2017, and 
amend the borrowing base to include non-U.S. inventory, and was forther amended on December 28. 2012 to 
increase the maximum av^lability to $1,575 billion. Hie amended and restated ABL Revolving Credh fecility 
includes an accordion featore which allows for commitments of up to $1.8 billion. The Revolving Loan was further 
expandedtoamaximumavailabitityof$l.610biltioninNovember2013. On an ongoing basis, the ABLRevolving 
Credit Facility is available to PBF Holding and its subsidiaries for working capital and other general corporate 
purposes. 

The ABL Revolving Credit Facility contains customary covenants and resti-ictions on the activities of PBF 
Holding and its subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness; 
liens, n^ative pledges, guarantees, investments, loans, asset sales, mergers, acquisitions and prepayment of other 
debt; distributions, dividends and the repurchase of capital stock; transactions with affiliates; the ability to change 
the nature of our business or our fiscal year; the ability to amend the terms of the Senior Secured Notes facility 
documents; and sate and leaseback transactions. As of December 31, 2013, we were in compliance with diese 
covenants. 

As of December 31, 2013, die ABL Revolving Credit Facility provided for revolving loans of up to an 
aggregate of $1.610 billion, a portion of which was available in the form of letters of credh. The amount available 
for borrowings and lettera of credit undertheABLRevolvmgCreditFacility is calculated according toa"borrowing 
base" formula based on (I) 90% of the book value of eligible accounts receivable widi respect to investment grade 
obligors plus (2) 85% of the book value of eligible accounts receivable with respect to non-investment grade 
obligors plus (3) 80% of die cost of eligible hydrocarbon inventoiy plus (4) 100% of cash and cash equivalents in 
deposit accounts subject to a control agreement The borrowing base is subject to customary reserves and eligibility 
criteria and in any event cannot exceed $1,610 billion. As of December31. 2013, there were $15.0 million 
outstanding borrowings under the ABL Revolving Credit Facility. Additionally, we had $441.4 million in standby 
letters of credh issued and outstanding as of that date. 

All obligations under the ABL Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed (solely on a limited recourse basis) 
to the extent required to support die lien described m clause (y) below by PBF LLC, PBF Finance, and each of our 
domestic operating subsidiaries and secured by a lien on (y) PBF LLC's equity interests in PBF Holding and 
(z) substantially all of the assets of the borrowers and the subsidiary guarantors (subject to certain exceptions). 
The lien of the ABL Revolving Credit Facility is secured by: all deposit accounts (other than zero balance accounts, 
cash collateral accounts, tmst accounts and/or payroll accounts, all of which are excluded from the collateral); all 
accounts receivables; all hydrocarbon inventory (other than the Saudi cmde oil pledged under the letter of credit 
facility); to the extent evidencing, governing, securing or otherwise related to the foregoing, all general intangibles, 
chattel paper, instmments, documents, letter of credit rights and supporting obligations; and all products and 
proceeds of the foregoing. 

Letter of Credit Facility 

PBF Holding, Paulsboro Refining and Delaware City Refining were party to a letter of credit facility with 
BNP Paribas (Suisse) SA. or BNP. The letter of credit facility was terminated in December 2012. 

Cash Balances 

As of December 31.2013, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $77.0 million. We also had $12.1 million 
in restricted cash, which was included within deferred charges and other assets, net on our balance sheet The 
restricted cash represents a trust fond we acquired in connection with tiie Paulsboro refineiy acquishion and 
represents die estimated cost of environmental remediation obligations assumed. 
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Liquidity 
As of December 31,2013. our total liquidity was approximately $615.9 million, compared to total liquidity 

ofapproximatety$599.2millionasofDecember31,2012. Total liquidity isthesumofourcashandcashequivalents 
plus the amount of availability under the ABL Revolving Credit Facility. 

Working Capital 

Working capital for PBF Eneigy at December 31,2013 was $556.0 million, consisting of $2,200.5 million 
in total current assets and $1,644.5 million in total current liabilities. Working capital at December 31,2012 was 
$704.8 million, consisting of $2,307.9 million mtotal current assets and$l,603.1 million in total current liabilities. 

Working coital for PBF Holding at December 31,2013 was $541.9 million, consisting of $2,175.0 million 
in total current assets and $1.633.0 million in total current liabiUties. Working coital at December 31.2012 was 
$686.8 million, consisting of $2,283.3 million in total current assets and $1,596.5 million in total current tiablHties. 

Crude and Feedstock Supply Agreements 

We have acquired cmde oil for our Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries under suppty ̂ eements whereby 
Statoil generalty purchases the crude oil requirements for each refinery on our behalf and tmder our direction. Our 
agreement with Statoil for Paulsboro was terminated effective March 31,2013. at which time we began to source 
Paulsboro's cmde oil and feedstocks internally. We amended our agreement with Statoil for Delaware City in 2012 
and the term was extended by Statoil tiu-ough December 31,2015. Statoil generalty provides transportation and 
logistics services, risk management services and holds titie to the cmde oil until we purchase h as h enters the 
refinery process imits. For our purchases of Saudi cmde oil, similar to our purchases of otiier foreign waterborne 
crudes, we post letters of credit and arrange for shipment. We pay for the erode when we are invoiced and the tetter 
of credh Is tiffed. Under the Statoil agreements, the amount of cmde oil we own and the time we are exposed to 
market fluctuations is substantially reduced. Under generally accepted accounting principle we record the 
inventory owned by Statoil on our behalf as inventory with a corresponding accmed li£d>ility on our balance sheet 
because we have risk of loss white tiie Statoil mventory is in our storage tanks and because we have an obligation 
to repurchase Statoil's inventory upon termination of die agreements at die then market value. 

We have a similar agreement with MSCG to suppty the cmde oil requirements for our Toledo refinery, under 
which we take title to MSCG's cmde oil at certain interstate pipeline delivery locations. Payment for the cmde oil 
under the Toledo agreement is due three days affer h is processed by us or sold to third parties. We do not have to 
post letters of credit for these purchases and the Toledo ̂ eement allows us to price and pay for our cmde oil as 
it is processed, which reduces the time we are exposed to market fluctoations. We record an accmed liability at 
each pa-iod-end for the amount we owe MSCG for the crude oil that we own but have not processed. The accrued 
liability is based on the period-end market value, as h represents our best estimate of what we will pay for the 
crude oil. 

In connection with the cmde and feedstock supply agreements for our Delaware City refinery and formerly 
for the Paulsboro refineiy, Statoil also purchases the refineries production of certain feedstocks or pivchases 
feedstocks from third parties on the refineries' behalf Legal title to the feedstocks is held by Statoil and stored in 
the refineries' storage tanks until they are needed for forther use in the refining process. At that time, the feedstocks 
are drawn out of the storage tanks and purchased by the refineries. These purdiases and sales are netted at cost 
and reported within cost of sales. The feedstock inventoiy owned by Statoil remains on our balance sheet with a 
corresponding accrued liability. 

At December 31, 2013, the LIFO value of cmde oil and feedstocks owned by Statoil included witiiin 
inventory on our balance sheet was $89.8 million. The corr^ponding accmed liability for such cmde oil and 
feedstocks was $89.8 million at that date. 
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Product Offtake Agreements 

Prior to die termination of our product offtake agreements on Juty 1,2013, our Paulsboro and Delaware 
City refmeries sold their light finished products, certain intermediates and lube base oils to MSCG. Legal title 
transferred to MSCG as the products left the process units and entered the refineiy storage fecilities. On a daity 
basis MSCG, under a payment direction agreement, paid the purchase price of certain finished products directly 
to Statoil, the counterparty to our cmde oil and feedstocks supply agreements, effectivety netting our liability for 
crude and feedstock purchases. Hie payment direction agreement for Paulsboro was terminated effective Mareh 31. 
2013. Any shortfall or overage in the netting process was tmed up between us and Statoil. Under generally accepted 
accounting principles, we deferred the revenue on finished product sales and retain tiie inventory owned by MSCG 
on our balance sheet until MSCG shipped the products out of our refmery storage facilities, which typically occurred 
within an avaage of six days. 

In addition, MSCG purchased the daily production of certain intermediates and lube products. When needed 
for ^ditional blending or sates to third parties, the Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries repurchased the 
intermediates or lubes from MSCG. These purchases and sales occurred at the daily market price for tiie related 
products and were netted in cost of sales at cost Hie inventoiy of intermediates and lubes owned by MSCG 
remained in inventory on our balance sheet and the net cash receipts resuh in a liability that was recorded at market 
price for the volumes held in storage with any change in the market price being recorded in cost of sales. 

At December 31.2012, the LIFO value of light finished products, intermediates and lubes owned by MSCG 
included within inventory on our balance sheet was $417.9 million. The corresponding deferred revenue for light 
finished products and accrued liability for intermediates and lubes was $210.5 million and $270.4 million, 
respectivety. 

Inventory Intermediation Agreements 

We entered into two separate Inventory Intermediation Agreements with J. Aron on June 26,2013 which 
commenced upon the termination of the product offtake agreements with MSCG. Pursuant to the Inventory 
Intermediation Agreements, J. Aron purchases and holds titie to all of the intermediate and finished products 
produced t^ the Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries and delivered into otu* tanlcs at the refineries. Inventoiy 
held outside the refineries may be purchased and owned by J. Aron under the Inventory Intermediation Agreements 
upon the agreement of both parties. Furthermore, J. Aron agrees to sett the intermediate and finished products 
back to us as they are discharged out of the refmeries' tanks (or other bcations outside the refineries as agreed 
upon by both parties). We currentiy market and sell the finished products independently to third parties. We entered 
into the Inventory Intermediation Agreements for tfie purpose of managing the Products mventory at the Delaware 
City and Paulsboro refinwies, Hiey provide us with financial flexibility and improve our liquidity by allowing us 
to monetize Products inventoiy in our tanks as they are produced prior to being sold to third parties. 

Our accounts receivable increased fi-om $503.8 million at December 31,2012 to $596.6 million at December 
31.2013 and our deferred revenue decreased from $210.5 million at December 31,2012 to$7.8 million at December 
31.2013 as aresuh of the termination of die MSCG offtake agreements and commencement of tiie J. Aron Inventoiy 
Intermediation Agreements. Previously, under the MSCG offtake agreements, we sold substantialty all of our East 
Coast finished prcxlucts to MSCG and received payment on the day of sale. We deferred the revenue on these 
finished product sales until MSCG shipped the products out of our refinery storage fecilhies. Under die J. Aron 
agreements no revenue is deferred as we sell finished products directiy to thhd parties with varying payment terms 
and recognize revenue as the products are shipped and title transfers to the customer. Similarly, accounts payable 
increased from $360.1 million at Decanber 31.2012 to $402.3 million at December 31.2013, primarily as aresuh 
of the termination of the St^oil supply a^eement at Paulsboro and our increased purchases of cmde by rail delivered 
to the East Coast 
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At December 31,2013, the LIFO value of intermediate and finished products owned by J. Aron included 
within inventory on our balance sheet was $378.3 million. The corresponding accmed liability for such 
intermediates and finished products was $378.3 million at that date. 

Capital Spending 

Capital spending was $415.7 million for the year ended December 31,2013, which primarily included safety 
related enhancements and fecility improvements at the refinery and the continued e}q)ansion of the nul unloading 
facilities at our Delaware City refinety. 

We are pursuing capital project opportonities designed to increase the profitability of our Toledo refinery. 
Hiese projects are expected to improve cmde sourcing and flexibility, forther diversify our product sales into higher 
margin chemicals and improve the ULSD and total liquid yield from the Toledo refinery. We spent approximately 
$30.7 million through December3l, 2013 related to these capital projects and estimate ag^egate total capital 
expaiditures of approximately $85.0 million dirough the end of 2015. 

Contractual Obligations and Commitments 

The following table summarizes our material contractoat payment obligations as of December 31,2013: 

Long-term debt (a) 

Interest payments on debt facilities (a) 

Delaware Economic Development 
Authority Loan (b) 
Operating Leases (c) 
Purchase obligations (d): 

Cmde Supply and Offtake Agreements 

Other Supply and Capacity 
Agreements 

Constmction obligations 
Environmental obligations (e) 
Pension and post-retirement obligations (f) 
Tax receivable agreement obligations (g) 

Total contractual cash obligations 

Payments due by period 

Total 
Less than 

lyear 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 
More tban 

5 years 

$ 743,589 $ 26,887 $ 41,202 $ — $ 675,500 

423.417 72,466 143.312 124,046 83,593 

311,323 59,410 101.721 81.877 

454,893 454,893 

68315 

483,351 

13,088 

14.874 

96,023 

287,316 

$2.^7,874 

60,023 

13,088 

2,907 

6.669 

12.541 

$ 708,884 

98.207 

— 
1,492 

9.287 

53,604 

$448,825 

91,544 
— 

1,439 

17,257 

32,821 

$348,984 

233,577 

— 
9,036 

62,810 

188,350 

$1,321,181 

(a) Long-term Debt and Interest Payments on Debt Faculties 

Long-term obligations represent (i) the repayment of the outstanding revolving credit agreement; (ii) die 
repayment of indebtedness incurred in connection with the senior secured notes offering; and (iii) the repayment 
of our catetyst lease obligations on their maturity dates. 

Interest payments on debt fecilhies include eash mterest paymenta on the Senior Secured Notes, catalyst 
tease obligations, plus cash payments for the commitment fee on the unused ABL Revolving Credit Facility and 
tetter of credit fees on the letters of credit outstanding at December 31,2013. Wth the exception of our catalyst 
leases and outstanding borrowhigs on the Revolver, we have no long-term debt matoring before 2020 as of 
December 31,2013. 
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0 ) Delaware Economic Development Authority Loan 

The Delaware Economic Development Authority Loan converts to a grant in ti-anches of $4.0 million 
annually, starting at the one year anniversary of die Delaware City refineiy's "certified re-start date" provided we 
meet certain criteria, all as defined in die loan agreement. We expect that we will meet the requirements to convert 
the loan to a grant and tiiat we will uhimately not be required to repay the $20.0 million loan. Our Delaware 
Economic Development Authority Loan is forther explained in the Delaware Economic Development Authority 
Loan footaote in our consolidated financial statements, "Item 8. Financial Stetements and Supplementary Data." 

(c) Operating Leases 

We enter into operating leases in the normal course of business, some of these leases provide us with the 
option to renew die lease or purchase the teased item; Future operating lease obligations would change ifwe chose 
to exercise renewal options and if we enter intp additional operating lease agreements. Certain of our lease 
obligations contain a fixed and variable component. The table above reflects the fixed component of our lease 
obligations. The variable component could be significant Our operating lease oblig^ons are fortiier explained in 
the Commitments and Contmgencies footoote to our financial statements. "Item 8. Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data." During 2012 and Januaiy 2013. we have entered into agreements to tease or purchase 5.900 
cmde railcars which will enable us to transport this crude to eac* of our refineries. Any such leases will commence 
as the r^tcars are delivered. Of the 5,900 cmde railcars, we recently purchased 717 railcars, and subsequentty sold 
them to a third party, which has leased the railcars back to us for periods of between four and six years. 

(d) Purchase Obligations 

We have obligations to repurchase cmde oil, feedstocks, certain intemiediates and refined products under 
various cmde supply and product offtake agreements with J. Aron and Statoil as forther explained at the Summary 
of Significant Accounting Policies, Inventories and Accmed Expenses footootes to our financial statements, 
"Item 8. Financial Stetements and Supplementary Data." 

Payments under Otiier Supply and Capacity Agreements include contracta for the supply of hydrogen, steam, 
or natoral gas to certain of our refineries, contracts for the treatment of wastewater, and contracts for pipeline 
capacity. We enter into these contnu:ts to ensure an adequate suppty of eneigy or essential services to support cmr 
refineiy operations. Substantially all of these obligations are based on fixed prices. Certaui agreements include 
fixed or minimum volume requirements, while others are based on our actual usage. Hie amounts included in this 
table are based on fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased and the fixed or estimated costs based on market 
conditions as of December 31,2013. 

(e) Environmental Obligations 

In connecticHi with the Paulsboro acquisition, we assumed certain environmentel remediation obligations 
to address existing soil and groundwater contamination at the site and acquired a tmst fond established to meet 
the state's related financial assurance requirement recorded as a liability in the amount of $12.1 million which 
reflects the present valueofthe current estimated costoftheremediation obligations assumed based on investigative 
work to-date. Hie undiscounted estimated costs related to tiiese environmental ranediatton obligations were $ 14.9 
million as of December 31,2013. 

In connection whh the acquisition of the Delaware City assets, the prior owners remain responsible, subject 
to certain limitations, for certain pre-acqutsition environmental obligations, including ongoing soil and groundwater 
remediation at the site. 

In connection witii the Delaware City assets and Paulsboro reflnery acquisitions, we, along with the seller, 
purchased two individual ten year, $75.0 million environmental insurance policies to insure agauist unknown 
environmental liabilities at each site. 
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In connection with the acquisition of Toledo, the seller initially retains, subject to certain limitations, 
remediation obligations which will fransUion to us over a 20-year period. 

In connection with the acquisition of all threeof our reflneries. we assumed certaui environmental obligations 
under regulatory orders unique to each site, including orders r^ulating air emissions from each fecility. 

(^Pension and Post-retirement Obligations 

Pension and post-retbement obligations include only those amoimts we expect to pay out in benefit p^ments 
and are forther explained at the Employee Benefit Plans footoote to our financial statements, "Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data." 

(g) Tax Receivable Agreement Obttgations 

We used a portion of the proceeds from our IPO to pin-chase PBF LLC Series A Units from the the members 
of PBF LLC otiier than PBF Eneigy. In addition, tiie members of PBF LLC other dian PBF Eneigy may (subject 
to the terms of the exchange agreement) exchange their PBF LLC Series A Units for shares of Class A common 
stock of PBF Energy on a one-for-one basis. As a result of bodi the purchase of PBF LLC Series A Units and 
subsequent Secondary Offerings and exchanges, PBF Energy is entitied to a proportionate share of the existing 
tax basis of the assets of PBF LLC. In addition, the purchase of PBF LLC Series A Units and subsequent exchanges 
are expected to result in increases in tiie tax basis of the assets of PBF LLC that otherwise would not have been 
available. Botii this proportionate share and these increases in tax basis may reduce the amount of tax that PBF 
Energy would otherwise be required to pay in the foture. These increases in tax basis may also decrease gains (or 
increase losses) on the fotore disposition of certain capitel assets to tiie extent tax basis is allocated to those capital 
assets. We have entered into a tax receivable agreement whh die members of PBF LLC otiia than PBF Energy 
that provides for the payment by PBF Energy to our previous owners of 85% of the amount of the benefits, if any, 
that PBF Eneigy is deemed to realize as a result of (i) tiiese tno-eases in tax basis and (f i) certain other tax benefits 
related to entering into the tax receivable agreement including tax benefits attiibutable to payments under tiie tax 
receivable agreement. Hiese p^ment obligations are obligations of PBF Enei^ and not of PBF LLC or any of 
its subsidiaries. 

PBF Energy expects to obtain fonding for these paymenta by causing PBF Holding to make cash d isti-ibutions 
to PBF LLC, whkh. in torn, will dtsfribute such amounts, generalty as tax distributions, on a pro-rate t>asis to its 
owners, which as of Decemtier 31,2013 mclude the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy holding a 59.1% 
interest and PBF Eneigy holding a 40.9% mterest The members of PBF LLC otiier tiian PBF Eneigy may reduce 
their ownerahip in PBF LLC by exchanging theh PBF LLC Series A Units for shares of PBF Energy Class A 
common stock. Such exchanges may result in additional increases in the tax basis of PBF Energy's investment in 
PBF LLC and require PBF Energy to make inc^ased paymenta under the tax receivable agreement Required 
payments under the tax receivable agreement also may increase or become accelerated in certain circumstances, 
including certain changes of confrot. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Organizational Stmctore 
and Our Class A Common Stock— În certain cases, payments by us under the tax receivable agreement m ^ be 
accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits we realize in respea of the tax attributes subject to the 
tax receivable agreement. These provisions may deter a change in control of our company." 

Hie table above reflects our estimated timing of paymenta unda the tax receivable agreement assuming no 
material changes in the relevuit tax law. and that we earn sufficient taxable income to realize all tax benefits diat 
are subject to tiie tax receivdite agreement as of December 31.2013. In addition, in January 2014, Blackstone and 
First Reserve completed a seconi^ry offering which is estimated to increase our tax receivable a^^ement liability 
to S439.6 million as a result of the secondary offering and die corresponding tax benefits expected to be generated 
in foture years from tfiis transaction. 
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Tiix distributions 

PBF LLC is required to make periodic tax distributions to the members of PBF LLC. including PBF 
Energy, pro rate in accordance with their respective percentage interests for such period (as determined under die 
amended and restated limited liability company agreement of PBF LLC), subject to available cash and applicable 
law and contractual restrictions (including pursuant to our debt instmments) and based on certain assumptions. 
Generalty. these tax distributions witl be an amount equal to our wthnate of the taxable income of PBF LLC for 
the year multiplied by an assumed tax rate equal to the highest effective marginal combined U.S. federal, state and 
local income tax rate prescribed for an individual or corporate resident in New York, New Yoric (taking into account 
the nondeductibility of certain expenses). If, with respect to any given calendar year, the aggr^ate periodic tax 
distributions were less than the actual tmahie income of PBF LLC multiplied by the assumed tax rate, PBF LLC 
will make a"tme up" tax distribution, no later than March 15 of the following year, equal to such difference, subject 
to the available cash and borrowings of PBF LLC. As diese distributions are conditional they have been excluded 
from the table above. 

Off-Balance Sheet Airangements 

We have no off-balance sheet artangements as of December 31,2013, other than outstanding letters of credit 
in the amount of approximatety $441.4 million. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

The following summary provides furtha information about our critical accounting policies tiiat involve 
critical accounting estunates and should be read in conjunction with Note 2 to our financial statements, "Item 8. 
Financial Statements and Suppiementary Data." 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requues management to make estima^ 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilhies, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilhies and the reported revenues and expenses. Actoal results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue and Deferred Revenue 

WeselJ various refined producte and recognize revenue relatedtothesaleofproducts when there is persuasive 
evidence of an agreement, the sales prices are fixed or determinable, cotlectability is reasonabty assured and when 
products are shipped or delivered in accordance witii their respective agreements. Revenue for services is re(x}rded 
when the services have been provided. 

Prior to July 1,2013, the Company's Paulsboro and Delawa* City refineries sold light finished products, 
certain intermediates and lube base oils to MSCG under product offtake agreements with each refineiy (the "Offtake 
Agreements"). On a daity basis. MSCG purchased and paid for the refineries' production of tight finished products 
as they were produced, delivered to the refineries' storage tanks, and legal title passes to MSCG. Revenue on tiiese 
product sates was deferred until they were shipped out of the storage facility by MSCG. 

Unda foe Offtake Agreements, the Company's Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries also entered into 
purchase £uid sale transactions of certein intermediates and lube base oils whereby MSCG purchased and paid for 
die refineries' production of certain intermediates and lube products as they wae produced and le^l title passed 
10 MSCG. The intermediate products were held in the refineries' storage tanks until tiiey were needed for further 
use in the refining process. Hie intermediates may also have been sold to tiiird parties. The refineries had the right 
to repurchase lube products and do so to suppty other diird parties whh that product. When die refineries needed 
intermediates <̂  repurchase lube products, die products wae drawn out of^e storage tanks, title passed back to 
the rcfinaies and MSCG vras paid for those producte. These transactions occurred at die daity market price for 
tiie related product. These transactions were considered to be made in contemplation of each other and. accordingly, 
did not resuh m the recognition of a sale when title passed from the refineries to MSCG. Inventory remained at 
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cost and the net cash receipts result in a liability that was recorded at mjuket price for the volumes held in storage 
whh any change in the market price being recorded in costs of sales. The liability represente the amount the 
Company expected to pay to repurchase the volumes held in storage. 

While MSCG had legal thie, it had the right to encumber and/or sell these products and any such sales by 
MSCG r^ult in sales being recognized by the refineries when products were shipped out of the storage facility. As 
the exclusive vendor of intennedlate products to the refineries, MSCG had the obligation to provide the intermediate 
products to the refineries as they were needed. Accordingty, sales by MSCG to odiers were limited and only made 
with the Company or its subsidiaries' approval. 

As of July I, 2013. the Company terminated the Offtake Agreements for the Company's Paulsboro and 
Delaware City reflneries. Hie Company entered into two separate Inventoiy Intermediation Agreements with J. 
Aron on June 26,2013 which commenced upon the termination of the product offtake agreements with MSCG. 

Pursuant to the Inventory Intermediation Agreements, J. Aron purchases and holds thte to all of tiie 
inteimediate and finished products produced by the Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries and delivered into the 
Company's tanks at the refineries. All purchase and sate transactions unda the Inventoiy Intermediation Agreements 
are consummated at a benchmark maiket price adjusted for a specified product type differential. Hie sale and 
purchase transactions under the Inventory Intamediation Agreements are considaed to be made in contemplation 
of each odier and, accordingty, do not result in the recognhion of a sale when titie passes to J. Aron. Hie Inducts 
inventoiy remains on our balance sheet at cost and the net cash receipts resuh in a liability that is recorded at maiket 
price for the volume of Products inventory held in our refinaies' storage tanks widi any change m die market price 
recorded In costs of sales. 

Furthermore. J. Aron agrees to sell the Products back to the Company as the Products are dischaiged out of 
the refineries' tanks. J. Aron has the right to store the Products purchased in the Company's tanks under the Inventory 
Intermediation Agreements and wilt retahi these storage rights for the term of the agreements. Inventory held 
outside tiie refinaies may be owned by the Company or by J. Aron under the Inventory Intermediation Agreemente. 
The Company wilt maiket and sell the deducts independentty to third parties. 

Our Delaware City refinery sells and purchases feedstocks under a supply agreement primarily with Statoil. 
Statoil purchases the refinery's production of certain feedstocks or purchases feedstocks from third parties on the 
refinery's behalf Legal titie to the feedstocks Is held by Statoil and tiie feedstocks are held in the refinery's storage 
tanks until they are needed for forther use in the refining proems. At that time the feedstocks are drawn out of the 
storage tanks and purchased by us. These purdiases and sales are settled monthty at the daity maiket prices related 
to those feedstocks. These transactions are considered to be made in the contemplation of each otha and, 
accordingty, do not result in the recognhion of a sale when titie passes from the refinery to the counterparty. 
Inventory remains at cost and the net cash receipts resuh in a liability. Hie Statoil cmde supply agreement witii 
Paulsboro terminated effective March 31,2013, at which time we began to purchase from Statoil the feedstocks 
owned by them at that date. 

Inventory 

Inventories are carried at the tower of cost or market. The cost of cmde oil, feedstocks, blendstocks and 
refined products is determined under the LIFO method using the dollar value LIFO method with mcrements valued 
based on average cost during the year. The cost of supplies and otiier inventories is determined principally on the 
weighted average cost mediod. 

Our Delaware City refinery acquire a portion of its cmde oil fi-om Statoil under our cmde suppty agreement 
whaeby we take titie to tiie cmde oil as it is delivered to our processing units. We have risk of loss while the Statoil 
inventory is in our storage tanks. We are obligated to purchase all of the cmde oil held by Statoil on our behalf 
upon termination of the agreemente. As a resuh of tiie purchase obligations, we record die mventory of erode oil 
and feedstocks in die refinery's storage fecilities. The purchase obligations contain daivatives that change in value 
based on changes in commodity prices. Such changes are included in our cost of sales. Our a^eement widi Statoil 
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for Pmitsboro terminated effective March 31, 2013, at which time we began to source aude oil and feedstocks 
internally. 

For the period from March 1,2011 through May 31,2011, our Toledo refinery acquired substantially all of 
its crude oil from MSCG under a cmde oil acquishion agreement whereby we took title to the cmde oil as it was 
delivered to tiie refinery processing units. We had custody and risk of loss for MSCG's cmde oil stored on the 
refineiy premises. As a result, we recorded the cmde oil in tiie Toledo refinery's storage facilities as inventoiy witii 
a corresponding accrued liability. Effective June 1,2011 we entered into a new suppty agreement with MSCG 
under which we take legal titie to the cmde oil at certain interstate pipeline delivery locations. We record an accmed 
liability at each period-end for the amount we owe MSCG for the cmde oil tiiat we own but have not processed. 
The accmed liability is based on the period-end market value, as h represents our best estimate of what we will 
pay for the cmde oil. 

Environmental Matters 

Liabilities for futore clean-up costs are recorded when environmental assessments and/or clean-up efforts 
are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Other than for assessments, the tuning and magnitode of 
these accmats generalty are based on the completion of investig^ions or other stadies or a commitment to a formal 
plan of action. Environmental liabilities are based on best estimates of probable futore costs usuig currentiy available 
technology and applying current regulations, as welt as our own internal environmental policies. The actoal 
settlement of our liability for environmental matters could materialty differ from our estimates due to a number of 
uncertainties such as the extent of contamination, changes in envhonmentat taws and regulations, potential 
improvementa in remediation technologies and the participation of other responsible parties. 

Long-Lived Assets and Definite-Lived Intangibles 

We review our long and finite lived assets for impairment wheneva evente or changes in circumstances 
indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. Impurment is evaluated by comparing die carrying value of 
the long and finite lived assets to the estimated undiscounted fotore cash flows expected to resuh from tiie use of 
the assets and their ultimate disposition. If such anatysis indicates that the carrying value of the long and finite 
lived assets is not considered to be recoverable, the ĉ anying value is reduced to the feir value. 

Impairment assessments inherently involve judgment as to assumptions about expected futore cash flows 
and the impact of market condhions on tiiose assumptions. Atdiough management would utilize assumptions tiiat 
h believes are reason^le, foture events and changing market condhions may impact management's assumptions, 
whi(^ could produce different results. 

Indefinite-lived Assets 

We consida precious metals catalyst and tinefltl to be indefinite-lived as^ts as they are not expected to 
deteriorate in their prescribed fonctions. These assets are not d^reciated, but are assessed for impairment. 

Deferred Turnaround Costs 

Refineiy turnaround costs, which are incurred m conn^don with planned major maintenance activities ai 
our refineries, are caphalized when incurred and amortized on a straight-line basis ova the period oftime estimated 
until the next turnaround occura (generalty three to five years). 

Derivative Instruments 

We are exposed to market risk, primarity related to changes in commodhy prices for the crude oil and 
feedstocks we use in the refinmg process as well as tiie prices of die reflned products we sell. The accounting 
treatment tor commodity contracts depends on die mtended use of die particular contract and on whether or not 
the contract meete the definition of a derivative. Non-daivative ccmtracts are recorded at die time of deliveiy. 
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All derivative instruments that are not designated as normal purchases or sales are recorded in our balance 
sheet as either assets or liabilities measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value of daivative instmments 
that either are not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment or normal purchase or normal sale 
accounting are recognized in income. Contracts qualifying for the normal purchases and sales exemption are 
accounted for upon settlement. Prior to June 30,2011 we did not appty hedge accounting to any of our derivative 
instruments. Effective July 1,2011, we elected fair value hedge accounting for certain derivatives associated with 
our inventoiy repurchase obligations. 

Derivative accounting is complex and requires management Judgmait in the following respects: 
identification of daivatives and embedded derivatives; determination of the fair value of derivatives; identification 
of hedge relationships; assessment and measurement of hedge ineffectiveness; and election and designation of the 
normal purchases and sales exception. Alt of these Judgments, depending upon their timing and effect, can have a 
significant impact on earnings. 

Income Taxes and Tax Receivable Agreement 

As PBF LLC is a limited liability company freated as a "flow-through" entity for income tax purposes, there 
is no benefit or provision for federal or stete income tax in the accompanying financial statements for periods prior 
to the closuig of our initial public offering on Decemba 18,2012. Effective with the completion of our initial 
public offering, we recognize an income tax expense or benefit in our consolidated financial statemente based on 
our allocable share of PBF LLC's pre-tax income (loss). We do not recognize any income tax expense or benefit 
related to the noncontrolling interest in PBF LLC, 

Effective upon the completion of our initial public offering, we provide for defared income taxes for 
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of assete and liabilities at 
eadi balance sheet date, using enacted tax rates expected to be m effect when die related taxes are expected to be 
paid or received. A deferred tax asset may be reduced by a vahiation allowance when we, afrer assessing the 
probability of future taxable income and evaluating alternative tax ptannuig strategies, daermine that h is more 
likely than not that the fotore tax benefit may not be realized. If foture tax^le income differs from our estimates 
or if expected tax planning sfrategies are not available as anticipated, adjustments to the valuation allowance may 
be needed. Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be adjusted in the foture for the effect of changes in tax laws or 
rates on the date of enactment 

Pursuant to tiie tax receivable agreement we entered into at the time of our initial public offamg. we are 
required to pay PBF LLC Series A Unit holders, who exchange their units for PBF Eneigy stock or whose units 
we purchase, approximately 85% of the cash savmgs in income taxes that we realize as a result of the mcrease in 
the tax basis of our interest in PBF LLC. including tex benefits attributeble to payments made under the tax 
receivable agreement. We have recognized a liability for the tax receivable agreement reflecting our estimate of 
tiie undiscounted amounts that we expect to pay under the agreement. Our estimate of the tax a^-eement liability 
is based on forecasts of future taxable income over the anticipated life of our fotore business operations, assuming 
no material changes in the relevant tax law. The assumptions used in the forecasts are subject to substantial 
uncertainty about our futore business operations and the actual payments that we are required to make unda the 
tax receivable agreement could differ materially from current estimate. We must adjust the estimated tax receivable 
agreement liability each time we purchase PBF LLC Series A Units or upon an exchange Of PBF LLC Series A 
Unhs for our Class A common stock. Such adjustmenta will be based on forecasts offuture taxable income and 
our future business operations at the time of such purchases or exchanges. Periodically, we may ^just die liability 
based on an updated estimate of the amounts that we expect to pay, using assumptions consistent with those used 
in our concurrent estimate of the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. These periodic adjustments to the tax 
receivable liability, if any, are recorded in general and administrative expense and may result in adjustmenta to our 
income taxe expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities. 



Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

There are no recently issued accounting pronouncements requiring adoption subsequent to December 31, 
2013 that would have a signiflcant impact on our results of operations or financial poshion. 

Iran Sanctions Compliance Disclosure 

Under tfie Iran Threat Reduction and Syrian Human Rights Aa of 2012 ("ITRA"), which added Section 13 
(r) ofthe E x t h ^ ^ Act, we ̂  requiriid to incju^ certain disclosures in our periodic reports if we or aiy of otir 
"affllifites*' knowingly engaged in certain specih<ed activities during tiieperipd cpy0red by the r^pbrt; Because the 
SEC defines the term "affiliate" broadly, it may include any entity conjb ÎIed by us as ŵ ell as ahypCfSoii bCenlity 
that confrols us or is under common confrot with us ("control" is also consfrued broadly by the ^EC). Neither we 
nor any of our controlled affiliates or subsidiaries have knowingly engaged in any transaction or dealing reportable 
unda Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act during the reporting period. 

Funds affiiiated witfi The Btackstone Group L.P ("Blackstone") are holders of approximatety 26.8% of the 
outstanding voting interests of PBF Energy as of December 31. 2013 and have nominated three of the current 
directors on PBF Eneigy's Board of Directors. Accordingly. Blackstone may be deemed an "affiliate" of PBF 
Eneigy, as that term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2. We received notice from Blackstone that it has included 
the disclosures described below in its SEC filings pursuant to ITRA regarding one of its portfolio companies that 
may beileemed tbbelBtffiliates of Blackstone. Because of the broad defmitioh of "affiliate" in ExchiangeAcitRute 
12b-2, these portfolio icompaiiies of Btackstone, throu^ Btackstone's owiiei^ip of PBF Eneigy, itiay also be 
deemed to be affiliates of burs. We have not independentty verified the disclosures described in the following 
paragraphs. 

We have received notice from Blackstone thatTravelport Limited (Travetport"), which may be considered 
an affiliate of Btackstone, as part of their global business in the travel industry, provides certdn passenger travel 
related GDS and airline IT services to Iran Air and certain airline IT services to Iran Air Tours. All of these services 
are either exempt from applicable sanctions prohibitions pursuant to a statutoty exemption in the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act permitting transactions orduiarity incidentto travel or. to die extent not otherwise 
exempt specifically licensed by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Conhol ("OFAC). Subject to any changes in 
the exempt/licensed status of such activhies, Havelport intends to continue these business activities, whidi are 
directly related to and promote the arrangement of travel for individuals. Prior to and during the reporting period, 
Travelport also provided airline IT services to Syrian Arab Airlines. These services wae generally understood to 
be permissible under the same statutory travel exemption. Hie services were terminated following the May 2013 
action by OFAC to designate tiiis airiine as a Specialty Designated Global Terrorist pursuant to the Global Terrorism 
Sanctions Regulations. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

We are exposed to maricet risks, including changes in commodity prices and interest rates. Our primary 
commodity price risk is associated with the difference between tiie prices we sell our refined producte and the 
prices we pay for erode oil and odier feedstocks. We may use daivative instmments to manage the risks from 
changes in the prices of cmde oil and refined products, natural gas, interest rates, or to captore maiket opportunities. 

Commodity Price Risk 

Our earnings, cash flow and liquidity are stgniflcantty affected by a va r i^ of factors bQ/ond our control. 
including the suppty of, and demand for, cmde oil, otha feedstocks, refined products and natural gas. The suppty 
of and demand for these commodities depend on, among other fectors, changes ui domestic and foreign economies, 
weather conditions, domestic and foreign political affeirs, planned and unplanned downtime in refinaies, pipelines 
and production fecilhies, production levels, the availability of hnports, the marketing ofcompetitive ̂ d alternative 
foels, and the extent of government regulation. As a result, tiie prices of these commodities can be volatile. Our 
revenues fluctoate st^ificantly whh movements in industry refined product prices, our cost of sates fluctoates 
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significantly whh movements in cmde oil and feedstock prices and our operating expenses fiuctuate with 
movements in the price of natoral gas. We manage our exposure to these commodity price risks through our supply 
and offtake agreements as welt as through the use of various commodity derivative instmmenta. 

Certain of our cmde and feedstock suppty agreementa md products offtake agreements, reduce tiie time we 
are exposed to market price fluctoations. For example, our cmde and feedstock suppty agreements with Statoil 
allow us to take title to and price our crude oil at locations in close proximity to our reflnaies. as opposed to tiie 
cmde oil origination point. The crude suppty agreement with MSCG for our Toledo refinery allows us to price 
and pay for our cmde oil as h is processed at that refinery. In addition, tiieproducts offtake agreements with MSCG 
for our Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries tfiat were terminated effective July 1,2013, allowed us to sell our 
tight finished products, certain intermediate £Uid lube base oils as they were produced. Subsequent to termination 
of the MSCG products offtake agreements, we independentty sell and market our refined products to customers 
on the spot market or through term agreements. 

We may use non-trading derivative insfrumenta to manage exposure to commodity price risks associated 
with the purcliase or sale of erode oil and feedstocks, finished products and natoral gas outside of our supply and 
offtake agreemente. The daivative mstmments we use include physical commodity contracts and exchange-traded 
and over-the-counta financial instmments. We mark-to-market our commodity derivative insfruments and 
recognize the changes in their fair value in our statements of operations. 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had gross open commodity derivative contracts representing 43.2 
million barrels and 10.5 million barrets, respectively, with an unrealized net (toss) gam of $(19.4) million and $1.4 
million, respectively. The open commodity derivative contracts as of Decanber 31,2013 expire at various times 
during 2014. 

We carry inventories of crude oil, intermediates and refined products ("hydrocarbon inventories") on our 
balance sheet, the values of which are subject to fiuctoations in market prices. Our hydrocarbon inventories totaled 
approximately 13.9 million barrets and 14.4mitlion barrels at Decemba31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 
respectivety. The average cost of our hydrocarbon inventories Vfas approximately $101.65 and $101.89 per barrel 
on a LIFO basis at December 31.2013 and December 31.2012, respectivety. If maiket prices decline to a level 
below the average cost, we may be required to write down the carrymg value of our hydrocarbon inventories to 
market. 

Our predominant variable operating cost is energy, w^ich is comprised primarilyofnatoral gas and electrichy. 
We are therefore sensitive to movements in natoral gas prices. Assuming normal operating condhions, we annually 
consume a total of approximately 37 million MMBTUs of natoral gas amongst our tttree refineries. Accordingly, 
a $ 1.00 per MMBTU change in natural gas prices would increase or decrease our natoral gas costs by approximatety 
$37 million. 

Compliance Program Price Risk 

We are exposed to market risks related to the volatility m the price of Renewable Identification Numbers 
("RINs") requiral to comply with tiie Renewable F'uel Standard. Our overall RINs obligation is based on a 
percent^e of our domestic shipments of on-road foels as established by the EPA. To the degree we are unable to 
blend the requu-ed amount of biofoels to satisfy our RINs obligation, we must purchase RINs on the open market. 
To mitigate the impact of this risk on our results of operations and cash flows we may purchase RINs when the 
price of these instmmenta is deemed favorable. 

Interest Rate Risk 

During 2013, we amaided the terms of our ABL Revolving Credh Facility to increase the size of our asset-
based revolving credit facility from $1.575 to $ 1.610 billion. Borrowings unda our ABLRevolving Credh Facility 
bear interest at the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus 1.75% to 2.50%, dependhig on our debt rating. If this fecility were 
fully drawn, a one percent change in the interest rate would increase or decrease our intaest expense by $16.1 
million annualty. 
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We also have interest rate exposure in connection with our Statoil and MSCG cmde oil agreements and J. 
Aron Inventory Intermediation Agreements under which we pay a time value of money chaige based on LIBOR. 

CredURisk 

We are subject to risk of losses resulting from noi^ayment or nonperformance by our counterparties. We 
will continue to closely monitor the creditworthiness of customers to whom we grant credit and est^lish credit 
limits m accordance with our aedit policy. 

ConcerUration Risk 

MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 29% and 10%, respectivety, of our total sales for the year ended 
December31.2013 and 57% and 10%, respectivety, of our total sales for die year ended December 31, 2012. 
Sunoco accounted for 10% of total trade accounts receivable as of December3]. 2013 and Statoil and Sunoco 
accounted for 28% and 10% of accounts receivables, respectivety, as of December 31.2012. 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

The information required by this item is set forth beginning on page F-I of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
Disclosure Cottirols and Procedure 

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive and principal financial 
officers, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as deflned in Rule I3a-lS(e) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of the end of the period covered by this 
report, and has conOluded tfâ atpur disctpsiire cond'ols and procedures are effective to pr6vicih& reasonable a^ursmce 
that information required to |be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or fuiiiii^ uiidii^the Exii^ge Act is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within ithe time periods specified ui the SBCs ml^ and forms 
including, witiiout limitation, conb-ols and procedures designed to ensure tiiat information required to be disclosed 
by us in the ri^rts tiiat we flie or fomish under the Exchange Ac^ is accumulated and communicate to biir 
maita^ehtent, includmg biir principal executive and principal financial officers, as ^prc^niate to allow timely 
decisions regarding required disclosures. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control ova financial 
i^pbfttng as defiited in Rule i3a-i5(f) of the &cchange Af̂  The (^mpany^s intenial ccuitrol ̂ jts&m î  designed 
to provide reasohable s^urance roj^ing tiie retiability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial 
t̂ateinients for External pi i i^ 

of America. Due to its uiherent limitations, internal control pwr financial rep<^i[ig may hot prtivaif or d ^ ^ 
misstatements. Therefore, even those ^stems determined to be effective CMi provide only reasonable a.<!surance 
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. 

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal confrot ova financial reporting as of Decemt>er 
31,2013, using die criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TYeadway Commission 
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992 framework). Based on such usessment we conclude that as 
of December 31,2013, die Company's intemat control over financial reporting is effective. 
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Auditor Attestation Report 

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on tfie effectiveness 
of our internal control over financtd reporting, which begins on page F-3 of this report. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

There has been no change in our internal confrol over financial reporting during the quarter ended 
December 31.2013 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal conti-ol 
ova financial reporting, 

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

During tiie fourth quarter of 2013, the Board of Directors E^proved, based on the recommendation of the 
Compensation Committee, equity awards under the Company's 2012 Equity Incentive Plan of options to purchase 
250,000 shares of Class Acommon stock to Thomas D. O'Malley, our Executive Chairman, and options to purchase 
100,000 shares of Class Acommon stock toHiomas J. Nimbley, our Chief Executive Officer. Granted on October 
29,2013, the options have an exercise price of $26.08 (the closing stock price on the date of grant) and vest in 
four equal annual installments commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant, subject to acceleration 
under cert^n cfrcumstances set forth in the applicable award ^reement. 

PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE 

Hie information required undathis Item wilt be contained in our 2014 Proxy St^ement, incorporated herein 
by reference. 

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that ^plies to our prmcipal executi've officer, 
principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available 
on our webshie at www.pbfenergv.com under the heading "Investors". Any amendments to the Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics or any grant of a waiver from die provisions of tiie Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 
requuing disclosure imder sq>plicable Securities and Exchange Commission mles wilt be disclosed on the 
Company's website. 

See also Executive Officers of the Regisfrant under "Item 1. Business" of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Hie information required under this Item will be conteined in our 2014 Proxy Statement, incorporated 
herein by reference. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIALOWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 
AND RELAFED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

See "Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issua 
Purchasas of Equity Securities—Securities Authorized for I^uance Unda Equity Compensation Plans." 

Additional mformation required by this Item wilt be contained in our 2014 Proxy Statement mcorporated 
herein by referents. 
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 
INDEPENDENCE 

The information required unda tiiis Item will be contamed in our 2014 Proxy Statemait, incorporated 
haein by refaence. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

Hie information required under diis Item will be contained in our 2014 Proxy Statement, incorporated 
herein by reference. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

(a) 1. Financial Statemente. The consolidated financial statements of PBF Eneigy Inc., PBF Holding 
Company LLC and subsidiaries, required by Part II, Item 8. are included in Part IV of this report. See Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statements beguming on page F-1. 

2. Financial Statement Schedules and Other Financial Information. No financial statement schedules 
are submitted because either t h^ are inapplicable or because the required infonnation is included in the 
consolidated financial statemaits or notes thereto. 

3. Exhibits. Filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the following exhibits: 

Number Description 

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PBF Enagy Inc.,(Inc6rporated by reference to 
Ejdiibit 3.1 filed with PBF Ertei^ Inc's Amendment No. 4 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 
(Registration No. 333-177933)) 

Aniendedand.Restatcd Bylaws of PBF Ener©^ inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 
filed wttii PBF Etier;^ Inc's Amendment No. 4 to Re^slraiton Statement on Form S-1 (R^istration 
No. 333-177933)) ' 

3.2 

3.3 Certificate of Formation of PBF Holding Company LLC (Incorporated by referehcsj to Exhibit 3.1 
filed witfi PBF Holding Company LLC's Registration Statement on Form S-4{FileNo. 333-186007)) 

3.4 Limited Liability Company Agreement of PBF Holding Company LLC (Incoiporated by.refcrence to 
Exhibit 3.2 filed with PBF Holding Company LLC's Regishation Statement on Form S-4 (Pile No. 
333-186007)) 

3.5 Certificate of Incorporation of PBF Finance CorpiHation (tnobrpprated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 
filed witfi PBF Holding Company LLC's Registration Statementon Form S-4 (File No. 333-186007)) 

3.6 Bylaws of PBF Finance Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 filed with PBF Holding 
ConiiMiny LLC's Registration Stiiterajent onForm S-4 (FileNo. 333-186007)) 

4.1 Amended and Restated Regisb-ation Rights Agreement of PBF Energy Inc. dated as of December 12, 
2012 (Incorporaii^ by referaice to Exhibit 4.1 filed witfi PBF Ener^ Inc's Current Report on 
Form 8-K dated Efe îhber 18.2012 (FileNo. 001-35764)) 

4.2 tndentor^ dated as of Fdjmaty % 2012, am<»^ PBF Holding Comity LLC, PBF Finance? 
Corppratipn, die Guanmtors luirty thereto, Wilmingtoii Trust, Natioiî l Assbciattoh and Deutsche Bank 
TrusttJbmpsuiy AtniMicaStlncbipOratail^ Exhibii4.2 filed widi PBF Energy inc's 
AmendmentNo, 2 to Regislraticm SlatcmCT̂  

10.lt Offtake Agreement, dated as of Mardi 1,2011, by and between Toledo Refining Conipahy LLC and 
Sunoci). Inc.;(R&M) (Incbrporated by referaice to Exhibit 10.4 fiM with PBF Energy Inc's 
AmaidmcnlNo. 1 to Regisuation Statement on Foitii S-1 (Rii:̂ stratic*iNci.33J-177933)) 

10.1.1 A^ignmait and Assumption Ag^ement, dated as of Man^ 1,2012, by and between Toledo Refining 
Comt^hy LLC, PfeF Hbldihg Wrthijany LLCy and Sunoco. Inc. (R&M) (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.4.1 filed witii PBF Eneigy Inc's AmoidmentNo. 2 to Registration Statementon Form S-1 
(Registration No. 333-177933)) 
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Number Description 

10.2t Amended wid Restated Crude Oil Acquisition Agreement dated as pf March 1,2012, l^ and b^ween 
Morgan Stanley Capital.Grbup Inc. and PBF Hbtding Company LL^ 
Exhibit 10.23 filed witfi P£tF Energy Inc's Am^dihent No. 2 to Rc^stiationSt^temeM 
(Registration Nor333-177933)) 

10.2.1 FiratAmehdment to Amended and Rest^tedCmdeOil. A 
2Qi2, by arid b^ween PBFHolding Company LLCand Moigim Stanl^Ji^apital droiip Iiic. 
^Incoipoji^tedi^isferenicetd^khibit 10.23,1 
R^isiratipn Stalcm^t on Form S-1 J^^tslMioh^N^^ 

10.2.2 Second Ameiidpient to Amended and.Restatedthi;^ Oil Acquis! 
11 i:^0l2, by anS bitwwri PBFMolding(Jomf̂ Shy LLC ttnd.Mpri^ Staht^ Coital Group Inp. 
On<5b»rFwrated by TPfeWnceto Exhibit 10.23.2 filiwi with PB 
Registration Stalcmi^tonFbi^ S-1 (Regi^ratiianl^^ 

10.2.3* Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Criide Oil A^uisitioh Agre^ent dated as of January 
15,2014. by and belv^h PBF Holding Company LLC and Morgan S t^ t^ Capiiial Grdiip liic. 

10.3t Cmde Oil/Feedstock Siipply/Deliv^ and &iyices A^rtienienl. effective as of Apiil % 2011, by and 
l ^ l w ^ Statoil Maiketing& Tratfirig (US) Inc an̂ ^ 
^amclndedasbfJUly 29,2011 (Inicbrporatcd tiy ref^r^ce to Exhibit 10.8 filc^v^tfi PBF Energy Inc's 
Aniptidment l^p, 2 to R^isli^tion Statanent on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-177933)) 

10.3.1 A^ieanailohM6difiefttiontplheDCRCmdeSu[»^ 
by and beiweeh Statoil Maiketing & tradiii^ (US) Inc find DelaWarcaty Refining Company LLC 
(lriabipPrat<^%refei%nce to Exhibit 10.8.1 filed wiih^^^ 
Registratibn SfatPitieriibn Form S-1 (R^isti^tibn No. 333-17793^)) 

10.4 Second Amended and Restated Revolving CreditAgreeihent dated asofOctoba26.2012. among 
PBF Holding Compahy LLC, Detayy;^ City Retining!^^ 
LLC and ToTedo Refining <>}mpany LLC, me tenderaparly t^ 
thaeuhd^, UBS AG, SttUfiford Braiiĉ ^ as A<^ini^mttve Age?i( and Cp-Oallataal Agaitand Bank 
of America. N A. and Wells Fai^o Bank, N.A., f̂  Co-iDolM^ AgPn^ (IncbrpPrated by referaice to 
Exhibit 10.11 filed with PBF Energy Inc's Amendment No. 4 to R^stralion Statement biii Form S-1 
(Registration No. 333-177933)) 

10.4.1 AmendmentNo. 1 and Increase Joinder Agreement to Second Amended and Restated Revolving 
Credit Agreiemeiit. dated as of Decenjbief 28,2012. entered into l^ 
LLC^ D^a\̂ ^u¥ Chy Refiriing (lilomiftiiiy LLCi Paiilsboro Refining Coih[KUiy LLC and Toledo 
Refining Gpmi»tiy LLC, each otfi!^ 
Stamford Brani^ as Adihinistrtdive Ag^t(IbbPrpo^tcd by reTaeruioto Exhibit I0.t0.LfiIed with 
PBF Holding Cbnipany LLC's Registration Statanerit on Form S-4 (R^slr*toii No. 333-186007)) 

10.5t Inventotylii.tainc^iatipnAgreemaitdatedasofJu'iie2^ 
Coiht^ny aiid PBF Holding CompanyLLC and Paulsboro Refining Cornpany LLC. (IiiH:bipbrated by 
rcfaaice to Exhibit iO.I filed wiUi PB;F Eiii^r^ Inc's June 30.2013 Form 10-Q (File 
No. OOi-35764)) 

10.6t Inventory foternti^iatipn Agreement dated aspf June 26,2013 (as amended) between J. Aron &. 
Compaiiy and PBF Holding (^mpwy LLC â ^̂  
ilhc^rpprated by reference to lijdiibh fO.I fited wiUi PBF E n a ^ inc^s Junie 30,2013 Form 10-Q 
iniIeNo.(Jdl-35764)) 

10.7 Arnended and Restated Limited Liability- GbrnpanyAgrecthait of PBF Biei^ Compari>- LLC 
(Iriĉ ir̂ WiBted Iw refer^^ 
;^tedDecontwr i8f|0l2(FilcNo. 001-3576^^^ 

10.8 Exchange Agr^ment, dated as of Decanba 12.2012 (Inc(»^raled 1^ reference to Exhibit 10.3 fil^ 
withPBFEiierg^ tnp:*s Curtent Report on Forni 8-K dated Decscmber 18,2012 (File No. 001-35764)) 
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NvHiber Description 

10.9 

10.10 

Tax Rcpeiv^lc Agreeriietit, dated as of Deceimber 12,2012 (IncorporatOd by reference to Exhibit 10.2 
filed^Vith PBF Energy Uic's Current Riibort on Fbmi 8-K datedtjeccmtfer 18i 2612 (File No. 
001-35764)) 

Stockholders' Agitement of PBF Energy Inc. (Incor^iTit&l by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed witfi 
PBF Eriergii* Inc^s Cufrent Report on Form 8-K dated Decemba 18̂ , 2012 (Fitelio. 001-35764)) 

10.11 ** Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of December 17.2012, between 
PBF Investments LLC and Hiomas D. O'Malley (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 filed witfi 
PBF!Ene[:^1nc's Current Report on Form i8-K dated Decpifiber 18.2012 (File ISIo. 001-35764)^ 

10.12** Amended tmd Restated Employment Agreement dated as of Dcc^ba^ 
PBF Inve^enls LLC and HiOnis^ J.^Nutibtey (Incbrpbi^ by icfereriCe to Exhibit 10.8 filed widi 
PBF Energy Inc's Current Report on Form 8-K dB(tecl I^XJcmber 18.2012 (File No. ̂ 01^35764)) 

10.13** S ^ n d Aittfendedand RestatedEmploytnen.t AgrecmentMedasofCiecCmber 17,2012,between 
PBF Investmaits LLC and ̂ ^atthev^ C. Ltic^ (Ino^rpD 
PBF Eniei0 Iiic^sCurrent Report on Form 8-k (kited Decanba 18.2012 (PiteT^o. 001:^35764)) 

10,14** Sboond Ailiaided and Restated EmpioymEattAgret^ent, dated as of December 17,2012, betweai 
PBF Investntehts; LLGiind donaW F. LuC^ (Ineorporatecl Ity re f^ 
PBF Enerigy Inc's quirent Report on Form 8-K dated Decemba 18̂  2012 (File No. 001-35764)) 

10.15** Aniended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of Dcceniilia 17,2012, beiweeh 
PBF Invesunents LLC and Mtehael D. O^da (Iricbtpoiated by reference to Exhibit lO.l 1 filed witfi 
PBF Energy Inc's Cun^nt Report on Form 8-K dated Decemb^ 18,2t>12 (FitetiJb^OO 1-35764)) 

10.16** Restated Warrant and Purchase Agreement between F*BF Energy GPmpahy LLCaiid thedffioens party 
thereto, as amaided (Incorp(»ated by reference to Exhibh 10.17 filed with P S F Energy Inc's 
AnidndnieniNo. 4 to Registration Statement on Form S-i (Registration No. 333-177933)) 

10.17 Form of'indetnnificationAgreetnent, dated Decernbei-12.2012, between PBF E n ^ y Inc^and each of 
tfieexecutivcofficers and directors of P S F E n c ^ iricClncorporaicdby rcfat^ce to Erfiibit 10.5 
filed witti PBF E n e ^ Inc's GuiTCTt Report PnR>rrn 8-
001-35764)) 

10.18** PBF Enagy Inc. 2012 Equity IncentivcPlanflncoipOratedljyreraenCe to Exhibh 10.6 filed with 
PBF Enei:gy Inc's Current Report on Forni 8-K dated Decaiiber 18,2012 (FileNc 001-35764)) 

10.19** Fbrihbf>tori-QuaiificdStockOptioiiAgi*emenlunderthePBF Eneigy Inc 2012 Eqiiity In 
Plan (IncQrpotatedl^ reference to Exhibit 10J28 filed \Vith PBF Energy Inc's AmendmentNo.6 to 
Regtstraiipn Statement oh Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-177933)) 

10.20** Form ofReslricted Stock Award Agreement fPr Directors under the PBF Energy Inc, 20!2 Equity 
liiPentivePleni (IiiccHJ^^ tty refereiice to Exhibit 10.20 filed widi PBF &iec:^ Inc's December 31, 
2<)12Form lp-K(FileNb:001-35764)) 

12.1* Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charge of PBF Holding Company LLC. 

2I.I* Subsidiaries of PBF Enagy Inc. and PBF Holding Company LLC. 

23.1* Consent of Deloitte &Touche LLP 

24.1* Powaof Attom^ of PBF Energy IIK. (included on signature page) 

24.2* Powa of Attorney of PBF Holding Company LLC (included on signature page) 

31.1* Certificalkm by Chief Executive Officer of PBF Energy Inc pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/l 5d-14(a), as 
*^pte4 pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb^es-Oxley Act of 2002 

88 

file:///Vith


Number Description 

31.2* CeitificatiPn by Chief Financial Officer of PBF Energy Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/l5d-l4(a),as 
ladoptedpuiTsuantto Section 302 of the Saib^es-Oxley Actof2002 

31.3* Certification by Chief Executive Officer of PBF Holding epmpaiiy LLC purauant to Rule 13a-14 
(a)/15d-l4(a), a^ adopted [Pursuant to Sectipn 302 of the Sart»nes^C>xl^ Act of 2002 

31.4* Certification by CHiefFinancial Officer ofPBF Holding Company LLC pursuant to Rule 13a-14 
iayi5d-i4(a), as adppied pursuant ip Section 302 of the Sarfewes-rOxtcy Act of 2002 

32.1*<'> Certification by Chief ExMiitiveOfer of PBF Energy Inc pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 
adppti^ purauant to Section 906 of the Sari>anesr-OxIey Act of 2002 

32.2**'* Ccrtincalibn by Chief Financial Officer pfPBF Energy Inc, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 
aippfed pursuant to Section 9M of tfie Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32.3*"> Certifiralipn by ghief Executive Officer of PBF Holding epriifany LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as adopted ptlrsUant t6 Section 906 of tfie Sarb^h^^xley Act of 2002 

324*('J Certification by ChiefFinancial OfficerofPBF HoldirtgGompany LLC pursuant tol8U.S.C. 

Section 1350. as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tiiie Sarbs^ies-Qxley Act of 2602 

lOLINS XBRL Instance Document. 

10I.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schona Document 

lOl.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extaision Calculation Linkbase Document. 

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 

lOl.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document 

* Filed herewith. 

** Indicates management compensatory plan or arrangemait. 

t Confidential treatmait has been ^ ^ t e d by the SEC as to certain portions, which portions have 
been omitted and filed separately with the SEC. 

(1) This exhibit should not be deemed to be 'Tiled" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of 
PBF Energy Inc. and suteidiaries 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of Decemba 31.2013 and 2012 of PBF Energy 
Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") and the related combined and consolidated statements of operations, 
compr^ensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decemba 
31.2013 (combined and consolidated for 2012 and 2011 with PBF Enagy Company LLC and subsidiaries). Hiese 
combined and consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's managemait. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on die financial stetements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovasight Board 
(United Stetes). Hiose standards i^uire that we plan and perform the audU to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whetfier the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemaits. An audh also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presaitetion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such combined and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material re^)ects, the 
financial position of PBF Enagy Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31.2013 and 2012. and the results of thar 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2013 (combined and 
consolidated for 2012 and 2011 whh PBF Enagy Company LLC and subsidiaries), in conformity with accounting 
principles genaalty accepted in the United States of America. 

We have also audited, in accordance witfi the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the Company's intemat control over financial rqx)rting as of December 31,2013. based on the criteria 
established in Internal Control - /nteff-ated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Headway Commission and our report dated Febmaiy 21,2014 e>q)ressed an unqualified opinion on the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. 

Isl Deloitte & Ibuche LLP 

Parsippany, New Jasey 
Febmaiy 21.2014 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To Stockholders and the Board of Directors of 
PBF Eneigy Inc. and subsidiaries 

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of PBF Energy Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as 
of December 31,2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control - integrated Framework (1992) issued 1^ the 
Committee of Sponsoring Oiganizations of the Headway Commission. The Company's management is re^Tonsiljle 
for miuntaining effective intemal control ova financial reporting and for its assessment of die effectiveness of 
intemat control ova financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control 
ova Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal control ova financial 
rqxirting based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Ihose standa-ds require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whedier 
effective internal control over financial reporting was m^ntwned in alt material respects. Our audit included obtdning 
an understanding of internal control over financial r^x)rting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing 
such other procedures as we considaed necessary in tfie circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's intemal control ova financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the 
company's principal executive and j^ncipal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected 
by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance r^suxHng the 
reliability of flnancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generalty accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal control over finEuicial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transat^ions and dispositions of the assete of the company; (2) provide reasoni^le assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance vnth generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance wltfi authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposhion of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, mataial misstatements due to enror or fraud may not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the intemal control over 
financial reporting to fotore periods are subject to the risk tfiat die controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or diat the degree of compIiMice with the policies or procedures m ^ deteriorate 

In our opinion, die Company maintained, in all mataial r^pects, effective internal control ova finandal reporting as 
of Decanba 31,2013, based on tfie critaia established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Headway Commission. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), ihe consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended Decanber 31,2013 of the Company and 
our r i ^ r t dated February 21,2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statanents. 

/s.' Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Parsippany, New Jersey 
Febmaiy 21,2014 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To tiie Sole Memba and Board of Directors of 
PBF Holding Company LLC and subsidiaries 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PBF Holding Company LLC and subsidiaries (the 
"Comfrany") as of Decemba 31,2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of oper^ions, 
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in die period ended Decemba 
31,2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on tfie financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audite in accord^ice with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Hiose standards requhe that we plan and perform the audit to obtdn reasonable assurance about 
whetfier the financial statemaits are free of mataial misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we 
engaged to perform, an audit of its intemal control ova financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of 
intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audt procedtves that are f^propriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control 
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no sudi opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidaice supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, sudi consolidated finandal statemaits present feiriy, in all mataial respects, the financial petition of 
PBF Holding Company LLC and subsidiaries as of Decemba 31,2013 and 2012, and the results of dieir operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decemba 31,2013. m conformity with 
accounting principles genaaUy accqjtcd in the United States of Amaica. 

Is] Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Parsippany, New Jersey 
Fd)roary21,2014 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 

ASSETS 

Currenl assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Deferred tax asset 

Prepaid expense Eind other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Defeired tax assets 

Defened charges and other assets, net 

Total assets 

December 31, 
30)3 

$ 76,970 

596,647 

1.445,517 

25,529 

55.843, 

2.200,506 

1.781,589 

169,234 

262,479 

t 4.413.808 

December 31, 
2012 

S 28S.SS4 

503.796 

1,497,119 

7.717 

13.388 

2,307,904 

1,635,587 

112.862 

197,349 

i 4,253,702 

LUBIUTIES AND EQUFTY 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts pliable 

Accrued expenses 

Riyable to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement 

CurrentportionofkKig-teTmdebt 

Deferred revenue 

Total curreni liabilities 

Delaware Economic Development Authon^ loan 

Long-term debt 

Payable to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement 

Other long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

$ 402,293 S 

1,209,881 

12,541 

12.(Q9 

7,766 

1,644,510 

J2.000 

723.547 

274,775 

43.720 

360,057 

1,031.467 

1.007 

_ 
210,543 

1,603,074 

20.000 

709,980 

159.004 

38.099 

2,698.552 2,530,157 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14) 

Equity; 

Class A conitnoti mck, S0.001 par value, 1,000.000.000 sMics authwized, 39.665,473 shaics 
outsIfflidingMDecembcr 31,2013,23,57i;^l sharesoi«standingat De<amte 

ClassB common stock, $0,001 {ffir value, UOOOJXKlShiuesauthftftxnl. 40 shares outstanding at 
Deccinbcr^ 1,2013,41 steites outstanding atpico^tntto: 31,3012 

Preferred stock, $0,001 parvalut 100,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding at 
December 31,2013 and 2012 

Additional paid in capital 

Retained eantings 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total PBF Enensy Inc. equily 

Noncontrolling interesl 

Total equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

40 

657,499 

3.579 

(6,988) 

24 

417.835 

1,956 

(61) 

s 

654,130 

1.061,126 

1,715.256 

4,413,808 S 

419,754 

1.303,791 

1,723,545 

4,253,702 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED WITH PBF ENERGY COMPANY LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES) 
(in thousands, except share and per share data) 

Year Ended December 31, 

Revenues 

Cost and expenses: 
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation 
General and administrative expenses 
Gain on sale of assets 
Acquisition related expenses 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

2013 

$ 19,151,455 $ 

17.803,314 

812.652 

104,334 

(183) 

— 
111.479 

18.831,596 

2012 

20.138.687 $ 

18,269.078 

738,824 

120,443 

(2,329) 
— 

92.238 
19,218,254 

2pn 
14.960,338 

13,855.163 
658,831 

86.183 
« 

728 
53.743 

14,654,648 

Income from operations 319,859 920.433 305.690 

Other income (expense) 

Change in fair value of contingent 
consideration 
Change in ikir value of catatyst lease 
Interest expense, net 

Income before income taxes 
Income tax expense 
Net income 

Less: net mcome attributable to 
noncontrolling interest 

Net income attributable to PBF Energy Inc. S 

4,691 
(93,784) 

230.766 

16,681 
214,085 

174,545 

39.540 $ 

(2,768) 
(3.724) 

(108.629) 

805.312 

1,275 

804,037 $ 

802,081 

1.956 

(5,215) 
7.316 

(65,120) 

242.671 

242,671 

Weii^ited-sivei^ge shares of Class A 
cominpii stpck outstanding 

Basic 
Diluted 

Net income available to Class A common 
stock per share: 

Basic 
Diluted 

DivideDds per common share 

$ 

s 

$ 

32,488,369 

33,061,081 

1.22 $ 

1,20 $ 

UO $ 

23,570.240 

97,230.904 

0.08 

0.08 

— 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED WITH PBF ENERGY COMPANY LLC AND SUBSIDLUUES) 
(in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 2011 
Net income 

Oth» comprehensive (loss) income: 

Unrealized (loss) gain on available for sale 
securities 
Net loss on pension and oth^ postretirement 

benefits 

Total other comprehensive loss 

Comprehensive income 
Less: Comnrehrasive income attributable to 
noncontrolling interest 

Comprehensive uicome attributable to PBF Eneigy 
Inc. 

214.085 $ 

(308) 

(5,289) 

(5,597) 
208.488 

171.218 

804,037 $ 

2 

(6,567) 

242.671 

5 

(1,332) 

(6,565) (1.327). 

797,472 _$_ 

795.577 

241344 

37.270 $ 1.895 

See notes to consolidated financial statementa. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

(COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED WITH PBF ENERGY COMPANY LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES) 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA) 

FBF Enaey Inc, Slocfcholdm' Equity 

BahucD./inuiiy 1,30(1 

Compr^Kiuive loconM 

Member csjiwi cootribiAionE 

Slock based ccmpCQsilion 

Bdincc, D « a n b c i 3 l , 2011 

CMnprefKiuivc inconw 

E x c r c n e o r P B P E n c ^ 
Company LLC vnmnls gra) 

DiHritwIioni to Tonno' 
eonlroUiilfi iaUreM hoUcra 

Suck bated mmpcnsalioa 

ItiuaiKC oPClait B oonunon 
il«ck 

Sate of Clan A eomnxHi 
llodiiMniiliilaiMc 
o f r a y c Bcl oTSQ,! W in 
i snuaco tosu iW -
undciurilcn' diicouDl 

PurtiuiMPBF&icig)' 
COo^iaiiy LtjC units Bon 
RvmcT MODoUing inKrOH 
holdcn 

Rccocd dcfttrcd ( u n t e u 
andli^i l i l iaMidUx 
t a e i i M e agtKman 
obUgition 

Reconf iiu^'il BliocUion of 
nm fnnlrrllin)) iiHcicil upon 
c^a^ciion oTmiiial publK 

C M V M T LLC ScMM A 
Uoitt a ^ C l i B AedNMK 

NonconlnilliRg t n l o a l 

fiilancc, Dcwmbcr 31.2012 

CsmiMvIiciisivt iocume 

Exercise o tPSF Energy 
CompuQ' Lt.C wirrads wd 
OftknB 

DblnbuliaQs lo PBF Eatfcy 

Siocfc boMd eompcnntiiii 

OividciHJi 

OfftrinB on dcTcrred Ux 
M c t o i M liibilkici tod ux 
tcccivibfc •gncnKnl 
obliglliai 

ETTecliorSttwtdwv 
aOcna t 

G ^ ^ l - c « r ftlf Eneny 
Cii»|Nny 1 J j p Serin A 
UHTU l i r r t a ^ A cominoa 
iUKk 

NnKonu oHing InJcresl 

BclsiKc.lkGemba'jl ,2lll3 

O i s i A 
Caminoa Slock . , . 

Shuct Amount 

• _ s -

_ _ 
_ _ 

• — — 

_ 
— — 

,:. — 
^ _ 
^ _ 

U,Je7.6t>i 24 

3.53S -

_ _ 
23 .57 i ;a i 24 

_ _ 

_ — 
601392 — 

_ -

I5,910jiai 16 

(3.860 — 

_ • _ 

3».«6S.<n s « 

CiMsB 
COmincnSwck 

' Sharct Aimunl 

;^ -J — 
_ ^ 
— — 

-
- ~ 
_ — 

— — 
— -~ 
39 — 

2 -

- — 
4i — 

_ — 

_ -_ 
;_ -
_ -. 

„ 

(i) - -

— — 
40 S -

Addillonil 
P«id-in 
C^fiui 

$ -
_ 
-
-
-
-

— 
n 

570,627 

(570.6J0) 

(39.431) 

4S7.202 

— 
4I7,83S 

— 

i i 

2.444 

-

(26,625) 

2 6 3 ^ 5 

-
S 657,499 

RcUbod 
Earnings 

S —' 

-
— 
— 
_ 

1,956 

_ 
-
_ 

T -

1.9S6 

39,540 

_̂  
-

(37,917) 

_ 

-
S 3,579 

Accumulalcd 
Oiher 

Comprohiiiiiivi 
L O B 

S (1.049) 

<i.327) 

— 
_ 

(2.376) 

tSfi^i 

„ 

— 
-̂  
-, 

B,689 

191 

(61> 

P^W) 

~. 
— 
-

(3,600) 

2,270 

S (6,9Sg) 

Fotmer 
ConUotling 

lnicrc«t 
EouUv 

S 459,710 

242,671 

40S.397 

2.516 

• 1,113.194 

792,076 

13,107 

(160,965) 

1.S66 

_ 

(SIO) 

(l,7S9,86l{) 

-
-
-

_ 
_ 
_ 

,̂ 

T - . 

s — 

NqncoslFolling 
Inlwca 

s • • • — 

_ 
— 
— 

"" ^ 
I0,0OS 

_ 
— 

j.293,977 

(191) 

1303.79! 

174,545 

1.7S7 

(157,745) 

1,309 

— 

(260.261) 

a i 7 0 ) 

S 1,061.126 

E^iily. . , 

S «S,661 

241,344 

408,397 

2.516 

l,riO,91B 

W7,472 

13.107 

(160,965) 

2,954 

570,651 

(571,I6<» 

(39.432) 

.— 
1.723.545 

20g.4BS 

1,757 

(IJ7.74J) 

3.733 

(37.917) 

(26.625) 

-
$1,7I5JS6 

See notes to consolidated fmancial st^ements. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED WITH PBF ENERGY COMPANY LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES) 
(in thousands) 

V o r K m M December 31, 

C u b Dawi I r an operMina Kthlliei: 

NetlKome 

AigujuncniilarKancilencllncoinelQiiclcuhpitH'idedli} opcrollons: 

DcpreciilhM lod nvxl iul io i 

Stock-bued compcanliiHi 

Ctwige in Iblr value sTeiW^iI loiaoUiBiiion 

Ouffe in Air I'ulue oTcoaiingimi ebni hkraiiofl 

DelciiedincanBuiiei 

CbnieE ta tax leceiviblo ainnnEiil liabnil}' 

Non-ctah chugo in invenloi}< ropurcTiue nWigdiom 

WriK-olTd'iinimonind dofintd n imdne t e a 

PctuiDnMidaUtupiiili«uan>«iUbencfU> cocU 

Clin OB dlipoailioa oTpiopenj'. phnl md equipmcnl 

Change* in emtn l useu m i current liobil Ulei: 

Accossli receivable 

Invcalories 

(Met ouicnl m e n 

Aecounu payable 

Acdvedexpetm 

Dcflmd Rv«nDe 

CNher ancU n d liabililies 

>lei caih ixovidcd by opcniimi 

O U i n m (tvB) imtHiBK Ktlilllei: 

Aei|aiitl)en orTo>ali> icnncty. net oreodi received rnm sale oTuicU 

Expendiluiei Tor pni)Kr)y. ptnrt and cqoipineil 

CipRidlBia Ibr dcftncd lEmamndi K M 

ExfBaHtaKi Tot O O B I I K I I 

Pioeeedi (torn n ie of ossEti 

Oiber 

NttcaA UKd [n kneHingBctiiilict 

C u h Ikrm rrom rnMcte i uclitltic*: 

Proecedi Ihxn oio ibn^ cvllal eomilliutiOBS (o PBF Energy Caai|u>y LLC (Ibimcr controlling wtcrciO 

ExenaEiorEe(>aAc|iiJanianitiiinanlior?BFEnersyOin)paivLLC.ncE 

IMUilbvdcn [0 PBF Eneigt' Coiipai^ LLC member) 

Piocecdi rron u l e oTCIiii A enmnxin atoeh. n a oTundawrilcn' diacounl or533.7Dl 

PufdiauorPSFEncigyCtinpany LLCSoilci AunitirranicxlUiagiiiiiEbaldcn 

Pjyneol DfcoautBociialed widi tniliat pidille ofTeiing 

Oividead ptyiocnli 

Pioeecdi ftom SciinrSeeaial Noie* 

Pnxecdt FRun kxig«9iB de(> 

Piocttdi Ihun CMilyit leoe 

PiDacd^ rram lerolier bDcnningt 

)U.iR> r i m t 01'Knoll erbunxulngi 

Itcjuj inonti^tejkr nabs iH>Q<too 

l^pai ineitti oT toL^^'t^ni delH 

I^'«<fM orcwiingL'n «nuKbrai>u<i reliwii lo uqaitlriofl of Toledo ict\nvj 

Udcind ftniECJne coou Miri Mhet 

I.n CBth (iHcd in) piunded b) lnuicingaelivitiet 

Kct ((kxRiKi iiKitaMi in cnh and codi cqdvalcntf 

CJUhaailciiaivdcaiKibetinniiv of period 

CWb and aqui •^nCi , n d oC pcflod 

118.001 

3.7S3 

(4.691) 

— 
146SI 

s>ia 

(20.492) 

^ 
16.728 

(I8J) 

(92»1) 

45.991 

(42H55) 

4L236 

209/79 

001.777) 

(20.716) 

97.650 

2554 

3.714 

2.768 

— 
-

i S K 

4J91 

1 2 ^ 

(132iq 

(1B7J44) 

(8a097) 

49.971 

7 3 « 0 

35.892 

2i;309 

(31J43) 

JW19 

I S 16 

a j l 6 ) 

S.1I5 

- i -

-
1X329 

~ 
9,769 

— 

(179J1S) 

(SlZ0i4) 

(56.953) 

249.763 

395,093 

121.893 

(5052) 

— 
(3IS.3M) 

(64.616) 

02^92) 

102.42S 

-

— 
(175.900) 

PB,633) 

(K.IS5) 

3JSI 

-

(168.156) 

(•188.721) 

(63aJ3) 

(23J39) 

4,700 

(854) 

(313074) (219307) (739.193) 

t 

I.7S7 

(157.745) 

-
_ 
_ 

07J17J 

-
14337 

1.450,000 

(I.43S.0OD) 

— 
— 

(21357) 

,(IJW4) . „ . 

( l l l&9»} ' 

008.914) 

I85jgt4 

76570 S 

13.107 

(160.SliS) 

S79.(H8 

(571.160) 

(8.««) 

66SA» 

430,000 

9.451 

— 
-
-

(IJS4J97) 

(103.641) 

(26j059> _ 

(^57.408) 

235,7)8 

l a 166 

285,884 S 

— 
-
— 
- r 

_ 
— 

48&g94 

I&614 

— 
^ 

099JS45) 

(220,401) 

— 
(11049) 

3S4;620 

(I0S09I) 

135/57 

30.166 

See notes to consolidated financial statanents. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. 
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continned) 

(COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED WITH PBF ENERGY COMPANY LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES) 
(m thousands) 

S«pf lemcnlri c n b Iknr db^a tur t t 

NcB-aiMKSvWtt: 

Pfcmlwaiy nN inued rorTokda nEiTiauj acquiiitioa 

Seller I K ^ lawcd Tat acqoUiioi OTIivciUarr 

FairvnhH oTToledo nflnety f^ 'Tura l contldemioa 

CoRvvniea oT O c l m i e EooaoRilG DenlopaeM Audnnty loan 10 g m t 

Aeeraed conuiwdaa h) piotRti 

Cod) paid duiing year Tor 

b>lcrM((balaili^ca^ldiicdbletettcfSS.672.SS.G9T«Bl£l3J)27'n 2013.20l2aKt 1011} 

Income lo-xn 

t 

ua 

8,000 

33,747 

92.848 

1.065 

YMTEMkd D t M o t a - U , 

i 

M l 

— S 

16,481 

89031 

M 

200.000 

199.MS 

117.017 

SS09 

67,(00 

See nc^s to consolidated financial statements. 
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PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands) 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

C^h and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Due trom related party 

Inventories 

Prepaid expense and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Deferred charges and odier assets, net 

Total assets 

LLWILITIES AND EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Defi^red revenue 

Total curruit liabilities 

Delaware Economic Development Authority loan 
Long-term debt 
Intercompany notes payable 
Other long-term liabilities 

Total liabilhies 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 76.970 
596.647 

—. 

1.445,517 
55.843 

2.174,977 

1,781,589 
262,479 

$ 4.219.045 

December 31, 
2012 

$ 

$ 

254,291 

503.796 

14.721 

1,497,119 
13,388 

2.283^15 

1,635,587 
197349 

4,116,251 

402,293 
1.210,945 

12.029 
7,766 

360,057 
1,025,918 

210,543 

1,633,033 

12,000 

723,547 
31.835 
46.477 

1,596.518 

20,000 
709,980 

— 

38,099 

2,446,892 2,364,597 

Commhments and contingencies (Note 14) 

Equity: 

Member's equity 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total equity 

Total liabilhies and equi^ 

See notes to co nsolidated financis 
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933.164 
853,527 
(14,538) 

1,772,153 

$ 4,219,045;$ 

tl statements. 

930,098 
830,497 

(8.941) 
1,751,654 

4,116,251 



PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in thousands) 

Year ended December 31, 
2013 2012 2011 

Revenues 

Costs and expenses: 

Cost of sales, excluding depreciation 
Operating expenses, excludmg depreciation 
General and administrative expenses 
Gain on sale of assets 
Acquisition related expenses 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Income from operations 

Other income (expense) 

Change in f£ur value of contingent consideration 
Change in fmr value of catalyst lease 
Interest expense, net 

Net income 

$ 19.151.455 $ 20.138.687 $ 14,960.338 

17,803,314 

812,652 

95.794 

(183) 

111.479 

18,823,056 

18,269.078 

738.824 

120,443 

(2,329) 

92.238 

19,218,254 

13.855,163 

658,831 

86,183 

728 
53,743 

14,654,648 

328,399 

4.691 
(94.214) 

920.433 

(2.768) 
(3,724) 

(108,629) 

305.690 

(5.215) 
7316 

(65.120) 

238.876 $ 805.312 $ 242.671 

See notes to consolidated fnumcial statements. 
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PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(in thousands) 

Year ended December 31, 

Net hicome 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unreali^d (loiss) gain on available for sale 
securhies 

Net loss on pension and other postretirement 
benefits 

Total other comprehensive loss 
Comprehensive income 

$ 

S 

2013 

238,876 $ 

(308) 

(5.289) 

(5,597) 
233.279 $ 

2012 

805.312 S 

2 

(6.567) 
(6,565) 

.798.747 $ 

2011 
242,671 

5 

(1,332) 

(1.327) 

241,344 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

(IN THOUSANDS) 

Accumulated 
Other 

Member's Comprehensive Retained 
Equify Loss ^rnings Total 

Balance at January 1,2011 

Member contributions 
Stock based comp^sation 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 

Balance at December 31,2011 

Member distributions 
Stock based compensation 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 

Balance at December 31,2012 
Member distributions 
Member contribution 
Stock based compensation 
Net income 
Odier compreh^sive income 

Balance at December 31,2013 

$ 516,231 $ 
408,397 

2,516 
— 

— 
927.144 

• — 

2,954 
— 

.—. 
930,098 

—. 
1,757 
1,309 

— 
.— 

$ 933,164 $ 

(1,049) $ 
. - 7 -

(1>327) 
(2,376) 

— 

—. 
^ 

(6,565) 
(8.941) 

— 
—. 
- ™ 

— 
(5.597) 

(14,538) $ 

(56,521) $ 
^ -
; 

242,671 

186;150 
(160,965) 

— 

805.312 
— 

830,497 
(215,846) 

—̂  
— 

238.876 
— 

853.527 $ 

458,661 
408,397 

2.516 
242,671 

(U27) 
1,110,918 

(160.965) 
2,954 

805.312 

(6.565) 
1,751,654 
(215.846) 

1,757 
1,309 

238,876 
(5.597) 

1.772,153 

See notes to consolid^ed financial statanents. 
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PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(in thoitsands) 

YMTS Ended Dennbcf 31 , 

Caab (low* from openiilag icUvUic*: 

Net incomo 

Adjustments to reconcile net hicome lo net cash provided by operations: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Siock-bssed compensation 

Change in fair value of catalyst lease obligation 

Qiange in ftir value of continjteDt cmsidei^on 

Non-cash change in invenlory r^nirchaw obligations 

Write-off of unamoitized defetred financmg ftes 

Pension and othsr post retirement benefit costs 

(jain en disposition of property, plant end equipment 

Changes in current assets and current liabilities: 

Accoonts receivable 

Due to/from related party 

Inventories 

Other cuirenl assets 

Accounts pE^abte 

Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Odter B s s ^ and liabittties 

Net cash provided by operations 

Cash flows from Invesdne activities: 

Acquisition of Toledo refinery, net of caih received for sale oT assets 

Expenditures for prcperty, plant and equipment 

Expenditures for deferred turnarounds costs 

Expenditures for other assets 

Proceeds fVom sale of assets 

Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash HOWI fram flnanclag acthitiei: 

Proceeds ftom revolver bono wings 

Proceeds from intercompany notes payable 

Proceeds from monber^ capital contribulions 

Proceeds fron Senior Sccurod Notes 

Proceeds &om long-term debt 

Proceeds from catalyst lease 

Distiibutions to members 

Repayment of seller note for inventoiy 

Itepayments of revolver borrowings 

Repuyinenls of long-term ddx 

Pjy.-ncflt of contingent G(»isideratitin related to acquisition of Toledo refinery 

D*';rcircdfinBiiting costs and other 

Net (cash tsed in) provided by financing sctiviiies 

Nci (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cn*h and eqDFvalcnta, beginnlag of period 

Cash and cqatvatenu. end of period 

2013 

S 238,876 S 

118.001 

3,753 

{4.69!) 

~ 
(20,492) 

— 
16.728 

(183) 

(«,85!) 

14,721 

45.991 

(42.455) 

42.236 

314,817 

(202,777) 

(20.403) 

311.271 

(318,394) 

(64.616) 

(32,692) 

102,428 

_ 
013.274) 

1.430,000 

31,835 

1,757 

— 
14.337 

(215,846) 

— 
(1.435,000) 

— 
(21,357) 

(1,044) 

(173.318) 

(177,321) 

254,291 

S 76,970 S 

2012 

805,312 S 

97.650 

2,954 

3.724 

2,768 

4.576 

4.391 

)2,eS4 

(2,329) 

(187,544) 

{t'».721) 

(80.097) 

49,971 

73,990 

30.343 

21,309 

(31,544) 

793.437 

(175.900) 

(38.633) 

(8,155) 

3,381 

— 
(219,307) 

— 
— 

665,806 

430,000 

9,452 

(160.965) 

— 
-̂  

(1.184.597) 

(103,642) 

(26^059) 

(370,005) 

204.125 

S(^I66 

254,291 $ 

' zon 

242.671 

56,919 

2.516 

(7,316) 

5,213 

25,329 

_ 
9,768 

— 

(279,315) 

— 
(512,054) 

(56,933) 

249.765 

395.093 

122.895 

(5.251) 

349,232 

(166,156) 

(488,721) 

(62,823) 

(23,339) 

4,700 

(854) 

(739,193) 

, 
_ 

408,397 

488,894 

18.624 

— 
(299.645) 

— • 

(220.401) 

— 
(11,249) 

384.620 

(105,291) 

155,457 

S0,16« 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (ContiDiied) 

(in thousands) 

Yean Eadt4 D t m b t r S l , 

1013 2011 .3011 

SnppleaieaUl caih flow dliclosDrea 

Nut-cadt activities: 

Promissoiy not issued for Toledo refineiy acquisition S _ $ _ j 200,000 

SellernoteissiiedforacquisiCionofinventoty -^ — 299.645 

FairvalucOfTdcdoieflneiycortingentcoiisidBration -^ — 117,017 

ConvenionofDolawareEcooomicDevelopmentAuthoti^loantogrBnt 8,000 — — 

Accrued constructicn in pr^ress 33,747 16,481 5,909 

Cash paid during year fbr 

lnteTe5l(indudingcapitalizedintemtofSS,672,$6.697and$13.027in2013.2012and20n) 92.848 89.233 67,020 

See notes to consolidated financial statranents. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE, XJNiT. PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

I. DESCRIPTION OFTHE BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Description of the Business 

PBF Energy Inc. ("PBF Energy") was formed as a Delaware corporation on November 7,2011 for the purpose of 
facilitating an initial public offering ("IPO") of hs common equi^ and to become the sole managing member of 
PBF Energy Company LLC ("PBF LLC"), a Delaware limited liability company. Prior to completion of its IPO, 
PBF Energy had not engaged in any business or other activities except in connection with its formation and die 
IPO. On December 12,2012, PBF Energy completed an IPO of 23,567,686 shares of hs Class Acommon stock 
at a public offering price of $26.00 per share. The IPO subsequently closed on December 18,2012. PBF Enei^ 
used the net proceeds of the offering to acquire approximately 24.4% of the membership mterests in PBF LLC 
and to cover offering expenses. As a result of the IPO and related reor:ganization transactions, PBF Energy became 
die sole managing member of PBF LLC with a controlling mterest in PBF LLC and its subsidiaries. PBF Eneigy 
consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries and records a noncontrolling interest in its 
consolidated financial stetements representing die economic interests of PBF LLCs members other than PBF 
Energy. The financial stetements and results of operations for periods prior to the completion of PBF Energy's 
IPO and the related reorganization transactions are those of PBF LLC. Effective with the completion of the PBF 
Energy IPO and related reorganization transactions, PBF LLC became a minorify-owned, controlled and 
consolidated subsidiao' of PBF Energy. 

On June 12,2013, funds affiliated whh Ihe Blackstone Group L.P, or Blackstone, and First Reserve Management, 
L.P., or First Reserve completed a public offering of 15,950,000 shares of Class A common stock at a price of 
$27.00 per share. less underwriting discounts and commissions, in a secondary public offering (the "Secondary 
Offering"). In connection with the Secondary Offering, Blackstone and First ResCTve exchaiged 15,950.000 Series 
A Units of PBF LLC for an equivalent number of shares of Class Acommon stock of PBF Energy, which reduced 
Blackstone and First Reserve's holdings in PBF LLC from 70.1% to 53.6% at die time of the offering. The hoWers 
of PBF LLC Series B Units, which include certain executive officers of PBF Energy, had the right to receive a 
portion of the proceeds of die sale of die PBF Energy Class A common stock by Blackstone and First Reserve. 
PBF Energy did not receive any proceeds from the Secondary Offering. PBF Energy incurred approxunately SI ,388 
of ̂ penses, included in general and administrative expenses, in connection with the Secondary Offering during 
the year ended December 31.2013 for which it was reimbursed by PBF LLC in accordance whh die PBF LLC 
amended and resteted limited liability company agreement. 

PBF LLC, together widi its consolidated sul»idiaries. owns and operates oil refineries and related fecilities in 
Nordi America. PBF Holding Company LLC ('TBF Holding") is a wholly-owned subsidiaiy of PBF LLC. PBF 
Fhiance Corporation ("PBF Finance") is a wholly-owned subsidiaiy of PBF Holdmg. PBF Holding and PBF 
Finance issued 8.25% Senior SecuredNotes due 2020 ("Senior Secured Notes") in 2012, which were subsequendy 
registered under the Securities Act of 1933. as amended. Delaware City Refinmg CompanyLLC, Delaware Pipeline 
Company LLC, PBF Power Marketing LLC. Paulsboro Refining Company LLC. Paulsboro Natural Gas Pipeline 
Company LLC and Toledo Refining Company LLC are PBF LLC's principal operating subsidiaries and are all 
wholly-owned subsidiaries of PBF Holding. Collectively, PBF Energy and subsidiaries, includmg PBF Holding, 
are referred bj hereinafter as die "Company". 

Substantially all of the Company's operations are in the United States. The Company's three oil refino'ies are all 
engaged in the refinit^ of crude oil and other feedstocks into petroleum products, and bave been aggregated to 
fonn one reportable segment. To generate earnings and cash flows fixtm operations, the Company is primarily 
dependent upon processing crude oil and selling refined petroleum products at margins sufficient to cover fixed 
and variable costs and odier expenses. Crude oil and refined petroleum products are commoditi^ and fectors 
laigely out of die Company's control can cause prices to vaiy over time. The potential margm volatility can have 
a material eSlbct on the Company's financial position, earnings and cash flow. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT, PER SHARE. PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

IPO-Related Reorganization TVansactlons 

Concurrent with completion of the IPO. PBF LLC's limited liabilhy company agreement was amended and restated, 
among other things, to designate PBF Energy as die sole managing member of PBF LLC and to establish the PBF 
LLC Series C Units which are held solely by PBF Energy. The PBF LLC Series A Units continue to be held by 
paitl^other thanPBF Ertefrgy ("̂ he ^ 
rarikion]^ity with die PBF LLC SeriesAy^ 
winding up or dissolution. Following the IPO. profits and losses of PBF LLC are allocked, aiid alt disb îbiitibhs 
generally will be made, pro rate to the holders of PBF LLC Series AUnits and PBF LLC Series C Units. In addition, 
the anended and rotated limited liability company agreement of PBF LLC provides that any PBF LLC Series A 
Units acquired by PBF Energy will automatically be reclassified as PBF LLC Series C Units in connection with 
such acquisition. 

As part of the IPO and reorganization transactions, each holder of PBF LLC Series A Units received one share of 
PBF Energy Class B common stock. The holder of a share of Class B common stock receives no economic rights 
but entitles the holder, without regard to the number of shares of Class B common stock held by such holder, to 
one vote on matters presented to stockhotdera of PBF Ener©' for each PBF LLC Series AUnit held by such holder. 
Holders of PBF Energy Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single chiss on all 
matters presented to stockholders for their vote or approval, except as otherwise required by applicable law. In 
connection with the IPO and related reorganization transactions, PBF Energy, PBF LLC and PBF LLC Series A 
Unitholdei^ also entered into an exchange agreement pursuant to which each of the existing members of PBF LLC 
other than PBF Energy and odier holders who acquire PBF LLC Series A Units upon die exercise of certain warrants 
and options, will have the right to cause PBF LLC to exchange their PBF LLC Series A Units for shares of PBF 
Eneigy Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to equhable adjustment for stock splits, stock 
dividends and reclassifications. As of December 31,2013, there were 57,201.674 PBF LLC Series A Units held 
by parties other than PBF Energy which upon exercise of the right to exchange would ncchange for 57,201,674 
shares of PBF Energy Class A common stock. In addition, as of that date, diere were options and warrants to acquire 
909,499 PBF LLC Series A Units outstanding, that upon exercise, could be exchanged for 909,499 shares of PBF 
E n » ^ Class A common stock. 

Initial Public Offering and Secondary Offering 

On December 12,2012, a registration stetement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission relating 
to shares of Class A common stock of PBF Energy to be offered and sold in an inhial public offering was declared 
effective. On December 12.2012, PBF Energy completed an IPO of 23,567.686 shares of Class A common stock 
Ê  a public offering price of $26.00 per share. The IPO closed on December 18.2012. 

PBF Energy used proceeds from the offering in die amount of $571,200 to purchase 21,967,686 PBF LLC Series 
A Units from funds affiliated with The Blackstone Group L.P. and First Reserve Management L.P., PBF LLC's 
financial sponsors, which were then reclassified as PBF LLC Series C Units. The remaining proceeds from die 
inhial public offering in the amount of $41,600 were used to acquire 1,600,000 newly-issued PBF LLC Series C 
Units from PBF LLC. PBF LLC used the proceeds from the sale of the PBF LLC Series C Units to p ^ the exposes 
of the IPO. There was no change in carrying value of PBF LLC's assets and liabilities as a resuh of die IPO or the 
IPO-related recHganization transactions. 

Additionally, on June 12,2013, Blackstone and First Reserve completed a public offering of 15.950,000 shares of 
PBF Energy Class A common stock at a price of $27.00 per share, less underwriting discounts and commissions, 
in a secondary public offiering. Alt of the shares were sold by funds affiliated with Bladcstone and First Reserve. 
In connection whh diis offering. Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged 15.950.000 Series A Units of PBF LLC 
for an equivalent number of shares of PBF Eneigy Class A common stock. 

Noncontrolling Interest 
As a result of die PBF Energy IPO and the related reorganization transactions on December 18,2012. PBF Ener^ 
became die sole managing member of. and had a controlling interest in. PBF LLC which represented 24.4% of die 
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PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE. UNIT, PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

outstanding units. As the sole managing member of PBF LLC, PBF Energy operates and controls all of the business 
and affeirs of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries. In connection with the Secondary Offering. Blackstone and First 
Reserve exchanged 15,950,000 Series A Units of PBF LLC for an equivalent number of shares of Class A common 
stock of PBF Energy, which increased PBF Energy's interest in PBF LLC to approxunately 40.9% as of December 
31,2013. 

PBF Eneigy consolidates die financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidiaries, and records anonconbxilling interest 
for the economic interest in PBF Energy held l^ the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy. Noncontrolling 
interest on the consolidated statements of operations represents the portion of net income or loss atb-ibutable to 
the economic interest in PBF Energy held by the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy. Noncontrolling 
mterest on the consolidated balance sheets represents the portion of net assets of PBF Energy attributeble to the 
members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy. The nonconfrolling mterest ownership percenteges of PBF Energy 
are calculated as follows: 

Holders of 
PBF LLC Series 

A Units 

72,974,072 
75.6% 

72,972,131 
75.6% 

57.027.225 
59.0% 

57,201,674 
59.1% 

Outstanding 
Shares 

of PBF Energy 
Class A 

Common 
Stock 

23,567.686 

24.4% 
23,571,221 

24.4% 

39.563,835 
41.0% 

39,665.473 
40.9% 

Total* 

96,541,758 

100% 
96,543,352 

100% 
96.591,060 

100% 

96,867,147 
100% 

December 18,2012 

December 31,2012 

June 12,2013 

December 31,2013 

"' Assumes all of the holders of PBF LLC Series A Units exchange their PBF LLC Series A Units for shares 
of die PBF Energy's Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. 

Comprehensive income includes net mcome and other comprehensive income (loss) arising from activity related 
to the Company's defined benefit employee benefit plan and unrealized gam on available for s^e securities. The 
following table summarizes the allocation of totel compreh^isive income between die controlling and 
noncontrolling interests of PBF Energy forthe year ended December 31,2013: 

Net income 
Other comprehensive mcome (loss): 

Unrealized loss on available for sale securhies 
Amortization of defined benefit plans unrecognized 
net loss 

Total o&xer comprehensive loss 
Total comprehensive income 

Hie following table summarizes the allocation of total comprehensive income of PBF Energy between die 
controlling and noncontrolluig mterests for the year ended December 31,2012: 
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Attributable to Noncontrolling 
PBF Energy Inc. Interest 

$ 39,540 $ 

(126) 

(2.144) 
(2.270) 

$ 37.270. $ 

174.545 $ 

(182) 

(3,145) 
(3.327) 

171.218 $ 

Total 

214.085 

(308) 

(5,289) 
(5,597) 

208.488 



PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS. EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT, PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

Attributable to Noncontrolling 
PBFEnergy Inc. Interest Total 

Netincome $ 1,956 $ 802,081 $ 804,037 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gain on available for sale securities — 2 2 
Amortization of defined benefit plans unrecognized 
net loss (61) (6.506) (6.567) 

Total other comprehensive loss (61) (6.504) (6.565) 
Total comprehensive income $ 1,895 $ 795,5'77" $ 797 ,4^ 

Tax Receivable Agreement 

PBF LLC intends to make an election under Section 754 of the Intemal Revenue Code (the "Code") effective for 
each taxable year in which an exchange of PBF LLC Series A Units for PBF Eneigy Class A common stock as 
described ^ove occurs, which may result in an adjustment to the tax basis of the assets of PBF LLC at the time 
of an exchange of PBF LLC Series A Unhs. As a result of botfi the initial purchase of PBF LLC Series A Units 
from the PBF LLC Series A Unit holders in connection with die IPO and subsequent exchanges, PBF Energy will 
become entitled to a proportionate share of the existing tax basis of the assets of PBF LLC. In addition, the purchase 
of PBF LLC Series A Units and subsequent exchanges are expected to result in mcreases in the tax basis of the 
assets of PBF LLC diat otherwise would not have been available. Bodi this proportionate share and tiiese increases 
in tax basis may reduce the amount of tax tiiat PBF Energy would otherwise be required to pay in the future. These 
increases in tax basis may also decrease gains (or increase losses) on future dispositions of certain capitel assets 
to the extent tax basis is allocated to those capital assets. 

PBF Energy entered into a tax receivable agreement with the PBF LLC Series A Unh holders (the "Tax Receivable 
Agreement") diat provides for the payment by PBF Energy to die PBF LLC Series A Unh holders of an amount 
equal to 85% ofthe amount of the benefits, if any, that PBF Energy b deemed to realize as a resuh of (1) these 
increases in tax basis and (ii) certain other tax benefits related to entering into the Tax Receivable Agreement, 
including tax benefits attributable to paymente under the Tax Receivable Agreement Fw purposes of the Tax 
Receivable Agreem<mt, the benefit deemed realized by PBF Energy will be computed by comparing die actual 
income tax liability of PBF Eneigy (calculated with certain assumptions) to die amount of such taxes diat PBF 
Eneigy would bave been requhed to p ^ had there been no increase to the tax basis ofthe assets of PBF LLC as 
a result of the purchase or exchanges of PBF LLC Series A Units and had PBF Energy not entered into the Tax 
Receivable Agreement. Hie term ofthe Tax Receivable Agreement will continue until all such tax benefits have 
been utilized or expired, unless PBF Energy exercises its right to terminate die Tax Receivable Agreement, PBF 
Energy breaches any of its material obligations under the Htx Receivable Agreement or certain changes of control 
occur, in which case all obligations will generally be accelerated and due as calculated under certain assumptions. 

The payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement are obligations of PBF Energy and not of PBF LLC 
or PBF Holding. In general. PBF Energy expects to obtain funding for these payments by causing PBF Holding 
to distribute cash to PBF LLC. which will then distribute this cash, generally as tax distributions, on a pro-rata 
basis lo its owners. Such owners include PBF Energy, which holds a 40.9% interest as of December 31.2013. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation and Presentation 

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PBF Energy and subsidiaries in which PBF Energy 
has a controlling interest. All mtercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
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PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS. EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT, PER SHARE. PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

Reclassification 

Certain amounts previously reported in die Company's consolidated financial stetements for the year ended 
December 31,2012 have been reclassified to conform to the 2013 presentation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation ofthe financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses and the related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. The carrying amount ofthe cash equivalents approximates feir value due to the short-term maturity 
of those instruments. 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

For the year ended December 31,2013, Morgan Stanley Capitel Group Inc. ("MSCG") and Sunoco, Inc. (R&M) 
("Sunoco") accounted for 29% and 10% ofthe Company's revenues, respectively. As of Decamber31, 2013, 
Sunoco accounted for 10% of accounts receivable. 

For theyear «ided December 31,2012.MSCG and Sunoco accounted for57% and 10% ofthe Company's revenues, 
respectively. As of December 31,2012. Statoil Marketing and Trading (US) Inc. ("Statoil") and Sunoco accounted 
for 28% and 10% of accounts receivables, respectively. 

For die year ended December 31,2011, MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 52% and 12% of die Company *s revenues, 
respectively. 

Revenue, Deferred Revenue and Accounts Receivable 

The Company sells various refined products primarily through its refinery subsidiaries and recognizes revenue 
related to the sale of products when there is persuasive evidence of an agreement, the sales prices are fbced or 
determuiable, collectability is reasonably assured and when products are shipped or delivered in accordance widi 
dieir repectiveagreements. Revenue for services is recorded when the servtceshave been provided. TheCompany's 
Toledo refinery has a products offtake agreement with Sunoco under which Sunoco purchases approximate^' one-
tiiird ofthe refinery's daily gasoline production. The Toledo refmery also sells its products through short-term 
contracts or on die spot market 

Prior to June 30,2013, die Company's Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries sold light finished products, certain 
intermediates and hibe b£^e oils to MSCG under products oftteke agreements widi each refrnery (the "Offtake 
Agreements"). On a daity basis. MSCG purchased and paid for the refineries' production of tight finished producte 
as they were produced, delivered to the refineries' storage tanks, and legal title passed to MSCG. Revenue on 
these product sales was defened until they shipped out ofthe storage facility by MSCG. 

Under die Offtake Agreements, the Company's Paulsbora and Delaware City refineries also entered into purchase 
and sale transactions of certain intermediates and lube base oils whereby MSCG purchased and paid for the 
refineries' production of certain intermediates and lube products as diey were produced and legal titie passed to 
MSCG. The intermediate products were held in die refineries' storage tanks until t h^ were needed for fiirther use 
in the refining process. The intermediates may also have been sold to thhd parties. The refineries had die right to 
repuix^asft futtf products «id did so to supply other third parties with diat product. When die refineries needed 
intermediates or lube products, the products were drawn out ofthe storage tanks, title passed back to the refineries 
and MSCG was paid for diose products. Ihese transactions occurred at the daily market price for the related 
products. These transactions were considered to be made in contemplation of each other and. accordingly, did not 
result m die recognition of a sale when title passed fixim die refineries to MSCG. Inventory remained at cost and 
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the net cash receipts resulted in a liability diat was recorded at market price for die volumes held in stor^e with 
any change in the market price being recorded in costs of sales. The liability represented the amount the Company 
expected to pay to repurchase the volumes held in stor^e. 

While MSCG had legal title, U had the right to encumber and/or sell these products and any such sales tty MSCXJ 
resulted in sales being recognized by the refineries when products were shipped out of die storage facility. As the 
exclusive vendor of intermediate prx>ducts to die refineries, MSCG had the obligation to provide die intermediate 
products to die refineries as they were needed. Accordingly, sales by MSCG to others were limited and only made 
with the Company or its subsidiaries' approval. 

As of July 1,2013, the Company terminated the Offtake Agreements for the Company's Paulsboro and Delaware 
City refineries. The pwnpany entered into two separ^ inventory intermediation agreements ("Inventory 
Intamediation Agreements") with J. Aron & Company ("J. Aron") on June 26,2013 which commenced upon the 
termination ofthe product offtake agreements whh MSCG. 

Pursuant to die Inventoiy Intermediation Agreements, J. Aron purchases and holds title to all ofthe intermediate 
and finished products (tiie "Products") produced by the Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries and delivered into 
the Company's tanks at the refineries. All purchase and sale transactions und^ the Inventory Intermediation 
Agreements are consummated at a benchmark market price adjusted for a specified product type differential. The 
sale and purchase transactions under the Inventory [nterm&Jiation Agreemente are considered to be made in 
contemplation of each other and. accorduigly, do not result in the recognition of a sale when titie passes to J. Aron. 
The Products inventory remdns on the Company's balance sheet at cost and the net cash receipts result in a liability 
that is recorded at market price for the volume of Products inventory held m the Company's refineries* storage 
tanks with any change in the market price recorded in coste of sales. 

Furthermore, J. Aron sells the Products back to the Company as die Products are discharged out ofthe refineries' 
tanks. J. Aron has the right to store die Products purchased in the Company's tanks under the Inventory 
Intermediation Agreements and will retain these storage rights for the term ofthe agreements. Inventory held 
outside the refineries may be owned by the Company or by J. Aron under the Inventory Intermediation Agreements. 
The Company markets and sells the Products independently to third parties. 

The Company's Paulsboro and Delaware City refineries sell and purchase feedstocks under a supply agreement 
with Statoil (the "Crude Si^iply Agreemente"). Statoil purchases the refineries* production of certain feedstocks 
or purchases feedstocks from tiiird parties on the refineries* behalf Legal titie to the feedstocks is held by Statoil 
and the feedstocks are held in the refineries' storage tanks until they are needed for further use in the refinmg 
process. At that time, the producte are drawn out ofthe storage tanks and purchased by the refuieiy. These purchases 
and sales are settled monthly at the daily market prices related to those products. These transactions are considered 
to be made in contemplation of each other and. accordingly, do not result in the recognition of a sale when title 
passes from die refineries to StatotJ. Inventory remains at cost and the net cash receipte result in a liability which 
is discussed further in the Inventory note below. The Company terminated its supply ^reement with Statoil for 
ite Paulsboro refinery in March 2013. 

Accounts receivable are carried at invoiced amounts. An allowance fordoubtful accounts is established, if required, 
to report such amounts at their estimated net realizable value. In estimating probable losses, management reviews 
accounts that are past due and determines if diere are any known disputes. There was no allowance for doubtful 
accounts at December 31,2013 and 2012. 

Excise taxes on sales of refined products diat are collected from customers and remitted to various governmental 
agencies are reported on a net basis. 

Inventory 

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market The cost of crude oil, feedstocks, blendstocks and refined 
producte are determined under the tast-in first-out ("LIFO") mediod using the dollar value LIFO mediod widi any 
mcrements valued based on average pi^ehase prices during die year. The cost of supplies and other inventories is 
detemiined principally on die weighted average cost method. 
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The Company's Delaware City refinery acquires a portion of hs crude oil from Statoil under the Crude Supply 
Agreemente as did the Paulsboro refinery prior to die termination of Its crude supply agreement with Statoil in 
March 2013. The Company takes title to the crude oil as h is delivered to the processing unite, hi accordance widi 
the Crude Supply Agreements; however, die Company is obligated to purchase all the crude oil held by Statoil on 
the Company's behalf upon termination ofthe ^eement at the then maricet price. The Paulsboro crude supply 
agreement also included an obligation to purchase a fixed volume offeedstocks from Statoil on the later of maturity 
or when the arrangement is terminated based on a forward market price of West Texas Intermediate crude oil. As 
a result ofthe purchase obligations, the Company records the inventory of crude oil and feedstocks in the refineries' 
storage facilhies. The Company determined die purchase obligations to be contracts that contain derivatives diat 
change in value based on changes in commodity prices. Such changes in the fair value of diese daivatives are 
included in cost of safes. On October 31, 2012, the Delaware City cmde supply agreemait was amended and 
modified to among other things, allow the Company to directly purchase U.S. and Canadian onshore origin crude 
oil and feedstock diat is delivered to the Delaware City refinery via rail independent of Statoil. 

The Company's Toledo refinery acquires substantially all of ite crude oil from MSCG under a crude oil acquisition 
agreement (the 'Toledo Crude Oil Acquishion Agreement"). Under the Toledo Crude Oil Acquishion Agreement, 
tiie Company takes title to crude oil at various pipeline locations for delivery to the refinery or sale to third parties. 
The Company records the cmde oil inv^itory when it receives titie. Payment for the crude oil is due to MSCG 
unda-tiie Toledo Crude Oil Acquisition Agreement three days after the crude oil is delivered to the Toledo refmery 
processing unite or upon sale to a third party. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Propfsty, plant and equipment additions are recorded at cost The Company capitalizes costs associated with the 
preliminary, pre-acquisition and development/construction stages of a major construction project. The Company 
capitalizes die interest cost associated with major construction projecte based on die effective mterest rate of totel 
borrowings. The Company also capital izes coste incurred in the acquisition and development of software for intemal 
use, including the coste of sofhvare, materials, consuttante and payroll-related coste for employees incurred in the 
application development stage. 

Depreciation is computed usuig the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Process unite and equipment 5-25 years 
Pipeline and equipment 5-25 years 
Buildings 25-40 years 
Computers, fiimiture and fixtures 3-15 years 
Leasehold improvementa 20 years 
Railcars 50 years 

Maintenance and rqiairs are charged to operating expenses as diey are incurred. Improvementa and bettermente, 
which extend die lives ofthe assete, are capitalized. 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets, Net 

Deferred charges and otiier assete include refinery turnaround costs, catalyst precious metals catalyst linefill, 
defared fmancing coste and intangible ass^ . Refineiy turnaround coste, which are incurred in connection witii 
pl£umed major mabtenance activities, are capitelized when incurred and amortized on a straig^-line basis over 
die period oftime estimated to lapse until die next turnaround occurs (generally 3 to 5 years). 

F-23 



PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT, PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

Precious metals catalyst and linefilt are considered indefinite-lived assete as they are not expected to deteriorate 
in their prescribed functions. Such assets are assessed for impmrment in connection with die Company's review 
of ite long-lived assete as indicators of hnpairment develop. 

Deferred financing coste are capitalized when incurred and amortized over the life ofthe loan (1 to 8 years). 

Intangible assete with finite lives primarily consist of catalyst, emission crcdite and permite and are amortized over 
their estimated useful lives of 1 to 10 years. 

Long-Lived Assets and Definite-Lived Intan^bles 

The Company reviews ite long-lived assete for impairment whenever evente or changes in circumstances indicate 
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment is evaluated by comparing the carrying value ofthe long-
lived assete to the estimated undiscounted future cash fiows expected to result from use ofthe assete and dieir 
ultimate disposition. If such analysis indicates tiiat the carrying value ofthe long-lived assete is not considered to 
be recoverable, the carrying value is reduced to the fair value. 

Impairment assessmente inherently involve judgment as to assumptions about expected future cash fiows and the 
impact of m^ket conditions on those assumptions. Aldiough managemait would utilize assumptions that it believes 
are reasonable, future evente and changing market conditions may impact management's assumptions, which could 
produce different resulte. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

The Company records an asset retirement obligation at feir value for die estimated cost to retire a tangible long-
Hved asset at die time the Company incurs diat liability, which is generally when theass^ is purchased, constructed, 
or leased. The Company records the liability when it has a l^al or contractual obligation to incur coste to retire 
die asset and when a reasonable estimate ofthe feir value ofthe liability can be made. If a reasonable estimate 
cannot be made at the time the liability is incurred, the C ômpany will record the liability when sufUciait information 
is available to estimate the liability's fair value. Certfun ofthe Company's asset retirement obligations are based 
on its legal obligation to perform remedial activity at ite refinery sites when h permanently ceases operations of 
the long-lived assete. The Company therefore considers the settlement date of theseobligations to be indeterminable. 
Accordingly, the Company cannot calculate an associated asset retirement liability for these obligations at this 
time. The Company will measure and recognize die frur value of diese asset retirement obligations when the 
settlement date is determinable. 

Environmentel Matters 

Liabilities fpr future remediation coste are recorded when environmental assessmente and/or ranedial efforts are 
probable and the coste can be reasonably estimated. Otiier than for assessmente, the timing and magnitude of tiiese 
accruals generally are based on die completion of investigations or other studies or a commitment to a formal plan 
of action. Environmental liabilities are based on best estunates of probable future coste using currentiy available 
technology and applying current regulations, as well as the Company's own infernal environmental policies. The 
measurement of environmental remediation liabilities may be discounted to refiect the time value of money if the 
a^regate amount and tuning of cash paymente of die liabilhies are fixed or reliabfy determinable. The actual 
settiement ofthe Compimy ŝ liability forenvironm&atal matters could materially differ from its ̂ mates due to 
a number of uncertainties such as ^ e extent of contamuiation, changes in environmental laws and regulations. 
potential improvementa in remediation technologies and the participation of odier responsible parties. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Stock-based compensation Includes die accounting effect of options to purchase PBF Energy Class A common 
stock granted by die Company to certain employee^ Series A warrante issued or granted by PBF LLC to employees 
in connection widi dieir acquisition of PBF LLC Series A unite, options to acquire Series A unite of PBF LLC 
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granted by PBF LLC to certain employees. Series B unite of PBF LLC that were granted to certeun manbers of 
manf^ement and restricted PBF LLC Series A Unite and restricted PBF Energy Class A common stock gjranted to 
certain directors. The estimated fair value ofthe options to purchase PBF Energy Class A common stock and the 
PBF LLC Series A warrante and options, is based on the Black-Schotes option pricing model and the ̂ r value of 
the PBF LLC Series B units is estimated based on a Monte Carlo simulation model. The estimated fair value is 
amortized as stock-based compensation expense on a straight-line method over the vesting period and included in 
general and administration expense. 

Income Taxes 

As a result ofthe PBF Ener^'s acquisition of PBF LLC Series A Unhs or exchanges of PBF LLC Series A Unite 
for PBF Energy Class A common stock, PBF Energy expecte to benefit from amortization and otiier tax deductions 
refiecting Ihe step up in tax basis in the acquired assete. Those deductions will be allocated to PBF Energy â d̂ 
will be taken into account in reporting PBF Energy's taxable income. As a resuh of a federal income tax election 
made by PBF LLC, applicable to a portion of PBF Energy's acquisition of PBF LLC Series A Unite, the income 
tax basis ofthe assete of PBF LLC, underlying a portion of die unite PBF Energy acquired, has been adjusted based 
upon the amount diat PBF Energy paid for that portion of ite PBF LLC Series A Units. PBF Energy has entered 
into an agreement with the . members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy that will provide for an additional 
payment by PBF Energy to the exchanging holders of PBF LLC Unite equal to 85% ofthe amount of cash savings, 
if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that PBF Energy realizes as a resuh of (i) th^e increases in tax 
basis and (il) c&rtain other tax benefits related to entering into the tax receivable agreement, including tax benefite 
atteibutable to {mymente under the tax receivable agreement. As a resuh of these fransactions. PBF Energy's tax 
basis m ite share of PBF LLC's assete will be higher than the book basis of these same assete. This resuhed in a 
deferred tax asset of $310,132 as of December 31,2013, of which the majority is expected to be realized over 10 
years as die tax basis of these assete is amortized. 

Deferred taxes are provided using a liability method, whereby deferred tax assete are recognized f<xr deductible 
temporaiy differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporaiy differences. Temporary 
differences represent die differences between die reported amounte of assete and liabilities and their tax bases. 
Deferred tax assete are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of man^ement it is more likely 
than not that some portion or all ofthe deferred tax assete will not be realized. Deferred tax assete and liabilities 
are adjusted for tiie effect or change in tax laws and rates on die date of enactment. PBF Energy recognizes tax 
benefite for uncertain tax poshions only if it is more likely than not that the position Is sustainable based on ite 
technical merite. Interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions are included as a component ofthe provision for 
income taxes on the consolidated stetements of operations. 

As PBF Holding is a lunited liability company treated as a "fiow-through" entity for income tax purposes, there 
is no benefit or provision for federal or st^e income tax in tiie accompanymg financial stetemente. 

The Federal and state tax returns for all years since inception (March 1,2008) are subject to examuiation by die 
reactive tax authorities. 

Net Income Per Share 

For the period subsequent to the IPO basic net income per share is calculated by dividing the net uicome available 
to PBF Energy Class A common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of PBF Ener^ Class A 
common stock outetanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is calculated by dividing the net income 
availabletoPBF Energy ClassAcommon stockholders, adjusted forthe net income attributabletotiie nonconfrolling 
interest and the assumed income tax expense thereon, by die weighted average number of PBF Energy Class A 
common shares outstanding during die period adjusted to hiclude the assumed exchange of all PBF LLC Series A 
unite outstanding for PBF Energy Class A common stock, if ^pHcable under die if converted mediod, and the 
potentially dilutive effect of outstanding options to purchase shares of PBF Energy Class A common stock, and 
optkins and warrante to purchase PBF LLC Series AUnite, subject to forfeiture utilizing the treasury stock method. 
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits 

The Company recognize an asset for the overfunded stetus or a Utility for the underfunded status of ite pension 
and post-retirement benefit plans. The fiinded status is recorded widiin other long-term liabilities. Changes m the 
plans' funded status are recognized ui other comprehensive income in the period the diange occurs. 

Fair Value Measurement 

A f£ur value hierardiy (Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3) is used to categorize ̂ r value amounte based on the quality 
of inpute used to measure feir value. Accordingly, feir values derived from Level 1 inpute utilize quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assete or liabilities. Fair values derived from Level 2 inputs are based on quoted prices 
for similar assete and liabilities in active markete, and inpute odier than quoted prices that are either directty or 
indirectly observable for the asset or liability. Level 3 inpute are unobservable inpute for the asset or liability, and 
include situations where tiiere is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. 

The Company uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available Inpute to measure the fair values of ite 
applicable assete and liabilities. When available, the Company measures feir value using Level 1 inpute because 
they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. In some valuations, the inpute may fall into different 
levels in the hierarchy. In these cases, die asset or liability level within the feir value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measuremente, 

Financial Instrumente 

The estimated feir value of financial uistrumente has been determined based on the Company's assessment of 
available market information and ^propriate valuation methodologies. The Company's non-derivative fmancial 
instrumente that are included in current assete and current liabilities are recorded at cost in the UHisolidated balance 
sheets. The estimated feu* value of these financial uistrumente approximates their carrying value due to their short-
term nature. Derivative instrumente are recorded at feir value in the consolidated balance sheete. 

The Company's commodity contracte are measured and recorded at feir value using Level 1 inpute based on quoted 
prices in an active market or Level 2 inpute based on quoted maiket prices for similar instrumente. The Company's 
catalyst lease obligation and derivatives related to the Company's crude oil and feedstocks and refined product 
purchase obligations are measured and recorded at fair value using Level 2 inpute on a recurring basis. I^sed on 
observable market prices. 

Derivative Instruments 

The Company is exposed to market risk, primarily related to changes in commodity prices for the crude oil and 
feedstocks used in the refinmg process as well as the prices ofthe refined producte sold. The accountmg treatment 
for corrmiodity contracte depends on the intended use ofthe particular contract and on whether or not the contract 
meets the definition of a derivative. 

All derivative instrumente. not designated as normal purchases or sales, are recorded in tiie balance sheet as either 
assets or Utilities measured at tiieir feir values. Changes in die feir value of derivative insfrumenta that either are 
not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment or normal purchase or normal sale accounting are 
recognized currently in earning. Contracte qualifying for the normal purchase and sales exemption are accounted 
for upon settlement Cash fiows related to derivative instrumente that are not designated or do not quality for hedge 
accounting frealment are included ui operating activities. 

The Company designates certain derivative uistrumente as fair value hedges of a particular risk associated with a 
recognized asset or liability. Al the inception of die hedge designation, the Company documente die relationship 
between die hedging mstrument and die hedged item, as well as ite risk managanent objective and strategy for 
undertaking various hedge transactions. Derivative gains and losses related to these fair value hedges, including 
hedge ineffectiveness, are recorded in cost of sales along with the change in feir value ofthe hedged asset or liability 
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attributable to the hedged risk. Cash fiows related to derivative instiumente diat are designated as fair value hedges 
are included in operating activhies. 

Economic hedges are hedges not designated as fair value or cash fiow hedges for accounting puiposes diat are 
used to (i) manage price volatility in certahi refinery feedstock and refined product inventori^, and (ii) manage 
price volatility in certain forecasted refineiy feedstock, refined product and refined product sales. These instrumente 
are recorded at fair value and changes in the feir value ofthe derivative instrumente are recognized currently in 
cost of sales. 

Derivative accounting is complex and requires management judgment in the following respecte: identificf̂ ion of 
derivatives and embedded daivatives, determination of the fair value of derivatives, documentation of hedge 
relationships, assessment and measurement of hedge ineffectiveness and election and designation ofthe normal 
purchases and sales exception. All ofthesejudgments, depending upon their timing and effect, can have a significant 
impact on the Company's earnings. 

Recently Issued Accounting Fronouncemente 

On January 1,2013, the Company adopted changes issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") 
to the disclosure of offsetting assets and liabilities. These changes require an entity to disclose gross and na 
information about instruments and transactions eligible for o f ^ in the statement of financial position and 
instruments and fransactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting arrangement. Tlie enhanced 
disclosures will enable users of an enthys financial statemente to understand and evaluate the effect or potential 
effect of masta netting arrangemente on an entity's financial position, includbig the effect or potential effect of 
righte of setoff associated with certain financial instrumente and daivative instrumaite. As of December 31,2013 
and 2012. the impact of offsetting assete and liabilities was not material to die Company and additional disclosure 
is not included in the Company's consolidated financial statemente. 

On January 1.2013. the Company adopted changes issued by the FASB to the reporting of amounte reclassified 
out of accumulated other comprehensive income. These changes require an entity to report the effect of significant 
reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in na income if the 
amount being reclassified is required to be reclassified in tte entirety to net income. For other amounte that are not 
required to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an aitity is required to cross-
reference other disclosures that provide addhional detail about those amounte. These requiremente are to be applied 
to each component of accumulated other comprehensive income. For the years ended Decanber 31,2013,2012 
and 2011. the impact of reclassification out of accumulated other comprehensive income was not material to the 
Company and additional disclosure is not included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

3. ACQUISITIONS 

Ibledo Acquisition 

On March 1.2011, a subsidiary ofthe Company completed the acquisition ofthe Toledo refinery in Ohio from 
Sunoco. The Toledo refinery has a crude oil throughput capacity of 170,000 barrels per day. The purchase price 
for die refinery was $400,000, subject to certain adjustmente, and was comprised of$200,000 in cash and a$200.000 
promissory note provided by Sunoco. The note was repaid in full in Februaty 2012. The terms ofthe transaction 
also include paiticipation paymente beginning tn the year ended December31, 2011 tiirough the year ending 
December 31,2016 not to exceed $125,000 in the aggregate. Participation paymente were based on 25% ofthe 
purdiased assete' earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined in the agreement 
("EBITDA") in excess ofan annual threshold EBITDAof$125,000 (prorated for 2011 and 2016). Each participation 
payment was due no later than one hundred and twenty days after the close ofthe respective calendar year end for 
the years 2011 through 2016. The Company paid $103,643 to Sunoco in April 2012 and $21,357 in April 2013 
related to the amount of contingent consideration earned in 2011 and 2012, respectively. 
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The Company purchased certain finished and intermediate products for approximately $299,645 with die proceeds 
from a note provided by Sunoco (the "Toledo Inventory Note P^able"). The note had an interest rate at tiie lower 
of LIBOR plus 5.5%, or 7.5% and was repaid on May 31,2011. The Company also purchased crude oil inventory 
for $338,395. which it concurrently sold to MSCG for ite market value of $369,999. The net cash received fiom 
this transaction was recorded as a reduction hi the total purchase price. 

The Toledo acquisition was accounted for as a business combination. The purchase price of $784,818 includes the 
estimated fair value offuture participation paymente (contingent consideration). The fair value ofthe contingent 
consideration was estimated using a discounted cash fiow analysis, a Level 3 measurement, as more fully desaibed 
at Note 21. The following table summarizes the amounte recognized for assete acquired and liabilhies assumed as 
ofthe acquisition date. 

The total purchase price and the estimated feir values ofthe assete and liabilhies at the acquisition date were as 
follows: 

Purchase Price 

Net cash 
Seller promissory note 
Seller note for mventory 
Estimated feir value of contingent consideration 

$ 

$ 

168,156 
200,000 
299,645 
117,017 

784,818 

Fair Value 
Allocation 

$ 

$ 

305.645 
8,065 

452.084 
24,640 
(5,616) 

784,818 

Current assete 
Land 
Property, plant and equipment 
Other assete 
Current liabilities 

The Company's consolidated financial statemente for the years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011 include 
the resulte of opaations ofthe Toledo refineiy since March 1,2011. The actual resulte for the Toledo refinery for 
tiie period fixim Mardi 1, 2011 to Decemba 31. 2011, are shown below. The revenues and net income of die 
Company assuming the acquisition had occurred on January 1,2011, are shown below on a pro forma basis. The 
pro forma information does not purport to present what the Company's actual resulte would have been had die 
acquisition occurred on Janu^ 1,2011,nor is the financial information tndicativeoftheresuhsoffotoreoperations. 
The unaudited pro forma financial information includes the depreciation and amortization eiqjense related to the 
acquisition and interest expense associated with the Toledo acquisition financing. 

Revenues Net Income 

Actual resuhs for March 1,2011 to December 31,2011 $ 6,113,055 $ 489,243 
Supplemental pro forma for January 1,2011 toDecember31.2011 $ 15,961.529 $ 328.142 
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4. INVENTORIES 

Inventories consisted ofthe following: 

December 31.2013 

Crude oil and feedstocks 
Refined producte and blendstocks 
Warehouse stock and other 

$ 

$ 

Titled 
Inventory 

518,599 
425,033 
33,762 

977,394 

Inventory 
Supply and 

Offteike 
Arrangemente 

$ 89.837 
378,286 

$ 468,123 

$ 

$ 

Total 

608,436 
803,319 
33,762 

1,445,517 

December 31,2012 

Crude oil and feedstocks 

Refined producte and blendstocks 

Warehouse stock and otha. 

$" 

$ 

THIed 
Inventory 

384.441 

405.545 

31321 
821,307 

Inventory 
Supply and 

Offtake 
Arrangemente 
$ 257,947 

417,865 

$ 675.812 

$ 

$ 

Total 

642,388 
823,410 

31,321 

1.497,119 

Inventory under inventoty supply and offtake arrangemente includes the inventory held in the Company's refineries' 
storage facilities in connection with the Crude Supply Agreemente, Offtake Agreemente and Inventory 
Intermediation Agreemente. 

At December 31.2013 and December 31,2012, the replacement value of inventories exceeded the LIFO carrying 
value by approximately $78,407 and $79,859, respectively. 

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 
Property, plant and equipment consisted ofthe following: 

Land 
Process unite, pipelines and equipment 
Buildings and lea.iehold improvementa 
Computers, furniture and fbctures 
Construction in progress 

Less—Accumulated depreciation 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 
2013 

61,780 
1.658,256 

25,577 
54A96 

166,565 
1,966,674 
(185,085) 

1.781,589 

$ 

± 

December 31, 
2012 

61,780 
1.484,727 

11,073 
38,657 

145,525 
1,741,762 
(106.175) 

1,635,587 
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The Company commenced the restart ofthe Delaware City refmery during June 2011 and began depreciating the 
assete placed in service effective July 1,2011. Depreciation expense for the years ended Decemba 31,2013,2012 
and 2011 was $79,413, $64,947 and $39,968, respectively. The Company capitalized $5,672 and $6,697 in interest 
during 2013 and 2012, respectively, in connection with construction in progress. 

6. DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS, NET 

Deferred charges and otiier assete, net consisted ofthe following: 

Deferred turnaround coste, net 
Catalyst 

Deferred financing coste. net 

Restricted cash 

Linefill 

Intangible assete, net 
Otha 

December 31, 
2013 

119,383 
88,964 

26,541 

12,117 

9.636 

653 
5,185 

December 31, 
2012 

$ 78,128 

66,377 
30.987 

12,114 

8,042 

1.085 
616 

262,479 $ 197,349 

The Company recorded amortization expense related to deferred turnaround coste, catalyst and intangible assete 
of $32,066, $27,291 and $13,776 for die years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011 respectively. 

Intangible assete, na was comprised of permite and emission credite as follows: 

Gross amount 
Accumulated amortization 

Net ^nount 

$ 

$ 

December 31, December 31, 
2013 2012 

3,597 $ 3,597 
(2,944) (2,512) 

653 $ 1.085 
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7. ACCRUED EXPENSES 

PBFEnergy 

Accrued expenses consisted ofthe following: 

December 31, 
2013 

December 31, 
2012 

Inventory-related acauals 
Inventoty supply and offtake arrangements 

Excise and sales tax payable 
Accrued construction in progress 
Accrued fransportation coste 

Accrued utilities 

Customer deposite 

Accrued interest 
Renewable energy credit obligations 

Accrued salaries and benefits 

Income taxes payable 

Fair value of contingent consideration for refinery acquishion 
Otiier 

$ 

$ 

533,012 $ 
454,893 

42,814 

33,747 
29,762 

25,959 

23.621 

22,570 

15,955 

10,799 
— 

— 
16.749 

1,209.881 $ 

287,929 
536,594 

40,776 

16,481 
20,338 

19,060 

26,541 
22,764 

-;__ 

15.212 

1,275 

21,358 
23,139 

1,031.467 

PBFHoldlng 

Accrued expenses consisted ofthe following: 

Inventory-related accruals 
Inventory supply and offtake arrangemente 

Excise and sales tax p^able 
Accrued construction in progress 

Accrued b*ansportation coste 

Accrued utilities 

Customer deposits 
Accrued interest 
Renew^Ie energy credit obligations 
Accrued salaries and benefits 

Fair value of contingent consideration for refinery acquisition 
Other 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 533,012 

454.893 
42.814 
33,747 

29.762 

25,959 
23,621 
22,570 
15,955 
10,799 

17.813 

$ 1,210,945 

December 31, 
20X2 

$ 287.929 
536.594 
36,414 
16,481 

20,338 

19,060 
26.541 
22,764 

15.212 

21.358 
23.227 

$ 1,025.918 

The Company has the obligation to repurchase certain intermediates and finished producte that are held in the 
Company's refinery storage tanks in accordance witit the Inventory Intermediation Agreemente with J. Aron 
commencing in July 2013. As of December31, 2013, a liability included in Inventory supply and offtake 
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arrangemente is recorded at market price for the J. Aron owned inventory held in the Company's storage tanks 
under the Inventory Intermediation Agreements, with any change in the market price being recorded ui coste of 
sales. 

Prior to Juty 1,2013, the Company had the obligation to repurchase certain intermediates and lube producte under 
ite Offtake Agreemente that wae held in the Company's refinery storage t^ks. A liability included in Inventory 
supply and Offtake Arrangemente was recorded at market price for the volumes held in storage consistent with the 
terms of the Offtake Agreemente with any change in the market price recorded In coste of sales. The lisd îlity 
represented the amount the Company expected to pay to repurchase the volumes held in storage. The Company 
recorded a non-cash benefit of $20,248 and a non-cash charge of $11,619 related to this liability in the years ended 
December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively 

The Company Is subject to obligations to purchase Renewable Identification Numbers ("RINs") required to comply 
with the Renewable Fuels Standard. The Company's overall RINs obligation is based on a percentage of domestic 
shipmente of on-road fuels as established by the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"). To the degree die 
Company is unable to blend die required amount of biofuels to satisfy our RINs obligation, RINs must be purchasal 
on the open market to avoid penahies and fines. The Company records ite RINs obligation on a net basis m Accrued 
expenses when ite RINs liability is greata than the amount of RINs earned aid purchased in a given period and 
in Prepaid expenses and other current assets when the amount of RINs earned and purchased is greater flian die 
RINs liability. 

8. DELAWARE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY LOAN 

In June 2010, in connection with the Delaware City acquisition, the Delaware Economic Development Authority 
(the "Authority") granted the Company a $20,000 loan to assist with opaating coste and the cost of restarting die 
refinery. The loan is represented by a zero interest rate note and the entire unpaid principal amount is ps^able in 
full on March 1,2017. unless the loan is converted to a grant. The Company recorded the loan as a long-term 
liability pending approval from the Authority that it has met the requiremente to convert the remainir^ loan balance 
to a grant. 

The loan converte to a grant in tranches of up to $4,000 annualty over a five-year period, starting at the one-year 
anniversaiy ofthe "certified restart date" as defined in the agreement and certified by the Authority. In order for 
the loan to be converted to a grant, the Company is required to utilize at least 600 man hours of labor in connection 
with die reconsfruction and restarting ofthe Delaware City refinery, expend at least $125,000 in qualified capital 
expenditures, commence refinery operations, and maintain certain employment levels, all as defined In the 
E^eement. In Februaiy 2013 and Octoba 2013. the Company received confirmation from the Authority that tiie 
Company had satisfied the conditions necessary for the first and second $4,000 tranche ofthe loan to be converted 
to a grant. As a resuh ofthe grant conversion, property, plant and equipment, net was reduced by $8,000 as of 
December 31,2013. as the proceeds from the loan were used for capital projecte. 

9. CREDIT FACILITY AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Revolving Loan 

in October 2012, PBF Holding amended and restated ite asset based revolving credit agreement C'Revolving Loan") 
to a maximum availability of $1,575,000 and extended the maturity date to October 26.2017. In addition, die 
Applicable Margin, as defined in the agreement, was amended to a range of 0.75% to 1.50% for Alternative Base 
Rate Loans and 1.75% to 2.50% for Adjusted LIBOR Rate Loans, and the Commitment Fee. as defined in the 
agreement was amended toarangeof0.3?5%to0.50%,alldependingon the Company'sdebtrating.TheRevolving 
Loan was further expanded to a maximum availability of $1,610,000 in Novemba 2013. 
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Advances under the Revolving Loan carmot exceed the lesser of $1,610,000 or the Borrowing Base, as defined in 
the agreement Tlie Revolving Loan can be prepaid, without penalty, at any time. Interest on the Revolving Loan 
is payable quarterly in arrears, at the option of PBF Holding, eltha at the Attanate Base Rate plus the Applicable 
Margin, or at the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus the Applicable Maigin, all as defined in the agreement. PBF Holding 
is required to pay a LC Participation Fee, as defined in the agreement on each outetanding letter of credh issued 
unda the Revolving Loan equal to the Applicable Margin applied to Adjusted LIBOR Rate Loans, plus a Fronting 
Fee equal to 0.125%. 

The Revolving Loan has a financial covenant which requires that at any time Excess Availability, as defined in the 
agreement is less than the greata of (i) 17.5% of die lesser ofthe Borrowing Base and the aggregate Revolving 
CommHmenteoftheLenders,or(ii) $35,000. PBF Holding willnot permh the Consolidated Fixed ChargeCoverage 
Ratio, as defined in the agreement, determined as ofthe last day ofthe most recentiy completed quarter, to be less 
than 1.1 to 1.0. PBF Holding was in compliance with this covenant as ofDecember 31,2013. 

All obligations under tiie Revolving Loan are guaranteed (solely on a limited recourse basis) to the extent required 
to support the lien described tn clause (y) below by PBF LLC. PBF Finance, and each of our domestic operating 
subsidiaries and secured Ity a lien on (y) PBF LLC's equity intereste in PBF Holding and (z) substantially all of 
the assete of PBF Holding and the subsidiary guarantors (subject to certain exceptions). Tlie lien ofthe Revolving 
Loan is secured by: all deposit accounte (other than zao balance accounte, cash collateral accounte, trust accounte 
and/or payroll accounte, all of which are excluded from the collateral); all accounte receivables; all hydrocarbon 
inventory (otha than die Saudi aude oil pledged under the letter of credit fecility); to the extent evidencing, 
governing, securing or otherwise related to the foregoing, all general intengibles, chattel paper, instrumente, 
documente. letta of credit righte and supporting obligations; and all producte and proceeds ofthe foregoing. 

At December31, 2013, PBF Holding had $15,000 outstanding loans and standby letters of credit of $441,368 
issued under the Revolving Loan. At December 31.2012. PBF Holding had no outstanding loans of and standby 
lettas of credh of $449,652 issued under die Revolving Loan. 

Senior Secured Notes 

On Februaiy 9, 2012, PBF Holding completed the offering of $675,000 aggregate principal amount of 8.25% 
Senior Secured Notes due 2020. The net proceeds, after deducting the original issue discount, die initial purchasers' 
discounte and commissions, and the fees and expenses ofthe offering, were used to repay all ofthe outstandmg 
indebtedness plus accrued interest owed under the Toledo Promissoiy Note, the Paulsboro Promissoiy Note, and 
the Term Loan, as well as to reduce the outstanding balance ofthe Revolving Loan. The Company's Executive 
Chairman ofthe Board of Directors, and certain of his affiliates and family members, and certein ofthe Company's 
other executives, purchased $25,500 aggregate principal amount of these Senior Secured Notes in connection with 
the offering which were subsequently sold to third parties in 2013. 

The Senior Secured Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by substantially all ofthe present and future assete 
of PBF Holding and ite subsidiaries (other than assete securing tiie Revolving Loan). Payment of the Senior Secured 
Notes isjointly and severally guaranteed by all of PBF Holding's subsidiaries, PBF Holding has optional redemption 
rights to repurchase all or a portion ofthe Senior Secured Notes et varying prices no less than 100% of die principal 
amounte ofthe notes plus accrued and unpaid interest. The holders ofthe Senior Secured Notes have repurchase 
options exercisable only upon a change in control, certein assa sale transactions, or in event of a defauh as defined 
hi the indenture agreement. In addition, the Senior Secured Notes contein covenant restrictions luniting certain 
types of additional debt, ̂ uity issuances, and paymente. PBF Holding is in compliance with the covenante as of 
December 31.2013. 

Delaware City Construction Financing 

In October 2010, subsidiaries ofthe Company entered into a project management and financing agreement for a 
capitel project at die Delaware City refineiy. On August 5,2011 the Delaware City construaion advances m the 
amount of $20,000 were converted to a term financing payable in equal monthly installmente of $530 ova- a period 
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of sixty months beginning September 1, 2011 ("Construaion Financing"). On AugustSl, 2012, the Company 
repaid all outetanding indebtedness plus accrued interest owed on the Construction Financing. Ttie Company 
recorded a loss of $2,797 in interest expense for the early retirement of debt in the year ended December 31,2012. 

Catalyst Leases 

Subsidiaries of the Company have entered into agreemente at each of ite refineries whereby the Company sold 
certain of Ite catalyst precious metals to major commercial banks and then leased them back. The catalyst is required 
to be repurchased by the Company at marica value at lease termination. The Company treated these transactions 
as financing arrangemente, and the lease paymente are recorded as interest expense over the agreemente' terms. 
The Company has elected the feir value option for accounting for ite catetyst rq>urchase obligations as the 
Company's liability is directly impacted by die change in value ofthe underlying catalyst. The feir value of these 
repurchase obligations as reflected in the table below is measured using Level 2 inpute. 

The Paulsboro catetyst lease was entered into effective January 6.2012 with a one year term that was amended in 
December 2012 to extend the maturity date to November 2013. Proceeds from the lease wae $9,453. The annual 
lease fee under tiiese leases for 2012 and 2013 was $267 and $262. Upon maturity, the Company entered into a 
new Paulsboro catalyst lease effective on December 5.2013 with a three year term. The annual lease fee is $180, 
which is based on a fixed annual interest rate of 1.95%, payable quarteriy. 

The Toledo catatyst lease was entered into effective Juty 1.2011 with a three year term. Proceeds from the lease 
of $18,345, net of a facility fee of $279, were used to repay a portion ofthe Toledo ft^missory Note. The lease 
fee is payable quartaty and will be reset annually based on current market conditions. The lease fee for the first 
one year period was $997. The lease fee for the second one year period beguming July 2012 and for the third one 
year period beginning July 2013 was $967 and $810, respeaively, payable quarterly. The Toledo catatyst lease is 
included in Long-term debt as ofDecember 31.2013 as the Company has the ability and intent to finance this debt 
through availability under otha credh facilities if the catalyst lease is not renewed at maturity. 

Additionalty, in Novemba 2013. the Company entered into an eight month bridge lease for additional catalyst for 
the Company's Toledo refinery in connection with its planned turnaround in 2014. Proceeds from the lease wae 
$12,034. The lease fee is $150, based on a fixed annual interest rate of 1.85%, payable at maturity. The lease 
matures on Juty 28.2014. 

The Delaware City catalyst lease was entered mto in October 2010 with a tiir^ year term. Proceeds from the lease 
were $17,474, na of $266 in fecility fees. The lease fee was payable quarterly and resa annually based on current 
market conditions. The lease fee for the first, second, and third one year periods beginning in October 2010 was 
$1,076, $946 and $1,048, respectively. Upon maturity ofthe lease, the Company entered into a new Delaware City 
catalyst lease which was effective October 17,2013 and has a three year term. Incremental proceeds from the new 
lease were $2,223. The lease fee is payable annually based on a fixed annual interest rate of 1.96%. The lease fee 
for the three year paiod beginning in October 2013 is $322. On November 21.2013 the Company amended the 
lease to also include palladium catalyst. The lease fee for the palladium is payable annually at a fixed annual 
interest rale of 1.85%. The annual lease fee for the three year period beginning in October 2013 Is $30. 

Loitg-temi debt outetanding consisted ofthe following: 

Senior Secured Notes 
Revolving Loan 
C âtelyst leases 

Less—Current maturities 
Long-term debt 

December 31.2013 

$ 667,487 $ 
15,000 
53.089 

735,576 
(12.029) 

$ 723,547 $ 

December 31,2012 

666.538 

43.442 
709,980 

709,980 
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Debt Maturities 

Debt maturing in the next five years and thereaffer is as follows: 

Year Ending 
December 31, 

2014 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

26,887 

2 6 3 2 
15,000 

667,487 

735,576 

10. INTERCOMPANY NOTES PAYABLE 

During 2013, PBF Holding altered into notes payable with PBF Energy and PBF LLC for an ^gregate principal 
amount of $31,835. The notes have an interest rate of 2.5% and a five year term but may be prepaid in whole or 
in part at any time, at the option ofthe PBF Holding, widiout penalty or premium. 

11. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

PBFEnergy 

Other long-term liabilities consisted ofthe following: 

Defined benefit pension plan liabilities 
Post retiree medical plan 
Environmental liabilhies 
Otiier 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 28,300 
8,225 
7,195 

— 
$ .43.720 

December 31, 

$ 

$ 

2012 
19,983 
9,730 
7.303 
1,083 

38.099 

PBFHoldlng 

Other long-term liabilities consisted ofthe following: 

Defined benefit pension plan liabilities 
Post rairee medical plan 
Enviromnental liabilities 
Other 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 28,300 
8.225 
7.195 
2,757 

$ 46.477 

December 31, 

S 

$ 

2012 
19.983 
9,730 
7,303 
1,083 

38.099 
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company engaged Fuel Strategies International, Inc, the principal of which is the brotha ofthe Executive 
Chairman ofthe Board of Directors ofthe Company, to provide consuUing services relating to petroleum coke and 
commercial operations. Forthe years ended December 31,2013.2012 and 2011, the Company incurred charges 
of $646, $903 and $462, respectively, under this agreement. 

The Company has an agreement with the Executive Chairman of die Board of Directors, for the use ofan airplane 
that is owned by a company owned by the Executive Chairman. The Company pays a charta rate that is the lowest 
rate this aircraft is chartered to third-parties. For die years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011, the Company 
incurred charges of $1,274, $1,030, and $821, respectively, related to use of tiiis airplane. 

As of December 31,2013, each of Blackstone and First Reserve, the Company's financial sponsors, had received 
the full return of its aggregate amount invested in PBF LLC Sales A Unite. As a result pursuant to the amended 
and resteted limited liability company agreement of PBF LLC, the holders of PBF LLC Series B Units are entitled 
to an interest in the amounts received by Blackstone and First Resave in excess of their original investment m the 
form of PBF LLC distributions and fh)m the shares of PBF Energy Class A Common Stock issuable to Blackstone 
and First Reserve (for their own account and on behalf of die holders of PBF LLC Series B Units) upon an exchange, 
and the proceeds from the sale of such shares. Such proceeds received by Blackstone and First Reserve are disfributed 
to the holders of die PBF LLC Series B Unite in ̂ xordance with the distribution percent^es specified in the PBF 
LLC amended and restated limited liabilhy company agreement. The total amount distributed to die PBF LLC 
Series B Unh holders for the year ended December 31.2013 was $6,427. There were no amounte distributed to 
PBF LLC Series B Unit holders prior to 2013. 

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Lease and Other Commitmente 

The Company leases office space, office equipment, refinery fecilities and equipment and railcars under non-
cancelable operating leases, with terms ranging from one to twenty years, subjea to certain renewal options as 
applicable. Total rent expense was $70,581. $41,563, and $29,233 for the years ended December 31.2013,2012 
and 2011, respectively. The Company is party to agreemente which provide for the teeatment of wastewater and 
the supply of hydrogen and steam fbr the Paulsboro and Toledo refineries. The Company made purchases of 
$38,383, $30,335 and $30,773 under these supply agreemente for the years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 
2011. respectively. 

The fixed and determinable amounts ofthe obligations under these agreemente and total minimum future annual 
rentals, exclusive of related coste, are approximately: 

Year Ending 
December 31, 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

s 

$ 

81,358 

73.481 
72,424 
62,918 

56,483 
93,937 

440,601 
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Employment Agreements 

Concurrent with the PBF Energy IPO in December 2012, PBFI entaed into amended and restated employment 
agreements with members of executive management and certain otha key personnel that include automatic annual 
renewals, unless canceled. Under some ofthe agreemente, certain ofthe executives would receive a lump sum 
payment of between one and a half to 2.99 tunes their base salary and continuation of cert^n employee benefite 
fpr the same period upon termination by the Company "Without Cause", or by the employee "For Good Reason", 
or upon a "Change in Control", as defined in the agreemente. Upon death or disability, certain ofthe Company's 
executives, or their estates, would receive a lump sum payment of at least one half of tiieir base salary. 

Environmental Matters 

The Company's refineries are subject to extensive and frequently changing federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including, but not limited to, tiiose relating to the discharge of materials into tiie environment or that 
otherwise relate to the protection of the environment, waste management and the characteristics and the 
compositions of fuels. Compliance with existing and anticipated laws and regulations can inaease tiie overall cost 
of opaating the refineries, including remediation, operatmg costs and capital coste to consfruct, maintain and 
upgrade equipment and facilities. 

In connection with the Paulsboro refinery acquisition, the Company assumed certain environmental remediation 
obligations. The environmental liability of $9,869 recorded as ofDecember 31,2013 ($9,669 as of December 31, 
2012) represente the present value of expected fiiture coste discounted at a rate of 8%. At December 31.2013 the 
undiscounted liability is $14.874 and the Company expecte to make aggregate paymente for this liability of $5,838 
over the next five years. The current portion of die environmentel liability is recorded in accrued expenses and 
the non-current portion is recorded in other long-term liabilhies. A trust fond related to this liability in the amount 
of $12,117 and $12,114, acquired in the Paulsboro acquisition, is recorded as restricted cash in deferred charges 
and odier assete, net as of December 31,2013 and December 31,2012, respectively. 

In connanion with the acquisition ofthe Delaware City assets. Valero Enagy Corporation ("Valero") remfdns 
responsible for certain pre-acquisitton environmental obligations up to $20,000 and die predecessor to ^lero in 
ownership ofthe refinery retains other historical obligations. 

In connection with the acquisition ofthe Delaware City assete and the Paulsboro refinery, the Company and Valero 
purchased ten y^r, $75,000 environmental insurance policies to insure agunst unknown environmentel liabilities 
at each site. In connection witii the Toledo refinery acquishion. Sunoco remains responsible for environmental 
remediation for conditions that existed on the closing date and the obligations teansition to us over twenty years 
from March 1.2011. 

In 2010, New York Stete adopted a Low-Sulfur Heating Oil mandate t h^ beginning July 1, 2012, requires all 
heating oil sold in New Yoric Stete to contain no more tiian 15 PPM sulfor. Otiier states have laws with various 
implanentation dates that also require lower levels of sulfur in heating oils. Not all ofthe heating oil we currently 
produce meets these specifications. The Company has made and is continumg to make certain processing 
improvementa to shift conventional heating oil production to ultra-tow sulfur heating oil and ultra-low sulfur diesel 
in order to compty whh these new mandates. The Company plans to continue increasing ultra-low sulfor distillate 
production over die next several years white marketing conventional heating oil in states where regulations have 
not changed. The mandate and other requiranente do not currentiy have a material impact on the Company's 
financial position, resuhs of operations or cash flows. 

In addition, on June 1,2012, the EPA issued final amendmente to the New Source Performance Standa-ds ("NSPS") 
for petroleum refineries, including standards for emissions of nitrogai oxides from process heaters and work 
practice standards and monhoring requiremente for flares. The Company has evaluated the unpact of the regulation 
and amended standards on ite reSnery operations and currentiy does not expect the cost to compty by July 1.2015 
with the amended NSPS to be mataial. 

F-37 



PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS. EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT. PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

The Company is aware tiiat the EPA has drafted tiie proposed Tier 3 Motor V^icle Emission and Fuel Standards. 
The draft Standards are In the formal public comment period at this time. The gasoline cun-ently manufactured 
by the Company's refineries does not meet aportion ofthe proposed requiremente. specifically as related to meaing 
the propos^ 10 ppm annual average gasoline sulfur requirement. The EPA has Included potential options in other 
portions of the proposed Standards that the Company's gasoline producte may meet if adopted in the final 
rulemaking. The Company is continuing to evaluate the potential impact of these proposed Standards. 

On June 14.2013, two administrative appeals wae filed by the Sierra Club and Delaware Audubon regarding a 
permh Delaware City Refining Company LLC ("Delaware City Refining") obtained to allow loading of crude oil 
onto barges. The ̂ peals allege that both the loading of crude oil onto barges and the operation ofthe Delaware 
City rail unloading terminal violate Delaware's Coastal Zone Aa. The first ̂ peal is Number 2013-1 before the 
State Coastal Zone Industrial Confrol Board (the "CZ Board"), and the second appeal is before the Environmental 
Appeals Board and appeals Secretary's Order No. 2013-A-0020. The GZ Board held a hearing on the first jq>peal 
on July 16.2013, and ruled in favor of Delaware City Refining and the State of Delaware and dismissed Appellante' 
^peal for lack of stending. Sierra Club and Delaware Audubon have appealed tiiat decision to die Delaware 
Superior Court, New Castle County, Case No. Nl 3A-09-001 ALR, and Delaware City Refining and the State have 
filed cross^appeals. Briefe are due to be filed in this appeal in the first quarter of 2014 but no date has been set for 
a decision by die Supaior Court. A hearing on the second ^peal before the Environmental Appeals Board, case 
no. 2013-06, was held on January 13,2014, and the Board ruled in fevor of Delaware City Refining and the State 
and dismissed the appeal for lack of jurisdiction, A written decision from the Board is pending, ater which tiie 
Appellante will again have the right to appeal the decision to Supaior Court. If the Appellante in one or bodi of 
these matters ultimately prevail, the outcome may have an adverse m^erial effect on die Compan/s earnings. 

The Company is also currentiy subject to certein other existing environmentel claims and proceedings. The 
Company believes that there is onty a remote possibility that future coste related to any of tiiese otha known 
contingent liability exposures would have a material impact on I'fe financial position, resulte of operations or cash 
flows. 

PBF LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement 

The holders of limited liability company intereste in PBF LLC, including PBF Energy, generally have to include 
for purposes of calculating their U.S. federal, state and local income taxes their share of any taxable income of 
PBF LLC. Taxable income of PBF LLC generally is allocated to tiie holders of PBF LLC unite (mcluding PBF 
Eneigy) pro rata in accordance with their respective shae ofthe net profite and net losses of PBF LLC. In general, 
PBF LLC is required to make periodic tax disfrtbutions to the members of PBF LLC, including PBF Energy, pro 
rata in accordance with tiieir respective percentage intereste for such period (as daermined unda the amended and 
restated limited liability company agreement of PBF LLC), subject to available cash and applicable law and 
contractual restrictions (including pursuant to our debt instrumente) and based on certain assumptions. Generally, 
these tax distributions will be an amount equal to our estimate ofthe taxable income of PBF LLC for the year 
multiplied by an assumed tax rate equal to tiie highest effective marginal combined U.S. federal, state and local 
income tax rate prescribed for an individual or corporate resident in New Yoik. New York (taking into account the 
nondeductibility of certain expenses). If, with respect to any given calendar year, the aggregate periodic tax 
distributions were less tiian tiie actual taxable income of PBF LLC multiplied by the assumed tax rate. PBF LLC 
will make a*true up" tax distribution, no later than March 15 ofthe following year, equal to such difference, subject 
to the available cash and borrowings of PBF LLC. 

Tax Receivable Agreement 

PBF Energy altered mto a tax receivable agreement whh the PBF LLC Series A and PBF LLC Series B Unit 
holders (the " T ^ Receivable Agreement") that provides for the payment by PBF Energy to such persons ofan 
amount equal to 85% ofthe amount of tiie benefite, if any, that PBF Energy is deemed to realize as a resuh of (i) 
increases in tax basis, as described below, and (ii) certain otha tax benefite related to entering into die Tax 
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Receivable Agreement, including tax benefite atfributable to paymente under the Tax Receivable Agreement. For 
purposes ofthe Tax Receiv^le Agreement the benefit deemed realized by PBF Energy will be computed by 
comparing the actual income tax liability of PBF Energy (calculated with certain assumptions) to the amount of 
such taxes that PBF Enagy would have been required to pay had there been no increase to fte tax basis ofthe 
assets of PBF LLC as a resuU of purchases or exchanges of PBF LLC Sales A Unite for shares of PBF Energy's 
Class A common stock and had PBF Energy not entered into the Tax Receivable Agreement. Tlie term of die 1toc 
Receivable Agreement will continue until all such tax benefite have been utilized or expired unless: (i) PBF Energy 
exercises ite right (o terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement, (ii) PBF Energy breaches any of ite material 
obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement or (iii) certain changes of conteol occur, in which case all 
obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement will generally be accelerated and due as calculated under certain 
assumptions. 

The payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement are obligations of PBF Energy and not of PBF LLC 
or PBF Holding. In general, PBF Eneigy expecte to obtain funding for these paymente by causing PBF Holding 
to disfribute cash to PBF LLC, which will tfien disfribute tiiis cash, generally as tax disfributions, on a pro-rate 
basis to hs owners. Such owners include PBF Energy, which holds a 40.9% interest as of Decanber 31,2013. 

14. STOCKHOLDERS'AND MEMBERS' EQUITY STRUCTURE 

Class A Common Stock 

Holders of Class A common stock are entitied to receive dividends when and if declu^d by the Board of Directors 
out of fonds legally available tiierefore. subject to any statutory or contractual restriaions on the payment of 
dividends and to any resfrictions on the payment of dividends imposed by the terms of any outetending preferred 
stock. Upon die Company's dissolution or liquidation or the sale of all or substantially all of the assete. after 
payment in foil of all amounte required to be paid to creditors and to the holders of preferred stock having liquidation 
preferences, if any. the holders of shares of Class A common stock will be entitied to receive pro rata remaining 
assets available for disfribution. Holders of shares of Class A common stock do not have preemptive, subscription, 
redemption or conversion rights. 

Class B Common Stock 

Holders of shares of Class B common stock are entitled, without regard to the number of shares of Class B common 
stock held by such holder, to one vote for each PBF LLC Series A Unit beneficially owned by such holder. 
Accordingly, the die members of PBF LLC otiier than PBF Energy collectively have a numba of votes m PBF 
Eneigy that is equal to the aggregate number of PBF LLC Series A Unite that tii^ hold. 

Holders of s h » ^ of Class Acommon stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters 
presented to stockholders for their vote or ̂ proval, except as otherwise required by applicable law. 

Holders of Class B common stock do not have any right to receive dividends or to receive a distribution upon a 
liquidation or winding up of PBF Energy. 

Preferred Stock 

Authorized preferi'ed stock may be issued in one or more series, with designations, powers and preferences as shall 
be designated by the Board of Dfrectors. 

PBF LLC Capital Structure 

PBF LLC Series A Units 

The allocation of profite and losses and disfributions to PBF LLC Series A unit holders is governed by the Limited 
Liability C)ompany Agreement of PBF LLC. These allocations are made on a pro rata basis witii PBF LLC Series 
C Unite. PBF LLC Series A unit holders do not have voting righte. 

F-39 



PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE, UNIT, PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

PBF LLC Series BVnlts 

The PBF LLC Series B Unite are intended to be "profit intereste" within the meaning of Revenue Procedures 93-27 
and 2001-43 ofthe Internal Revenue Service and have a stated value of zero at issuance. The PBF LLC Series 
B Unite are held by certain of the Company's officers, have no voting righte and are designed to increase in value 
only after the Company's financial sponsors achieve certain levels of return on their mvestment in PBF LLC 
Series A Units. Accordingly, the amounte paid to the holders of PBF LLC Series B Unite, if any, will reduce onty 
the amounte odierwise payable to the PBF LLC Series A Unite held by the Company's financial sponsors, and wilt 
not reduce or otherwise impact any amounte p^able to PBF E n a ^ (the hotda of PBF LLC Saies C Unite), die 
holders of die Company's Class A common stock or any other holder of PBF LLC Series A Unite. The maximum 
number of PBF LLC Saies B Unite autiiorized to be issued is 1,000,000. 

PBF LLC Series C Vnits 

The PBF LLC Series C Unite rank on a parity with the PBF LLC Series A Units as to distribution righte, voting 
righte and righte upon liquidation, winding up or dissolution. PBF LLC Series C Units are held solely by PBF 
Energy. 

Information about the issued classes of PBF LLC unite for tiie years ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011, 
is as follows: 

Balance—January 1,2011 
Unite allocated to management 
Memba ĉ q̂ itat contribution 

Balance—December 31,2011 
Issuances of restricted unite 
Exercise of warrante and options 

Balance—^December 18,2012 
Reorganization and offering transaction 
Issuance of Series C unite 
Exchange of Series A Unite for Class A common 
stock of PBF Energy Inc. 

Balance—^December 31,2012 
Issuances of resfricted stock 
Exercise of wairante and options 
Secondary offering transaction 

Balance—nJunc 12,2013 
Issuances of restelcted stock 
Exercise of wanrante and options 
Exchange of Series A Unite for Class A common 
stock of PBF Energy Inc. 

Balance—^December 31,2013 

The warrante and options exercised Jn the table above include both noh-compensatoiy and compensatoiy PBF LLC 
Series A warrante and options. 

Series A Units 

51,393,114 

40,864,698 
92,257,812 

23,904 
2.661,636 

94,943,352 
(21,967,686) 

(3.535) 
72,972,131 

5.094 
(15,950.000) 

57,027,225 

258,309 

(83,860) 
57^101.674 

Series B Units 

950,000 
50.000 

1,000.000 

1,000,000 

1,000.000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

Series C Units 

— 

— 

21,967.686 
1.600,000 

3,535 
23,571.221 

42.614 

15.950.000 
39.563.835 

17,778 

83,860 
39.665,473 
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PBF Holding Capital Structure 

At December 31,2013 and 2012, PBF LLC was die sole member of PBF Holding. 

15. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Stock-based compensation expense included in general and administrative expenses consisted ofthe followmg: 

Years Ended December 31, 

PBF LLC Series A Unit compensatory warrants and options 
PBF LLC Series B Unite 
PBF Energy options 

PBF LLC Series A warrante and options 

$ 

.$.. 

2013 

779 
530 

2,444 
. 3,753 

$ 

$.. 

2012 

1.589 $ 
1.277 

88 
2,954 $ 

2011 

1,135 
1,381 

2,516 

PBF LLC granted compensatory warrante to employees ofthe Company in connection whh their purchase of Series 
A unite m PBF LLC. The warrante grant the holder the right to purchase PBF LLC Series A Unhs. One-quarter of 
the PBF LLC Series A compensatory warrante were exercisable at the date of grant and the remaining three-quarters 
become exercisable over equal annual installmente on each ofthe fust three anniversaries ofthe grant date subject 
to acceleration in certain circumstances. Atotal of 551,759 PBF LLC Saies A compensatory warrante were granted 
during the year ended December 31,2011. They are exercisable for ten years from the date of grant The remaining 
warrante became fully exercisable in connection with die IPO of PBF Energy. 

A total of 205,000 and 620,000 options to purchase PBF LLC Series A unite were granted to certain employees, 
management and direaors in 2012 and 2011. respectively. Options vest over equal armual instalbnents on each of 
tiie first three annivasaries of the grant date subject to accelaation in certain circumstances. The options are 
exercisable for ten years fiom the date of grant. 

The Company did not issue PBF LLC Series A Unite compensatory warrante or options in 2013. 

The estimated fair value of compensatory PBF LLC Series A warrante and options granted during die years ended 
Decemba 31,2012 and 2011 was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following weighted 
average assumptions: 

Years Ended December 31, 

Expected lift (in years) 
Expected volatility 
Dividend yield 
Risk-free rate of return 
Exercise price 

2012 

6.00 
55.00% 

1.00% 
0.91% 

$ 12.55 $ 

2011 

5.75 
40.00% 

1.06% 
2.43% 

10.00 
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The following table summarizes activity for PBF LLC Series A compensatory warrante and options for the years 
ended December 31,2013,2012 and 2011: 

Number of 
PBF LLC 
Series A 

CcHnpensatoiy 
Vftrrants 

and Options 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
COitractuv 

Life 
(in years) 

691,320 
1,171,759 

(25,000) 
(2,500) 

10.00 
10.00 
10,00 
10.00 

9.74 
10.00 

1,835.579 $ 
205,000 

(849.186) 
(6,667) 

1.184.726 $ 

(301,979) 
(41,668) 
841,079 $ 

10.00 
12.55 
10.00 
10.00 
10.44 

10.11 
11.27 
10.52 

8.99 
10.00 

8.23 

— 

7.40 
545,247 $ 
608,039 $ 
841,079 $ 

10.24 
10.00 
10.52 

7.23 
8.00 
7.40 

Stock-based awards, outetanding Januaiy 1,2011 
Oranted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outetanding at December 31,2011 
Oranted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outetanding at December 31,2012 
Oranted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outetanding at December 31.2013 
Exercisable and vested at December 31,2013 
Exercisable and vested at December 31,2012 
Expected to vest at December 31,2013 

The total estimated fair value of PBF LLC Series A warrante and options granted in 2012 and 2011 was $1,207 
and $2,116, respectively, and the weighted average fair value pa unit was $5.89 and $1.81, respectively. The total 
infrinsic value of stock options outetanding and exercisable at December 31,2013, was $17,612 and $11,569, 
respectivety. The total infrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended Decemba 31,2013,2012. 
and 2011 was $4,298, $13,112. and $0. respectivety. 

Unrecognized compensation expense related to PBF LLC Series A warrante and options at Decemba 31,2013 
was $595, which will be recognized in 2014 and 2015. 

As of December 31.2013 and 2012. members of management ofthe Company had also purchased an aggregate 
of 2,740,718 non-compensatory Saies A warrante m PBF LLC with an exercise price of $10.00 per unit all of 
which were immediately exercisable. During the year ended December 31,2012,2,672,299 ofthe wairante were 
exercised, with a portion being exercised on a cashless basis. At December 31,2013 and December 31,2012, there 
were 68,419 non-compensatory warrante outetanding. 

PBF LLC Series B Units 

PBF LLC Series B Unite were issued and allocated to certain members of management during die years aided 
December 31,2011 and 2010. One-quarter ofthe PBF LLC Series B Unite vested at the time of grant and the 
remaining three-quarters vested in equal annual installmente on each ofthe first three anniversaries ofthe grant 
date, subject to accelerated vesting upon certam evente. The Saies B Units folty vested during the year aided 
December 31,2013. 
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The following table summarizes aaivity for PBF LLC Sales B Unite for the years ended Decemba 31,2013, 
2012 and 2011: 

Non-vested unite at January 1,2011 
Allocated 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Non-vested unite at December 31,2011 
Allocated 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Non-vested unite at Decemba 31,2012 
Allocated 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Non-vested unite at December 31,2013 

Number of 
PBF LLC 

Series B units 

712,500 
50,000 

(262,500) 

500,000 

(250,000) 

250,000 

(250,000) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant I^te 
Fair Value 

^̂ " 

5.11 
5.11 
5.11 

5.11 

5.11 

5.11 

5.11 

— $ _ 

PBF Ene i^ options 

The Company grante awards of ite Class A common stock under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan which authorizes 
the granting of various stock and stock-related awards to employees, prospective anployees and non-employees. 
Awards include options to purchase shares of Class A common stock and resfriaed Class A common stock tiiat 
vrat over a period determined by the plan. 

A total of 697,500 and 682,500 options to purchase shares of PBF Energy Class A common stock were granted to 
certain employees and management of tiie Company in the year ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. 
The PBF Energy options vest over equal annual installmente on each ofthe first four anniversaries ofthe grant 
date subject to acceleration in certain circumstances. The options are exercisable for ten years fix)m the date of 
grant 

The estimated fair value of PBF Energy options granted during the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 was 
determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

Expected life (in years) 
Expected volatility 
Dividend yjetd 
Risk-free rate of return 
Exercise price 

December 31, 
2013 

6.25 
52,1% 
4 .43% 

1.53% 

December 31, 
2012 

6.25 
51.0% 
3.01% 
0.89% 

27.79 26.00 
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The following table summarizes activity for PBF Energy options for the year ended December 31,2013 and 2012. 
There were no options granted, exacised or forfeited prior to 2012. 

Number of 
PBFEnergy 

Class A 
Common 

Stock Options 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price _ 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 
_ (in years) 

Stock-based awards, outetanding at January 1,2012 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outetanding at Decemba 31,2012 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Outetanding at December 31,2013 

Exercisable and vested at December 31,2013 
Exercisable and vested at December 31.2012 
Expected to vest at December 31,2013 

^_ 
682,500 

,— 

^ -
682,500 
697.500 

: •-

(60,000) 
1,320,000 

158,125 
— 

1,320,000 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

• ^ _ 

26.00 
^ 
— 

26.00 
27.79 

—̂ 
25.36 
26.97 
26.00 

__ 

26.97 

• — 

10.00 
— 

: 
9.95 

10.00 
__ 

— 
9.33 
8.95 

— 
9.33 

The total estimated fair value of PBF Energy options granted in 2013 and 2012 was $6,499 and $6,327 and die 
weighted average per unit value was $9.32 and $9.27. TTie total intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and 
exercisable at December 31,2013, was $6,756 and $863, respeaively. 

Unrecognized compensation expense related to PBF Energy options at December 31,2013 was $10,140, which 
will be recognirad from 2014 through 2017. 

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Company's defined confribution plan covers all employees. Employees are eligible to participate as of the 
first day ofthe month following 30 days of service. Participante cwn make basic confributions up to 50 percent of 
their annual salary subject to Internal Revenue Service limite. The Company matches participante' contributions 
at the rate of 200 percent ofthe first 3 percent of each participant's total basic contribution based on tiie participant's 
total annual salary. The Company's contribution to the qualified defined confribution plans was $10,450, $9,969 
and $7,204 for the years ended December 31,2013. 2012 and 2011. respectively. 

Defined Benefit and Post Retiree Medical Plans 

The Company sponsors a nonconfributoty defined baiefit pension plan (the "Qualified Plan") with a policy to 
fund pension liabilities in accordance widi the limite imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act 
of 1974 ("ERISA'O and Fedaal income tax laws. In addhion. the Company sponsors a supplemental pension plan 
covering certain employees, which provides incremental paymente that would have been payEd)le from the 
C(»npany's principal pension plan, were it not for limitations imposed by income tax regulations. The funded status 
is measured as the difference between plan assete at fair value and die projected benefit obligation which is to be 
recognized in the balance sheet. The plan assete and benefit obligations are measured as ofthe balance sheet date. 

The non-union Delaware City employees and all Paulsboro and Toledo employees became eligible to participate 
in the Company's defined benefit plans as ofthe respective acquisition dates. The union Delaware City employees 
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became eligible to participate tn the Company's defined benefit plans upon commencemait of normal operations. 
The Company did not assume any ofthe employees' pension liability accrued prior to the respeaive acquisitions. 

The Company formed the Post Retirement Medical Plan on December 31,2010 to provide healtii care coverage 
continuation from date of retirement to age 65 for qualifying anployees associated with the Paulsboro acquisition. 
The Company credited the qualifying employees with their prior service under Valero which resulted in the 
recognition of a liability for the projected benefit obligation. The Post Retirement Medical Plan was amended 
during 2013 to include all corporate employees. 

The changes in the benefit obligation, the changes in fan-value of plan assas, and the fonded status ofthe Company's 
Pension and Post Retirement Medical Plans as of and for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 were as 
follows: 

Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cost 
Intaest cost 

Plan amendmente 
Benefit paymente 

Aauarial loss (gain) 
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 
Change In plan assete: 

Fair value of plan assete at beginning of year 

Actual return on plan assete 
Benefite paid 
Employer confributions 

Fair value of plan assete at end of year 
Reconciliation of funded stetus: 

Fair value of plan assete at end of year 

Less benefit obligations at end of year 

Funded stetus at end of year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$. 

$ 

$ 

Pension Plans 

2013 

30.215 $ 

14,794 

992 
— 

(663) 
8.012 

53,350 $ 

10,232 $ 

33 
(663) 

15.448 
25.050 ;$ 

25,050 $ 
53,350 

(28,300) $ 

2012 

11,409 $ 

11,437 
502 

• — 

(48) 

6,916 

30,215 $ 

4.758 $ 
422 
(48) 

5,100 
10,232 $ 

10.232 $ 

30,215 

09,983) $ 

Post Retirement 
Medical Plan 

2013 2012 

9.730 $ 

726 
334 

(860) 

(51) 
(1,654) 

8,225 $ 

— $ 

— 

(51) 

51 . 

— $ 

— $ 
8,225 

(8.225) $ 

8,912 

633 
395 
^ -

(21) 
(189) 

9,730 

— 
— 

(21) 

21 
;—-

• — 

9,730 
(9,730) 

The accumulated benefit obligations for the Company's Pension Plans exceed the fair value ofthe assete of those 
plans at December3l. 2013 and 2012. The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit plans 
approximated $45,005 and $24,555 at December 31,2013 and 2012. respectively. 
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Benefit paymente. which refiect expected future services, that the Company expecte to pay are as follows for the 
years endai December 31: 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Years 2019-2024 

Pension Benefits 

$ 6.493 
3.758 
4,922 
7.123 
9.161 

58,480 

Post Retirement 
Medical Plan 

$ 176 
278 
329 
445 
528 

4,330 

Tlie Company's fonding policy for ite defined benefit plans Is to confribute amounts sufficient to mea legal fonding 
requiremente, plus any additional amounte that m ^ be appropriate considering the funded stetus ofthe plans, tax 
consequences, the cash fiow generated by the Company and other faaors. The Company plans to contribute 
approximatety $15,500 to the Company's Pension Plans during 2014. 

The componenteofna periodic benefit cost were as follows fortheyearsendedDecember31.2013,2012 and 
2011: 

Componente of net period 
benefit cost 

Service cost 
Intaest cost 
Expected return on plan 
assete 
Amortization of prior 
service cost 
Amortization of actuarial 
loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

$ 

$ 

Pension Benefits 

2013 

14,794 $ 

992 

(550) 

11 

421 
15,668 $ 

2012 

11.437 
502 

(323) 

11 

30 
11.657 

$ 

_$_ 

2011 

8,678 
140 

(38) 

11 

56 
8,847 

$ 

S_ 

2013 

726 
334 

, 

1.060 

Post Retirement 
Medical Plan 

2012 

$ 633 
395 

, ,, 

. i 

$ 1.028 

2011 

$ 540 
381 

, 

i 

$ 921 

The pre-tax amounte recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) forthe years ended December 31.2013, 
2012 and 2011 were as follows: 

PostRetiremoit 
Pension B«iefits Medical Plwi 

2013 2012 20M 2013 2012 201t 

Prior service costs (credite) $ — $ — $ — $ (860) $ — $ — 
Na actuarial loss (gain) 8,235 6.817 661 (1,654) (189) 738 
Amortization of losses and prior 
service cost (432) (41) (67) j - — — 
Total changes in other 
comprehensive loss (mcome) $ 7.803 $ 6.776 $ 594 $ (2.514) $ (189) $ 738 
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The pre-tax amounte in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31,2013 and 2012 that have not 
yet been recognized as componente of net periodic coste were as follows: 

Prior service (coste) credite 
Net actuarial (loss) gain 
Total 

Pension Benefits 
2013 2012 

S (92) $ (103) $ 
(16,419) _ (8.306) 

$ 06.511) $ (8.409) $ 

Post Rettremcmt 
Medical Plan 

2013 2012 

860 $ — 
1,126 (528) 
1,986 $ (528) 

The following pre-tax amounte included in accumulated otha comprehensive loss as of Decemba 31,2013 are 
expected to be recognized as componente of net period benefit cost during the year ended December 31,2014: 

Amortization of prior service coste (credite) 
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain) 
Total 

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations as of December 31,2013 and 2012 
wae as follows: 

Pension Benefits 

$ 11 
889 

$ 900 

Post Retirement 
Medical Plan 

$ (81) 
(21) 

$ (102) 

Pension Benefits Post Retirement Medical Plan 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

4.55% 
4.64% 

3.45% 
4% 

4.55% 3.45% 

The discount rate assumptions used to determine the defined benefit and Post Retfrement Medical plans obligations 
as of Decanber 31,2013 and 2012 were based on the Mercer Yield Curve. The Merca Yield Curve is developed 
from a portfolio of high-quality investment grade bonds. To determine the discount rate, each year's projected cash 
fiow forthe defined benefit and Post RairanentMedical plans is discounted ataspot(zero-coupon)rate appropriate 
for that maturity: the discount rate is the single equivalent rate that produces die same discounted present value. 

The weighted average assumptions used to daerminethe net periodic benefit coste fordieyears ended December 31, 
2013,2012 and 2011 were as follows: 

Discount rate 
Expected long-term rate of return 
on plan assete 
Rate of compensation increase 

Pension Benefits 

2013 

3.45% 

3.50% 
4% 

2012 

4.45% 

4.25% 
4% 

2011 

5.25% 

4.25% 
4% 

. Post R 

2013 

3.45% 

^_ 

^ 

Post Retirement Medical Plan 

2012 2011 

4.45% 5.25% 
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The assumed health care cost trend rates as of Decemba 31.2013 and 2012 were as follows: 

Health care cost frend rate assumed for next year 
Rate to which the cost frend rate was assumed to decline (the uhimate 
trend rate) 
Year that the rate reached tiie ultimate trend rate 

2013 

Post Retirement 
Medical Plan 

6.8% 

4.5% 
2027 

2012 

7.0% 

4.5% 
2027 

Assumed health care coste frend rates have a significant effect on the amounte reported for retiree health care plans. 
A one percentage-potiit change in assumed health care coste trend rates would have the following effecte on the 
medical postretirement benefite: 

Increase 
1% 

Decrease 

Effect on totel of service and interest cost componente 
Effect on accumulated posfretirement benefit obligation 

159 $ 
907 

(135) 
(794) 

The tables below present the fair values ofthe assete ofthe Company's Qualified Plan as of E>ecehiber 31,2013 
and 2012 by level of fmr value hierarchy. Assete categorized in Level 1 ofthe hierarchy are measured at iair value 
using a market approach based on published net assa values of mutual fonds. As noted above, ttie Company's post 
retirement medical plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and has no assete. 

Fair Value Measurements Using 
Quoted Prices in Active Maricets 

(Uvel 1) 

Decembers!, 

2013 . 2012 

Equities: 
Domestic equities 
Developed international equities 
Emerging maricet equities 
Global low volatility equities 

Fixed-income 
Government securities: 

Vanguard intermediate-Term Treasury Fund 
Cash and cash equivalente 
Totel 

7.603 
3,685 
1,775 
2.132 
9.855 

10.232 

• $ 25.050 $ 10,232 

The Company's investment strategy for ite Qualified Plan is to achieve a reasonable return on assete that supporte 
the plan's interest cr^it rating, subject to a moderate level of portfolio risk that jHOvides liquidity. Consistent with 
these financial objectives as of Decemba 31,2013. die plan's target allocations for plan assete are 60% invested 
in equhy securities and 40% fixed income investmente. Equity securities include international stocks and a blend 
of U.S. growth and value stocks of various sizes of capitalization. Fixed income securities include bonds and notes 
issued by the U.S. government and ite agencies, corporate bonds, and mortage-backed securities. The aggregate 
assa allocation is reviewed on an annual basis. 

Tlie ovaall expected long-term rate of return on plan assete for the Quedified Plan is b^ed on the Company's 
view of long-term expectations and asset mix.. 
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17. REVENUES 

The following table provides information relating to tiie Company's revenues fixim external customers for each 
product or group of similar products for the periods: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Gasoline and distillates 
Chemicals 
Lubricante 
Clarified slurry oil 
Asphalt and residual oils 
Liquefied pefroleum gases 
Otiia 

2013 

$ 16,973,239 
746,396 
468.315 
357,580 
332.725 
260,181 

13,019 
$ 19.151,455 

$ 

S 

2012 

17,878,957 
705.373 
517,921 
272,220 
370,420 
380,747 

13.049 
20,138.687 

$ 

$ 

,2011 

13.182.234 
344.311 
525.095 

— 
441,638 
430,435 

36,625 
14.960,338 

18. INCOME TAXES 

PBFEnergy 

For periods followmg PBF Enagy's IPO, PBF Eneigy is required to file federal and ^pUcabte stete corporate 
income tax returns and recognizes income taxes on ite pre-tax income, which to-date has consisted primarily of 
ite share (approximatety 24.4% prior to the Secondary Offering and approximately 40.9% subsequem to die 
Secondary Offering) of PBF LLC's pre-tax mcome. PBF LLC is organized as a timhed liability company which 
is treated as a "fiow-through" entity for income tax purposes and therefore is not subject to income taxes. As a 
result fr>6 PBF Energy consolidated financial statements do not refiect a benefit or provision for income taxes for 
PBF LLC for periods prior to the IPO or any benefit or provision for income taxes on the pre-tax income or loss 
attributeble to the nonconfrolling interest in PBF LLC. 

The income tax provision in the PBF Enagy consolidated fmancial statemente of operations consiste of die 
following: 

Year Ended 
DccciolKr31, 

2013 

Year Ended 
December 3 t 

2012 

Current expense: 
Federal 
State 

Total current 

Deferred expense: 
Federal 
State 

Total deferred 

Total provisi<xi for income taxes 

$ — $ -— 

. ™ . _ 

$ 

15,406 
1,275 

16.681 

16,681 $ 

1,134 
141 

1,275 

1,275 
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The difference between die PBF Energy's effective income tax rate and the United States statutory rate is reconciled 
below: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2013 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2012 

Provision at Federal statotory rate 
Increase (decrease) atfributable to fiow-through of certain tax 
adjustmente: 

State income taxes (net of federal income tax) 
Non deduaible/nontaxable hems 
Adjustment to deferred tax assete and liabilities for change m 
taxiatesdue to busmess mix 
Otiier 
Effective tax rate 

35.0 % 35.0% 

5.0 % 
7.0 % 

(14.5)% 
(2.8)% 
29.7 % 

4.4% 
—% 

—% 
0.1% 

39.5% 

A summary ofthe components of deferred tax assete and deferred tax liabilities follows: 

Deferred tax assete 
Purch^e intaest step-up 
Na operating loss carry forwards 
Other 

Total deferred tax assete 
Valuation allowances 

Total deferred tax assete. net 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment 
Inventoiy 
Otiier 

Totel defared tax liabilities 

Net defared tax assete (liabilhies) 

December 31.2013 

$ 310,132 
14,327 
21,423 

345.882 

345,882 

140,330 
9,390 
1399 

151,119 

$ 194,763 

December 31,2012 

$ 181,257 
6,087 
9,503 

196,847 

196.847 

69,088 
6,534 

646 

76,268 

$ 120.579 

PBF Energy has federal and state income tax net operating loss carry forwards of $37.139 and $23.641. respectivety, 
which will expire at various dates from 2022 through 2033. 
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Income tax years tiiat remain subject to examination by material jurisdiaions, where an examination has not already 
concluded are all years including and subsequent to: 

United Stetes 
Federal 2012 
New Jersey 2012 
Michigan 2012 
Delaware 2012 
Indiana 2012 
Pennsylvania 2012 
New York 2012 

PBF Eneigy does not have any unrecognized tax benefite. 

PBF Holding 

PBF Holding is a limited liability company freated as a "fiow-through" entity for income tax puiposes. Accordingly 
there is nobenefitorprovision for federal or state income tax in the accompanying PBFHoldlng financial statemente. 
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19. NET INCOME PER SHARE OF PBF ENERGY 

The following teble sete forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per Class A common share 
attributable to PBF Energy for the periods subsequent to the IPO: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2013 Basic Earnings Per Share: 

Numerator for basic net income per Class A common share na income 
attributeble to PBF Energy $ 39,540 $ 

Denominator for basic net income pa Class A common share-weighted 
average shares 32,488,369 

Basic net income atfributable to PBF Energy per Class A common share "$ ^ 1.22 "$" 

2012 

1.956 

23,570,240 

0.08 

Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Numerator: 

Net income attributable to PBF Energy Inc. $ 
Plus: Net income atfributable to nonconfrolling interest ̂ '̂  

Less: Income tax on net income per Class A common share *'* 

Numerator for diluted net income per Class A common share net income 
attributeble to PBF Energy "* $ 

39,540 $ 

39,540 $ 

1,956 
10,005 
(3,948) 

8.013 

Denominator *'*: 

Denominator for basic na income per Class A common share-weighted 
average shares 32,488,369 23.570,240 

Effect of dilutive securhies: 
Conversion of PBF LLC Series A Unite 
Common stock equivalente *̂^ 

Denommator for diluted net income pa common share-adjusted 
weighted average shares 33,061,081 97.230,904 

Diluted net income atdrlbutable to PBF Energy per Class A common ' 
share $ 1.20 $ 0.08 

— 72,972.131 

572,712 688,533 

(1) The diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended Decemba 31, 2012, assumes the 
conversion of all outetanding PBF LLC Series A Unhs to Class A common stock of PBF Energy as of 
the date ofthe IPO. The na income atfributable to PBF Ener^. used in the numerator ofthe diluted 
earnings per share calculation is adjusted to refiect the net income, as well as the coiresponding income 
tax (based on a 39.5% effective tax rate) attributable to the convated unite. For the year ended 
December 31.2013, the potential conversion of 64,164,045 PBF LLC Series A Unite was excluded 
from die denominates' in computing diluted net income per share because including them would have 
had an anttdilutive effect. As the PBF LLC Series A Unite were not included, die numerator used in 
the calculation of diluted net income per share was equal to the numerator used in die calculation of 
basic net income per share and does not include the net income and related income tax expense 
associated witii the potential conversion of tiie PBF LLC Series AUnits. 

F-52 



PBF ENERGY INC. AND 
PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE. UNIT, PER SHARE, PER UNIT AND BARREL DATA) 

(2) Represente an adjustment to weighted-average diluted shares outetanding to assume the foil exchange 
of common stock equivalente, including options and warrante for PBF LLC Series AUnite and options 
for shares of PBF Energy Class A commtm stock. Common stock equivalents excludes the effecte of 
options to purchase 1,320,000 and 682,500 shares of PBF Energy Class A common stock because t h^ 
are anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respeaivety. 

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The tables below present infonnation about the Company's financial assas and liabilities measured and recorded 
at fair value on a recurring basis and indicate the fair value hierarchy ofthe inpute utilized to determine tiie fair 
values as of December 31,2013 and 2012, 

December 31,2013 

Assets: 
Mon^ market fonds 

Non-qualified pension plan assete 
Commodity contracte 

Derivatives included with inventory 
intermediation agreement 
obligations 

Liabilities: 

Commodity contracte 
Daivatives included whh inventory 

suppty arrangement obligations 
Catetyst lease obligations 

Level 1 

$ 5,857 
4,905 

4,252 

-~ 

_ 

Level 1 

Level 2 

$ _ 

^ 
6,681 

6,016 

6,989 

177 
53,089 

Level 3 

$ — 3 
— 

— 

23.365 

— 

December 31,2012 
Level 2 Level 3 

Total 

5.857 

4,905 
10,933 

6,016 

30.354 

177 
53,089 

Total 

Assete: 
Money marka fonds 
Commodity confracte 
Derivatives included with inventoiy 

supply arrangement obligations 
Liabilities: 

Catalyst lease obligations 

Commodity confracts 

Contingent consideration for refineiy 
acquisition 

175,786 $ 

3,303 

5,595 

43,442 

1,872 

21,358 

175,786 
3,303 

5,595 

43,442 

1.872 

21,358 

The valuation mediods used to measure financial Insfrumente at fm value are as follows: 

• Mon^ market fonds categorized ui Level 1 ofthe fair vaiue hierarchy are measured at fotr value based 
on quoted market prices and included witiiin cash and cash equivalente. 

• Non-qualified pension plan assete categorized in Level 1 ofthe hiaarchy are measured at folr value using 
a maricet f^proach based on fHiblished net asset values of mutual funds and included within deferred 
charges and other assete, na. 
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• The commodity contracte categorized in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are measured at foir value 
based on quoted prices in an active marka. The commodity contracte categorized in Level 2 ofthe fair 
value hierarchy are measured at fair value using a marka approach based upon fotore commodity prices 
for similar insfrumente quoted in active markete. 

• The commodity confracte categorized in Level 3 of die fan- value hierarchy consist of commodity price 
swap contracte that relate to forecasted purchases of crude oil for which quoted forward market prices 
are not readily available due to market illiquidity. The forward price used to value these s\vaps was daived 
using broker quotes, prices from other third party sources and other available market based date. 

• The derivatives included with inventory supply arrangement obligations, derivatives included widi 
inventoiy intermediation agreement obligations and the catalyst leasebbligations are categorized in Level 
2 ofthe fair value hierarchy and are measured at fair value using amarket approach based upon commodity 
prices for similar instrumente quoted in active markete. 

• The contingent consideration for refinery acquisition obligation at December 31,2012 is categorized in 
Level 3 of the fair value hiaarchy and is estimated using a discounted cash fiow model based on 
management's estimate ofthe foture cash flows ofthe Toledo refinery; a risk free rate of return of 0.16%; 
credit rate spread of 4.38%; and a discount rate of 4.54%. During the year ended December 31.2013, 
there was no change in fiiir value, as the obligatioii was known and was paid in foil on April 30.2013. 

The teble below summarizes the changes in fair value measuremente of contingent consideration for refinery 
acquisition cat^orized in Level 3 ofthe fair value hierarchy: 

Year Ended December 31, _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ 

Balance at begiiming of period $ 21,358 $ 122,232 
Purchases — — 

Settlemente (21,358) (103.642) 
Unrealized loss mcluded in earnings — 2,768 
Transfers into Level 3 — —• 
Transfers out of Level 3 ~ — 

Balance at end of period $ — $ 21,358 

The table below summarizes tiie changes in fair value measuremente of commodity contracte categorized in Level 
3 ofthe feir value hierarchy: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Balance at beginning of period $ —r- $ — 

Purchases — — 

Settlemente 24,678 -

Unrealized loss included in earnings (48.043) — 

Transfers into Level 3 — —̂ 

TYansfers out of Level 3 -_̂  _ 

Balance at end of period $ (23,365) $ ~ 
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There were no transfers between levels during the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012. respectively. 

Fair value of debt 

The table below summarizes the fair value and cariying value as of December 31,2013 and 2012. 

December 31,2013 December 31,2012 

Carirving Fair :Cflfrvin2 Fair 
value value value value 

Senior Secured Notes (a) $ 667.487 $ 697,568 $ 666.538 $ 700,963 
Revolver (b) 15,000 15,000 ~ — 
Catalyst leases (c) 

Less - Current maturities 

Long-term debt $ 

53,089 
735,576 

12,029 

723,547 $ 

53,089 
765,657 

12.029 

753,628 $ 

43.442 
709.980 

709,980 $ 

43,442 
744,405 

744,405 

(a) The estimated fair value, categorized as a Level 2 measurement was calculated based on the present value of 
future expected paymente utilizing implied current marica interest rates based on quoted prices ofthe Senior 
Secured Notes. 

(b) The estimated foir value approximates carrying value, categorized asaLevel2measurement as these borrowings 
bear interest based upon short-term fioating maiket mterest rates. 

(c) Catalyst leases are valued using a market approach based upon commodity prices for similar instrumente quoted 
in aaive markete and are categorized as a Level 2 measurement. The Company has elected the foir value optk)n 
for accounting for ite catatyst lease repurchase obligations as the Company's liability is directty impacted tty the 
change in foir value ofthe undalying catalyst. 

21. DERIVATIVES 

The Company uses derivative instrumente to mitigate certain exposures to commodity price risk. The Company's 
crude supply agreemente contain purchase obligations for certain volumes of crude oil and other feedstocks. In 
addition, the Company entered into Inventory Intermediation Agreemente commencing in July 2013 that contain 
purchase obligations for certain volumes of intermediates and refined producte. The Company was also party to 
an agreement that contained purchase obligations for certain volumes of stored intamediates inventory during die 
year ended December 31,2012, which was terminatal during the first quarta of 2012. The purchase obligations 
related to crude oil, feedstocks, intermediates and refined producte under these agreemente are derivative 
insteumente that have been designated as foir value hedges in order to hedge the commodity price volatility of 
certain refinery inventory. The feir value of these purchase obligation derivatives is based on maiket prices of 
crude oil and refined producte in die foture. The level of aaivity for tiiese derivatives is based on the level of 
operating inventories. 

As ofDecember 31,2013. there were 838.829 barrels of crude oil and feedstocks (2,529.447barrels at Decemba 31. 
2012) outetanding unda diese derivative instrumente designated as fofr value hedges and no barrels (no barrels at 
December 31.2012) outetanding under these derivative instrumente not designated as hedges. As ofDecember 31, 
2013, tiiere were 3.274,047 barrels of Intamediates and refined producte (no barrels at December 31. 2012) 
outstanding under these derivative instrumente designated as fair value hedges and no barrels (no barrels at 
December3I. 2012) outstanding unda these derivative instrumente not designated as hedges. These volumes 
represent the notional value ofthe contract 
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The Company also enters into economic hedges primarity consisting of commodity derivative contracte that are 
not designated as hedges and are used to manage price volatility in certain crude oil and feedstock inventories as 
well as crude oil, feedstock, and refined product sates or purchases. The objective in entering mto economic hedges 
is consistent with the objeaives discussed above for fair value hedges. As of December 31. 2013, there were 
43,199,000 barrels of aude oil and no barrels of refined producte (9,234.000 and 1.310.000, respectivety. as of 
Decemba 31, 2012), outstanding under short and long term commodity daivative contracte not designated as 
hedges representing die notional value ofthe contracts. 

The following tables provide information ^out the fair values of these derivative instruments as ofDecember 31, 
2013 and December 31, 2012 and the line items in the consolidated balance sheet in which the fair values are 
refleaed. 

Description Fair Value 
Balance Sheet Asset/ 

Location (Liability) 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments: 
December 31,2013: 
Derivatives included with inventory supply urangement obligations 
Daivatives included with the inventory intermediation agreement 
obligations 

Decern ber 31,2012: 
Derivatives included with inventory supply arrangement obligations 
Daivatives included with the faiventory intermediation agreement 
obligations 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumente: 
December 31,2013: 
Commodity contracte 
December 31,2012: 

Commodity confracte 

Accrued expenses $ (177) 

Accrued expenses $ 6,016 

Accrued expenses $ 5.595 

Accrued expenses $ — 

Accrued expenses $ (19,421) 

$ 1,431 
Accounte 
receivable 

The Company's policy is to na the fafr value of the derivatives included with inventory supply arrangement 
obligations and inventory intermediation agreement obligations against the liabilities related to inventory supply 
arrangemente and inventory intermediation agreements with the same counterparty as the legal right of offset existe. 
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The following tables provide information abouttheg£un or loss recognized in mcome on th^e derivative uistruments 
and the line itans in the consolidated financial statemente In which such gains and tosses are refiected. 

Description 

Location of Gain 
or (Loss) 

Recognized in 
Income on 

Derivatives 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Gain or (Loss) 
Recognized in 

Income on 
Periyatiyes 

$ (5,773) 

$ 6,016 

$ 7.060 

$ (6.076) 

Derivatives designated as hed^ng instrumente: 
For the year elided December 31,2013: 
Derivatives included with inventory suppty airangement obligations 
Derivatives included with the inventory intermediation agreement 
obligations 
For the year ended December 31,2012: 
Derivatives included witii inventory suppty arrangement obligations 

For the year ended December 31,2011 

Derivatives included with inventory supply arrangement obligations 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumente: 
For the year ended December 31,2013: 
Derivatives included with inventoiy suppty arrmigement obligations 

Commodity contracte 
For the year ended December 31,2012: 
Derivatives included with inventory supply anwigement obligations 
Commodity confracte 

For the year ended December 31,2011 
Derivatives included with inventory suppty arrangement obligations 
Commodity contracte 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 
Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

(88,962) 

(8) 
34,778 

2.829 
5,604 

Hedged items designated In fair value hedges: 
For the year ended December 31,2013: 
Crude oil and feedstock inventory 
Intermediate and refined produa inventory 
For the year ended December 31,2012: 
Crude oil and feedstock inventory 
For the year ended December 31,2011 
Crude oil and feedstock invemoiy 

Cost of sales 
Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

(1.491) 
(6,016) 

(4.704) 

6,558 

Inefiecttveness related to the Company's fair value hedges resulted in a loss of $7,264 and gains of $2,356 and 
$482 for the years ended December 31,2013.2012 and 2011, respectively, recorded in cost of sales. Gains and 
losses due to ineffectiveness, resulting fi-om the difference In tiie forward and spot rates ofthe underlying crude 
inventory related to the derivatives mcluded with inventory supply arrangement oblig^ions. were excluded from 
the assessment of hedge effectiveness. 
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22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Secondary Offering 

On January 6,2014, Blackstone and First Reserve completed a public offaing of 15.000.000 shares of our Class 
A common stock at aprice of $28.00 per share. less underwriting discounte and commissions, in a secondary public 
offering. All of tiie shares were sold by fonds affiliated witii Blackstone and First Reserve. In connection witii 
this offaing, Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged 15.000,000 Series A Units of PBF LLC frir an equivalait 
number of shares of our Class A common stock, which Increased PBF Eneigy's interest in PBF LLC to approximately 
56.4%. Completion ofthe January 2014 Secondary Offering is estimated to increase our tax receivable agreement 
liability to $439.6 million due to the tax benefit expected to be generated as a resuh ofthe exchange in connection 
with the secondary offering and the corresponding tax benefite expected to be generated in futore years from this 
transaction. 

Dividend Declared 
On February 11,2014, the Company's Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.30 per share on outstanding 
Class A common stock. The dividend is pay^le on March 14,2014 to Class A common stockholders of record 
at the close of business on March 4,2014. 

Related Party 

On January 31,2014, the Company entered into a consuhing services agreement with Donald F. Luc^. the forma 
Executive Vice President, Commercial, to provide consuhing services relating to commercial opaations. 
Canpensation forthe services perfonned will include an annual retainer of $10 pa calendar year paid quarterty 
in arrears and a daily rate of $2 for days actually engaged in performing services, with partial days prorated. Mr. 
Lucey will also receive severance compensation and be entitled to continued vesting in any outetanding equity 
awards granted to him under the Company's equity incaitive plans, consistent with the terms of tiiose plans. The 
consulting service agreement expires on December 31,2016, subject to certein earty termination righte. 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 

PBF Services Company, Delaware City Refining Company LLC, Delaware Pipeline Company LLC, PBF Powa 
Marketing LLC, Paulsboro Refinmg Company LLC, Paulsboro Natural Gas Pipeline Company LLC, Toledo 
Refining Company LLC and PBF Investmente LLC are 100% owned subsidiaries of PBF Holding and serve as 
guarantors of the obligations under the Senior Secured Notes. These guarantees are foil and unconditional and 
jointandseveral. For purposes ofthe following footoote, PBF Holding is referred to as "Issuer." The indenture 
dated February 9,2012, among PBF Holding, PBF Finance, the guarantors party thereto and Witmmgton TYust 
National Association, governs subsidiaries designated as "Guarantor Subsidiaries." PBF Logistics LP, PBF Rail 
Logistics Company LLC and Delaware City Terminaling Company LLC are consolidated subsidiaries of the 
Company that are not guarantors of tiie Senior Secured Notes. 

The Senior Secured Notes were co-issued by PBF Finance. For purposes ofthe following footnote. PBF Finance 
is referred to as "Co-Issuer." The Co-Issuer has no independent assete or operations. 

The following supplemental combining and consolidating financial information refiecte the Issua's separate 
{K»x}unts, the combined accounte ofthe Guarantor Subsidiaries, the combining and consolidating adjustmente and 
eliminationsandtiielssuer'sconsolidatedaccounteforthedatesandperiods indicated. For purposes of diefollowing 
combining and consolidating information, the Issuer's Investments in ite subsidiaries and die Guarantor 
Subsidiaries' investmente in Ite subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. 

PBF Holding has determined that a correction to the previousty presented 2012 consolidating financial information 
presented in the following statemente was necessary to refiect intercompany transactions between the Issuer and 
the Guarantor Subsidiaries. During the year ended Decemba31,2012. sales tothird parties were made and recorded 
by the Issuer, but tiie product sold was owned and delivered by the Guarantor Subsidiaries which recorded the 
related cost of sales. For that year ended, correcting entries totaling approximatety $2.469.911 has been refiected 
in the consolidating information. In order to record the intercompany sale of product on tiie Guarantor Subsidiaries 
and an equal amount of cost of sales on the Issuer, a correaing entry was recorded for $1,909,976. There was an 
addhional correcting entty for $559,935 to record the intercompany sale of product on the Issua as a resuh of a 
refinement to the allocation of coste between the Issuer and the Guar^tor Subskliaries. These coste were initially 
transferred to the Guarant(»' Subsidiaries by reducing cost of sales on the Issuer rather than the recording of an 
intercompany sale. All such intercompany activity was then eliminated in consolidation and, therefore, had no 
effea on the PBF Holding's reported consolidated financial statemente. Tlie effect of these adjustments increased 
net income ofthe Guarantor Subsidiaries by $1,909,976 for the year ended December 31,2012. On tiie Issuer, 
there was an inaease in revenues of $559,935 and an increase in cost of sales of $2,469,911 resulting in adecrease 
to income from operations of $ 1,909,976. That decrease to income from operations was completely o f^ t by the 
increase in the Issuer's equity in the earnings ofthe Guarantor Subsidiaries. The adjustmente mentioned above 
also affected the respective entities' mtercompany receivable/payable accounte and the Issuer's investment m 
subsidiaries account by $1,909,976 at December 31,2012. 
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2 3 . C O N S O L I D A T I N G F I N A N C I A L STATEMENTS O F P B F H O L D I N G 

C O N S O L I D A T I N G B A L A N C E S H E E T 

ASSETS 

Curreat assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Prepaid expense and other current 
assets 

Due from related parties 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Iiivestment in subsidiaries 

Deferred charges and odier assets, net 

Total assets 

Issuer 

$ 76,179 

588,385 

818.007 

49,251 

11,807,063 

13,338,885 

60.746 

3,584.622 

27,923 

$ 17,012,176 

December 31,2013 

Guamntor 
Siil»Idiarie$ 

$ 791 

8,262 

627,510 

6,592 

16.600,151 

17,243,306 

1,720,843 

— 
234,556 

S 19,198.705 

Noo-
GuantDtor 

SubiMiarfes 

$ _ 

— 
• r -

i w i 

• — 

-^ 

— 

_ 
— 

$ — 

Combining and 
Consolidating 
Adjustments 

$ — $ 
— 
^ 

_ 
(28,407,214) 

(28.407,214) 

— 
(3,584,622) 

— 
J (31,991.836) $ 

Tofa) 

76,970 

596.647 

1,445,517 

55,843 

,_-
2,174,977 

1.781.589 

— 
262,479 

4.219.045 

LUBILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current Utilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accnied expenses 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Deferred revenue 

Due to related parties 

Taal cunent liabilities 

% 307.612 $ 

606,388 

— 
7.766 

.13,589,263 

94,681 

604,557 

12,029 

• — • 

14.817,951 

— $ 

— (28.407,214) 

$ 402,293 

1.210,945 

12,029 

7,766 

14.511,029 15,529.218 — (28.407,214) 1,633.033 

Delaware Economic Development 
Autfiority loan 

Long-term debt 

Intercompany itotes pi^able 

Otha- long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

— 
682.487 

31.835 

14,672 

12,000 

41,060 

i — 

31.805 

15,240,023 15.614,083 

12,000 

723,547 

31,835 

46.477 

^ (28,407,214) 2.446,892 

Commitments and conting^cies 

Equity: 

Member's equity 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehenstve 
toss 

Total equity 

Taat liabilities and equity 

933,164 

853,527 

(14,538) 

1.772,153 

$ 17,012.176 

667.173 

2.915,720 

(667,173) 

(2.915,720) 

933,164 

853.527 

1.729 

3,584,622 

$ 19.198,705 $ 

— (1.729) (14.538) 

— (3,584,622) 1.772.153 

^ $ (31,991,836) $ 4,219.045 
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23. CONSOUDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 

Cuirent assete: 

Cash and cash equivalente 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Prepaid expense end other current 
assete 

Due from related parties 

Total current assete 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Investment in subsidiaries 

Deferred charges and other assets, net 

Totel assets 

LUBILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 

Accounte payable 
Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Due to related parties 

Total current liabilities 

Delaware Economic Development 
Audiority loan 

Long-term debt 

Other long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Issuer 

S 241,926 

306,999 

664,225 

8.835 

6,770.893 

7,992.878 

28,200 

2,855.598 

31,081 

t 10.907.757 

R 197.624 

363,536 
— 

7,926.481 

8,487.641 

666.538 

1,924 

9,156,103 

December 31,2012 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

$ 12,365 

196,797 

832,894 

4,553 

10,015.340 

11,061.949 

1.607.387 
— 

166,268 

$ 12.835.604 

$ 162,433 

662.382 

210,543 

8,845.031 

9,880.389 

20,000 

43,442 

36.175 

9.980,006 

Combining 
NOD- and 

Guarantor Consolidating 
Subsidiaries Adjustmente 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totel 

— $ — $ 254,291 
• _ — 

— — 

— _^ 

— (16,771,512) 

— (16,771,512) 

— —;. 

— (2,855,598) 
„ „ 

503,796 

1.497,119 

13.388 

14,721 

2,283,315 

1.635,587 
__ 

197,349 

— $ (19.627,110) $ 4.116.251 

— $ — $ 360.057 

• — — 

— — 
— (16,771,512) 

-— (16,771,512) 

__ _ -

— . — 
— (16,771,512) 

1,025,918 

210,543 

— 

1.596,518 

20,000 

709,980 

38,099 

2.364.597 

Commitmente and contingencies 

Equity: 

Member's equity 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive 
loss 

Total equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

930,098 

830,497 

(8.941) 
1,751,654 

664,108 

2,193,052 

(1,562) 
2,855,598 

i 10,907,757 $ 12,835.604 $ 

r r -

— 

— ~ 
— $ 

(664,108) 

(2,193,052) 

1,562 
(2.835.598) 

930,098 

830,497 

(8,941) 
1,751.654 

(19.627,110) $ 4,116.251 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

Non- Combining and 
Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating 

Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustmente Total 

Revenues $16,190,178 $7,641,498 $ — $ (4,680.221) $ 19,151,455 

Coste and expenses: 
Cost of sales, excluding 
depreciation 

Operating expenses, 
excluding depreciation 

General and administrative 
expenses 
(Gain) loss on ^le of asset 
Depreciation and amortization 
expense 

16,486.851 

(482) 

82,284 

(388) 

5.996,684 

813.134 

13,510 

205 

12,856 98,623 

(4,680,221) 17,803,314 

— 812.652 

— 95.794 

— (183) 

— 111,479 

16.581,121 6,922,156 (4,680,221) 18.823,056 

Income (loss) from 
operations (390,943) 719,342 — 328.399 

Other income (expense): 

Equity in earnings of 
subsidiaries 
Change in fair value of 
catatyst lease 
Interest expense, net 

Net income (loss) 

722,673 

(92,854) 
4,691 

(1,360) 

(722,673) 

—•• 4,691 
— (94.214) 

$ 238.876 $ 722,673 $ 

$ 233.279 $ 724,930 $ 

— $ 

— . $ 

(722.673) $ 

(724.930) $ 

238.876 

233.279 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCL^L STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year Ended December 31,2012 

Issuer 

Combining 
Non- and 

Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating 
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Totel 

Revenues $7,622,924 $16,141,408 $ -^ $ (3.625,645) $20,138,687 

Coste and expenses: 

Cost of sales, excluding 
depreciation 8,537,996 13,356,727 
Opaating expenses, excluding 
depreciation — 738,824 
General and administrative 
expenses 105,135 15,308 
Loss on sale of asset — (2,329) 
Depreciation and amortization 
expense 8.051 84,187 

— (3,625,645) 18>9.078 

— ~ 738,824 

— ^ 120,443 

— ^ (2,329) 

— — 92,238 

(Loss) income fi^m 
operations 

Other income (expense): 
Equity in earnings (loss) of 
subsidiaries 

Change in foir value of 
contingent consideration 

Change in feir value of catatyst 
lease 
Intaest expense, net 

Net income (loss) 

Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

8,651,182 

(1,028.258) 

1,921,040 

— 

— 

(87,470) 

$ 805,312 

$ 798,747 

14.192,717 

1,948,691 

— 

(2,768) 

(3,724) 

(21,159) 

$ 1,921.040 $ 

$ 1,921,267 $ 

1 . — 

— 

,— 

___ 

— 

— . 

— $ 

— $ 

(3.625.645) 

— 

(1.921.040) 

;— 

—̂  

— 
(1.921,040) 

(1.921.267) 

19,218,254 

920,433 

— 

(2,768) 

(3.724) 

(108.629) 
$ 805.312 

$ 798.747 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Year Ended December 31.2011 

issuer 

Combining 
Non- and 

Guarantor Guarantor Consdidating 
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustmente Total 

Revenues $ 14,960.338 $ — $ $ 14,960.338 

Costs and expenses: 

Cost of sales, excluding 
depreciation 

Operating exj^nses. 
excluding depreciation 

General and administrative 
expenses 

Acquisition related expenses 

Depreciation and 
amortization expense 

72.667 

517 

2,047 

13,855,163 

658.831 

13.516 

211 

51.696 

— 13.855.163 

— 658.831 

— 86,183 

— 728 

—- 53,743 

(Loss) income fi>3m 
operations 

Other income (expense): 

Equity in eammgs (loss) of 
subsidiaries 

Change in foir value of 
catalyst lease 

G h ^ g e iri fair value of 
;t:̂ ;intingent corisideraiion 

Inta'est expense, net 

Net income (loss) 

Comprehensive Income 
(Loss) 

$ 

$ 

75,231 

(75,231) 

326,170 

— 

(8.268) 

242,671 $ 

241.344 $ 

14,579.417 

380,921 

7,316 

(5,215) 

(56,S52) 

326.170 $ 

326,175 $ 

-^- — 

— — 

— (326,170) 

__- — 

— ^ -

— $ (326,170) $ 

$ (326.175) S 

14.654.648 

305,690 

7,316 

(5.215) 

(65,120) 

242.671 

241,344 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income 

^Ufjusiments lo reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating aciiviiies: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Stock-based ctHnp^sation 

Change in fair value of catalyst lease obligation 

Change in l^ir value of contingent consideration 

Non-cash change in inventory repurchase obligations 

Writc-offofunamortized deferred financing fees 

Pension and other post retirement benefit costs 

Gain on disposition of proper^, plant and equipment 

Equify in earnings of subsidiaries 

Changes in current assets and current liabililies: 

Accounts receivable 

Amounts due to/from related parlies 

Inventories 

Other current assets 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Other assets and liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activiries 

Issuer 
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsfdbrlet 

Combining 
and 

Consolidating 
Adjustments Total 

238,876 S 722,673 S 

19.296 98.705 

3.753 

(4,691) 

(20.'1Si2) 

4.575 

(388) 

(722,673) 

(281,386) 

626.613 

(153.782) 

(40,416) 

109,988 

222.194 

7,766 

(1.140) 

12,153 

20S 

— 

188.535 

(611.902) 

199,773 

(2.039) 

(67,752) 

(7,377) 

(210,543) 

(19,263) 

— $ (722.673) J 238.876 

_ ^ 118.001 

— — 3,753 

— — (4.691) 

~ — (20,492) 

— — 16,728 

— - (183) 

— 722.673 — 

— — (92,851) 

— — 14,721 

~ — 45,991 

— — (42.455) 

— — 42.236 

— — 214.817 

—. — (202.777) 

— — (20.403) 

29,533 281.738 311.271 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Expmditures for property, [^ant and equipment 

Expenditures for refinery turnarounds costs 

Expenditures for other assets 

Proceeds from sale of assets 

Net cash used in Inveiting activities 

(127,653) 

102,428 

(190.741) 

(64,616) 

(32.692) 

(25,225) (288.049) 

(318.394) 

(64.616) 

(32.692) 

102,428 

(313.274) 

Cash flows trom finandng activities; 

Proceeds from revolver bonowings 

Proceeds from intercompany notes payable 

Proceeds from member's capital contributions 

Pn)c«eds ftom catalyst lease 

Distribuiion to members 

Repayments of revolver borrowings 

Payineht of.cbrfiingen! .consideration related to 
acquisition prToledo refinety 

Defierred financing costs and crther 

Net cash used in financing acUvHies 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cqnlvaloits, beginning of period 

Cash and equivalails, end of period 

1.450,000 

31,835 

_ 
— 

(215,846) 

(1,435,000) 

— 
(1,0+4) 

(170,055) 

(165,747) 

241,926 

S 76.179 S 

— 
— 

1,757 

14,337 

— 
— 

(21,357) 

_ 
(5,263) 

(11.574) 

12,365 

791 S 

— 
— 
— 
_ 
~ 
— 

— 
_ 
— 

— 
__ 
— S 

— 
— 
— 
_ 
— 
— 

__ 

— 
• _ 

_ i 

-

s 

— 

T 

1.450,000 

31.835 

1.757 

14337 

(215,846) 

(1,435,000) 

(21.357) 

(1.044) 

(I753I8) 

(177.321) 

254;291 

76.970 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCWL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Year Ended DccemticrSl, 2013 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

NetinccHne 

Adjustments (o recondte net income EO net cash provided 
l^ operating activities: 

Depredatioi end amonizuion 

Stock-based compensation 

Change in feir value of catalyst lease cAligation 

Change in feir value of contingent cmsideration 

Non-cash change in inventoiy repurchase obligations 

Write-ofTof unamortized deferred financing fees 

Pension and other post retirement benefit costs 

Gain on disposition of property, [dant and equijnnent 

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 

Changes in current assets and current liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 

Amounts due to/fî om relaled parties 

Invemon'es 

Other current assets 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Otiier assets and liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Isstur 

S 805.312 

13,466 

_ 
• — 

— 
-

4.391 

2,125 

-
(1.921.040) 

(306,999) 

1.736.986 

(664,225) 

78 

193,151 

419.735 

— 
(9.023) 

Guarantor 
SDbtldiarles 

S 1.921,040 

84.184 

2.954 

3.724 

2,768 

4.576 

__, 
I0.SS9 

<2.329) 

— 

119.455 

(1,751,707) 

584.128 

49,893 

(119,161) 

(389,392) 

21,309 

(22,521) 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

S 
• -

_ 
— 
— 
'— 
_ 
— 
-
— 

— 
— 
_ 
_ 
_ 
_ 
— 
-

Combining 
and 

Consolidating 
Adjustments 

S < 1,921,040) S 

w. 

— 
— 
_ 
— 
_ 
— 

1,921,040 

.—. 
»_ 
— 
_ 
_ 
— 
— 
— 

Total 

805,312 

97.650 

2,954 

3,724 

2.768 

4,576 

4,391 

12,684 

(2,329) 

— 

(187,544) 

(14,721) 

(80.097) 

49,971 

73,990 

30,343 

21,309 

(31,544) 

273.957 519.480 793,437 

Cadi (lows from investing activities; 

Expendinnes foe property, plant and equipment 

Expenditures for refinery turnarounds costs 

Expendinires for other assets 

Proceeds fhim sale of assets 

Net cash used In Investing activities 

Cash (lows from financing activiiies: 

Proceeds from Senior Secured Notes 

Proceeds ttom long-term debt 

Proceeds fVom catalyst lease 

Distributions to members 

Elep^ments c^long-term debt 

.pigment bf.GOî i%eilt <%in3iderBtion related to 
^qiiisltiai <if Tdeoo^Tefinefy 

Dcfbrrcd financing costs and other 

Net cash used bi flnaaclng actMlies 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and eqnivalenti, beginning of period 

C»h and equivalents, end of period 

(16,546) 

— 
_ 
_ 

(16,546) 

665,806 

430,000 

-
(160.965) 

(823,749) 

(103,642) 

(26,059) 

(18,609) 

238.802 

3,124 

S 241.926 S 

(159.354) 

(38,633) 

(8.155) 

3.381 

(202,761) 

_ 
-

9,452 

— 
(360,848) 

— 
— 

(351.396) 

(34.677) 

47,042 

. 12365. $ 

— . 
— 
_ 
— 
—" ' 

— 
_ 
_ 
— 
— 
— 
_ 
— 

.— 
.— 
__ s 

— 
_ 
_ 
— 
-~ 

_ 
— 
_-
— 
— 
— 
_ 
— 

— 
— 
— $ 

(175.900) 

(38.633) 

(8,155) 

3381 

(219307) 

665.806 

430.000 

9,452 

(160.965) 

(1.184,597) 

(103,642) 

(26,059) 

(370.005) 

204.125 

50,166 

254,291 
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23. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PBF HOLDING 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Year Ended December 31,2011 

Cash flows fram operating acHvilies 

Net income (ioss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net Income to net 

cash from operating activities: 

Depredation and pmoitizati<s> 

Stock based compensation 

Change in fair value of catatyst lease oUiption 

Change in fair value of contingent consideration 

Non-cash change Jn inventory rqHirdiose obligations 

Pension and other post retirement benefit costs 

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 

Changes in operating assets and li^ilities, net of eflects of 
acquisitions 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Other cunenr assets 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

Other assets and liabilities 

Net cash t n m operating Ktivlttei 

Issuer 

Combining 
Nan- u d 

Guarantors Guaranton Consolidated 
Subsldiariet Subsidtarlcs Adjustments 

242,671 $ 326.170 S 

4.877 52.042 

2.516 

(7316) 

5,215 

25.329 

1,241 

(326,170) 

. 

-
(8,896) 

4,456 

46,724 

~ 
(1,029) 

8327 

— 

(2793 IS) 

(512,054) 

(48.057) 

245309 

348369 

122,895 

(4322) 

(326,170) S 

326,170 

Total 

242.671 

56,919 

2316 

(7316) 

5315 

25329 

9.768 

(279315) 

(512.054) 

(56.953) 

249,765 

395.093 

122.895 

(5351) 

(36.126) 285,408 249382 

Cash flows from Inventing acHviUcs 

Acquisition of di« Toledo Refinery, net of casli received 
for sale of assets — 

Expendihires f^praperty, plant and equipment (17,202) 

ExpendibiresfwrftfineiyniniaTounds costs — 

Expenditures for other assets — 

Procwds from sals of assets — 

Amount due to/from rdated parties (730,630) 

Other — . 

Net cash used In investing acHvities 

Cash Dews trom finapclng activities 

Proceeds fiom member cocUributioos 

Proceeds from long-term debt 

Proceeds from catalyst lease 

Repayments of long-term debt 

RcpiQ-meni of seller note fcr inventory 

Anioinils due (o/from rdated parties 

Deferred financing costs and other 

Net cash (used In) provided by (hiandng actl^tles 

Net (decrease) tnccease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and equivalents, be^ning of period 

CaskandcqaJvalcabfCndorperlod $ 3.124 S 

(767.832) 

408397 

470,000 

(201350) 

(10,737) 
666,410 

(137,548) 

140,672 

(168,156) 

(471319) 

(62,823) 

(23,339) 

4,700 

(854) 

(721.991) 

18,894 

18,624 

(19,151) 

(299.645) 

750.630 

(512) 

468.840 

32357 

14,785 

47.042,:$ 

750,630 

750,630 

(750,630) 

(750.630) 

(168,156) 

(488,721) 

(62,823) 

(23,339) 

4.700 

(854) 

(739.193) 

408397 

488394 

18.624 

(220,401) 

(299,645) 

(11,249) 

384,620 

(105391) 

155.457 

50,166 
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PBF ENERGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA 
(Unaudited) 

The following table summarizes quarterly financial data forthe years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 
(in thousands, except per share amounts). 

Revenues 
Income (loss) fi-om operations 
Net income (loss) 
Net income attributable to PBF Ener^ Inc. 
Earnings per common share -assuming 
dilution 

March 31 

$ 4,797,847 $ 
100,105 
69,711 
11,406 

2013 Quarter Ended 

June 30 September 30 

4,678,293 $ 4,858,880 
133,027 (55,599) 
107,170 (64,893) 
16,826 (19.848) 

December 31 

$ 4.816.435 
142326 
102,097 
31.156 

0.48 $ 0.61 $ (0.50) $ 0.76 

Revenues 
Income (loss) from operations 
Net income (loss) 
Net income attributable to PBF Energy Inc. 

March 31 

$ 4,716,106 $ 
(164,083) 
(202,532) 

2012 Quarter Ended 

June 30 September 30 

5,077,015 $ 5,395,206 
579.506 220,109 
555.742 186,564 

December 31 (a) 

$ 4,950,360 
284,901 
264,263 

1,956 
Earnings per common share -assuming 
dilution 0.08 

(a) On December 12,2012, PBF Enei^ Inc. completed an initial public offering which closed cm 
December 18,2012. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to die requiiiements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

PBF ENERGY INC 

By: 

(Registrant) 

/s/ Thomas J. Nimbley 

(Thomas J. Nimbley) 

Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Date: Febmary 21,2014 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Each ofthe oHicers and directors of PBF Energy Inc., whose signature qipears below, in so signing, also makes, constitutes 
and ^ifwints each of Michael Gayda, M^hew Lucey and Jeffrey Dill, and each of them, bis true and lawful attonieys-in*fact, 
with full power and substitution, for him in any and all cqiacities. to execute and cause to be filed with the SEC any and all 
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, with exhibits thereto and other documents connected there wth and to perform 
any acts necessaty to be done in order to file such documents, and hereby radfies and confirms all that said attorneys-in-fact 
or their substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 1^ the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on die dates indicated. 

Sigoaiure 

/s/TTiomas J. Nimbley 

(Thomas J. Nimbley) 

Isl Matthew C. Lucey 

(Matdiew C. Lucey) 

M Karen B. Davis 

(Karen B. Davis) 

/s/Thomas D. O'Malley 

(Thomas D. O'Malley) 

Isl Spencer Abraham 

(Spencer Abraham) 

/s/Jefferson F.Allen 

(Jefferson F. Allen) 

l%l Wayne Budd 

(WtiyneBudd) 

/s/ Martin J. Brand 

Tide 

Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Senior Vice President. Chief Fmancial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 

Chief Accounting Officer 

(Prmcipal Accounting Officer) 

Executive Chdrman ofthe 

Board of Directors 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Date 

Febmary 21,2014 

Febmary 21,2014 

Febmary 21,2014 

Februaiy 21.2014 

Febmary 21,2014 

Febmary 21,2014 

Febmary 21,2014 

Febraaiy21.2014 

(Martin J. Brand) 



Slgnatiire Title Date 

/s/TimottiyH.Day Director Februaiy 21,2014 

(Timothy H. Day) 

/s/David L Foley Director Fetouaiy21.2014 

(David I. Foley) 

/s/Dennis Houston Director Februaiy 21,2014 

(Dennis Houston) 

/s/Edward F.Kosnik Director Februaiy 21,2014 

(Edward F.Kosnik) 

/s/NeilA.Wizel Director Fcbraaiy21,2014 

(NeilA.Wizel) 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of die Securities Exchange Act or 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

PBF HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
(Registrant) 

By: fsl Thomas J. Nimbley 

(Thomas J. Nimbley) 

Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Date: Felmiary 21,2014 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Each of the officers and directors of PBF Holding Company LLC, whose dgnature appears below, in so signing, also 
malces, constiUites and appoints each of Michael Gayda, Matthew Lucey and JefErey Dill, and each of them, his true and lawful 
attomeys-in-&ct. whh full power and substitution, fbr him in any and all c^iacities, to execute and cause te be filed with die 
SEC any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, with exhibits diereto and oUwr documents connected 
therewidi and to perform any acts necessaiy to be done in order to file such documents, and hereby ratifies and confimis all 
that said attomeys-in-fact or dieu- substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 1^ die following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in die c^xicities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature 

/s/ Thomas J. Nimbley 

(Thomas J. Nimbley) 
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Date 
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Explanstory Note 

PART IV 
Exhibite and Financial Stalemeht Scheduler 102 

"Hiis Annual Report on Forni 10-K is filed by PBF Energy Inc. ("PBF Enetsy") which is a holding company whose ptimaiy asset is an equity interest 
in PBF Energy Company LLC C'PBF LLC). PBF Energy is the sole managing member of, and ownerof an equity interest representing approximately 89.9% 
of die outstanding economic interests in, PBF IXC as ofDecember 31, 2014.PBF Eneisy operates and controls all ofthe business and a&irs and 
consolidates the financial results of PBF LLC and its subsidisiies. I^F LLC is a holding company for the companies (hat directly and indirectly own and 
operate the business. PBF Holding Company IXC fPBF Holding") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF LLC and PBF Finance Corporation ("PBF Finance") 
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF Holding. Ptior period Clings of PBF Energy with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") for the periods 
March 31,2013 through March 31,2014 reflect a combined Form 10-Q and FomitO-K with PBF Holding and PBF Finance. As of June 30,2014, PBF Energy 
filGS peiiodJc SEC filings separately fiom PBF Holding and PBF Finance due to the change in the corporate stmcture related to the initial 
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public ofiering of PBF Logistics LP C'PBFX"), a consolidated subsidiary of PBF Energy (refer to Note 3 "PBF Logistics LP" of our Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements). 
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PART I 

This Annual Report on Fomi 10-K is filed by PBF Eneigy. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the tcims "we," "us," and "out" refer to both PBF 
Energy and its consolidated subsidiaries, including PBF LLC, PBF Holding, PBF Investments LLC ("PBF Investments"), PBF Services Company LLC, PBF 
Power Marketing LLC, PBF Energy Limited, Toledo Refining Company LLC CToledo Refining"), Paaldioro Natural Ctes Pipeline Company LLC, Pauldjoro 
Refining Company LLC ("Paulsboro Refining"), Delawan: Pipeline Company LLC, Delaware City Refining Company LLC ("Ddawaie City Refining" or 
"DCR"X Delaware City Terminaling Company LLC, Toledo Terminaling Company LLC. PBF Logistics GP LLC, PBF Logistics LP rPBF5C) and PBF Rail 
Logistics Company LLC. 

In this Annual Report on Forni 10-K, we make certain forward-looking statements, including statements reganling our plans, strategics, objectives, 
expectations, intentions, and resources, under the safe harbor provisions of the t^vate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You should read our 
fofward-tooking statements together with our disclosures under the heading: "Cautionary Statement for the Purpose of Safe Harbor Provisions ofthe Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995." When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk &ctois and other cautionary 
statements set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kimder"Risk Factors" in Item 1 A. 

SOUICB; P8F Energy Inc.. 10-K. Ft;bi»arv26. 2015 Poweted byMotiiinasisi" Documeni Research'*' 
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ITEM. I BUSINESS 

Overview 
We are one ofthe largest independent petroleum refiners and suppliers of unbranded transportation fitels, heating oil, petrochemical feedstocks, 

lubricants and other petroleum products in the United States. We sell our products throughout the Northeast and Midwest ofthe United States, as well as in 
other regions ofthe United States and Canada, and are able to ship products to other international destinations. Wc were formed in 2008 to pursue 
acquisitions ofcnide oil refineries and downstream assets in North America. We currently own and operate three domestic oil refineries and related assets, 
which we acquired in 2010 and 2011. Our refineries have a combined processing capacity, known as throughput, of approximately 540,000 bpd, and a 
weighted-average Nelson Complexity Index of 113. We operate in two reportable business segments: Refining and Logistics. 

PBF Energy was formed on November 7,2011 and is a holding company whose sole asset is a controlling equity interest in PBF LLC.̂ Wc are the sole 
managing member of PBF LLC and operate and control all ofthe business and affairs of PBF LLC. We consolidate Ihe financial results of PBF LLC and its 
subsidiaries and record a noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements representing the economic interests ofthe members of PBF LLC 
other than PBF Energy. PBF LLC is a holding company fbr the companies that directly or indirectly own and operate ourbusiness. PBF LLC is PBF Energy^ 
predecessor for accounting puiposes. C^r financial statements and results ofoperations for periods prior to the completion of our initial public offering are 
those of PBF LLC. PBF Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBF LLC and is Ihe parent company for our refining operations. PBF Energy, through tts 
ownership of PBF LLC, also consolidates the financial results of PBFX and records a noncontrolling interesl forthe economic interests in PBFX held by the 
public common unit holders of PBFX. 

As of December 31,2014, we held 81,981.119 PBF LLC Series C Units and funds affiliated with The Blackstone Group L.P., or Blackstone, and First 
Reserve Management, L.P., or First Reserve, and our executive officers and directors and certain employees held 9,170,696 PBF LLC Series AUnits (we refer 
to all of the holders of the PBF LLC Scries A Units as "the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy"). As a result, the holders of our issued and 
outstanding shares of our Class Acommon stock have approximately 89.9% ofthe voting power in us, and the members of PBF LLC other than PBF Energy 
through theirholdingsofCiassB common Block have approximately 10.1% ofthe voting power in us. Referto "Recent Developments" below for details on a 
secondaiy ofiering by First Reserve and Blackstone ^^ich resulted in them selling all theirrem^ning ownership interests in us. 

Refining 

Our three refineries are located in Toledo, (%io, Delaware City, Delaware and Paulsboro, New Jersey. Our Mid-Continent refinety al Toledo processes 
light, sweet crude, has a throughput capacity of 170,000 bpd and a Nelson Complexity Index of 9.2, Tlie majority ofToledo's WTI-based crude is delivered 
via pipelines that originate in both Canada and the United States. Since our acquisition of Toledo in 2011, we have added additional truck and rail crude 
unloading capabilities titat provide feedstock sourcing flexibility for the refinery and enables Toledo to tun a more cost-advantaged crude slate. Our Ea^ 
Coast refineries al Delaware City and Paulsboro have a combined refining capacity of 370,000 bpd and Nelson Complexity Indices of 11J and 13.2, 
respectively. These high-conversion refineries process primarily medium and heavy, sour erodes and have historically received (he bulk of their feedstock via 
ships and barges on the Delaware River, 

Since 2012, we have expanded and upgraded existing on-site railroad infiastroclure at our Delaware City refinery, including the expansion ofthe 
erode rail unloading fecilities that was completed in Februaiy 2013. Cutrcntiy, crude delivered to this fecility is consumed at our Delaware City refinery. We 
also transport some ofthe crude delivered by rail fiom Delaware City via barge to our Paulsboro refineiy or other third party dedinations. In 2014, we 
completed a project to expand the Delaware City heavy erode rati unloading terminal capability at the refinery fiom 40,000 bpd to 80,000 bpd and added 
additional unloading ^ots to the dual-loop track light crude rail unloading &cility, which increa!;ed its unloading capability fiom 105,000 bpd lo 130,000 
bpd. These projects bring total rail etude unloading capability up to 210,000 bpd, object lo Ihe anticipated delivery of coiled and insulated railcars, the 
development of crude rail loading infiastructure in Canada and thcuse of unit trains. The 
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Delaware City rail unloading facility allows our East Coast refineries lo source WTI-based cmdes from Western Canada and the Mid-Continent, which we 
believf may provide significant cost advantages versus traditional Brent-based international crudes. 

logt^cs 

PBFX is a foe-based, growth-orienled, publicly traded Delaware master limited partnership formed by PBF Energy to own or lease, operate, develop 
and acquire crude oil and refined petroleum products tciminals, pipelines, storage lacilitics and similar logistics assets. PBFX engages in the receiving, 
handling and transferring of crude oil and the leceipt, stotage «nd delivety of etude oil, refined products and intetmediates from sources located throughout 
the United States and Canada fbr PBF Eneigy in support of its three refineries. All of PBI^^ revenue is derived fixrni long-term, foe-based commercial 
agreements with PBF Holding, which include minimum volume conunitments, for receiving, handling and transfoning erode oil and stotiag crude oil and 
refined products. PBF Energy also has agreements mth PBFX that e^ablish fees for certain general and administrative services and operational and 
maintenance services provided by PBF Holding to PBFX. Tiiese transactions are eliminated by PBF Eneigy in consolidation. 

On May 14,2014, PBFX completed its initial public offering (the "PBFX Offering'^. Subsequent to the PBFX Offering, PBF LLC ttansferred additional 
logistical assets to PBFX in two separate transactions in exchange for cash and equity consideration. As of December 31,2014, PBF LLC held a 52.1% 
limited partner interest (consisting of 1,284,524 common units and 15,S86,553 subordinated units) in PBFX, with the remaining 47.9% limited partner 
interest held by the public unit holders. PBF LLC also owns all ofthe incentive distribution rights and indirectly owns a non-economic general partner 
interest in PBFX through its irfiolly-owned subsidiaty, PBF Logistics GP LLC C'PBF GP"X the general partner of PBFX. During the subordination period (as 
set forth in the partnership agreement of PBFX) holders ofthe subordinaled units are not entitled to receive any distribution of available cash until the 
common units have received the minimum quailerly distribution plus any arrearages in Ihe payment of the minimum quarterly distribution fiom prior 
quarter^- If PBFX does not pay distributions on the subordinated units, the subordinated units will not accrue arrearages for those unpaid distributions. Each 
subordinated unit will convert into one common unit at the end ofthe subordination period. 

See "Item I A. Risk Factors" and "Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Ind^endence." 

Available tnfitmtaHon 

Our website address is www.pbfenergy.CDm. Information contained on our website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our annual reports 
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Fonn 10-Q, current reports on Fonn 8-K, and any other materials filed with (or fomished to) the U.S. Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) by us are available on our website (under "Investors?') free of charge, soon after wc file or furnish such material. In this same 
location, we also post our corporate: governance guidelines, code of business conduct and ethics, and the charters ofthe committees of our board of directors. 
Thi:5c documents are available free of charge in print to any stockholder that makes a written request to the Secretary, PBF Energy Inc., One Sylvan Way, 
Second Floor, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054, 

ReceiU DevetopmetHs 

On Febmaty 6,2015, we completed a public offoring of 3,804,653 shares of Class A common stock in a secondaiy offering (the "Febniaty 2015 
second W offering"). All ofthe shares in the Febroaty 2015 secondaiy offering were sold by fonds afFiliated with Black^one and First Reserve. In connection 
with the Febmaty 2015 sccondaty offering, Blackstone and First Reserve exchanged all of their remaining PBF LLC Scries AUnits for an equivalent number 
of shares of Class A common stock of PBF Energy, and as a result, Blackstone and First Reserve no longw hold any PBF LLC Series AlMits or shares of our 
Class A Common stock. The holders of PBF LLC Series B Units, w*ich include certain executive officers of PBF Energy, received a portion ofthe proceeds of 
the sale ofthe PBF &iergy Class A common stock by Blackstone and First Reserve in accordance with the 

Sowce; P ^ f^ie'gv !"=;. 1C-K, FEb:ii3t\' 2S, 2DS5 , , , Pnwered hy Mnrnmgsiai* OoKtimerf Rfisear-^h^ 
IheMarmi t lonconlsm^I ic idn insyna lbe ixpled . 'dapledoriBUiibit ted»ndisisotKsnaiHaillobeaeamKcerfgMeottlnKlf.Thi:Userinum<isM'i^^ 
czntdf to iMBrleiUiiich damages or hssiKcalmolhttlln^Val or elKitHM by 3BBl-i»l'!claM^lHnarl<lllpVloiiriln^ 
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amended ,aitd ri^tatcdlirriit!^ liability conipahy agreement of PBF LLC; PBF Energy did not nHuive any proceeds from the FcbniaiyZQlS sccondaty, 
piicnng. AS « result of iWFcbraaty20iS sccondaty,6|Tc^^^^ 
i|iettain*<^1ipy^'^(^t)efi^i^ 5:,̂ 66JM3 pEtF LlJC^Series AUnits, and the holdeis of our i ^ e d utd outstanding shiucs of Cla^AtidmiMh.^^ have 
94.i%<trthc voting power in lis aitd ^ e mdnibers of'PBFLLC jb.th(»'than'PBF Energy through their holdings of Class B common stock have the remaining 
5.9% ofthe votingpowerin us. 

Sniuce. F^ EnefQv he , IQ-C. FabruarvZe, !01a PjvverBii by Uornirgsiar^ Docutnenf ResMJcl:* 
iM'jnfonnalterlcoiilJ^BdhernilnfRvMIMoc^iMt.aditpftrfordaiAifredMdterKili^ 

'<:nii«i;ta_fftae(h«( weft dWiM^or lBMv* cannot bali iaaerfDrat^ 



The diagram below d^icts our organizational stmcture as ofDecemberSI, 2014 (without giving effoctio Ihe Febmaty 2015 secondaty offering): 
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( g r a t i n g Segments 

Effective with the completion ofthe PBFX Offering in May 2014, Ihe Company operates tn two reportable business segments: Refining and Logistics. 
The Company^ three oil refineries are all engaged in Ihe refining of cmde oil and other feedstocks into petroleum products, and are aggregated into the 
Refining segment. PBFX operates logistical assets such as crade oil and refined petroleum products terminals, pipelines, and storage fiicilities, \^ich are 
aggregated into Ihe Logistics segment. PBFX currentty does not generate third patty revenue and as such intersegment related revenues are eliminated in 
consolidation. Prior to the PBFX Offering, PBFX^ assets were operated within the refining operations ofthe Company^ Delaware City and Ibledo refineries. 
The assets did not generate third party or intra-enlity revenue and were not considered to be a separate reportable segment. Sec Note 20 "Segment 
Information" ofour Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for detailed information on our operating 
results by business segment. 

Refining Segment 

We own and operate three refineries, all located in regions with currentiy fovorable matkel dynamics v^ere finished product demand exceeds 
operatitig refining capacity.. We produce a variety of products at each ofour refmeries, including gasoline, ULSD, heating oil, jet fiiel, lubricants, 
petrochemicals and asphalt. We sell our products throughout the Northeast and Midwest ofthe United Slates, as well as in other regions ofthe United States 
and Canada, and are able to ship products to other international destinations. 

Delaware City RtRnery 

Acquisition and Re-Starl. Through our subsidiaries, Delaware City Refining and Delaware Pipeline Company LLC, we acquired tlie idle Delaware City 
refinety and its related assets, Including a petroleum product tetminai, a petroleum products pipeline and an electric generation focility, on June 1,2010 fmm 
afTitiatesofX^Iero for approximately $220.0 million in cash, consisting of approximately $170.0 million forthe refinety, terminal and pipeline assets and 
$50.0 million for thepowerplant complex located on the property. 

At the time of acquisition, we reached an agreement with the State of Delaware that provided for a five-year operating permit and up to approximately 
S45.0 million of economic support to re-start the facility, and negotiated a new long-temi contract with the relevant anion at the refineiy. As of December 31, 
2014, we had received $41.4 million in economic support fiom the State of Delaware under this agreement. We believe that the refinety's ability to process 
lower quality cmdes allows us to capture a higher margin as these lower quality crudes are typically priced at discounts to benchmaik crudes, and to compete 
effectively in a region where product demand currently significantly exceeds refining capacity. 

We completed Ihe restart ofthe Delaware City Refinety in October 2011. Since our acquisition through December31,2014, we have invested in 
turnaround and re-start projects at Delaware City, as well as in the strategic development ofcnide rail unloading foctlities. In May 2012, we commenced 
crade shipments via rail into a newly developed crade rail unloading &eility at our Delaware City refinety. We have forther expanded and upgraded the 
existing on-site railroad infiastructure, including the expansion ofthe erode rail unloading facilities. In 2014, we added additional unloading spots to the 
duaMoop track to increase light cmde unloading capabilities al that focitity to approximately 130,000 bpd and completed a project to expand the Delaware 
City heavy crade rait unloading capability at Ihe refinety ftom 40,000 bpd lo S0,000 bpd. 'Diese projects bring total rail cmde unloading capability up to 
210,000 bpd, subject to the delivety of coiled and insulated railcars, the development of crade rait loading infrastmcture in Canada and the use of unit trains. 
The Delaware City rail unloading fiicility allows our East Coast refineries to source WTI-based cmdes from Wsstem Canada and the Mid-Continent, ^i^ch 
we believe at limes may provide significant cost advantages versus traditional Brent-based international cmdes. 

We have entered into agreements to lease or purchase railcafs, including coiled and insulated rails cars, nftich are capable of transporting Canadian 
heavy crade oils, and general purpose cars, ̂ i c h wc have been using to transport lighter crade oils. In addition to the constmction ofour rail unloading 
fiicilities at Delaware City and the execution of our railcar procurement strategy, we also created dedicated cmde^y-rail acquisition and rati 

Saiiiuu: I'3f Er.etfiv inc., ID-K. Fsb-usr,^ 26, ; c ; 5 Pan-ered by Mo.'r-ifi5siei-"- Oocumeril P.esea^c!r'' 
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logistics teams. These teams, staffed by PBF employees in our corporate headquarters, at Ihe Delaware City refinety and in our field offices in Calgaty, 
Alberta and CAIahoma City, Oklahoma, are respondble for crade procurentent, logistics via rail and monitoring cmde-by-rail offloading. 

Overview. The Delaware City refinety is located on a 5,000-acre site, with access to waterborne cargoes and an extensive <Ustribiition network of 
pipelines, bflijgf̂ îahct lanfcCiSj tra0.k and raU.'^^^ 
orkiig'ejiiViU:docfcslocav|idon'ihe 
until processing.1n addition, there is a i74my,-SOĵ ^ 
are used to distribute clean products. 

Tile Delaware City refinety has a throughput capacity of 190.000 bpd and aNelson Complexity Index of 11 J .Asa result of its configuration and 
process Units, beiawarc City has the ca|}ability of procc^inje a slate of hcavycmdes with a high concentration of high sulfor crudes and is one ofthe largest 
:an'd rbbst complex refineries on the East Coast. The Delaware City refinety is one oftwo heavy cmde coking refineries, fhe other being Paulsboro, on the East 
Coast ofthe Uiited Stales with coking capacity equal to approximately 25% of crade capacity. 

The Delaware City refinety, jprin)ari[y;.pipccss^'a;vari^ty of in^.ium to heavy, sour crade oils, hut can ran light, sweet crade oils as well. The refinety 
has laiEts;coiiVcfs.i6n capacity wfti^ FCC unit, 47,^6.bpd,FCU and 18,00.0 biid hydrocracking unit with vacuum distillation. Ifydrogen is 
provided via the fefin(ityV;sit̂ ni'ineih'iif|iĵ  cctntinuotls catalytic rcfotmer. 

Delaware City Process Flow Diagram 
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The following table approximates the Delaware City refinety's tnajorprocess unit edacities. Unit capacities are shown in bairels per dream day. 

Refinery Unlti 

Vacuum Distillation lAiit 

NanepbU 
Capacity 

102,000 

Hydrotreating Units I tiO,000 

Catalytic Refoiming Unit (CCR) 43,000 

Butane Isomerization Unit (ISCftl) 6,000 

Polymerization Unit (Poly) 16,000 

Feedstocks and Supply Arrangements. In ;^ril 2011, we entered jnto a cmde and feedstock supply agreement with Statoil that expires on 
December 31,2015. Pursuant to Ihe agreement as amended in October 2012, wc direct Statoil to purchase waterborne cmde and other feedstocks for Delaware 
City and Statoil purchases these products on the spot market or through term agreements. Accordingly, Statoil enters into, on our behalf, hedging 
arrangements to protect against changes in prices between the time of purchase and the time of processing the foedstocks. In addition to procurement, Statoil 
arranges transportation and insurance for tiiese waterborne deliveries ofcmide and fcodsiock-suppty and wc pay Statoil a per barrel fee tor their procurement 
and logistics services. Statoil generally holds title to the wateri^ome crodc'an)d.(e<trdî p^ :̂uri'tit >^ or fe t locks through our pt^ce^.Uti1ts; 
We pay Statoil on a daily basis for the coiresponding volume of crade or feedmocks that are constira^d in conjiinction ynth the refining process. Th.is',eiude 
supply and feedstock arrangement helps us reduce the amount of investment we are required to maintain in crade inventories and, as a result, helps us manage 
our working capital. 

Product Offtake. Prior to June 30,2013, we sold Ihe bulk of Delaware City*^ clean products lo MSCG through an offtake agreement. Under the offtake 
agreement, MSCG purchased 100% ofour finished clean products at Delaware City, which included gasoline, heating oil and jet foel, as well as our 
intermediates. During the term ofthe offtake agreement, we sold the remainder ofour refined products directly lo a variety of customers on the spot market or 
through term agrcemeots. Subsequent to the tctmination ofthe offtake agreement, we market and sell all ofour refined products independently to a variety of 
customers on the ^o t maricet or through term agreements. 

/nven/oty/nrer7nef/fii/ioH..4gre€ine»r.On June 26,2013, the Company entered into an Inventoty Intermediation Agreement with J. Aron ("Inventoty 
Intermediation Agreement") to support Ihe operations of the Delaware City refinety, which commenced upon Ihe termination of the product offtake 
agreement with MSCG. Pursuant to the Inventoty Intermediation Agreement, J. Aron purchased cerrain ofthe finished and intermediate products (collectively 
the "Products") located at the refinety upon termination ofthe MSCG product offtake agreement. J. Aron purchases the Products produced and delivered into 
the refinety^ storage tanks on a daily basis. J. Aron forther agrees to sell to us on a daily basis the Products delivered out ofthe refinety's storage tanks. 

Tankage Capacity. The Delaware City refinety has total storage ct^acity of approximately 10.0 million barrels. Ofthe total, 18 tanks with 
approximately 3.6 million barrels of storage capacity are dedicated to crade oil and other feedstock storage with the remaining approximately 6A million 
barrels allocated to finished products, inleimediates and other products. 

Energy and Other Utilities. Under normal operating conditions, the Delaware City refinety consumes approximately 55,000 MMBTU per day of 
natural gas. The Delaware City refinety has a 280 MW power plant 

I I 
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located on-«ite that consists oftwo natural gas-foeted tutbines with combined capacity of approximately 140 MW and four tuibo-generatora with combined 
nameplate capacity of approximately 140 MW. Collectively, this power plant produces electricity in excess of Delaware City's refinety load of 
approximately 90 MW. Excess electricity is sold into the Pemitylvania-^ew Jersey^atyland, or PJM, grid. Steam is ptimarily produced by e combination of 
three dedicated boilers and supplemented by secondaty boilers at the FCC and coker. 

Panliboro Reflnery 

Acquisition. We acquired the entities that owned the Paulsboro refinety (including an associated natural gas pipeline) on December 17,2010, fiom 
^lero for approximatety $357.7 million, excluding woricing capital. The purchase price excludes inventoty purchased on our behalf by MSCG and Statoil. 
We invested approximately $60,0 million in capital in eariy 2011 to complete a scheduled turnaround at the refinety. 

Oveniew. Paulsboro has a throughput capacity of 180,000 bpd and a Nelson Complexity Index of 13.2. The Paulsboro refinety is Located on 
approximately 950 acres on the Delaware River in Paulsboro, New Jersey, just south of Philadelphia and approximately 30 miles a\ray fiom Delaware City. 
Paulsboro receives crade and feedstocks via its marine terminal on the Delaware Rivet Paulsboro is one oftwo operating refineries on the East Coast mth 
coking capacity, the other being Delaware City. Major units al the Paulsboro refinety include crade distillation units, vacuum distillation units, an FCC unit, 
a delayed coking unit, a lube oil processing unit and a propane deasphalting unit 

The Paulsboro refinety primarily processes a variety of medium and heavy, sour crade oils but can ran light, sweet crade oils as well. Hie Paulsboro 
refinety predominantly produces gasoline, diesel foels and jet foci and also manufoctures Group I base oils or lubricants. In addition to its finished clean 
products slate, Paulsboro produces asphalt and petroleum coke. 

Paolsboro Refinery Process Flow Diagram 
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lite following table approximates the Paulsboro refinery's major process unit capacities. Unit capacities are shown in barrels per stream day. 

prodtict C0ak:6. priortp Juhc:30,.2()I3, vw.spld the.buii< of Pa^iIsbortiVclean products lo MSCG throu^ an offtake agrcciticnl; Wtii the exception of 
certiiin jcl fuct^nd lubricant inieS.-MSCG purchased I QiO^ bYourfinishcdcIcari products and inteimediateliihdcr the offtake agrcemciit. During Ihe term of 
the jcifftake^^iC^ent, v^ ;so,Id .the remaitidcr'OfpurrcifiRed products directty to a variety of customera on the spot maricet or through lemi agreements. 
SubK^uchtto;the.teTmiiia|i6n:PXi)ic Pf^kc n&Hcct iiiid sell all ofour refined products independently to a variety of customers on Uic ^o t 
maiket or through leim agreements. 

Jnveniorylnteniiiidta/ion'Agiv^m^^ June 26,2013. the Company entered into aalnVentoty. Inicnbedtaiipn Agiceriii:!!! iWilh J.Arô n lb Kipj^rt the 
Qperaii6nis.of the Paiiiliboi* ttfln̂ ^̂  uppii the termination .of the product offtake agrramcnt with M^cd.Putsuantio. Uic InVciitoty 
meXniediationAgn:cnK;.nt,:L.ATOB purchased aU of ihe Products locat^ 
the iSodiicls produced and delivered into the refinety's storage tanks on a daily basis. J. Aron fUrthcragrees lo sell lo .us on ia .daily b^.5 the'Pi^.d.ucls 
delivered out ofthe refinety's storage tanks. 

Tankage Capacity. The Paulsboro refinety has total storage capacity of approximately 7,5 million batrels, Ofthe total, approximately 2.1 million 
barrels are dedicated to crade oil storage with the remaining 5.4 million barrets allocated to finished products, intermediates and other products. 

Eitergy and Other t'/(/j//i@£Und<:irn6rira[ Operating coitditipns, ihie Paulsboro refinety consutncs.approxin)aieIjr 30,000 M^iBtU perday of natural 
gas; Tlie Paulsboro reiincty is virtually self-sufliaent fbr its eleclri!::̂ !. poyirr retitiiiictnctttis. liie, refinety supplies appioxî tMilcty 90%-Of its .63 MW load 
S)ipu# 8 c^riibiiiiation'p^^^ 
g:cncrators~t6c8icd atijic Paul^prb miittyrplant'. in'the cyent.th'iit Paiilsborbi requitts-additional electricity to operate,thc refinety, supplemental power'is 
ayaiJablethfpugh a; local uttltty; Pau l^ ro Is connected tc> the grid via three si^araic ̂ 9 KV aeriial fecdcis arid has the ability to mn entirely on toipotteij 
powet Sliiiai is priinaHiy '̂ 'roduccd by three boili^i each with tontinuous rated capacity of 3O0,Q0O-ibyhr at 900rpsi, bi adtlitton, Paulsbo^ liai « heal 
rccovcty steam generaioraiid a humbei'xilrvvtiste heat boil.ers Ihibughpui the 'rcfmcty that supplement the s.t(£am'generation jcapacit^. i^u^wro's current 
Kydtii^ai needsfare'iTKt by tlie hydrogen supply foom the reformer. In addition, the refinety employs a standajone.is'teani methane refonnertluitis capable of 
pioducingii}MIi«l.SCiRb)bf99*^pii're^ 
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Toledo Reflnery 

A^iii,sitio», TbrbugK bur sub^iaiaiy, Tp\^^o Refining, we acquired tiic Toledo reSnc»y on Match I, 2011, fi^Jn; Sunocp for apprD)titndicty 
;^(^.0:tiitliion^'e!ccludtngu^rkingcapiiiU. Wea^ for approximately $299.6 riullion.and 
.IS!fSCG'pai!bba«<iih,«;r(ijS.n<cry.)|:crade 
10 iV2^.0iniUlon payable id Stihbco'baiM 
2013. 

Oi^ftm.'Tpicdo hasa Uiroughput capacity of approximately 170,006 bpd and a Nelson Complexity lifdipt of 9.2. Toledo primarily processes a slate 
of light, .8>rai:t .etj^4^ f^ni'(Jattia(la, 11̂ ^̂  
and ULSp.ln :addi|ion lo a vanctyof htghrvalue pclr6i;hcipiciiilii î rfcl.uidin̂  npiiene, xylene, tetramer and toluene. 

31):o tbledo r£fiiij:ty.is1,ocalcdona282-4cre site nc^ 
FCC uiiit,:-a ĥ a'<'*"*̂ ck̂ ^̂ ^̂  unil.;.Civ|Jc Is delivered to the Toledo rcfmcty through three pnmaty pipetinw: (1) Ehferidge fr̂ ^̂  
thcnprth^t2)Caplii}o''fiomthcsooOiaRd(3)Mid^^ 
a track unloading facility within the refineiy. 

Toledo Reflnery Process FlowDlaeram 
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Hie following table approximates Ihe Toledo refinety's tnajorprocess unit capacities. Unit capacities are shown in barrels per stream day. 

ReniKry UnlU 

Fluid Catalytic Cracking Unit (FCC) 

Hydrocracking Unit (HCC) 

Nameplate 
Capacity 

79.000 

45,000 

10,000 

I6i00 

Alkylation Unit (Alky) 

UDEX Unit (BTX) 

Feedstocks and Supply Arrangements. Prior to July 31, 2014, we had a crade oil acquisition agreement with MSCGpuraiant to tt4iich we directed 
MSCG to purchase crade and other feedstocks for Toledo. MSCG purchased crade and feedstocks on the spot market. Accordingly, MSCG entered into, on 
our behalf; hedging arrangements to protect against changes in prices between the time of purchase and the time of processing the feedstocks. In addition to 
procurement, MSCG airanged transportation and insurance for Ihe crade and feedstock supply and we paid MSCG a per barrel fee for their procurement and 
logistics services. We paid MSCG on a daily basis for the coiresponding volume of erode or feedstocks two days after they were consumed in conjunction 
with the refining process, litis airangement helped us reduce the amount of investment we were required to maintain in crade inv«itories and, as a result, 
helped us manage our working capital. Subsequent to the tennination ofthe crade oil acquisition agreement with MSCG, we began folly soureing our own 
cmde oil needs for Toledo. 

Product Offtake. Toledo is connected, via pipelines, to an extensive distribution nctworic throughout Ohio, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan, 
Pennsylvania and West Virginia. The finished products are transported on pipelines owned by Sunoco Logistics Partners LJ>. and Buckeye Pattnen. In 
addition, we have proprietaty connections to a variety of smaller pipelines and spurs that help us optimize our clean products distribution. A significant 
portion ofToledo's gasoline and ULSD are distributed through the approximately 28 terminals in this network. 

In March 2011, we entered into an agreement with Sunoco niiierehy Sunoco purchases gasoline and distillate products representing approximately 
one-third ofthe Toledo refinety's gasoline and distillates production. The agreement had a three year term, subject to certain early termination rights. In 
March 2014, Ihe agreement was renewed and extended for another three year term. We sell the bulk ofthe petrochemicals produced at the Toledo refinety 
through short-term contracts or on the spot maiket and Ihe majority ofthe petrochemical distribution ts done via rail. 

Tankage Capacity. The Toledo refinety has total storage capacity of approximately 4.5 million barrels. The Toledo refinety receives its crade through 
pipeline connections and a track rack. Ofthe total, approximately 1.2 million banels are dedicated to crade oil storage with the remaining 3 J million barrels 
allocated lo intetmediates and products. A portion of storage capacity dedicated to crade oil and finished products was transferred to PBFX in conjunction 
with its acquisition ofthe Toledo Storage Facility in December 2014. 

Energy and Other Utilities. Under normal operating conditions, Ihe Toledo refinety consumes approximately 17,000 MMBTU per day of natural gas. 
The Toledo refinety purchase its electricity from a local utility anil has a long-term contract to purchase hydrogen and steam fitim a local third patty 
supplier. In addition to the third party steam supplier, Toledo consumes a portion ofthe steam that is generated by its various process units. 
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Logistics Segment 

Wc forintil PBFX, a publicly traded master limited patitncrahip, to own or lease, operate, dcvcipp aiid.iic^'tiin: crude oil and icfitt<|id;g9irdletim piibduct^ 
tenmnaUi liipeiines, stphi]g^ feal.itit^jibd^^imilatlqg^ic^ assets, iPBFX^ bp^^liptis are aggregated into tiie Lo t t i e s scgmcnl . .PBmxn^^: iii the 
receJVinig, bliR4.iing and transfening ofcmdc oiland (he receipt, 5fpraee.and. ddivety .btctV^e oil,'.rclin^ piodu)fU>ri^ inlcnnediatcs fiom>pu>ces: located 
throiighoUt;{hc ynit{0jS!l.a^ .a^^ 
Energy and ii^'stibstdiaries forsdbh services. PBI^ cuirciiily d i ^ Abt ;gch^ratt! third p^ty t%vcnili:;Bnd thereforeintetsignicnt iclalcd revenues are eliminated 
in consolidaiipn by PBF E n e ^ . Prior to the PBFX Olteritig, PBFX^ assets were operated withm.lite refining pperatioits'bftbeCon^anyVpela^valr^^ 
Toledo refineries. The assets did not generate third party or tntra-entity revenue and were not considered to be a separate reportable segment. 

PBFX's assets consist ofthe following: 

• The DCR Rail l^rmlnal -A 130,000 bpd light erode oil rail unloading temiinal n^ich commenced operations in Febraaty2013 and serves PBF 
Eneigy's Delaware City and Paulsboro refineries. 

• The DCR West Rack - A 40,000 bpd heavy crade oil unloading rack which commenced operations in August 2014 and serves PBF Energy^ 
Delaware City refinety, 

• The Toledo Truck Terminal - A track terminal, currently comprised of six lease automatic custody transfer ("LACT") units, with unloading 
capacity of 22,500 bpd. 

The Toledo Storage Facility - Astorage facility v^iieh ^rvibies PBF Energy's Toledo refinety. and consists of 30 tanks for stprihg cmde oil, refined 
pib'dujPl!! «nd 'intcriTiediat6$ >yilh;aggregate capacity of3.9 million barrels as well as a propane storage and unloading Ricility consisting of27 
propane storage Wtliet '̂aiici a tnick^^^ 

Initial PuMlc Ofiering of PBFX and Subsequent Drop-Down Transactions 

On May 14, 2014, PBFX completed its initial public offering of 15,812,500 common units (including 2,062,500 common units issued pursuant to 
the exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option). Upon completion ofthe PBFX OfTering, PBF LLC held a 50,2% limited partner interesl in PBFX 
(consisting of74,0S3 common units and 15,886,553 subordinated units) and all of PBFX's incentive distribution ri^ts, with the remaining 49.8% limited 
partner interest held by public common unit holdeis. 

^ffeiliycS^teitibcr 30,2014, PBFHpld.ingdi» 
n") ,^ ic t i assets consist solely of tiie belaiviire City heiiVy cHide uitloading rack (iht! "DCR West R ^ ; ^ PBF LLC then ephtributed to PBF3{: all ofthe 
equity intcrciii'bfDK^n ibr IpXaljM 
comiiKni iiriits!̂ 6iie " l^ i ( West'Raclc AC îiisî ^ Th,̂ -DCR West Rack lias an estimated throughput capacity of al least 40,000 bpd. Subsequent to lite EKTR 
West Rack Acquisition, PBF LLC held a 51.1% limited partner interest in PBFX consisting of 663,589 common units and 15,886,553 subordinated units. 

Effective December 11, 2014,1%F LLC contributed to PBFX all ofthe issued and outstanding limited liability company interests of Toledo 
Teiminaling Company LLC ("Toledo Terminaling"X'whose assets consist of a lank farm and related fiicilities located at our Toledo refinety, including a 
propane storage-^nd loading facility {[die *Toledo Storage Facility"), for ibial consideration payable to PBF LLC of S150.0 million consisting of $135.0 
million of cash aind SI5.0 millipd of PBF)C common unils,.or 620,935 common units (Ihe Toledo Storage Facility Acquisition"). Subsequent to the Toledo 
Storage Facility Acquisition, l̂ BF LLC holds a 52.1% limited partner interested in PBFX consisting of 1,284,324 common units and 15,886,553 
subordinated units. 
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Principal Products 

Our refineries make various grades of gasoline, diesel foel, jet foel, and other products ftom crade oil, other feedstocks, and blending components. We 
sell these products through our commercial accounts, and sales with major oil companies. For the years ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012, gasoline 
and distillates accounted for 86.0%, 88.6% and 88,8% of our revenues, re^ectively. 

Customers 

We sell a variety of refined products to a diverae customer base. The majority ofour refined products are primarily sold through short-tenn contracts or 
on the spot market. However, we do have product offtake anangements for a portion ofour clean products. For Ihe year ended December 31,2014, no single 
customer accounted for 10% or more of our revenues. No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our total trade accounts receivable as of 
December 31,2014. 

Forthe year endedDecemberSl, 2013, MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 29% and 10% of our revenues, respectively,. As of December 31, 2013, 
Sunoco accounted for 10% of accounts receivable. 

Forthe year ended December 31,2012, MSCG and Sunoco accounted for 57% and 10% ofthe Company's revenues, re^ectively. 

Seasonality 

Demand for gasoline and diesel is generally higher during Ihe summer months than during the winter months due to seasonal increases in highway 
traffic and construction wotk. Decreased demand during the winter months can lower gasoline and diesel prices. As a result, our operating results forthe first 
and fourth calendar quarters may be lower than those for Ihe second and third calendar quarters of each year. Refining maigins remain volatile and our results 
of operations may not refiect these historical seasonal trends. Most ofthe effects of seasonality on PBIOCs operating results are mitigated through foe-based 
commercial agreements with us that include minimum volume commitments. 

Competition 

Tlie refining business is vety competitive. We compete directly with various other refining companies both on the East and Gulf Coasts and in the 
Mid-Continent, with integrated oil companies, with foreign refinera that import products into the United States and with producers and markelera in other 
industries supplying alternative fonns of energy and foels to satisty the requirements of industrial, commercial and individual consumen. Some ofour 
competitors have expanded the capacity of their refineries and Inti^mationally new refineries are coming on line which could also affect our competitive 
position. 

Profitability in the refining induslty depends largely on refined product margins, which can fluctuate significantiy, as well as crade oil prices and 
differentials between Ihe prices of different grades of crude oil, operating efficiency and reliability, product mix and costs of product distribution and 
transportation. Certain ofour competitois that have laiger and more complex refineries may be able to realize lower per-barrel costs or higher margins per 
barrel of throughput. Several ofour principal competitora are integrated national or international oil companies that are laiger and have substantially greater 
resources. Because of their integrated operations and larger capitalization, these companies may be more flexible in re^onding to volatile induslty or maricet 
conditions, such as shortages offeedstocks or intense price fluctuations. Refining margins are frequently impacted by sharp changes in crade oil costs, which 
may not be immediately reflected in product prices. 

The refiniog induslty is highly competitive with respect to feedstock supply. Unlike certain of our competitors that have access to proprietaty 
controlled sources of cmde oil production available for use at their own refineries, we obtain snbsrantially all ofour crade oil and other foedstodcs from 
unaffiliated sources. The availability and cost ofcnide oil is affected by global supply and demand. We have no cmde oil reserves and are not engaged in the 
exploration or production ofcradebil. We believe, however, that we will be able to obtain adequate crade oil and other feedstocks at generally competitive 
prices for the f^cseeahle foture. 
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Corporate OEScci 

î̂ fe lease approxtm^ely 53,000 square feet for our principal cotporaCe offices in Paraippany, New Jersey. The lease for our principal coiporate offices 
expires in 2016. Functions perfoimed in Ihe parsippany office include overall corporate management, refinety and HSE management, planning and strategy, 
coiporate finance, commercial operations, logistics, contract administration, marketing, investor relations, governmental afi^rs, accounting, tax. trcasuty, 
information technology, legal and human resources support fonctions. 

Employees 

As ofDecember 31,2014, we. had approximately 1,714 employees. At Paulsboro, 275 afour448 employees are covered by a collective bargaining 
agrc'(^en.l-ln'addi'liOii,,659 ofpu;r.1,657 4 ^ 
cirvlp>^Krsbrcr̂ bV:̂ ix^ by acbJJI<^^ 
and fol^o,,most hou'tfy employees are wv«e(l%a.c^^ 
sites were scheduled to expire in Febraaty 2015, the Company successfolly ncgofiatedcarly setttcnt^ts at.bolh location^ ibfoiiigh Fe1iiU8ty'20194Siifiiliiriy, 
at Paulsboro houriy employees are represented by the Independent Oil Woric.cî  0OW) &n̂  yyhilethis coniraci was schcdulixi lb cj^iretn March20i5, the 
Company also negotiated an early settlement with the lOW to expire in March 2018. 

Executive Officen ofthe Registrant 

Tile following is a list ofour executive officers as of Februaty 26,2015: 

Name Age. rodlinn 

Thomas J. Nimbley 63 Chief Executive Officer 

Erik Young 37 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 

Thomas L. OConnor 42 Senipr Vice President, Co-Head of Commercial 

Heamn Seedorf 63 SeniorVicePresidenlofRefining 

wsmmm^^mMm$^mimmm^Mm£&m^m 
Thomas D. O'Malley has served as Executive Chairman ofour Board since ourfoimation in November 2011, served as Executive Chaiiman ofthe 

Board pfDiPKtots of PBF U;JG and its predecMSprsfib 
fiom inccpiibnuntil June20t()..M)vO^a11eyiilsb^~ty<ed to.bdober 
2012.^i'.\P'Malley has alsoscrvcd as the Chaitman of the ^ a r d bif birecto^ 
industiy. He served as Chairraaii of the BoaMbf Petroplus HoMingsA.G., listed on the Swiss Exchang^^ 
Executive Officer from May 2006 until S^lcmlxJr 2007. Mr. O'Malley was Chainihiii tiflhcBoaiid o f P ^ 
Fortune 230 con^any listed on the NYSE, from Februaty 2002 until its sale to S^icrb i'liXugusi 2005 ahd yî 'siCttief Exe6'utiv<; Officierfo}̂  to 
Januaty 2005<Bel!oni joining Premcot; Mr. O'Malley was Chairman and Chief Executive CtfEicer ofTosco Corporation ("Tosco"). This Fortune 100 company, 
listed on the T*IYS$̂  was the largest independent oil refiner and marketer of oil products in the United States, with annualized revenues of approximately 
$25,0 billion when it merged witii Hiillips Petroleum Company ("Phillips") in September 2001, 

7Aomas7. MmMey has served on our Board of Directors since October 2014. He has served as ourChief Executive Officer since June 2010 and was our 
Executive Vice President, Chief (derating Officer from March 
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